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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Commission File No. 1-10410

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 62-141175¢
(State of incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
One Caesars Palace Drive, Las Vegas, Neva 89109
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
(702) 407-6000

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, $0.01 par valu NASDAQ Global Select Market
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405co8#turities Act. Yes™ No x
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes™ No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti9s. Yesx No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pumsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of tiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Yes No ~

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgealdfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting

company. See definitions of “large accelerated,fifaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer’ Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer” Smaller reporting company”
(Do not check if a smalle
reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbel company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes © No x
The aggregate market value of common stock heldooyaffiliates of the registrant as of June 30,2@/hs $468.8 million.
As of March 9, 2012, the registrant had 125,297 ditdtes of Common Stock outstandi
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PART I

ITEM 1. Business
Overview

Caesars Entertainment Corporation (referred taigdiscussion, together with its consolidated glidges where appropriate, as
“Caesars,” “Caesars Entertainment,” the “Compaftwg,” “our” and “us”), a Delaware corporation, iset world’s most diversified casino-
entertainment provider and the most geographictllgrse U.S. casino-entertainment company. Oumiessiis primarily conducted through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Caesars Entertainment &jpeg Company, Inc. (“CEOC”) although certain mikproperties are not owned by
CEOC. As of December 31, 2011, we owned, operateahanaged, through various subsidiaries, 52 casm2 U.S. states and seven
countries. The majority of these casinos operatherUnited States and England. Our casino ententit facilities operate primarily under
Harrah's, Caesars, and Horseshoe brand names Uniter] States. Our casino entertainment facilitietude 33 land-based casinos, 12
riverboat or dockside casinos, three managed casindndian lands in the United States, one manegsitio in Canada, one casino combined
with a greyhound racetrack, one casino combineld avthoroughbred racetrack, and one casino combiitech harness racetrack. Our land-
based casinos include one in Uruguay, nine in Exglane in Scotland, two in Egypt, and one in Sd\ftica. As of December 31, 2011, our
facilities had an aggregate of approximately thnéon square feet of gaming space and approxipat®,000 hotel rooms. Our industry-
leading customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, éxaer 40 million members. We use the Total Rewaydtem to market promotions and to
generate customer play across our network of ptiggein addition, we own an online gaming businessviding for real money casino, bin
and poker games in the United Kingdom, allianceh wnline gaming providers in Italy and Franceajpfor fun” offerings in other
jurisdictions, social games on Facebook and otheiabkmedia websites, and mobile application platf® We also own and operate the W
Series of Poker tournament and brand.

We were incorporated on November 2, 1989 in Delavead operated under predecessor companies psackodate. Our principal
executive offices are located at One Caesars PBlace, Las Vegas, Nevada 89109, telephone (702)6000.

On January 28, 2008, Caesars was acquired byatgfliof Apollo Global Management, LLC (“Apollo”) dmffiliates of TPG Capital, LP
(together with such affiliates, “TPG” and, togetléth Apollo, the “Sponsors”) in an all-cash traosan, hereinafter referred to as the
“Acquisition,” valued at approximately $30.7 billion, includingtassumption of $12.4 billion of debt, and the mence of approximately $1
billion of acquisition costs. Subsequent to the éisiion, our stock was no longer publicly traded.

Effective February 8, 2012, as the result of owljowffering, our common stock trades on the NASD&lobal Select Market under the
symbol “CZR.” In connection with the public offegnthe Company effected a 1.742-fave split of its common stock. Unless otherwiséest,
all applicable share and per-share data preseeteththave been retroactively adjusted to givecetfethis stock split.

Description of Busines

We have established a rich history of industry-legdrowth and expansion since we commenced cagiamtions in 1937. We own or
manage casino entertainment facilities in moresatie@ughout the United States than any othergdaatit in the casino industry. In addition to
casinos, our facilities typically include hotel acmhvention space, restaurants, and non-gamingt@int@ent facilities. The descriptions below
are as of December 31, 2011, except where othervoissl.

In southern Nevada, Harrah's Las Vegas, Rio AlikStiotel & Casino, Caesars Palace, Bally’s Las ¥eBtamingo Las Vegas, Paris
Las Vegas, Planet Hollywood Resort and Casino, tiapBalace Hotel & Casino, Bill's Gamblin’ Hall &aloon, and Hot Spot Oasis are
located in Las Vegas and draw customers from througthe United States. Harrah’s Laughlin is lodatear both the Arizona and California
borders and draws customers primarily from thetsent California and Phoenix metropolitan areas md, lesser extent, from throughout the
U.S. via charter aircratft.

In northern Nevada, Harrah’s Lake Tahoe and HarResort & Casino are located near Lake Tahoe amhhfa Reno is located in
downtown Reno. These facilities draw customers arily from northern California, the Pacific Northgteand Canada.

Our Atlantic City casinos, Harrah’s Resort Atlan@ity, Showboat Atlantic City, Caesars Atlanticyziand Bally’s Atlantic City, draw
customers primarily from the Philadelphia metrofaoliarea, New York, and New Jersey.
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Harrah’s Chester is a combination harness racetrack asidockcated approximately six miles south of Rielahia International Airpol
and draws customers primarily from the Philadelph&tropolitan area and Delaware. At December 311 2&e had a 95% ownership interest
in and manage this property. In February 2012, wehmsed an additional 4.5% interest, bringingtotal ownership interest in this property
99.5%.

Our Chicagoland dockside casinos, Harrah's Jatidbiiet, Illinois, and Horseshoe Hammond in Hamdhdndiana, draw customers
primarily from the greater Chicago metropolitanaar® southern Indiana, we own Horseshoe Southetiana, a dockside casino complex
located in Elizabeth, Indiana, which draws custampeimarily from northern Kentucky, including theuisville metropolitan area, and
southern Indiana, including Indianapolis.

In Louisiana, we own Harrah’s New Orleans, a laadda casino located in downtown New Orleans, waitracts customers primarily
from the New Orleans metropolitan area. In nortiivkesiisiana, Horseshoe Bossier City, a docksidéoasind Harrah'’s Louisiana Downs, a
thoroughbred racetrack with slot machines, bothatied in Bossier City, cater to customers in norstes Louisiana and east Texas, including
the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area.

On the Mississippi gulf coast, we own the Grandi@aBiloxi, located in Biloxi, Mississippi, whichaters to customers in southern
Mississippi, southern Alabama, and northern Florida

Harrah’s North Kansas City and Harrah’s St. Lobisth dockside casinos, draw customers from the &a@éty and St. Louis
metropolitan areas, respectively. Harrah’s Metrigpgl a dockside casino located in Metropolisndis, on the Ohio River, drawing customers
from southern lllinois, western Kentucky, and cahfrennessee.

Horseshoe Tunica, HarrahTunica, and Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casino, sidekcasino complexes located in Tunica, Mississarg
approximately 30 miles from Memphis, Tennesseedaad customers primarily from the Memphis area aod, lesser extent, from through
the U.S. via charter aircraft.

Horseshoe Casino and Bluffs Run Greyhound Paind-based casino and pari-mutuel facility, and &tdsrCouncil Bluffs Casino &
Hotel, a dockside casino facility, are located ou@cil Bluffs, lowa, across the Missouri River fradbmaha, Nebraska. At Horseshoe Casino
and Bluffs Run Greyhound Park, we own the asséisrdhan gaming equipment, and lease these asgéis iowa West Racing Association
IWRA, a nonprofit corporation, and we manage thalifg for the IWRA under a management agreemeipirang in October 2024. lowa law
requires that a qualified nonprofit corporationchBluffs Run’s gaming and pari-mutuel licenses anah its gaming equipment. The license to
operate Harrah’s Council Bluffs Casino & Hotel eddhjointly with IWRA, the qualified sponsoring agization. The Sponsorship and
Operations Agreement between IWRA and us terminaeBecember 31, 2015, subject to our option terakthe term of the agreement for
five succeeding three year terms, provided we aténndefault.

Caesars Windsor, located in Windsor, Ontario, dremgomers primarily from the Detroit metropolitarea. We have a 50% ownership
interest in a company that manages Caesars WintiserConrad Resort & Casino located in Punta D&, Bdruguay, draws customers
primarily from Argentina and Uruguay.

We own four casinos in London: the Sportsman, tbhieléh Nugget, The Playboy Club London (formerly wmmcas the Rendezvous), and
The Casino at the Empire. Our casinos in Londowdnastomers primarily from the London metropolitea as well as international visitors.
We also own Alea Nottingham, Alea Glasgow, AleadsseManchester235, Rendezvous Brighton, and RendszZsouthend-on-Sea in the
provinces of the United Kingdom, which primarilyaslr customers from their local areas. Pursuantcanaession agreement, we also operate
two casinos in Cairo, Egypt, The London Club C&ivhich is located at the Ramses Hilton) and CagSai® (which is located at the Four
Seasons Cairo), which draw customers primarily faiher countries in the Middle East. Emerald Safadated in the province of Gauteng in
South Africa, draws customers primarily from SoAfrica.

We also earn fees through our management of tlasiaas for Indian tribes:

. Harrah’s Phoenix Ak-Chin, located near Phoenixz@inia, which we manage for the Ak-Chin Indian Comitywmnder a
management agreement that expires in December Platrah’s Phoenix Ak-Chin draws customers fromPBheenix metropolitan
area;

. Harrat’s Cherokee Casino and Hotel, which we manage éE#stern Band of Cherokee Indians on their redervian Cherokee
North Carolina under a management contract thatexmn November 2018. Harr's Cherokee draws customers from eastern
Tennessee, western North Carolina, northern GeargiaSouth Carolin:
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. Harrat’s Rincon Casino and Resort, located near San Diggldornia, which we manage for the Rincon Sarsenb Band o
Mission Indians under a management agreement xpaes in November 2013. Harrah’s Rincon drawsaustrs from the San
Diego metropolitan area and Orange County, Califgraind

. We own and operate Bluegrass Downs, a harnessaekéddcated in Paducah, Kentucky, and we own ahatienterest in Turfwa
Park LLC, which is the owner of the Turfway Parkrbughbred racetrack in Boone County, KentuckyfWay Park LLC owns a
minority interest in Kentucky Downs LLC, which iset owner of the Kentucky Downs racetrack locatelimpson County,
Kentucky.

We also own and operate Thistledown Racetrackomtighbred racing facility, located near Cleveladio.

In December 2010, we formed a joint venture, Robkloaesars LLC, with Rock Gaming, LLC (“Rock Ganiiy to pursue casino
developments in Cincinnati and Cleveland. We harermrity investment in the venture and will manalge two casinos, Horseshoe Clevel
and Horseshoe Cincinnati, being developed by théuve, which are expected to open in May 2012 hadsecond quarter of 2013,
respectively. As part of our investment, we agreecontribute Thistledown Racetrack to the ventatdject to certain conditions.

In March 2011, we acquired an interest in Sterfugfolk Racecourse, LLC, which owns a horse-ra¢iagk in Boston, Massachusetts,
along with an option to purchase additional intey@®d the right to manage a potential future ggrfaaility.

In May 2011, Caesars Interactive Entertainmenelstad. (“CIEI"), a subsidiary of Caesars InteigetEntertainment, Inc., which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of Caesars Entertainmaecquired 51% of the voting equity interests ofyRka Ltd. (“Playtika”), a social games
developer based in Israel. In December 2011, wehased the remaining outstanding shares of Playtika

In September 2011, we filed an application with $ttate of Maryland for the license to operate &eibbttery terminal (“VLT")facility in
the City of Baltimore. The application was filed behalf of a venture that includes Caesars Enteniant as the lead investor and facility
manager, Rock Gaming, LLC, CVPR Gaming HoldingsCl.end The Stronach Group.

We also operate the World Series of Poker tourn&nand we license trademarks for a variety of pet&land businesses related to this
brand. We also offer real money online gaming & tnited Kingdom under the WSOP and Caesars brasdsell as alliances with online
poker providers in France and Italy. In additior, @ffer online “play for fun” casino genre gamesésidents globally online, through
Facebook and other social networks, and on iOSAaabloid mobile devices. Going forward, we intendféer real money gaming in
jurisdictions where it is lega

We also own Caesars Golf Macau which operatesfacgatse on 175 acres of prime real estate thrauigimd concession on the Cotai
strip in Macau.

Additional information about our casino entertaimtnproperties is set forth below in ltem 2, “Prdjes.”

Sales and Marketing

We believe that our North American distributiontgys of casino entertainment provides us the aliitgapture a disproportionate share
of our customers’ entertainment wallet when thayeét among markets, which is core to our cross-giaskategy. In addition, we have several
multi-property markets like Las Vegas, AtlanticyGiand Tunica, and we have seen increased revemmecluistomers visiting multiple
properties in the same market. We believe our imgdsading customer loyalty program, Total Rewaidsconjunction with this distribution
system, allows us to capture a growing share otastomers’ entertainment budget and compete nifaetigely.

Our Total Rewards program is structured in tiersying customers an incentive to consolidatertbatertainment spend at our casinos.
Total Rewards customers are able to earn Rewartit€® essentially all of our casino entertainnfantiities located in the U.S. and Canada
for on-property entertainment expenses includinmigg, hotel, dining, and retail shopping. Total Reds members can also redeem Reward
Credits for on-property amenities or other pféperty items such as merchandise, gift cardstravel. Depending on their level of play with
in a calendar year, customers earn status witleimttal Rewards program, designated as Gold, Riatidiamond, or Seven Stars customers,
each with increasing sets of benefits. Separatelstomers are provided promotional offers and rde/aased on the ways that they choose to
engage with us. These benefits encourage new castdmjoin Total Rewards and provide existing cosdrs an incentive to consolidate their
play at our casinos.
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We have developed a database containing informatioait our customers, aspects of their casino gaplay, and their preferred
spending choices outside of gaming. We use thatimtion for marketing promotions, including thrbudjrect mail campaigns, the use of
electronic mail, our website, mobile devices, sogiadia, and interactive slot machines.

Patents and Trademarl

The development of intellectual property is parbof overall business strategy, and we regardraaléctual property to be an important
element of our success. While our business as ¢evihaot substantially dependent on any one pateabmbination of several of our patents
or other intellectual property, we seek to estalbdisd maintain our proprietary rights in our busseperations and technology through the use
of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade skoss. We file applications for and obtain pateotspyrights, and trademarks in the United
States and in foreign countries where we beliglirggffor such protection is appropriate. We alseks® maintain our trade secrets and
confidential information by nondisclosure policersd through the use of appropriate confidenti@gyeements. We currently have 31 active
US cases (27 issued patents, 4 pending) and #&dotigign cases (5 issued patents, 2 pending) UTBecases have patent terms that variously
expire between 2012 and 2030.

We have not applied for patents or the registratioall of our technology or trademarks, as theeaasy be, and may not be successful in
obtaining the patents and trademarks for which axeehapplied. Despite our efforts to protect ouippigtary rights, parties may infringe our
patents and use information that we regard as j@tapy, and our rights may be invalidated or unesgable. The laws of some foreign
countries do not protect proprietary rights to esagan extent as do the laws of the United Staiezddition, others may be able independently
to develop substantially equivalent intellectuaipmerty.

We hold the following trademarks used in this doenimHarrah’s, Caesars, Grand Biloxi, Bally’s, Flago, Paris, Caesars Palace, Rio,
Showboat, Bill's, Harveys, Total Rewards, BluffsrRlLouisiana Downs, Reward Credits, Horseshoe, i58¥ars, Tunica Roadhouse and
World Series of Poker. Trademark rights are perdgitovided that the mark remains in use by usddition, we hold trademark licenses for
Planet Hollywood used in connection with the Platellywood Resort & Casino in Las Vegas, NV, whighl expire on February 19, 2045,
and for Imperial Palace used in connection withithperial Palace Las Vegas hotel and casino, wiidltexpire on December 23, 2012. We
consider all of these marks, and the associate@ maoognition, to be valuable to our business.

Competition

We own, operate or manage land-based, docksidgboat, and Indian casino facilities in most U.&sigo entertainment jurisdictions.
We also own, operate, or manage properties in Garithe United Kingdom, South Africa, Egypt, and glray. We compete with numerous
casinos and casino hotels of varying quality amd 8i the market areas where our properties asgddc We also compete with other non-
gaming resorts and vacation areas, and with vadther entertainment businesses. The casino entagat business is characterized by
competitors that vary considerably by their siagliy of facilities, number of operations, brawi@tities, marketing and growth strategies,
financial strength and capabilities, level of antiesj management talent, and geographic diversity.

In most markets, we compete directly with othelirea$acilities operating in the immediate and sunding market areas. In some
markets, we face competition from nearby marketsdidition to direct competition within our markeeas.

In recent years competition in existing marketsihtensified. Many casino operators, includinghssye invested in expanding existing
facilities, developing new facilities, and acqugiestablished facilities in existing markets, sastour acquisition of Caesars Entertainment,
Inc. in 2005 and Planet Hollywood in 2010, our neated and expanded facility in Hammond, Indiana, aur expansion at Caesars Palace in
Las Vegas. This expansion of existing casino egitartent properties, the increase in the numberaggaties, and the aggressive marketing
strategies of many of our competitors has increasetpetition in many markets in which we compete] this intense competition can be
expected to continue.

The expansion of casino entertainment into new siariresents competitive issues for us which hadealnegative impact on our
financial results. In particular, our businesseghaeen adversely impacted by the additional garaimgroom capacity in Nevada, New Jersey,
New York, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Mississippisséburi, Maryland, Michigan, Indiana, lowa, Kansidig)ois, Ohio, Louisiana, Ontaric
South Africa, Uruguay, United Kingdom and Egyptalidition, our operations located in New JerseyMedada have been adversely impa
by the expansion of Indian gaming in New York araifGrnia, respectively.

The casino entertainment industry is also subgepbtitical and regulatory uncertainty. See “Mamaget’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Cétdated Operating Results” and “—Regional OperatResults.”
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2011 Events
Suffolk Downs

In March 2011, we acquired an interest in Sterfhuffolk Racecourse, LLC, which owns a horse-ratiagk in Massachusetts, along
with an option to purchase additional interests thedright to manage a potential future gaminglitsici

In November 2011, Massachusetts enacted a lawvihiadtl allow three destination casinos and onepsolor. Three regions were
established for the casinos and the Commissioutiwazed to issue one casino license in eachesethiegions: Zone A
Suffolk/Middlesex/Essex/Worcester/Norfolk countigene B—Hampshire/Hampden/Franklin/Berkshire counties; Aode C—
Bristol/Plymouth/Nantucket/Dukes/Barnstable countiehe law also allows for a single slot parloetise to be competitively bid. A gaming
commission will be established under the law andidish a bid process for the gaming licenses.

Acquisition of Playtika Lt

In May 2011, CIEI, a subsidiary of Caesars IntévacEntertainment, Inc., which is a majority-owrsdsidiary of Caesars
Entertainment, acquired 51% of the voting equitgriests of Playtika. In December 2011, we purch#ésedemaining 49% of Playtika.

Baltimore, Marylanc

In September 2011, we filed an application with $ttate of Maryland for the license to operate &eoibbttery terminal (“VLT")facility in
the City of Baltimore. The application was filed bahalf of a venture that includes Caesars Entertant as the lead investor and facility
manager, Rock Gaming, LLC, CVPR Gaming HoldingsCl.end The Stronach Group.

Octavius and Ling Projects

In April 2011, the Company, together with certaidirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEOC (the “Buvers”) entered into a credit
agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) pursuant to White Borrowers incurred financing to completedegelopment of the Octavius Tower at
Caesars Palace Las Vegas and a retail, diningrated@nment corridor located between the Impdtahce Hotel and Casino and the
Flamingo Las Vegas on the Las Vegas strip (“Prdj@ug”). The Credit Agreement provides for a $45thllion senior secured term facility
(the “Term Facility”) with a six-year maturity, wtti is secured by all material assets of the Borrswe

Amendment to CEOC Financi

In May 2011, CEOC amended its Credit Facilitiesatmong other things: (i) allow CEOC to buy backieé&om individual lenders at
negotiated prices at any time, which may be leas tiar, (ii) allow CEOC to extend the maturity efrh loans or revolving commitments, as
applicable, and for CEOC to otherwise modify thante of loans or revolving commitments in connectidgth such an extension, and
(iii) modify certain other provisions of the crefhicilities. CEOC also extended its Credit Fa@btby (i) converting $799.4 million of B-1, B-2
and B-3 term loans held by consenting lenders ®t8m loans with an extended maturity date of dan@d8, 2018 and a higher interest rate
with respect to such extended term loans (the ‘ifitleéd Term Loans”) and (ii) converting $423.3 mitliof revolver commitments held by
consenting lenders into Extended Term Loans.

Project Renews

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we embarked on agauization we refer to as “Project Renewd&lrider Project Renewal, our managen
team was challenged to review all of our key decishaking procedures and lines of business andktttify the optimum way of structuring
them given our breadth and scale of product offexir\s a result of the process, in the third quat®011, we designed a unique shared
services organization that will enable more effitidecision making and sharing of best practicéss @rganization includes business analy
meetings and conventions, retail, database matke¥it® marketing, our flight program, and other lkagas of our operations. We anticipate
that our company will have a permanently lower abatcture and will benefit from greater concembrabf specified talent and quicker
decision making. To ensure that the impact fronjeetdRenewal is reflected in our financial perfonmoa and that each planned initiative is
executed, we track our progress centrally anddatailed fashion. The savings value for each itiais calculated by predicting the change in
the expense level compared to the current expenséunder constant business volumes and condit®ees “Risk Factors—Risks Related to
our Business—We may not realize any or all of awjgrted cost savings, which would have the eféceducing our LTM Adjusted
EBITDA—Pro Forma, which would have a negative effect anresults of operations and negatively impact @wenant calculation and cot
have a negative effect on our stock price.



Table of Contents

2012 Events
Chester Bond Offering

In February 2012, Chester Downs issued $330.0anilliggregate principal amount of 9.25% senior sgtootes due 2020 through a
private placement. Chester Downs used $232.4 mitliche proceeds of the notes to repay its exjggnm loan plus accrued interest and a
prepayment penalty. The remaining proceeds werg tasmake a distribution to Chester Downs’ managimgmber, Harrah’s Chester Downs
Investment Company, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiei'“"EOC, and for other general corporate purposes.

Caesars public offering and stock split

In February 2012, CEC offered 1.8 million sharegtommon stock in a public offering (the “Publiéfering”), at $9.00 per share. The
Company received net proceeds of approximately2bifilion after taking into account expenses andamvriting commissions and giving
effect to the exercise of the underwriters’ ovextatient option. Under this option, the Company gedrib the underwriters, and the
underwriters subsequently exercised, a 30-day optigpurchase 271,697 additional shares of its comstock at the initial price less
underwriting discounts and commissions. CEC used#t proceeds from the Public Offering for geneoaporate purposes. As the result of
our public offering, our common stock trades onRASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “CZR. connection with the public
offering, the Company effected a 1.742-for-onetsylits common stock.

Co-Investors Transaction

In connection with the Company’s public offeringaég3ars and the Sponsors agreed to release thaatoattransfer restrictions on the
shares of our common stock (the “Released Shabesigficially owned by certain indirect stockholdéte “Participating Co-Investors”). The
Released Shares comprised 24.2 million sharesrafa@umon stock. In consideration for such reletise Participating Co-Investors agreed to
direct the contribution to Caesars of a portiothef Released Shares beneficially owned by eacicipating Co-Investor, which were sold by
Caesars in its public offering in February 2012e€as agreed to cause the registration for regalerihe Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
of the remaining Released Shares not constitutieljv€red Shares (the “Registered Shares”) anddlied of the Registered Shares on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market. 50% of the Registe®dires were eligible for resale at the time ofemurity offering in February 2012, a
the Participating Co-Investors agreed not to affesell, dispose of or hedge, directly or indirgcthe remaining 50% of the Registered Shares
without the permission of the underwriters in oquigy offering until 180 days from the pricing ofiopublic offering, subject to certain
exceptions and automatic extension in certain pistances. We refer to the transaction with thei¢daating Co-Investors as the “Qovestors
Transaction.”

CEOC Bond Offering

In February 2012, Caesars Operating Escrow LLCGambsars Escrow Corporation, wholly owned subsieaof CEOC, completed the
offering of $1,250.0 million aggregate principal @mt of 8.5% senior secured notes due 2020, theepos of which were placed into escrow.
On March 1, 2012, the escrow conditions were satisind CEOC assumed the notes. CEOC used $1,886ch of the net proceeds from
this transaction to repay a portion of its credadilities in connection with the amendment discddselow.

Amendment to CEOC Credit Faciliti

On March 1, 2012, CEOC entered into an amendmeitd tutstanding senior secured credit agreemenanhong other things, (i) extend
the maturity of B-1, B-2 and B-3 term loans helddmynsenting lenders from January 28, 2015 to Jgr28r2018 and increase the interest rate
with respect to such extended term loans (the “TBrénLoans”); (ii) convert original maturity revatv commitments held by consenting
lenders to Term B-6 Loans and promptly followinglsweonversion, repay Term 8Loans held by any consenting lender in an ameqgual tc
10% of the amount of revolver commitments that dedlder elected to convert; (iii) extend the mayuoif original maturity revolver
commitments held by consenting lenders who elettaoonvert their commitments to term loans, fréemuary 28, 2014 to January 28, 2017
and increase the interest rate and the undrawn domemt fee with respect to such extended revoleenmmitments and upon the effectiveness
of such
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extension, terminate 20% of extended revolver camerits on a pro rata basis; and (iv) modify certdiver provisions of the credit facilities.
In addition to the foregoing, the CEOC may eleagxtend and/or convert additional term loans andeolver commitments from time to tinr

Governmental Regulation

The gaming industry is highly regulated, and we thmogintain our licenses and pay gaming taxes td¢irmea our operations. Each of our
casinos is subject to extensive regulation undefatvs, rules, and regulations of the jurisdictidrere it is located. These laws, rules, and
regulations generally concern the responsibilityarficial stability, and character of the ownerspagers, and persons with financial interes
the gaming operations. Violations of laws in ongsjdiction could result in disciplinary action ither jurisdictions. A more detailed descript
of the regulations to which we are subject is cietzd in Exhibit 99.3 to this Annual Report on FotG+K, which Exhibit is incorporated herein
by reference.

Our businesses are subject to various foreignréédstate, and local laws and regulations, intioldito gaming regulations. These laws
and regulations include, but are not limited tstrietions and conditions concerning alcoholic vages, environmental matters, employees,
currency transactions, taxation, zoning and bugdiades, and marketing and advertising. Such lamsegulations could change or could be
interpreted differently in the future, or new laarsd regulations could be enacted. Material changes,laws or regulations, or material
differences in interpretations by courts or goveenial authorities could adversely affect our opegatesults.

Employee Relatior

We have approximately 70,000 employees througtvarious subsidiaries. Approximately 28,000 emplayae covered by collective
bargaining agreements with certain of our subsigiarelating to certain casino, hotel and restaugmployees at certain of our properties.
Most of our employees covered by collective barggjragreements are located at our properties iMegms and Atlantic City. Our collective
bargaining agreements with employees located afAtiantic City properties expire at various timésaughout 2014 and 2016 and our
collective bargaining agreements with our employeeated at our Las Vegas properties expire abuartimes throughout 2012 and 2013.

Available Informatior

Our Internet address wgww.caesars.conWe make available free of charge, on or throughveelysite, our annual reports on Form 10-K,
guarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$orm 8-K, and amendments to those reports filefdimished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadr(the “Exchange Act”), as soon as reasonablgtipedble after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities @axichange Commission (the “SEC”). We also makelalvks through our website all filings of
our executive officers and directors on Forms &ntl 5 under Section 16 of the Exchange Act. TFiisgs are also available on the SEC’s
website atvww.sec.govOur Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Praldiifficers is available on our website under thevéstor
Relations” link. We will provide a copy of theseadonents without charge to any person upon recéiptritten request addressed to Caesars
Entertainment Corporation, Attn: Corporate Seciet@ne Caesars Palace Drive, Las Vegas, Nevadé@8&Hderence in this document to our
website address does not constitute incorporatjoreterence of the information contained on the siteb

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
If we are unable to effectively compete against mampetitors, our profits will decline

The gaming industry is highly competitive and oampetitors vary considerably in size, quality dfifiéies, number of operations, brand
identities, marketing, and growth strategies, feiahstrength and capabilities, level of amenitregnhagement talent, and geographic diversity.
We also compete with other non-gaming resorts awdton areas, and with various other entertainmnesinesses. Our competitors in each
market that we participate may have substantiatkager financial, marketing, and other resourcas the do, and there can be no assurance
that they will not, in the future, engage in aggres pricing action to compete with us. Although bedieve we are currently able to compete
effectively in each of the various markets in whied participate, we cannot assure you that webeilable to continue to do so or that we will
be capable of maintaining or further increasing@urent market share. Our failure to compete ssgfadly in our various markets could
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations, and cash flow.
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In recent years, many casino operators have bésresting in existing markets to attract new custosyor to gain market share, thereby
increasing competition in those markets. As comgmhiave completed new expansion projects, supglyyipically grown at a faster pace than
demand in some markets, including Las Vegas, aget market, and competition has increased sagmifly. For example, CityCenter, a large
development of resorts and residences, openeddarbiger 2009 in Las Vegas. The expansion of exis@sino entertainment properties, the
increase in the number of properties and the agiyesmarketing strategies of many of our compedita@ve increased competition in many
markets in which we operate, and this intense coitigreis expected to continue. These competitinespures have and are expected to
continue to adversely affect our financial perfont®in certain markets, including Atlantic City.

In particular, our business may be adversely imgghbly the additional gaming and room capacity indda, New Jersey, New York,
Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Mississippi, Missourgriland, Michigan, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Illind3io, Louisiana, Ontario, South Africa,
Uruguay, United Kingdom, Egypt, and/or other preégawot yet announced which may be competitive éndther markets where we operate or
intend to operate. Several states, such as Kentliekas and Indian tribes are also consideringlengathe development and operation of
casinos or casino-like operations in their jurifidics. In addition, our operations located in Nearsdy and Nevada may be adversely impacted
by the expansion of Indian gaming in New York aradifdrnia, respectively.

The recent downturn in the national economy, thelatlity and disruption of the capital and credit arkets, and adverse changes in the
global economy could negatively impact our finant@erformance and our ability to access financin

The severe economic downturn over the past fewsyaad adverse conditions in the local, regionalpnal and global markets have
negatively affected our operations, and may costilounegatively affect our operations in the futibaring periods of economic contraction
such as recently experienced, our revenues magasemwhile some of our costs remain fixed or emerease, resulting in decreased earnings.
Gaming and other leisure activities we offer repregliscretionary expenditures and participatiosuioh activities may decline during
economic downturns, during which consumers geneealin less disposable income. For example, kegrétants of our revenues and
operating performance include hotel Average DadyeR“ADR”), number of gaming trips and averagerspper trip by our customers. Given
that 2007 was the peak year for our financial pentnce and the gaming industry in the United Stiatgeneral, we may not attain those
financial levels in the near term, or at all. If fedl to increase ADR or any other similar metricthe near term, our revenues may not increase
and, as a result, we may not be able to pay dowexisting debt, fund our operations, fund planoapital expenditures or achieve expected
growth rates, all of which could have a materialeade effect on our business, financial conditind eesults of operations. Even an uncertain
economic outlook may adversely affect consumerdipgrin our gaming operations and related facgiti@s consumers spend less in
anticipation of a potential economic downturn. Rartmore, other uncertainties, including national global economic conditions, terrorist
attacks or other global events, could adverselcaifonsumer spending and adversely affect ouatipes.

We are subject to extensive governmental regulatiord taxation policies, the enforcement of whichutd adversely impact our business,
financial condition, and results of operation:

We are subject to extensive gaming regulationspatitical and regulatory uncertainty. Regulatoryhasities in the jurisdictions where
we operate have broad powers with respect to tkading of casino operations and may revoke, sdsgendition or limit our gaming or oth
licenses, impose substantial fines and take ottteres, any one of which could adversely impactlmusiness, financial condition and result
operations. For example, revenues and income fimenations were negatively impacted during July 2i@0&tlantic City by a three-day
government-imposed casino shutdown. Furthermoneany jurisdictions where we operate, licensegeaated for limited durations and
require renewal from time to time. For examplelawa, our ability to continue our gaming operatiémsubject to a referendum every eight
years or at any time upon petition of the voterthincounty in which we operate; the most recefereadum which approved our ability
continue to operate our casinos occurred in Novera®20. There can be no assurance that continuadthgactivity will be approved in any
referendum in the future. If we do not obtain thguisite approval in any future referendum, we wilt be able to operate our gaming
operations in lowa, which would negatively impaat éuture performance.

From time to time, individual jurisdictions havesalconsidered legislation or referendums, suctaas bn smoking in casinos and other
entertainment and dining facilities, which couldraxsely impact our operations. For example, thg Cduncil of Atlantic City passed an
ordinance in 2007 requiring that we segregateast|85% of the casino gaming floor as a nonsmoéieg, leaving no more than 25% of the
casino gaming floor as a smoking area. lllinoi® gdassed the Smoke Free lllinois Act which becaffeetive January 1, 2008, and bans
smoking in nearly all public places, including haestaurants, work places, schools and casinasAthalso bans smoking within 15 feet of
any entrance, window or air intake area of thed#ipplaces. These smoking bans have adverselgtaffeevenues and operating results a
properties. The likelihood or outcome of similagitdation in other jurisdictions and referendumshia future cannot be predicted, though any
smoking ban would be expected to negatively impactiinancial performance.
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The casino entertainment industry represents dfisignt source of tax revenues to the various glicgsons in which casinos operate.
From time to time, various state and federal legisk and officials have proposed changes in t&g,lar in the administration of such laws,
including increases in tax rates, which would dftee industry. If adopted, such changes could e impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The acquisition, development and construction ofiméotels, casinos and gaming and non-gaming venaesd the expansion of existing
ones could have an adverse effect on our businésancial condition and results of operations due various factors including delays, cost
overruns and other uncertainties.

We intend to develop, construct and open or acaquéme hotels, casinos and other gaming venues, khasvdevelop and manage non-
gaming venues, in response to opportunities thgtamae. Future development projects and acquisitinay require significant capital
commitments, the incurrence of additional debtrgngees of third party debt, the incurrence of ingent liabilities and an increase in
depreciation and amortization expense , which cbhalte an adverse effect upon our business, finbommnalition and results of operations. The
development and construction of new hotels, casimalsgaming venues and the expansion of existieg,@uch as our recent expansion at
Caesars Palace in Las Vegas, as well as the denetd@and construction of non-gaming venues sudraiect Ling in Las Vegas and Caesars
Palace Longmu Bay, are susceptible to various askkuncertainties, such as:

. the existence of acceptable market conditions @&maaehd for the completed proje

. general construction risks, including cost overruisnge orders and plan or specification modificatshortages of equipmel
materials or skilled labor, labor disputes, unfesssenvironmental, engineering or geological pmollevork stoppages, fire and
other natural disasters, construction scheduliodplpms, and weather interferenc

. changes and concessions required by governmentagolatory authorities

. the ability to finance the projects, especiallyigit of our substantial indebtedne

. delays in obtaining, or inability to obtain, akkdinses, permits and authorizations required to tEimpnd/or operate the project; ¢
. disruption of our existing operations and facibti

Moreover, our development and expansion projegsametimes jointly pursued with third parties piibensing our brands to third
parties. These joint development, expansion prejecticense agreements are subject to risks,ditiad to those disclosed above, as they are
dependent on our ability to reach and maintainergents with third parties. For example, we madil avith Rock Gaming LLC and other
local investors for a video lottery terminal fatilin Baltimore, Maryland and we can give no assoes that the bid will be awarded to us, that
we will reach definitive agreements with the otparties that comprise the bid, or that the devekproject will be undertaken.

Our failure to complete any new development or esfn project, or consummate any joint developmexpiansion projects or projects
where we license our brands, as planned, on sahedithin budget or in a manner that generatesipatied profits, could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

We may sell different properties as a result of aaraluation of our portfolio of businesses. Suchvdstitures would affect our costs,
revenues, profitability and financial position.

From time to time, we evaluate our properties aag,ras a result, sell or attempt to sell diffeqenaiperties. These divestitures affect our
costs, revenues, profitability and financial pasiti

Divestitures have inherent risks, including possitiélays in closing transactions (including potardifficulties in obtaining regulatory
approvals), the risk of lower-than-expected satesgreds for the divested businesses, and pot@osaiclosing claims for indemnification. In
addition, current economic conditions and relativitiquid real estate markets may result in fewetential bidders and unsuccessful sales
efforts. Expected costs savings, which are offgaelvenue losses from divested properties, maylasdifficult to achieve or maximize due to
our fixed cost structure.

We may incur impairments to goodwill, indefiniteviéd intangible assets, or long-lived assets whiohld negatively affect our future profits

In accordance with the authoritative accountinglgote for goodwill and other intangible assetstesé our goodwill and indefinitived
intangible assets for impairment annually or ifiggering event occurs. Each year, we perform &rpirgary annual impairment assessment of
goodwill and other non-amortizing intangible assetof September 30. In the fourth quarter of geetn, we update our preliminary
assessment once we finalize our long-term operaiizng and certain other
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assumptions, however, as discussed below, if dimates of projected cash flows related to thesetasare not achieved, we may be subject to
a future impairment charge, which could have a nmealtadverse impact on our consolidated finandiaiesnents. In addition, in accordance \

the provisions of the authoritative accounting guice for the impairment or disposal of long-livedets, we test long-lived assets for
impairment if a triggering event occurs.

We are dependent upon our properties for futurke flas/s and our continued success depends on dlity &b draw customers to our
properties. Significant negative industry or ecoitrends, reduced estimates of future cash flaliguptions to our business, slower growth
rates or lack of growth in our business have redluh significant write-downs and impairment chardaring the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, and during the period from Janu@r®@08 through December 31, 2008, and, if onearerof such events occurs in the fut
additional impairment charges may be required forRiperiods. If we are required to record addaldompairment charges, this could have a
material adverse impact on our consolidated firerstatements.

Acts of terrorism and war, natural disasters andveee weather may negatively impact our future pisf

Terrorist attacks and other acts of war or hogtiliive created many economic and political unceres. For example, a substantial
number of our customers for our properties in Lagas use air travel. On September 11, 2001, atesrofism occurred in New York City,
Pennsylvania and Washington, D.C. As a result @¢hterrorist acts, domestic and internationaktrasas severely disrupted, which resulte
a decrease in customer visits to our propertiéamVegas. We cannot predict the extent to whishugitions in air or other forms of travel as a
result of any further terrorist act, security adest war, uprisings, or hostilities in places sasHrag and Afghanistan, other countries throug
the world will continue to directly or indirectlyripact our business and operating results. For ebeamopr operations in Cairo, Egypt were
negatively affected from the uprising there in Jag2011. As a consequence of the threat of tetratiacks and other acts of war or hostility
in the future, premiums for a variety of insurapceducts have increased, and some types of inseli@ecno longer available. Given current
conditions in the global insurance markets, wesatestantially under insured for losses and intéiwnp caused by terrorist acts and acts of
war. If any such event were to affect our propsrtiee would likely be adversely impacted.

In addition, natural and man-made disasters suchagar fires, floods, hurricanes, earthquakes ahspdls could also adversely impact
our business and operating results. For example,dbour properties were closed for an extendetgef time due to the damage sustained
from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in August and Sayier 2005, respectively. Such events could ledldetdoss of use of one or more of our
properties for an extended period of time and gisowr ability to attract customers to certain of gaming facilities. If any such event were to
affect our properties, we would likely be adversetpacted. Seven of our properties were closechdutie first half of 2011 due to flooding
and severe weather conditions. Additionally, in Asig2011, our casinos in Atlantic City were closieding a busy summer weekend due to
Hurricane Irene.

In most cases, we have insurance that covers pertibany losses from a natural disaster, butstlgect to deductibles and maximum
payouts in many cases. Although we may be coveyeddurance from a natural disaster, the timingufreceipt of insurance proceeds, if ¢
is out of our control. In some cases, however, \illergceive no proceeds from insurance, such asdmgiust 2011 closing in Atlantic City.

Additionally, a natural disaster affecting one asrmof our properties may affect the level and obstisurance coverage we may be able
to obtain in the future, which may adversely affeat financial position.

As our operations depend in part on our custonadidity to travel, severe or inclement weather also have a negative impact on our
results of operations.

Our business is particularly sensitive to energyigas and a rise in energy prices could harm our ogiing results.

We are a large consumer of electricity and othergnand, therefore, higher energy prices may lavadverse effect on our results of
operations. Accordingly, increases in energy costy have a negative impact on our operating residtditionally, higher electricity and
gasoline prices which affect our customers mayltrésueduced visitation to our resorts and a reiducin our revenues. We may be indirectly
impacted by regulatory requirements aimed at reduttie impacts of climate change directed at ugastrutility providers, as we could
experience potentially higher utility, fuel, andnsportation costs.

Work stoppages and other labor problems could néggy impact our future profits.

Some of our employees are represented by labonsnflengthy strike or other work stoppage at oheur casino properties or
construction projects could have an adverse effiectur business and results of operations. From toriime, we have also experienced
attempts to unionize certain of our non-union emeés. While these efforts have achieved only lichfteccess to date, we cannot provide any
assurance that we will not experience additiondlmore successful union activity in the future. fehleas been a trend towards unionizatiol
employees in Atlantic City and Las Vegas. The imdi¢his union activity is undetermined and conkbatively impact our profits.
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Our obligation to fund multi-employer pension plarte which we contribute may have an adverse impagtus.

We contribute to and participate in various muttigdoyer pension plans for employees representezbligin unions. We are required to
make contributions to these plans in amounts dstaad under collective bargaining agreements. Weal@dminister these plans and,
generally, are not represented on the boards stfetes of these plans. The Pension Protection Aatted in 2006, or the PPA, requires under-
funded pension plans to improve their funding mtBased on the information available to us, sohteeomulti-employer plans to which we
contribute are either “critical” or “endangered”tasse terms are defined in the PPA. We cannotrméie at this time the amount of additional
funding, if any, we may be required to make to ¢hglans. However, plan assessments could havevansadmpact on our results of
operations or cash flows for a given period. Furti@re, under current law, upon the termination ofidti-employer pension plan, or in the
event of a withdrawal by us, which we consider frigmme to time, or a mass withdrawal or insolven€gantributing employers, we would be
required to make payments to the plan for our prtigoate share of the plan’s unfunded vested ligdsl Any termination of a multi-employer
plan, or mass withdrawal or insolvency of contribgtemployers, could require us to contribute amamh under a plan of rehabilitation or
surcharge assessment that would have a materietsdimpact on our consolidated financial condjtiesults of operations and cash flows.

We extend credit to a portion of our customers amd may not be able to collect gaming receivablesrfrour credit players.

We conduct our gaming activities on a credit arshdaasis at many of our properties. Any such crediextend is unsecured. Table
games players typically are extended more credit 8iot players, and high-stakes players typicaiyextended more credit than customers
who tend to wager lower amounts. High-end gamingadse volatile than other forms of gaming, and aaces in winess results attributable
high-end gaming may have a significant positive@gative impact on cash flow and earnings in dqdar quarter. We extend credit to those
customers whose level of play and financial resesisgarrant, in the opinion of management, an eidaraf credit. These large receivables
could have a significant impact on our results pérations if deemed uncollectible. While gamingtdedvidenced by a credit instrument,
including what is commonly referred to as a “markand judgments on gaming debts are enforceable theeurrent laws of the jurisdictic
in which we allow play on a credit basis and judgtsen such jurisdictions on gaming debts are exfable in all states

under the Full Faith and Credit Clause of the @&nstitution, other jurisdictions may determinetthiaforcement of gaming debts is against
public policy. Although courts of some foreign maus will enforce gaming debts directly and the &sigethe U.S. of foreign debtors may be
reached to satisfy a judgment, judgments on gamhétgs from U.S. courts are not binding on the eooftmany foreign nations.

We may not realize all of the anticipated benefifiscurrent or potential future acquisitions.

Our ability to realize the anticipated benefitsaofjuisitions will depend, in part, on our abilityibtegrate the businesses of such acquired
company with our businesses. The combination ofitdependent companies is a complex, costly ane tiomsuming process. This process
may disrupt the business of either or both of th@ganies, and may not result in the full benefifseeted. The difficulties of combining the
operations of the companies, including our recequisitions of Planet Hollywood in Las Vegas andstledown Racetrack in Cleveland, Ol
include, among others:

. coordinating marketing function

. undisclosed liabilities

. unanticipated issues in integrating informatiomnaaunications and other syster

. unanticipated incompatibility of purchasing, logist marketing and administration metha
. retaining key employee

. consolidating corporate and administrative inflactures;

. the diversion of managemss attention from ongoing business concerns;

. coordinating geographically separate organizati
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We may be unable to realize in whole or in partiiéeefits anticipated for any current or futurelasigions.

We may not realize any or all of our projected cssivings, which would have the effect of reducingrd. TM Adjusted EBITDA, which
would have a negative effect on our results of oggons and negatively impact our covenant calcutatiand could have a negative effect on
our stock price.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2008, we initidte company-wide cost savings plan in an effodlign our expenses with current
revenue levels. In addition, we embarked on Prdfestewal in the fourth quarter of 2010 to identifg optimum way of structuring our
business given our breadth and scale of produetinffs. While these efforts have allowed us toizeadubstantial savings since we initiated
our cost savings plan, our continued reductionreffmay fail to achieve similar or continued saginglthough we believe, as of December 31,
2011, once fully implemented, these cost savinggnams will produce additional estimated annuat sagings of $198.3 million, we may not
realize some or all of these projected savingsauitimpacting our revenues. Our cost savings p@@sntended to increase our effectiveness
and efficiency in our operations without impactmg revenues and margins. Our cost savings plambgct to numerous risks and
uncertainties that may change at any time, andetbee, our actual savings may differ materiallgnfrwhat we anticipate. For example, cutting
advertising or marketing expenses may have anemietd negative affect on our revenues. In addidanexpected savings from procurement
of goods may be affected by unexpected increaseeinost of raw materials. Furthermore, becausasgeour projected yet-foe realized co:
savings as a pro forma adjustment to calculatd.®i¥t Adjusted EBITDA—Pro Forma-€EOC Restricted, our actual LTM Adjusted EBITI
would be reduced to the extent of the cost sawivgyslo not achieve.

We may be required to pay our future tax obligation our deferred cancellation of debt income.

Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment A@O8P, or the ARRA, we will receive temporary fealdax relief under the
Delayed Recognition of Cancellation of Debt IncomeCODI, rules. The ARRA contains a provision tabdws for a deferral for tax purpos
of CODI for debt reacquired in 2009 and 2010, fekal by recognition of CODI ratably from 2014 thr&w@018. In connection with the debt
that we reacquired in 2009 and 2010, we have daferlated CODI of $3.6 billion for tax purposest(of Original Issue Discount (“OID")
interest expense, some of which must also be defeor2014 through 2018 under the ARRA). We areired to include one-fifth of the
deferred CODI, net of deferred and regularly schei®ID, in taxable income each year from 2014 ulgio2018. To the extent that our fed:
taxable income exceeds our available federal netating loss carry forwards in those years, we hiélre a cash tax obligation. Our tax
obligations related to CODI could be substantial anuld materially and adversely affect our caswf as a result of tax payments. For more
information on the debt that we reacquired in 2808 2010, see “ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults o
Operation-Other Factors Affecting Net Income.”

The risks associated with our international operatis could reduce our profits.

Some of our properties are located outside theedrfiitates, and our 2006 acquisition of London Chassincreased the percentage of
revenue derived from operations outside the Urittiedes. International operations are subject terimt risks including:

. political and economic instabilit

. variation in local economie

. currency fluctuation

. greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleati

. trade barriers; an

. burden of complying with a variety of internatiohalvs.

For example, the political instability in Egypt digethe uprising in January 2011 has negativelgcéfd our properties there.
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The loss of the services of key personnel coulddavnaterial adverse effect on our business.

The leadership of our chief executive officer, Moveman, and other executive officers has beeitiaatrelement of our success. The
death or disability of Mr. Loveman or other extedae permanent loss of his services, or any negatiarket or industry perception with
respect to him or arising from his loss, could haveaterial adverse effect on our business. Owra@kecutive officers and other members of
senior management have substantial experiencexgattise in our business and have made significantributions to our growth and succe
The unexpected loss of services of one or morbedfd individuals could also adversely affect us.aféenot protected by key man or similar
life insurance covering members of our senior manant. We have employment agreements with our ¢xecofficers, but these agreements
do not guarantee that any given executive will i@math us.

If we are unable to attract, retain and motivate pioyees, we may not be able to compete effectaetlywill not be able to expand ot
business.

Our success and ability to grow are dependentait) pn our ability to hire, retain and motivatdfmient numbers of talented people,
with the increasingly diverse skills needed to sastients and expand our business, in many locamound the world. Competition for highly
qualified, specialized technical and manageriad, particularly consulting personnel, is intenseciging, training, retention and benefit costs
place significant demands on our resources. Additlg, our substantial indebtedness and the red@whturn in the gaming, travel and leisure
sectors has made recruiting executives to our basimore difficult. The inability to attract quadidi employees in sufficient numbers to meet
particular demands or the loss of a significant benof our employees could have an adverse effeaso

We are controlled by the Sponsors, whose intereséy not be aligned with ours.

Hamlet Holdings, the members of which are compridfesh equal number of individuals affiliated wehch of the Sponsors, beneficially
owns approximately 69.9% of our common stock purst@an irrevocable proxy providing Hamlet Holdsngith sole voting and sole
dispositive power over those shares. As a redidtSponsors have the power to elect all of ourctbrs. Therefore, the Sponsors have the
ability to vote on any transaction that requires @lpproval of our Board or our stockholders, ingigdhe approval of significant corporate
transactions such as mergers and the sale of stia#iigall of our assets. The interests of the I8uos could conflict with or differ from the
interests of other holders of our common stock.dxample, the concentration of ownership held leySponsors could delay, defer or prevent
a change of control of us or impede a merger, tedeor other business combination which anothesi$tolder may otherwise view favorably.
Additionally, the Sponsors are in the business akimg or advising on investments in companies litlfioand may from time to time in the
future acquire interests in or provide advice tsibesses that directly or indirectly compete wightain portions of our business or are supp
or customers of ours. One or both of the Sponsarsaiso pursue acquisitions that may be complemetdaour business, and, as a result,
those acquisition opportunities may not be avadldblus. A sale of a substantial number of sharstook in the future by funds affiliated with
the Sponsors or their co-investors could causestmak price to decline. So long as Hamlet Holdiogstinues to hold the irrevocable proxy,
they will continue to be able to strongly influermreeffectively control our decisions.

In addition, we have an executive committee thateseat the discretion of our Board and is auttestito take such actions as it
reasonably determines appropriate. Currently, Xeew@ive committee may act by a majority of its niens, provided that at least one member
affiliated with TPG and Apollo must approve anyiaetof the executive committee. See “Directors, &tive Officers and Corporate
Governance—Executive Committee” for a further déston.

Use of the “Caesars” brand name, or any of our othtrands, by entities other than us could damage thrands and our operations and
adversely affect our business and results of opinas.

Our “Caesars” brand remains the most recognizeida#ésand in the world and our operations beneditrf the global recognition and
reputation generated by our brands. Generally lrwdigh Caesars Global Life, we are actively purggiaming and non-gaming management,
branding, and development opportunities in Asia atier parts of the world where our brands andtegjmn are already well-recognized
assets. In September 2011, we announced a managangeoranding agreement for a non-gaming developméose equity will be provided
by a third party, that will be called Caesars Palasngmu Bay. In addition, we will continue to erpeaour World Series of Poker tournaments
to international jurisdictions where we believerthis a likelihood of legalization of online gamijrig order to grow the brand’s awareness. In
connection with such opportunities, we intend tangithird parties licenses to use our brands. @siniess and results of operations may be
adversely affected by the management or the enfarneof the “Caesars” and the “World Series of Pbkeand names, or any of our other
brands, by third parties outside of our exclusigstml.
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Any failure to protect our trademarks could havenggative impact on the value of our brand names autVersely affect our busines

The development of intellectual property is parbof overall business strategy, and we regardraaliéctual property to be an important
element of our success. For example, we own anchtgpthe World Series of Poker tournaments, antogase trademarks for a variety of
products and businesses related to this brand.e/hil business as a whole is not substantiallyriigrg on any one trademark or combination
of several of our trademarks or other intellecfualperty, we seek to establish and maintain oupretary rights in our business operations
technology through the use of patents, copyrighasiemarks and trade secret laws. We file apptinatfor and obtain patents, copyrights and
trademarks in the United States and in foreign t@esmwhere we believe filing for such protectisrappropriate. We also seek to maintain our
trade secrets and confidential information by nedldisure policies and through the use of apprapdanfidentiality agreements. Despite our
efforts to protect our proprietary rights, partieay infringe our trademarks and use information teregard as proprietary and our rights |
be invalidated or unenforceable. The laws of sooneifin countries do not protect proprietary rigiotas great an extent as do the laws of the
United States. Monitoring the unauthorized useuwfintellectual property is difficult. Litigation ay be necessary to enforce our intellectual
property rights or to determine the validity andse of the proprietary rights of others. Litigatiokthis type could result in substantial costs
and diversion of resource. We cannot assure yduathaef the steps we have taken to protect outenaarks in the United States and foreign
countries will be adequate to prevent imitatioroof trademarks by others. The unauthorized usepoduction of our trademarks could
diminish the value of our brand and its market ptaece, competitive advantages or goodwill, whighld adversely affect our business.

Any violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Actr other similar laws and regulations could havenggative impact on us

We are subject to risks associated with doing lmssioutside of the United States, which exposés csmplex foreign and U.S.
regulations inherent in doing business cross-baxddrin each of the countries in which it transaetsiness. We are subject to regulations
imposed by the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, erREPA, and other anti-corruption laws that gemgmbhibit U.S. companies and their
intermediaries from offering, promising, authorgiar making improper payments to foreign governnaéfitials for the purpose of obtaining
or retaining business. Violations of the FCPA atiteoanti-corruption laws may result in severe ammhand civil sanctions as well as other
penalties and the SEC and U.S. Department of &ulstice increased their enforcement activities vaipect to the FCPA. Internal control
policies and procedures and employee training antptiance programs that we have implemented ta getdibited practices may not be
effective in prohibiting our employees, contractorsagents from violating or circumventing our p@#s and the law. If our employees or
agents fail to comply with applicable laws or Compgolicies governing our international operations, may face investigations, prosecuti
and other legal proceedings and actions which caddlt in civil penalties, administrative remedéesl criminal sanctions. Any determination
that we have violated the FCPA could have a matadizerse effect on our financial condition. Coraptie with international and U.S. laws
regulations that apply to our international openadiincreases our cost of doing business in forjeigsdictions. We also deal with significant
amounts of cash in our operations and are sulgearious reporting and anti-money laundering ragjoihs. Any violation of anti-money
laundering laws or regulations by any of our resoduld have a negative effect on our results efagons.

We are or may become involved in legal proceeditigd, if adversely adjudicated or settled, couldpact our financial condition.

From time to time, we are defendants in variousslaitg or other legal proceedings relating to matiecidental to our business. The
nature of our business subjects us to the riskw$luits filed by customers, past and present ereplycompetitors, business partners, Indian
tribes and others in the ordinary course of businds with all legal proceedings, no assurancebeaprovided as to the outcome of these
matters and in general, legal proceedings can penskve and time consuming. For example, we mag patential liability arising from a
class action lawsuit against Hilton Hotels Corpioratelating to employee benefit obligations. Weymat be successful in the defense or
prosecution of these lawsuits, which could resultéttlements or damages that could significantlyact our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that linoitir flexibility in operating our business.

Our senior secured credit facilities, the CMBS mage loan and/or related mezzanine loans the (“CM&$s”), the indentures
governing most of our existing notes, the senicused loans related to the development of Octaliawser at Caesars Palace Las Vegas and
Project Ling, the senior secured loan of PHW Laga#e LLC and the senior secured notes of ChestenBagontain, and any future
indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a numdferovenants that impose significant operating famahcial restrictions on us, including
restrictions on our and our subsidiaries’ abildy among other things:

. incur additional debt or issue certain preferrearss;
. pay dividends on or make distributions in respéatuy capital stock or make other restricted paytsy
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. make certain investment

. sell certain asset

. create liens on certain asse

. consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafradubstantially all of our asse
. enter into certain transactions with our affiligtesd

. designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted suligidli

As a result of these covenants, we are limitetchénnhanner in which we conduct our business, anchayebe unable to engage in
favorable business activities or finance futurerapens or capital needs.

We have pledged and will pledge a significant pordf our assets as collateral under our seniarsdaredit facilities, our CMBS
Loans, our first lien notes, our second lien naties,senior secured loan of PHW Las Vegas, LLERHW Las Vegas, the senior secured loan
related to the development of the Octavius Tow&assars Palace Las Vegas, the Octavius Towep@dPOctavius, and a retail, dining and
entertainment corridor located between the Imp&é&hce Hotel and Casino and the Flamingo Las Vegdle Las Vegas strip, or Project
Ling, or the senior secured notes of Chester Dolfrsy of these lenders accelerate the repaymfdmrmowings, there can be no assurance
that we will have sufficient assets to repay odleistedness.

Under our senior secured credit facilities, weraguired to satisfy and maintain specified finahgios. Our ability to meet those
financial ratios can be affected by events beyamdcontrol, and there can be no assurance thatilvemeet those ratios. A failure to comply
with the covenants contained in our senior secaredit facilities or our other indebtedness coelsult in an event of default under the
facilities or the existing agreements, which, if nored or waived, could have a material adveriEebn our business, financial condition and
results of operations. In the event of any defantter our senior secured credit facilities or dineoindebtedness, the lenders thereunder:

. will not be required to lend any additional amouwetsis;

. could elect to declare all borrowings outstandinggether with accrued and unpaid interest and fedse due and payable a
terminate all commitments to extend further crealit

. require us to apply all of our available cash fwasethese borrowing

Such actions by the lenders could cause crossIteefamder our other indebtedness. If we were untbiepay those amounts, the lenders
under our senior secured credit facilities, our Cdfihancing and our first and second lien notedccpoceed against the collateral granted to
them to secure that indebtedness.

If the indebtedness under our first and secondrl@es, senior secured credit facilities, CMBS fficiag or our other indebtedness wer
be accelerated, there can be no assurance thassets would be sufficient to repay such indebteslivefull.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affeat ability to raise additional capital to fund awperations, limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or our industry and prevestfrom making debt service payments.

We are a highly leveraged company. As of Decemte311, we had $22,657.9 million face value ostartding indebtedness and our
current debt service obligation for the next 12 thers $1,693.0 million, which includes requireteiest payments of $1,647.7 million. As of
December 31, 2011, CEOC had $19,088.5 million fexdee of outstanding indebtedness including $1 4&dllion owed to Caesars
Entertainment, and CEOC's debt service obligatmrtlie next 12 months is $1,606.5 million, whichlirdes required interest payments of
$1,561.2 million.

In February 2012, subsidiaries of CEOC completedatfiering of $1,250.0 million in first lien notesnd used the majority of the
proceeds to pay down certain Term Loans. Also lor&ary 2012, Chester Downs issued $330.0 milliobdnds, using a majority of the
proceeds to pay off its senior secured loans. ditiad, on March 1, 2012, CEOC's credit agreemeas @wmended to create a new tranche of
term loan due in 2018 and to revise interest ratesertain tranches of term loans outstanding.flithéerms of these transactions are described
in Note 22, “Subsequent Events,” to the consolididiteancial statements included in Item 8 of tld@part. Had these transactions occurred on
December 31, 2011, we would have had $22,983.4omilace value of outstanding indebtedness anatourent debt service obligation for the
next 12 months would be $1,764.8 million, whichlines required interest payments of $1,741.3 millids of December 31, 2011, CEOC
would
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have had $19,414.0 million face value of outstagdmlebtedness including $1,462.1 million owed &®€ars Entertainment, and CEOC's debt
service obligation for the next 12 months wouldpie5678.3 million, which includes required interpayments of $1,654.8 million.

Our substantial indebtedness could:

. limit our ability to borrow money for our workingapital, capital expenditures, development projestbt service requiremen
strategic initiatives or other purpos

. make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligans with respect to our indebtedness, and amyréato comply with the
obligations of any of our debt instruments, inchgirestrictive covenants and borrowing conditiasyld result in an event of
default under the agreements governing our indeless

. require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofcash flow from operations to the repayment ofindebtedness thereby reduc
funds available to us for other purpos

. limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our operations or busin
. make us more highly leveraged than some of our etitops, which may place us at a competitive disautizge
. make us more vulnerable to downturns in our busioeshe economy

. restrict us from making strategic acquisitions,aleping new gaming facilities, introducing new teologies or exploiting busine
opportunities

. affect our ability to renew gaming and other licesy,

. limit, along with the financial and other restnaicovenants in our indebtedness, among otherghmg ability to borrov
additional funds or dispose of assets;

. expose us to the risk of increased interest rategdain of our borrowings are at variable rafasterest.

Despite our substantial indebtedness, we may b#llable to incur significantly more debt. This calintensify the risks described aboy

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur sabatandebtedness at any time, and from timerteetiincluding in the near future.
Although the terms of the agreements governingrmebtedness contain restrictions on our abilitintur additional indebtedness, these
restrictions are subject to a number of importaralifications and exceptions, and the indebtedimessred in compliance with these
restrictions could be substantial.

For example, as of December 31, 2011, we had $98#ian available for additional borrowing undemrosenior secured revolving cre
facility after giving effect to $113.5 million inutstanding letters of credit thereunder, all of ethivould be secured. None of our existing
indebtedness limits the amount of debt that manbarred by Caesars Entertainment. Our senior sdotnedit facilities allow for one or more
future issuances of additional secured notes arsloahich may include, in each case, indebtedresagad on a pari passu basis with the
obligations under the senior secured credit faediind our first lien notes. This indebtednesddcba used for a variety of purposes, including
financing capital expenditures, refinancing or mgbasing our outstanding indebtedness, includingtieg unsecured indebtedness, or for
general corporate purposes. We have raised andtexpeontinue to raise debt, including secured,detdirectly or indirectly refinance our
outstanding unsecured debt on an opportunisticspasiwell as development opportunities.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash tovgsr all of our indebtedness, and may be forcedatke other actions to satisfy our
obligations under our indebtedness that may notduecessful. If we are unable to satisfy or refinanour debt obligations as they come d
we cannot assure you that your investment in ourngmany will retain any value.

Our ability to satisfy our debt obligations will gend upon, among other things:

. our future financial and operating performance,clihwill be affected by prevailing economic conditsoand financial, business,
regulatory and other factors, many of which aredpelyour control; an

. our future ability to borrow under our senior sexlicredit facilities, the availability of which depds on, among other things, «
complying with the covenants in our senior securedlit facilities.
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We may be unable to generate sufficient cash flemfoperations, or unable to draw under our sesgoured credit facilities or
otherwise, in an amount sufficient to fund our Idjty needs. Our ability to restructure or refinaraur debt will depend on the condition of the
capital markets and our financial condition at sticte. As of December 31, 2011, $11.1 billion faetue of our indebtedness is scheduled to
mature in 2015 (assuming the extension options respect to the CMBS Financing and PHW Las Vegamssecured loan are exercised),
representing 49% of the total face value of ourtdebMarch 2012 we extended the maturity of $2llfom face value of debt from 2015 to
2018. For a discussion of our debt maturities,stgnagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations-
Liquidity and Capital

Resources-Guarantees of Third-Party Debt and @bégations and Commitments-Contractual Obligatiokge do not expect that our
cash flow from operations will be sufficient to egpthis indebtedness, and we will have to seefi@arecing. We cannot predict at this time
whether we will be able to secure any such refimaneven if market conditions and our financiahdition improve between now and then.
The market for CMBS financings has substantiallgrdased since we raised the CMBS financing arglunhcertain whether we will be able to
refinance the entire outstanding principal amodrtuw indebtedness that will be due in 2015, inglgdhe CMBS Financing. Even if
refinancing alternatives were available to us, vay mot find them suitable or at comparable interatss to the indebtedness being refinanced.
In addition, the terms of existing or future degteeements may restrict us from securing a refimanon terms that are available to us at that
time. In the absence of such operating resultsesaolurces, we would face substantial liquidity peois and would likely be required to
dispose of material assets or operations to meadeht service and other obligations. We may natfiie to consummate those dispositions for
fair market value or at all. Furthermore, any pestethat we could realize from any such dispositimay not be adequate to meet our debt
service obligations then due. We could also beireduo reorganize our Company in its entirety.tNei the Sponsors nor any of their
respective affiliates has any continuing obligatiomprovide us with debt or equity financing. Evewe are able to refinance our debt, any
refinancing could be at higher interest rates aagt nrequire us to comply with more onerous covenawitéch could further restrict our busin
operations. For example, the interest rates orffimirand second lien notes are substantially higihen the interest rates under our senior
secured credit facility. If we are unable to seeviwir debt obligations generally, and if we areblmo refinance our debt obligations that
mature in 2015 or thereafter, we cannot assurdhatour company will continue in its current stateéhat your investment in our company
will retain any value.

An active trading market for our common stock maptdevelop

Prior to our listing in February 2012, there haslmen a public market for our common stock. Wencapredict the extent to which
investor interest in us will lead to the developingfian active trading market or how liquid thatriket might become. Our shares may be less
liquid than the shares of other newly public comeamnd there may be imbalances between suppldemdnd for our shares. As a result, our
share price may experience significant volatilitglanay not necessarily reflect the value of oureexgd performance. If an active trading
market does not develop, owners of our common gtwek have difficulty selling any of our common stoc

Future sales or the possibility of future sales @fsubstantial amount of our common stock may deprése price of shares of our common
stock.

Future sales or the availability for sale of subth amounts of our common stock in the public kearcould adversely affect the
prevailing market price of our common stock andldannpair our ability to raise capital through futusales of equity securities.

As of March 9, 2012, there were 125,297,197 shautstanding all of which are the same class ofngptiommon stock. All of the
outstanding shares of our common stock will beilglégfor resale under Rule 144 or Rule 701 of teeusities Act, subject to volume
limitations, applicable holding period requiremeatsl certain lockup agreements related to cerfaiioshareholders and management
described below or other contractual restrictidiiee Sponsors have the ability to cause us to exgisé resale of its shares, and our
management members who hold shares will have ftiigyab include their shares in such registration.

In connection with the Co-Investors Transaction fieel a shelf prospectus to register 22,339,148eh of our common stock for resale
on a continuous basis by the Participating Co-ltoressubject to the lockup agreements describezimhéNe may issue shares of common
stock or other securities from time to time as aerstion for future acquisitions and investment$oo any other reason that our board of
directors deems advisable. If any such acquisitioimvestment is significant, the number of sharfesur common stock, or the number or
aggregate principal amount, as the case may lmhef securities that we may issue may in turnuixstantial. We may also grant registration
rights covering those shares of common stock agratbcurities in connection with any such acquisgtiand investments.
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We cannot predict the size of future issuancesiotommon stock or other securities or the efféetny, that future issuances and sales
of our common stock or other securities, includinmigire sales by the Sponsors, will have on the etgskice of our common stock. Sales of
substantial amounts of common stock (including ebaf common stock issued in connection with amiaiépn), or the perception that such
sales could occur, may adversely affect prevaitivagket prices for our common stock.

The price and trading volume of our common stock ynffuctuate significantly.

The market price of our common stock may be higiolatile and could be subject to wide fluctuatiolmsaddition, the trading volume of
our common stock may fluctuate and cause signifipane variations to occur. Volatility in the matiprice of our common stock may prevent
a holder of our common stock from being able tbtbelr shares. The market price for our commoglstmuld fluctuate significantly for
various reasons, including:

. our operating and financial performance and prasp

. our quarterly or annual earnings or those of otleenpanies in our industr

. conditions that impact demand for our products semdices

. the publi’s reaction to our press releases, other publiclarcements and filings with the SE
. changes in earnings estimates or recommendatioasdwyities analysts who track our common st
. market and industry perception of our successaak thereof, in pursuing our growth strate
. strategic actions by us or our competitors, suchcgsiisitions or restructuring

. changes in government and environmental regulaith@tyding gaming taxe:

. changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantepretations or principle

. arrival and departure of key personr

. changes in our capital structu

. sales of common stock by us or members of our meamagt team

. the expiration of contractual lockup agreements;

. changes in general market, economic and politicatitions in the United States and global economidi;ancial markets
including those resulting from natural disastegs;drist attacks, acts of war and responses to suehts

In addition, in recent years, the stock marketénazerienced significant price and volume fluctuagioThis volatility has had a significe
impact on the market price of securities issuethbyly companies, including companies in the ganfauging, hospitality and entertainment
industries. The changes frequently appear to oeithout regard to the operating performance ofafiected companies. Hence, the price of
our common stock could fluctuate based upon fadt@shave little or nothing to do with us, andsadluctuations could materially reduce our
share price.

Our stockholders are subject to extensive governtaéregulation and if a stockholder is found unsuaible by the gaming authority, that
stockholder would not be able to beneficially owarcommon stock directly or indirectly

In many jurisdictions, gaming laws can require ahgur stockholders to file an application, be istgated, and qualify or have his, her
or its suitability determined by gaming authoriti€aming authorities have very broad discretiodetermining whether an applicant should be
deemed suitable. Subject to certain administrgireeeeding requirements, the gaming regulators trevauthority to deny any application or
limit, condition, restrict, revoke or suspend aitghse, registration, finding of suitability or appal, or fine any person licensed, registered or
found suitable or approved, for any cause deemegbreble by the gaming authorities. For additiarfatrmation on the criteria used in mak
determinations regarding suitability, see “GoverntaERegulation”

For example, under Nevada gaming laws, each pavhoracquires, directly or indirectly, beneficial nership of any voting security, or
beneficial or record ownership of any non-votinguséy or any debt security, in a public corporatishich is registered with the Nevada
Gaming Commission, or the Gaming Commission, maseheired to be found suitable if the Gaming Consiois has reason to believe that
or her acquisition of that ownership, or his or bentinued ownership in general, would be incoesistith the declared public policy of
Nevada, in the sole discretion of the Gaming Corsiois Any person required by the Gaming Commissidne found suitable shall apply 1
a finding of suitability within 30 days after thea@ing Commission’s request that he or she shoukbdind, together with his or her
application for suitability, deposit with the Nexaa@aming Control Board, or the Control Board, a sfirmoney which, in the sole discretion
the Control Board, will be adequate to pay thecipdited costs and charges incurred in the invdgtiyand processing of that application for
suitability, and deposit such additional sums asraquired by the Control Board to pay final castd charges. Additionally, under Ohio law,
an institutional investor, which is broadly definaold includes any corporation that holds any amofiotir stock, will be required to apply for
and obtain a waiver of suitability determination.
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Furthermore, any person required by a gaming aityhtorbe found suitable, who is found unsuitabjete gaming authority, may not
hold directly or indirectly the beneficial ownerghaf any voting security or the beneficial or retomwnership of any nonvoting security or any
debt security of any public corporation which igistered with the gaming authority beyond the tpnescribed by the gaming authority. A
violation of the foregoing may constitute a criminéfense. A finding of unsuitability by a parti@rlgaming authority impacts that person’s
ability to associate or affiliate with gaming licaes in that particular jurisdiction and could ictthe person’s ability to associate or affiliate
with gaming licensees in other jurisdictions.

Many jurisdictions also require any person who @egubeneficial ownership of more than a certairc@etage of voting securities of a
gaming company and, in some jurisdictions, honagpecurities, typically 5%, to report the acquosito gaming authorities, and gaming
authorities may require such holders to apply falification or a finding of suitability, subjeat timited exceptions for “institutional investors”
that hold a company’s voting securities for investinpurposes only.

Some jurisdictions may also limit the number of gagricenses in which a person may hold an owngrehia controlling interest. In
Indiana, for example, a person may not have an mshiginterest in more than two Indiana riverboaher’s licenses.

Because we have not paid dividends since the Adtjaisand do not anticipate paying dividends on ocommon stock in the foreseealk
future, holders of our common stock should not expé¢o receive dividends on shares of our commorckt:

We have no present plans to pay cash dividendsrtstockholders and, for the foreseeable fututenit to retain all of our earnings for
use in our business. The declaration of any fullivielends by us is within the discretion of our Biband will be dependent on our earnings,
financial condition and capital requirements, all agany other factors deemed relevant by our &oar

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning tfie Nasdaq rules and, as a result, will qualifyrf@and intend to rely on, exemptions
from certain corporate governance requiremen

Hamlet Holdings controls a majority of our votingnemon stock. As a result, we will be a “controllEmmpany” within the meaning of
Nasdaq corporate governance standards. Under thetajaules, a company of which more than 50% of/tiimg power is held by &
individual, group or another company is a “contdlcompany” and we have elected not to comply wéttiain Nasdaq corporate governance
requirements, including:

. the requirement that a majority of the Board cdssi$ independent director

. the requirement that we have a nominating/corpaaternance committee that is composed entireigdgpendent director

. the requirement that we have a compensation coemertitiat is composed entirely of independent dirsgand

. the requirement for an annual performance evalnaidghe nominating/corporate governance and cosgt@m committees

As a result of these exemptions, we do not havajarity of independent directors nor do our nomimgfcorporate governance and
compensation committees consist entirely of inddpandirectors and we are not required to havenanal performance evaluation of the

nominating/corporate governance and compensatiomitiees. Accordingly, a holder of our common stagk not have the same protections
afforded to stockholders of companies that areesuitip all of the Nasdaq corporate governance reménts.

Our bylaws and certificate of incorporation contaiprovisions that could discourage another compamgrh acquiring us and may prevent
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remoue @irrent management.

Provisions of our bylaws and our certificate ofdrmoration may delay or prevent a merger or actjoiisthat stockholders may consider
favorable, including transactions in which you ntigtherwise receive a premium for your sharesduitéon, these provisions may frustrate or
prevent any attempts by our stockholders to repd@ecemove our current management by making it ddfieult for stockholders to replace
remove our directors. These provisions include:

. establishing a classified board of directc

. establishing limitations on the removal of direst:

. permitting only an affirmative vote of at least -thirds of the Board to fix the number of directc
. prohibiting cumulative voting in the election ofeictors;
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. empowering only the Board to fill any vacancy oa Board, whether such vacancy occurs as a resait ofcrease in the number
directors or otherwise

. authorizing the issuance “blank chec” preferred stock without any need for action by letmtders;
. eliminating the ability of stockholders to call sj@ meetings of stockholder

. prohibiting stockholders from acting by written sent if less than 50.1% of our outstanding comntocksis controlled by th
Sponsors

. prohibiting amendments to the bylaws without thfémabtive vote of at least two-thirds of the Boandthe affirmative vote of at
least twe-thirds of the total voting power of the outstandgimres entitled to vot

. prohibiting amendments to the certificate of in@ygiion relating to stockholder meetings, amendmenthe bylaws or certificate
of incorporation, or the election or classificatiofithe Board without the affirmative vote of twairtds of the shares entitled to vote
on any matter; an

. establishing advance notice requirements for notioing for election to the Board or for proposingttees that can be acted on by
stockholders at stockholder meetin

Our issuance of shares of preferred stock coulaydai prevent a change of control of us. Our Bdeaslthe authority to cause us to issue,
without any further vote or action by the stocklerk] shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0%lpame, in one or more series, to designat
number of shares constituting any series, andtthé rights, preferences, privileges and restidithereof, including dividend rights, voting
rights, rights and terms of redemption, redempgioce or prices and liquidation preferences of ssefies. The issuance of shares of preferred
stock may have the effect of delaying, deferringmaventing a change in control of our company aittfurther action by the stockholders,
even where stockholders are offered a premiunhfair shares.

Together, these charter and statutory provisiontdomake the removal of management more difficatt emay discourage transactions
that otherwise could involve payment of a premiurargorevailing market prices for our common stdelrthermore, the existence of the
foregoing provisions, as well as the significarmtnoaon stock controlled by Hamlet Holdings, coulditithe price that investors might be
willing to pay in the future for shares of our commstock. They could also deter potential acquioésur company, thereby reducing the
likelihood that you could receive a premium for ygommon stock in an acquisition.

PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains or maytaan“forward-looking statements” intended to gfiafor the safe harbor from
liability established by the Private Securitieddation Reform Act of 1995. These statements caidéetified by the fact that they do not rel
strictly to historical or current facts. We haveséd these forward-looking statements on our cuggpéctations about future events. Further,
statements that include words such as “may,” “Wiproject,” “might,” “expect,” “believe,” “anticimte,” “intend,” “could,” “would,”
“estimate,” “continue” or “pursue,” or the negatiwéthese words or other words or expressionsroifiai meaning may identify forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statesarg found at various places throughout the reppbese forward-looking statements,
including, without limitation, those relating totéwe actions, new projects, strategies, futurequernce, the outcome of contingencies such as
legal proceedings, and future financial resultsesgkier they occur in this report, are necessasiiyrates reflecting the best judgment of our
management and involve a number of risks and usiogigs that could cause actual results to diffatemally from those suggested by the
forward-looking statements. These forward-lookitayesments should, therefore, be considered in b§ktirious important factors set forth
above and from time to time in our filings with tBecurities and Exchange Commission.

In addition to the risk factors set forth abovepaortant factors that could cause actual resultiffer materially from estimates or
projections contained in the forward-looking stag¢erts include without limitation:

. the impact of our substantial indebtedn:
. the impact, if any, of unfunded pension benefitdarmult-employer pension plan

. the effects of local and national economic, cradid capital market conditions on the economy iregainand on the gamir
industry in particular

. construction factors, including delays, increasests of labor and materials, availability of lalamd materials, zoning issut
environmental restrictions, soil and water condisioweather and other hazards, site access mattéisuilding permit issue

. the effects of environmental and structural buiddamnditions relating to our properti¢

22



Table of Contents

our ability to timely and co-effectively integrate companies that we acquire oir operations
our ability to realize the expense reductions fiaum cost savings prograrr
access to available and reasonable financing onedytbasis;

changes in laws, including increased tax ratesksmgdans, regulations or accounting standardsj{tarty relations and approve
and decisions, disciplines and fines of courtsylegrs and governmental bodir

litigation outcomes and judicial and governmentadyactions, including gaming legislative actioeferenda, regulatol
disciplinary actions and fines and taxati

the ability of our customer-tracking, customer lbyand yield-management programs to continue toeiase customer loyalty and
samestore or hotel sale

our ability to recoup costs of capital investmethteugh higher revenue

acts of war or terrorist incidents, severe weatioaditions, uprisings or natural disaste

access to insurance on reasonable terms for oeise

abnormal gaming hold¢gaming hol is the amount of money that is retained by thenzaiom wagers by customer:

the potential difficulties in employee retentiordarecruitment as a result of our substantial inglebess, the ongoing downturn
the gaming industry, or any other fact

the effects of competition, including locationscoimpetitors and operating and market competitiod;
the other factors set forth unc“Risk Factor” above.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance esetiorward-looking statements, which speak onlgfdke date of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to pulligbdate or release any revisions to these forwakling statements to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of this Annual Repofform 10-K or to reflect the occurrence of unzptted events, except as required by law.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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ITEM 2. Properties

The following table sets forth information about @asino entertainment facilities as of December281.1:

Summary of Property Information

Hotel

. Rooms &
Casino Slot Table
Space— Machines Games
Property Type of Casino Sq. Ft. @ @) @ Suites @
Atlantic City, New Jerse
Harral’s Atlantic City Lanc-basec 179,80( 2,87(C 18C 2,59(
Showboat Atlantic Cit Lanc-basec 120,10( 2,60( 11C 1,33(
Bally’s Atlantic City Lanc-basec 167,20( 3,27( 21C 1,73(C
Caesars Atlantic Cit Lanc-basec 140,80( 2,34( 18C 1,14C
Las Vegas, Nevac
Harrat's Las Vega: Lanc-basec 90,60( 1,37(C 11C 2,53(
Rio Lanc-basec 117,30( 1,09( 90 2,52(
Caesars Palac Lanc-basec 136,50( 1,37(¢ 18C 3,95(
Paris Las Vega Lanc-basec 95,30( 1,07¢ 90 2,92(
Bally’s Las Vega: Lanc-basec 66,20( 1,01( 6C 2,81(
Flamingo Las Vega®) Lanc-basec 89,00( 1,35(C 16C 3,46(
Imperial Palact Lanc-basec 118,00( 78C 5C 2,55(
Bill’'s Gamblir Hall & Saloon Lanc-basec 42,50( 36C 50 20C
Hot Spot Oasi: Lanc-basec 1,00(¢ 15 — —
Planet Hollywood Resort and Casi Lanc-basec 108,90( 1,13(C 90 2,50(
Laughlin, Nevad:
Harrat’s Laughlin Lanc-basec 56,00( 90C 40 1,51C
Reno, Nevad
Harrat’s Renc Lanc-basec 41,60( 80C 40 93C
Lake Tahoe, Nevac
Harrat’s Lake Tahot Lanc-basec 57,50( 81C 70 51C
Harveys Lake Tahao Lanc-basec 71,50( 77C 70 74C
Chicago, lllinois aree
Harrat’s Joliet (lllinois)© Dockside 38,90( 1,14C 30 20C
Horseshoe Hammond (Indiar Dockside 108,20( 3,06( 15C —
Metropolis, lllinois
Harrat’s Metropolis Dockside 31,00( 1,16(C 30 26C
Southern Indiani
Horseshoe Southern India Dockside 86,60( 1,77(¢ 11C 50C
Council Bluffs, low:
Harrat’s Council Bluffs Dockside 28,00( 80C 30 25C
Horseshoe Council Blufi® Greyhound racin
facility and land-
based casin 78,80( 1,74C 70 —
Tunica, Mississipp
Horseshoe Tunic Dockside 63,00( 1,47(¢ 90 51C
Harral’s Tunica Dockside 136,00 1,35( 70 1,36(
Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casi Dockside 31,00( 77C 20 13C
Mississippi Gulf Coas
Grand Casino Bilox Dockside 28,80( 75C 30 49C
St. Louis, Missour
Harral’s St. Louis Dockside 109,00 2,43( aC 50C
North Kansas City, Missou
Harrat's North Kansas Cit Dockside 60,10( 1,53(C 60 39C

25



Table of Contents

PI’OEEI’(!

New Orleans, Louisian
Harral’s New Orlean:

Bossier City, Louisian
Louisiana Downg«e)

Horseshoe Bossier Ci

Chester, Pennsylvan
Harrah’s Chestep

Phoenix, Arizon:
Harrah's Ak-Chin@

Cherokee, North Carolin
Harral’s Cheroke«

San Diego, Californit
Harrah’s Rincori)

Punta del Este, Urugue

Conrad Punta del Este Resort and Ca®

Ontario, Canade
Caesars Windsc

United Kingdon
Golden Nugge
Playboy Club Londol
The Sportsma
Rendezvous Brighto
Rendezvous Southe-or-Sea
Manchester23
The Casino at the Empi
Alea Nottingharr
Alea Glasgow
Alea Leed:s

Egypt
The London Clubs Cai-Ramse«©@

Caesars Cair@

South Africe
Emerald Safar®

(@) Approximate.

(b) Information includes ’Shei's Casino, which is adjacent to this prope
(c) We have an 80% ownership interest in and managetbperty

Hotel
. Rooms &
Casino Slot Table
Space- Machines Games
Type of Casino Sq. Ft. @ (@) (@) Suites (@
Lanc-basec 125,10( 1,99( 12C 45C
Thoroughbre
racing facility
and land-
based casin 14,90( 1,07C — —
Dockside 29,90( 1,34(C 80 61C
Harness
racing
facility and
land
based casin 110,50( 3,00( 13C —
Indian
Reservatior 38,30( 1,10 30 30C
Indian
Reservatior 138,80( 3,12 50 1,11C
Indian
Reservatior 72,90( 1,99( 70 66C
Lanc-basec 44,50( 52C 70 30C
Lanc-basec 100,00( 2,33( 80 76C
Lanc-basec 5,10( 50 20 —
Lanc-basec 6,20( 20 20 —
Lanc-basec 5,20( 50 20 —
Lanc-basec 7,80( 80 30 —
Lanc-basec 8,70( 50 30 —
Lanc-basec 11,50( 60 40 —
Lanc-basec 20,90( 13C 40 —
Lanc-basec 10,00( 50 20 —
Lanc-basec 15,00( 50 30 —
Lanc-basec 10,30( 50 30 —
Lanc-basec 2,70( 40 20 —
Lanc-basec 5,50( 30 30 —
Lanc-basec 37,70( 66C 30 19C

(d) The property is owned by the Company, leasateamperator, and managed by the Company forpgbeator for a fee pursuant to an
agreement that expires in October 2024. This inédion includes the Bluffs Run greyhound racetrdlt bperates at the propet

(e) We own a 49% share of a joint venture that ownSG-room hotel located near the prope
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(H At December 31, 2011, we had a 95% ownership isténeand manage this property. In February 20Epurchased an additional 4.
interest, bringing our total ownership interesthiis property to 99.5%

() Managed

(h) We have approximately a 95% ownership interestraadage this propert

(i) We have a 50% ownership interest in Windsor Cakimoted, which operates this property. The Provio€©ntario owns the comple
() We have a 70% ownership interest in and managetbfserty.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is party to ordinary and routine litig)a incidental to our business. We do not expeetdutcome of any pending litigation
to have a material adverse effect on our cons@dlfihancial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. Market for the Company’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Is&r Purchases of Equity Securitie:

Effective February 8, 2012, our common stock traafethe NASDAQ Global Select Market under the syhiBZR.” Subsequent to the
Acquisition in 2008, and prior to the above datg, @autstanding common stock was privately held, thede was no established public trading
market for our common stock; therefore, there ardigh and low sales prices for the common sto@ilable for 2011 and 2010.

The following table sets forth repurchases of ayuity securities during the fourth quarter of tiecél year covered by this report after
giving effect to the 1.742-for-one stock split efied by the Company in February 2012:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

as Part of Publicly Maximum Number of

Average Price Pait Announced Plans o Shares that May Yet

Total Number of Be Purchased Under

Period Shares Purchase Per Share Programs the Plans or Program:
10/1/2011 - 10/31/2011 — — — —
11/1/2011- 11/30/2011 — — — —
12/1/2011-12/31/2011 6,272 $ 20.0¢ — —

As of March 9, 2012, there were 125,297,197 shaffesmmon stock issues and outstanding that wdcelye230 stockholders of reco
We did not pay any cash dividends in the years @fiEzember 31, 2011, 2010, or 2009.

There have not been any sales by the Company dfyespcurities in the last fiscal year that have Imeen registered under the Securities
Act of 1933.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Date

The selected financial data set forth below forghdods indicated, should be read in conjunctidh the consolidated financial

statements and Item 7, Management’s DiscussiorAaaty/sis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems, included elsewhere in this

Form 10-K.
Successor Predecessor
Jan. 28, 200¢ Jan. 1, 200¢
through through

(In millions, except per share data) 2011 2010 ®) 2009 (©) Dec. 31, 2008 (d) Jan. 27,2008 (©) 2007
OPERATING DATA
Net revenue $ 8,834 $ 8,818 $8907.c $ 9,366.¢ $ 760.1 $10,825.:
Income/(loss) from operatiol $ 875t $ 532 $ (607.) $ (4,237 $ (36.¢ $ 1,652.(
Net (loss)/incom: $ (666.7) $ (823.Y) $ 846« $ (5174)) $ (99.9 $ 542
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes $ (687.€) $ (831.]) $ 827¢ $ (5,096.) $ (100.9) $ 619.£
COMMON STOCK DATA
Diluted (loss)/earnings per sh&

From continuing operatior $ (B50) $ B3) $ 39 3 (77.26) $ 059 $ 277

Net (loss)/incomt $ B50) $ (B3) $ 39 3 (75.99) $ (059 $ 3.2t
Cash dividends declared per sh $ — % — $ — 3 — $ — $ 1.6C
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA
Total asset $28,515.¢ $28,587." $28,979.. $ 31,048.( $ 23,371.. $23,357.
Long-term debt $19,759.! $18,785.! $18,868.% $ 23,123. $ 12,367.! $12,429.

$ (1,360 | $ 6,733« $6,679.

Stockholder’ equity/(deficit) $ 1,053« $ 1672« $ (867.0

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

(9)

The full year results of 2011 include $47.9 millionpre-tax gains on early extinguishments of debt, $1lilDom in pre-tax charges fo
impairment of goodwill and other non-amortizingaingible assets, and $96.0 million in net pre-teargbs for write-downs, reserves,
recoveries, and project opening co

The full year results of 2010 include $115.8lion in pre-tax gains on early extinguishmentsiebt, $193.0 million in préax charges fc
impairment of goodwill and other non-amortizingangible assets, and $149.7 million in net pre-tearges for write-downs, reserves,
recoveries, and project opening co

The full year results of 2009 include $4,96&Hion in pre-tax gains on early extinguishmentglebt, $1,638.0 million in préax charge
for impairment of goodwill and other non-amortizimgangible assets, and $111.5 million in net predharges for writelowns, reserve
recoveries, and project opening co

The Successor period of 2008 includes $5,489.6amilh pre-tax charges for impairment of goodwill and othen-amortizing intangibl
assets, $742.1 million in pre-tax gains on earljngxiishment of debt, $24.0 million in ptax charges related to the sale of the Comg
and $45.1 million in net p-tax charges for wri-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project openist«

The Predecessor period of 2008 includes $8lbmin net pre-tax charges for write-downs, re®s; recoveries, and project opening
costs and $125.6 million in f-tax charges related to the sale of the Comp

The full year results of 2007 include $34.4 millionnet pr-tax credits for writ-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project openists
and $13.4 million in pre-tax charges related togheposed sale of the Company. The 2007 resultsiatsude the financial results of
Bill's Gamblin’ Hall & Saloon from its February 27, 2007 date ajuisition and Caesars Golf Macau from its SepteniBe2007 date «
acquisition.

As adjusted to reflect the impact of the Febru@$21.74-for-one split of our common stock on the years endezePéer 31, 201:
2010, 2009 and January 28, 2008 through Decemhe&(0B®B. As the Predecessor operated under a diffeapital structure than the

Successor, the earnings per share data does leat tble stock split for the period from Januarg@08 through January 27, 2008 and for

the year ended December 31, 2007 (Predece:
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ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctith, and is qualified in its entirety by, thedited consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto and other finanfaamation included elsewhere in this Form 10&ertain statements in this “Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” are forward-looking statetaeSee “ITEM 1A. Risk Factors—
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT.”

OVERVIEW

We are the world’s most diversified casino-entertant provider and the most geographically divéts® casino-entertainment
company. As of December 31, 2011, we owned, opgtratemanaged, through various subsidiaries, 5eg$n 12 U.S. states and seven
countries. The majority of these casinos operathériJnited States and England. Our casino enteneit facilities operate primarily under
Harrah’s, Caesars, and Horseshoe brand names uniterl States. Our casino entertainment facilitietude 33 land-based casinos, 12
riverboat or dockside casinos, three managed casindndian lands in the United States, one manegsitio in Canada, one casino combined
with a greyhound racetrack, one casino combineld avthoroughbred racetrack, and one casino combitda harness racetrack. Our 33
land-based casinos include one in Uruguay, nirienigland, one in Scotland, two in Egypt, and on8aduth Africa. As of December 31, 2011,
our facilities had an aggregate of approximatetgeimillion square feet of gaming space and appratély 43,000 hotel rooms. Our industry-
leading customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, tnzer 40 million members. We use the Total Rewaydsem to market promotions and to
generate customer play across our network of ptiggetn addition, we own an online gaming busingssviding for real money casino, bin
and poker games in the United Kingdom, alliancek whline gaming providers in Italy and Francea$pfor fun” offerings in other
jurisdictions, social games on Facebook and otbheiakmedia websites, and mobile application platfe We also own and operate the Wt
Series of Poker tournament and brand.

REGIONAL AGGREGATION

The executive officers of our Company review ogaratesults, assess performance, and make decistaisd to the allocation of
resources on a property-by-property basis. We belitherefore, that each property is an operagmgnent and that it is appropriate to
aggregate and present the operations of our Comgmoye reportable segment. To provide more mefniimjormation than would be
possible on a consolidated basis, our casino ptiepdas of December 31, 2011 , or otherwise nb&dow) have been grouped into seven
regions as follows to facilitate discussion of operating results:

Las Vegas Atlantic City Louisiana/Mississippi lowa/Missouri

Caesars Palac Harrat’s Atlantic City Harral’'s New Orlean: Harral’s St. Louis

Bally’s Las Vega: Showboat Atlantic City Harral’s Louisiana Down Harral’s North Kansas Cit
Flamingo Las Vega® Bally’s Atlantic City Horseshoe Bossier Ci Harral’s Council Bluffs
Harrat's Las Vega: Caesars Atlantic Cit Grand Biloxi Horseshoe Council Bluffs/Blufi
Paris Las Vega Harral’s Cheste® Harral’s Tunica Run

Rio Horseshoe Tunic

Imperial Palact Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casi

Bill’s Gamblir Hall & Saloon
Planet Hollywood Resort &

Casina®)

lllinois/Indiana Other Nevada Managed/International and Other
Horseshoe Southern India Harral's Renc Harral’'s Ak-Chin®©
Harral’s Joliet() Harral’s Lake Tahot Harral’s Cheroke®)
Horseshoe Hammor Harveys Lake Tahao Harral’s Rincon®)
Harral’s Metropolis Harral’s Laughlin Conrad Punta del Es©)

Caesars Winds
London Clubs Internationi
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(@) Includes (' Sheis Casino, which is adjacent to this prope

(b) Acquired February 201(

(c) We have an approximately 95% ownership intereanih manage this proper

(d) We have an 80% ownership interest in and managetbperty

(e) Managed

(fH We have a 50% ownership interest in Windsor Cakimited, which operates this property. The provioé¢®©ntario owns the comple

() We own, operate, or manage 10 casino clubs inrtnnzes of the United Kingdom and two in Egypt. Wave a 70% ownership intert
in and manage one casino club in South Aft

(h) At December 31, 2011, we had a 95% ownershgrést in and manage this property. In Februarn22@& purchased an additional 4.5%
interest, bringing our totownership interest in this property to 99.5

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

Percentage
Favorable/(Unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $6,637.: $6,917.¢ $7,124.; (4.9)% (2.9%
Net revenue 8,834.! 8,818.¢ 8,907.¢ 0.2% (1.0%
Income/(loss) from operatiol 875.k 532.: (607.¢) 64.5% *
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes (687.6) (831.)) 827.¢ 17.%% *
Operating margin*’ 9.%% 6.C% (6.8% 3.8 pts 12.¢ pts

* Not meaningfu
**  QOperating margin is calculated as income/(losghfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to Decembédr, 2010

Despite a decline in casino revenues, net revefou@911 were $8,834.5 million, an increase of $1illion, or 0.2%, from 2010, as
favorable results in Las Vegas and from our intéomal and online businesses, including revenulese to Playtika, which we acquired
during the year, were somewhat offset by revenaérees at properties in the Midwest and AtlantityCi

For 2011, income from operations increased $343lbm or 64.5%, to $875.5 million from 2010. Thiscrease was due mainly to a
$182.0 million decrease from 2010 in impairmentrgka related to goodwill and other non-amortizimgungible assets, the effects of cost-
reduction efforts under cost savings programsuitiolg Project Renewal, and a $53.7 million reductiowrite-downs, reserves, recoveries,
and project opening costs.

Net loss attributable to Caesars for 2011 decrehge¥% to $687.6 million from $831.1 million in 2W1due primarily to higher income
from operations and an increase in the benefitfftome taxes, partially offset by higher interegtense in 2011, due mainly to certain interest
rate swaps no longer qualifying for hedge accogrndind gains on the early extinguishment of deligeized in 2010 that were not as
significant in 2011.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to Decembdr, 2009

Our 2010 net revenues decreased 1.0% to $8,818i6miiom $8,907.4 million in 2009, as incrementalenues associated with our
February 2010 acquisition of Planet Hollywood wenable to offset the continuing impact of the weaknomic environment on customers’
discretionary spending.

Income from operations for 2010 was $532.3 millicompared with a loss from operations of $607.8ianilfor the same period in 2009.
Included in income/(loss) from operations for 2@t@ 2009 were impairment charges for goodwill attéionon-amortizing intangible assets
totaling $193.0 million and $1,638.0 million, respieely. Prior to consideration of these impairmehéarges, income from operations for 2010
decreased to $725.3 million from $1,030.2 milliarthie prior year. The decline was driven by th@ime impact of reduced revenues and the
contingent liability reserve and asset reservegdmrecorded during 2010 described above, whick partially offset by a tangible asset
impairment charge in 2009 that did not recur in®@fhd a favorable $23.5 million property tax actadjustment recorded in 2010.
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Net loss attributable to Caesars for 2010 was d88illlion compared with net income attributabledaesars of $827.6 million for 2009.
The loss for 2010 included (i) the aforementiomagairment charges for intangible assets and @tpk gains related to the early
extinguishment of debt of $115.6 million. The ina@fior 2009 included (i) the aforementioned impaininzharges for intangible assets and
(i) pre-tax gains related to the early extinguigminof debt of $4,965.5 million. Gains on earlyiegtiishments of debt in 2009 represented
discounts related to the exchange of certain audgtg debt for new debt in the second quarter, CMB& repurchases in the fourth quarter,
and purchases of certain of our debt in the operkebauring 2009. The gains were partially offsetlve write-off of market value premiums
and unamortized debt issue costs. These eventisatessed more fully in the “Liquidity and CapiR&sources” section that follows herein.

Performance Metrics

The Company measures its performance in part thrénagking of trips by rated customers, which meagsistomer whose gaming
activity is tracked through our Total Rewards costo-loyalty system (“trips”), and by spend per dageistomer trip (“spend per trip"A trip is
created by a Total Rewards card holder engagimgénor more of the following activities while ateoaf our properties: (1) hotel stay,

(2) gaming activity, or (3) a comp redemption, whineans the receipt of a complimentary item givatnby our casinos. In markets where we
have multiple properties, customers often engadgeprgenerating activities at more than one progpiera day. In these instances, we consider
the market as a whole and do not count multippestrCustomer spend means the cumulative ratedettiggdrspend (which is the amount of
money expected to be retained by the casino bgsauthe mathematics underlying the particular gama fraction of the amount of money
wagered by the customer) across all game types $pecific customer. For the Atlantic City regitme Company refers to customers that stay
at a hotel in one of our properties as lodgersaustiomers that may play at a casino located inobwoer properties but do not stay at a hotel at
such property as non-lodgers.

The following table reflects the percentage inced@ecrease) in trips and spend per trip for tH tkgions for 2011 as compared to
2010.

Spend pe
Trips Trip

Consolidated Caesars (6.8)% 3.6€%
Las Vegas regio 2.5% 2.7%
Atlantic City region:

Lodgers (0.2% (2.2%

Non-lodgers (5.6% (0.7%
All other regions (9.% 3.2%

For 2011, trips on a consolidated basis declinechf2010 due to (i) new competition in the Atlar@ity, lowa/Missouri, and
lllinois/Indiana regions, (ii) reduced access te ofi our properties due to a bridge closure inlfiirmis/Indiana region beginning in the first
week of September 2011 that reopened in Februakg,30i) temporary closures in the Atlantic Citygion during the third quarter of 2011 ¢
to Hurricane Irene, (iv) temporary closures of sepeoperties in the lllinois/Indiana and Louisiadviégsissippi regions during the first half of
2011 due to flooding and severe weather conditiand,(v) the impact of marketing programs on trgmtiency of certain customer segmen
all U.S. regions. These decreases in trips wergapigroffset by an increase in trips for the Lasgés region during 2011.

On a consolidated basis, cash average daily rotes far 2011 increased to $91 from $86, or 6.4%mtompared to 2010. Total
occupancy percentages in 2011 increased 1.4 pageepbints when compared to 2010.

The following table reflects the percentage inced@ecrease) in trips and spend per trip for o&. tegions for 2010 as compared to

20009.
Spend pe
Trips Trip

Consolidated Caesars (2.1)% (1.6)%
Las Vegas regio 1.6% (2.9%
Atlantic City region:

Lodgers (4.3% (3.9%

Non-lodgers (0.1)% (7.9%
All other regions (3.5% 1.3%
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For 2010, trips on a consolidated basis, declinech 2009 as a result of new competition in the wttaCity and lowa/Missouri regions,
the impact of the weak economic environment, art20i10 introduction of table games in the Pennsgybvanarket. These decreases in trips
were partially offset by an increase in trips foe Las Vegas region during 2010.

On a consolidated basis, cash average daily rotes far 2010 decreased to $86 from $88, or 3.1% wiompared to 2009. Total
occupancy percentages in 2010 increased 1.1 pagepbints when compared to 2009.

REGIONAL OPERATING RESULTS
Las Vegas Region

Percentage
Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $1,582. $1,544. $1,476.( 2.5% 4.6%
Net revenue 3,013.: 2,834.¢ 2,698.( 6.2% 5.1%
Income/(loss) from operatiol 495.F 349.¢ (681.0 41.€% *
Operating margin*’ 16.2% 12.2% (25.29% 4.1pts 37.Epts

* Not meaningfu
**  QOperating margin is calculated as income/(losghfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

Strengthening fundamentals in the overall Las Vegasket positively impacted the Company’s resultthe region. Increases in trips,
spend per trip, cash average daily room ratest@atioccupancy contributed to a $178.3 million6@% increase in the Compaay’as Vega
region net revenues for 2011 from 2010. Hotel reresnn the region increased 11.4%, cash averaferdam rates increased 8.0% to $92
from $85 and total occupancy percentages rosee8@ptage points for 2011, marking our highest panay percentage in the Las Vegas
region in six years. For 2011, income from operaimcreased $145.6 million, or 41.6%, from 2018 tluthe impact of increased revenues
and a decrease in remediation costs related tortiperties in the region.

For 2010, hotel occupancy remained above 90%, ehtemenues increased 5.1% in the Las Vegas région2009 due to the Planet
Hollywood acquisition in February 2010. On a sanweesbasis, revenues declined 3.5% for 2010, riegyttrimarily from decreased spend per
trip. Increased labor and depreciation expens#imegion combined with the income impact of retlsame-store revenues resulted in
reduced income from operations for 2010, beforesictaration of impairment charges. Income from opena for 2010 includes incremental
depreciation associated with the Caesars Pala@nsiqns placed into service late in 2009, increésesls of remediation costs during 2010 at
two properties within the region, and the write-offassets associated with certain capital projéatss from operations for 2009 includes
charges of $1,130.9 million related to impairmeinintangible assets in the region. Increased |anor depreciation expenses in the region
combined with the income impact of reduced sameegtvenues resulted in reduced income from omerafior 2010, before consideration of
the 2009 impairment charges. Income from operation2010 includes incremental depreciation assediavith the Caesars Palace expansions
placed into service late in 2009, increased lesEfemediation costs during 2010 at two propentiéhin the region, and the write-off of assets
associated with certain capital projects.

The opening of the 662-room Octavius Tower in eddguary 2012 marked the substantial completiagheo$860 million Caesars Palace
expansion announced in 2007. In addition to theetpthe expansion included 110,000-square-feetiditianal meeting and convention space,
three 10,000-square-foot luxury villa suites, anceapanded pool and garden area.

During 2011, we also commenced construction oneRtdjing, a dining, entertainment, and retail depetent between our Flamingo ¢
Imperial Palace casinos, on the east side of tseViegas Strip, which is scheduled to open in phasesd to late 2013. See Note 7, “Debt—
Octavius and Ling Projects,” for discussion of timancing related to these projects.
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Atlantic City Region

Percentage

Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $1,584.¢ $1,696.¢ $1,894.t (6.6)% (10.9%
Net revenue 1,839.: 1,899.¢ 2,025.¢ (3.2% (6.2)%
Income from operation 79.€ 83.7 28.Z (4.9% 195.8%
Operating margin*’ 4.2% 4.4% 1.4% (0.2) pts 3.Cpts

**  QOperating margin is calculated as income/(losghfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

Atlantic City region net revenues declined $60.8iam, or 3.2%, for 2011 from 2010 due to declimesrips and spend per trip in both
lodger and non-lodger segments. Trip declines tedditom temporary closures of the properties erébgion during the third quarter of 2011
due to Hurricane Irene, the continued effect of petition from new casinos and the mid-2010 intrdiducof table games in the Pennsylvania
market. Income from operations declined $4.1 millior 4.9%, for 2011 from 2010 due to lower revenuehich was mostly offset by reduced
property operating expenses as a result of ourredsiction activities.

Reduced spend per trip, declines in overall tiggfrency and increased competition from other markatluding the mid-2010
introduction of table games in the Pennsylvaniaketated to lower Atlantic City region revenuesidgr2010. Income from operations for
2009 included a charge of $178.7 million relatedhipairment of goodwill and other non-amortizingaingible assets at certain of the region’s
properties. Income from operations for 2010 waselothian the prior year, prior to considerationhaf impairment charge, as cost-saving
initiatives were unable to offset the income impafateduced revenues and increased marketing &od-talated expenses.

Louisiana/Mississippi Region

Percentage
Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenues $1,012.( $1,096.: $1,140.¢ (7.1% (3.9%
Net revenue 1,104.. 1,193.¢ 1,245.; (7.5)% (4.2%
Income from operation 122.C 69.¢ 181.¢ 74.5% (61.5%
Operating margin*’ 11.(% 5.% 14.€% 5.1pts (8.7) pts

**  Qperating margin is calculated as income/(losshfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

Louisiana/Mississippi region net revenues decre&88d million, or 7.5%, for 2011 from 2010 dueatdecrease in trips, which were
negatively impacted by the temporary closure aéetproperties in the first half of 2011 due to flow and severe weather conditions. Income
from operations increased $52.1 million, or 74.592011 from 2010. This increase was due mainkethuced property operating expenses
a $48.0 million decrease from 2010 in impairmerdrgls related to goodwill and other non-amortizimigngible assets, partially offset by the
impact of lower revenues. Certain costs incurreihgl2011 in connection with the closures of selpraperties due to flooding were not
expensed but instead have been recovered frorecorded as receivables from, third-party insurgogiders.

For 2010, reduced trips and spend per trip unfdlprianpacted the Louisiana/ Mississippi region newes. Income from operations for
2010 included a charge of $51.0 million relatedripairment of goodwill and other non-amortizingangible assets at one of the region’s
properties. Income from operations for 2009 inctidecharge of $6.0 million related to impairmentraéngible assets at one of the region’s
properties. Income from operations for 2010 waselothian in 2009, prior to consideration of impainneharges, as cost-saving initiatives
were unable to offset the income impact of reduesdnues and increased marketing expenses.
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lowa/Missouri Region

Percentage

Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $678.< $688.< $707.3 (1.5% (2.7%
Net revenue 724.4 735.¢ 756.€ (1.5% (2.89%
Income from operation 180.¢ 171.C 187.t 5.8% (8.8%
Operating margin*’ 25.(% 23.% 24.&% 1.7 pts (1.5) pts

**  QOperating margin is calculated as income/(losghfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

lowa/Missouri region net revenues declined $11.Monj or 1.5%, for 2011 from 2010 as the impachafher spend per trip was more
than offset by lower trips largely resulting fronodifications to marketing programs to certain costo segments. For 2011, income from
operations increased $9.9 million, or 5.8%, from@QThis increase was due mainly to a $9.0 mildenrease from 2010 in impairment
charges related to goodwill and other reonertizing intangible assets, while the decreasetrrevenues was offset by lower property opey;
expenses as a result of our cost reduction aetbviti

For 2010, revenues in the region declined from 20@®to new competition in the region and lowemspger trip. Income from
operations for 2010 included a charge of $9.0 anillielated to impairment of goodwill and other ramertizing intangible assets at one of the
region’s properties. Income from operations for@@dg&clined from 2009 primarily due to the incoméaut of revenue declines.

lllinois/Indiana Region

Percentage
Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $1,010.¢ $1,152.¢ $1,180." (12.9% (2.9%
Net revenue 1,059t 1,160.: 1,172. (8.7% (1.0%
Income/(loss) from operatiol 145.¢ 119.( (35.9 22.5% *
Operating margin* 13.8% 10.2% 3.0% 3.Epts 13.Z pts

* Not meaningfu
**  Operating margin is calculated as income/(losaphfoperations divided by net revenues for the raspgeperiod.

Despite an increase in spend per trip, lllinoisihma region net revenues decreased $100.6 mibio®,7%, for 2011 from 2010, as trips
declined due to the impact of temporary closuref®orf properties in the first half of 2011 as aufesf flooding and severe weather conditions,
reduced access to one of our properties in themegisulting from a bridge closure beginning infiret week of September 2011 that reope
in February 2012, and new competition. Income faparations for 2011 increased $26.8 million, 0522, to $145.8 million from $119.0
million in 2010. This increase was primarily duddwer property operating expenses and a $58.0omitlecrease from 2010 in impairment
charges related to goodwill and other non-amoujzimangible assets, partially offset by the impzfdower revenues and a favorable $23.5
million property tax adjustment recorded in therfbwquarter of 2010 that did not recur in 2011.

Revenues in the region decreased for 2010 from 80830 decreased spend per trip. Income from tpasafor 2010 included a charge
of $58.0 million related to impairment of goodwaihd other non-amortizing intangible assets at tedfthe regions properties, partially offs
by a favorable $23.5 million property tax accrudjustment recorded in 2010 as mentioned above. ftossoperations for 2009 included a
charge of $180.7 million related to impairmentmtiingible assets at certain of the region’s praggrincome from operations, prior to
consideration of impairment charges, increase@®di0 relative to 2009 as a result of reduced menfretxpenses and the aforementioned
property tax accrual adjustment.
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Other Nevada Region

Percentage

Favorable/(Unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Casino revenue $349.¢ $351.( $372.( (0.9% (5.6)%
Net revenue 450.( 447.¢ 472.¢ 0.€% (5.9%
Income/(loss) from operatiol 46.€ (13.9) 47.: * *
Operating margin*’ 10.2% (3.2)% 10.(% 13.E pts (13.7) pts

* Not meaningfu
**  Operating margin is calculated as income/(lossphfoperations divided by net revenues for the rasgeperiod.

Net revenues in the Other Nevada region for 20tfeased slightly from 2010 as an increase in nurobgips more than offset a
decrease in spend per trip. Income/(loss) fromatpers improved by $60.5 million for 2011 from 20di@marily due to a $49.0 million
decrease in impairment charges related to goodwil other non-amortizing intangible assets, higie¢revenues and lower property operating
expenses.

Results for 2010 in the region declined from 2008 tb reduced trips and decreased spend per f8p.odntributing to the decline in
income from operations for 2010 was a charge ofGsAdllion related to the impairment of goodwilldnther non-amortizing intangible assets
at one of the region’s properties.

Managed, International and Other

Managed, International and Other results includetlmee Managed, Indian-owned casinos and ThistedRacetrack, the results of our
International properties, and Other, which is casgat of corporate expenses, including administeativarketing and development costs;
income from certain non-consolidated affiliates &melresults of Caesars Interactive Entertainmehigh consists of the businesses related to
our World Series of Poker (“WSOPHyand, our online real money business in the Ut @liances with online gaming providers in Italyc
France, and “for fun” gaming offerings, includirgetresults of recently acquired Playtika Ltd., ei@omedia and mobile gaming business,
since the date of our initial acquisition.

Percent
Favorable/(Unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Net revenue
Managec $ 48.1 $ 43.C $ 56.2 9.€% (22.0%
International 462.2 431.1 403.¢ 7.2% 6.8%
Other 133.7 72.5 76.7 84.4% (5.5)%
Total net revenue $644.( $ 547. $ 536.¢ 17.€% 2.0%
(Loss)/income from operatiot
Managec 6.0 11.¢ 19.4 (49.6% (38.71%
International 38.¢ 10.5 (23.0 269.2% *
Other (239.7) (269.7) 332.3 11.1% 18.8%
Total loss from operatior $(194.9 $(247.7) $(335.9 21.2% 26.4%
Operating margin*’
Managec 12.5% 27.1% 34.5% (14.€) pts (7.4) pts
International 8.4% 2.4% (5.7% 6.C pts 8.1 pts
Other (179.9% (372.0% (433.9% 192.% pts 61.z pts
Total operating margi (30.9)% (45.2)% (62.6)% 14.€ pts 17.4pts

* Not meaningfu
**  Qperating margin is calculated as income/(losshfoperations divided by net revenues for the resgeperiod.

Net revenues in the Managed, International, an@&ibsinesses, for 2011, increased $96.5 milliod,7c6%, from 2010 due mainly to
increases in spend per trip at the Company’s Urygna London Clubs properties and to the additioreweenues from our 2011 acquisition of

Playtika. Net revenues for 2011 increased despittirees experienced by our two properties in Egly® to uprisings earlier in the year. Loss
from operations decreased $52.4 million, or 21.8%e to the
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strong performance of our international businessekthe results of our online businesses, and [818r0 million decrease from 2010 in
impairment charges related to goodwill and other-amortizing intangible assets, partially offsetitwywer results at Thistledown Racetrack.

Net revenues for 2010 increased over 2009 primdrily to increased visitation and increased spenttipet our Uruguay and London
Clubs properties. Income from operations for 20iduded a charge of $6.0 million related to impannof goodwill and other noamortizing
intangible assets at our international propertizsme from operations for 2009 included a charfgg34.0 million related to impairment of
goodwill and other nommortizing intangible assets. Prior to consideratibimpairment charges, income from operationsaased slightly fo
2010 when compared with 2009 due to strong reveedi®rmance and cost-saving initiatives at ourrimaéional properties, offset in part by
lower income from our managed properties.

OTHER FACTORS AFFECTING NET INCOME

Percentage
Favorable/(Unfavorable)

Expense/(income)

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200
Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogen

costs $ 96.C $ 149.5 $ 111t 35.% (34.9%
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing

intangible assel 11.C 193.( 1,638.( * *
Corporate expens 152.¢ 140.¢ 150.7 (8.9% 6.5%
Amortization of intangible asse 156.% 160.¢ 174.¢ 2.5% 8.C%
Interest expense, net of interest capitali 2,122 1,981.¢ 1,892.! (7.)% (4.7%
Gains on early extinguishments of d (47.9) (115.¢) (4,965.) (58.6)% (97.10)%
Other income, including interest incot (25.9) (41.7) (33.0 (39.9% 26.2%
(Benefit)/provision for income taxe (506.9 (468.7%) 1,651.¢ 8.2% *

* Not meaningfu

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project Djgeoosts

Given the nature of the transactions included withiite-downs, reserves, recoveries, and projeehimg costs, these amounts are not
expected to be comparable from year-to-year, rethe amounts expected to follow any particulardre

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogecosts for 2011 decreased $53.7 million, or 8g.8riven primarily by a $31.7
million reduction in remediation costs associatétthWwas Vegas properties and $77.2 million in 2@%Penses that did not recur in 2011,
consisting of a $52.2 million write-down of a noézeivable related to a venture for developmerst cdisino project in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, and a $25.0 million expense relateddreviously disclosed contingency. These redostivere partially offset by a $45.2
million increase in 2011 costs associated with iifieation and implementation of our efficiency jots, and 2011 charges of $28.2 million to
write off specific assets as a result of the teation of a development stage project in Spain.

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogecosts for 2010 were $149.7 million, comparethw111.5 million in 2009.
Included in write-downs, reserves, recoveries, @oject opening costs for 2010, with no comparaf®unts in 2009, are the charge of $52.2
million to fully reserve the note receivable balarmnd the contingency accrual of $25.0 million.cAlscluded in write-downs, reserves,
recoveries, and project costs for 2010 were chasf$29.0 million to write-off assets associatedhwdertain capital projects in the Las Vegas
and Atlantic City regions.

For additional discussion, refer to Note 11, “Wiitewns, Reserves, Recoveries, and Project OperostsCto our consolidated financi
statements, included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing intangible assets

Each year we perform a preliminary annual impairmassessment of goodwill and other non-amortizimagrigible assets as of
September 30. In the fourth quarter of each yeamupdate our preliminary assessment, once weZméte long-term operating plan for the
next fiscal year and certain other assumptionsp@réorm assessments more frequently if impairmeditators exist.

Our preliminary annual impairment assessment &eptember 30, 2011 did not result in any impairncbiarges. We finalized our
annual impairment assessment during the fourthteuaf 2011 and, as a result of the final assessm&nrecorded an impairment charge of
$11.0 million, primarily as a result of adjustmetdour long-term operating plan.
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During 2010, due to the relative impact of weakrexnic conditions on certain properties in the Otevada and Louisiana/Mississippi
regions, we performed an interim impairment assessuring the second quarter, which resulted imgairment charge of $100.0 million.
During the third quarter, we completed our preliamnannual impairment assessment as of Septemb&030, which resulted in an
impairment charge of $44.0 million. We finalizedr@annual impairment assessment during the fouréintqu2010, and as a result of the final
assessment, we recorded an impairment charge dd $4Bion, which brought the aggregate chargesmed for 2010 to $193.0 million.

During 2009, we performed an interim impairmeneassent during the second quarter, due to thévelatpact of weak economic
conditions on certain properties in the Las Vegasket, which resulted in an impairment charge &#&2 million.

During the third quarter, we completed our preliaminannual assessment as of September 30, 200&h vdsulted in an impairment
charge of $1,328.6 million. We finalized our annumapairment assessment during the fourth quartet,as a result of the final assessment, we
recorded an impairment charge of $12.3 million,chHdrought the aggregate charges recorded for 20$9,638.0 million.

For additional discussion of impairments, refeNtte 5, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,aiar consolidated financial
statements, included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Corporate Expense
Corporate expense increased in 2011 from the cabfgaperiod in 2010 due primarily to increasesdriable compensation accruals.

Amortization of intangible asse

Amortization of intangible assets was lower in 2@dlien compared to 2010, due to lower intangibletasalances as a result of certain
contract rights being fully amortized during 2011.

Amortization expense associated with intangibletssfor 2010 was lower than the amounts record@®@9 due to lower intangible as
balances as a result of certain contract rightsgokilly amortized during 2009.

Interest Expense, net of interest capitali

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized eased by $140.7 million for 2011, compared to #raesperiod in 2010. Interest expense is
reported net of interest capitalized of $22.8 milland $1.4 million for 2011 and 2010, respectiv&lye majority of the interest capitalized in
2011 relates to the completion of the Octavius TioateCaesars Palace Las Vegas. Prior to the coasiole of interest capitalized, interest
expense increased by $162.1 million for 2011, caegb#o the same period in 2010. During the fourthrter 2011, the Company amended
certain of its interest rate swap agreements artlfied the interest rate election on a portiontsfrortfolio of underlying term loans. As a
result, the Company determined that all of itsreé rate swap agreements no longer qualified @githg instruments for accounting purposes,
and was required to reclassify $183.2 million ofwoulated other comprehensive losses into intesgstnse. Prior to consideration of this
non-cash charge, interest expense decreased Wy ®illion for 2011 from the same period in 201Ccremental interest expense associated
with debt issued in April 2011 to complete the Camygs Ling and Octavius projects was more thanebfiiy reduced interest associated with
debt retired in connection with the fourth qua&8id0 exchange of debt for equity. Interest experaefavorably impacted by lower interest
rates obtained through the amendments to our sitesige swap agreements completed in the secomtegqo&2011. Interest expense for 2011,
as a result of interest rate swap agreements amckét rate cap agreements, included (i) $53.4amithf gains due to measured ineffectiveness
for derivatives designated as hedging instruméiifs16.9 million of gains due to changes in faalue for derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments; and (iii) $265.7 million ofpexse due to amortization and reclassificationeééided losses frozen in accumulated other
comprehensive loss (“AOCL").

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized gased by $89.1 million for 2010, compared to theesperiod in 2009. Interest expense is
reported net of interest capitalized of $1.4 milliand $32.4 million for 2010 and 2009, respectivélye majority of the interest capitalized in
20009 related to the Caesars Palace expansion iWéges. Prior to the consideration of interest tediged, interest expense increased by $58.1
million for 2010, compared to the same period i02@ue primarily to (i) debt issuances that ocaliirethe second quarter of 2010 that
resulted in higher debt levels and a higher weidjlateerage interest rate; and (ii) changes in hegdd@signations related to our $6,500.0 mil
interest rate cap agreement related to our CMB&rfing and one interest rate swap agreement. sttexpense for 2010, as a result of inte
rate swap agreements and interest rate cap agresrimatuded (i) $76.6 million of gains due to metesl ineffectiveness for derivatives
designated as hedging instruments; (ii) $1.9 nmlldd expense due to changes in fair value for d¢ivies not designated as hedging
instruments; and (iii) $36.3 million of expense daemortization of deferred losses frozen in AOBLDecember 31, 2010, our variable-rate
debt, excluding $6,500.0 million of variable-ratshtifor which we entered into interest rate swageagents, represented approximately 30%
of our total debt, while our fixed-rate debt waprgximately 70% of our total debt.
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For additional discussion of interest expensefreféote 7, “Debt,” and Note 17, “Supplemental C&tow Information,” to our
consolidated financial statements, included elsegvirethis Form 10-K.

Gains on early extinguishments of debt

During 2011, we recognized a $47.9 million gaineanly extinguishments of debt as the result of Maned April 2011 CMBS Loan
repurchases. During 2010, we recognized $115.6omitif gains on early extinguishments of debt assalt of repurchases of CMBS Loans
and completion of an offering that retired outstagdsenior and senior subordinated notes. Gaiready extinguishments of debt of $4,965.5
million in 2009 related to multiple debt transaosanitiated throughout the year,

For additional discussion of extinguishments oftdegfer to Note 7, “Debt,” to our consolidateddirial statements, included elsewhere
in this Form 10-K.

Other income, including interest income

Other income for all periods presented includedrgdt income on the cash surrender value of I§arence policies and insurance policy
proceeds related to our deferred compensation plan.

As a result of the cancellation of our debt investirin certain predecessor entities of PHW Las ¥aga&xchange for the equity of PHW
Las Vegas, we recognized a gain of $7.1 millioadfust our investment to reflect the estimatedvaiue of consideration paid for the
acquisition. This gain is reflected in other inconmeluding interest income, in our consolidateatestnent of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

(Benefit)/provision for income taxes

For 2011, we recorded an income tax benefit of $b@dllion on loss before income taxes of $1,1#8ibion, compared with an income
tax benefit of $468.7 million on loss before incotares of $1,292.0 million for 2010.

The Company’s full year 2011 effective tax ratedf@rwas 43.2%, compared with an effective tax tanefit of 36.3% for full year
2010. The increase in the effective tax rate b&nédr 2011 was due to (i) a deferred tax benéf#i46.4 million from a correction of an error
the deferred tax liabilities primarily relating itmnsaction costs incurred in connection with tbegussition in 2008 that were incorrectly
recorded in 2008 and not properly adjusted upor2€@@® receipt of the final transaction cost repditsstate deferred tax benefits resulting
from the reorganization of certain of the Comparsgate operations, and (iii) other discrete itefige income tax benefit for 2010 was
favorably impacted by the effects of state incomeltenefits and other discrete items.

Beginning in 2012, income tax benefits are projeédtebe lower than in 2010 and 2011 as a resudtaié operating losses which will not
be tax benefited starting in 2012. The Companyredts that the projected effective tax rate beméllitoe 3% to 4% lower due to these
reduced state income tax benefits.

Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment A@08B, or the ARRA, the Company received tempofedgral tax relief under the
Delayed Recognition of Cancellation of Debt IncomeCODI, rules. The ARRA contains a provision tatiwed for a deferral for tax
purposes of CODI for debt reacquired in 2009 antD2@llowing by recognition of CODI ratably fron©24 to 2018. In connection with the
debt that the Company reacquired in 2009 and 20&0Company deferred related CODI of $3.6 billionthx purposes (net of Original Issue
Discount (“OID") interest expense, some of whichstalso be deferred to 2014 through 2018 undeARRA). The Company is required to
include one-fifth of the deferred CODI, net of deéel and regularly scheduled OID, in taxable inca@aeh year from 2014 through 2018. For
state income tax purposes, certain states haveroadl to the Act and others have not.

Refer to Note 12 “Income Taxes,” to our consoliddieancial statements, included elsewhere inFloisn 10-K, for additional
information.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cost Savings Initiatives

Caesars Entertainment has undertaken comprehasmst«eeduction efforts to right size expenses witkiness levels. In the fourth
quarter of 2010, we embarked on a reorganizationefegred to as “Project Renewal,” an initiativesidged to reinvent certain aspects of the
Company'’s functional and operating units to gagm#icant further cost reductions and streamlisejperations. As part of Project Renewal,
we have implemented a shared-services organiztitairwill enable more efficient decision making atdiring of best practices. Caesars
anticipates that the Company will have a permagéotler cost structure and will benefit from greatencentration of specified talent and
quicker decision making. We estimate that ProjesridRval and previous cost-savings programs prodd2e8.9 million in incremental cost
savings for 2011 when compared to prior year. Add#lly, as of December 31, 2011, we estimate thate fully implemented, these cost-
savings programs will produce additional annuat sagings of $198.3 million.
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Capital Spending and Development

In addition to the development and expansion ptejdiscussed in the “Regional Operating Reswégtion, we incur capital expenditu
in the normal course of business, and we perforgoimy refurbishment and maintenance at our existagijno entertainment facilities, to
maintain our quality standards. We also continuguisue development and acquisition opportunitesélditional casino entertainment and
other hospitality facilities that meet our strateghd return on investment criteria.

Our planned development projects, if they go fodyavill require, individually and in the aggregasggnificant capital commitments and,
if completed, may result in significant additiomaeVenues. The commitment of capital, the timingarhpletion, and the commencement of
operations of development projects are contingpnhuamong other things, negotiation of final agreets and receipt of approvals from the
appropriate political and regulatory bodies. We nalso comply with covenants and restrictions eghfin our debt agreements. Our capital
spending for the year ended December 31, 2011etb&803.8 million, which includes an increase d.$2nillion of construction payables.

Our capital spending in 2010 and 2009 totaled $58llion and $409.3 million, which includes a dease in construction payables of
$6.8 million and $55.2 million, respectively.

Cash used for capital expenditures in the normatsmof business is typically made available frashcflows generated by our operating
activities while cash used for development projeiciduding projects currently under developmenivadl as additional projects being pursued,
is expected to be funded from established debtrpmsg, specific project financing, and additionabtdefferings. Estimated total capital
expenditures for 2012, including 2012 expendit@esociated with Project Ling, are expected to ledsen $590.0 million and $640.0 million.

Liquidity

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricast, totaled $904.6 million, excluding restrictegh, at December 31, 2011
compared to $987.0 million at December 31, 201@&tieed cash, including $66.6 million includedprepayments and other current assets,
totaled $517.7 million at December 31, 2011. NeaHyf the restricted cash consists of cash resbunder loan agreements for development
projects and certain expenditures incurred in threnal course of business, such as interest semdabestate taxes, property insurance, and
capital improvements.

We are a highly leveraged company and a signifieamiunt of our liquidity needs are for debt servite of December 31, 2011, we had
$19,799.9 million book value of indebtedness ouiditag and cash paid for interest for the year erdleckmber 31, 2011 was $1,685.0 milli
Payments of short-term debt obligations and otbarmitments are expected to be made from opera#is flows and from borrowings under
our established debt programs. Long-term obligatenme expected to be paid through operating caslsflrefinancing of debt, or, if necessary,
additional debt or equity offerings. We do not extpteat any new financing is required to meet daligations during the next 12 months.

Our operating cash inflows are used for operatieases, debt service costs, working capital neatdbscapital expenditures in the
normal course of business. From time to time, wieerportions of our outstanding debt through opearket purchases, privately negotiated
transactions, or otherwise, using available cashaom or established debt programs.

Included as an operating cash inflow in 2010 wasmeome tax refund of $220.8 million, which resdlfieom our implementation of
several accounting method changes for tax purgosiksling a method change to deduct currently @erigpairs and maintenance expendit
which had been previously capitalized. As a resithe combination of the tax accounting methodhges with our net operating loss, we
reported a taxable loss for 2009 of $1,248.9 milliOf this loss, $170.9 million was carried backtte 2008 tax year to offset federal taxable
income recognized and tax payable from that yeeadidition, under a new tax law, we elected torekiur loss carryback period. As a result,
$630.3 million of the 2009 taxable loss was carbiadk to 2006. The amount refunded was net oféstetue on the 2008 tax payable.

In addition to cash flows from operations, avaidabburces of cash include amounts available ungterwrent revolving credit facility.
At December 31, 2011, our additional borrowing @dyaunder the credit facility was $938.2 million.

Our ability to fund our operations, pay our debligdtions, and fund planned capital expenditurgsedes, in part, upon economic and
other factors that are beyond our control, andugitions in capital markets and restrictive covesaelated to our existing debt could impact
our ability to secure additional funds through fineng activities. We believe that our cash and aghivalents balance, our cash flows from
operations and the financing sources discussedhhgiltbe sufficient to meet our normal operatirgguirements during the next 12 months
and to fund capital expenditures.
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In February 2012, Chester Downs issued $330.0anilliggregate principal amount of 9.25% senior gtootes due 2020 through a
private placement. Chester Downs used $232.4 mitliiche proceeds of the notes to repay its exjginm loan plus accrued interest and a
prepayment penalty. The remaining proceeds were tosmake a distribution to Chester Downs’ managimanber, Harrah’s Chester Downs
Investment Company, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiaf{CEOC, and for other general corporate purposes.

Effective February 8, 2012, as the result of then@anys initial public offering, our common stock tradesthe NASDAQ Global Sele
Market under the symbol “CZR.” The net proceedthtvCompany were approximately $15.2 million, takinto account expenses and
underwriting commissions and giving effect to tixereise of the underwriters’ overallotment optibmconnection with the public offering, the
Company effected a 1.742-for-one split of its commstock. Unless otherwise stated, all applicabégesland per-share data presented herein
have been retroactively adjusted to give effet¢hi® stock split. See Note 22, “Subsequent Evefibs,additional discussion of the public
offering.

In February 2012, Caesars Operating Escrow LLCQemkars Escrow Corporation, wholly owned subsigaof CEOC, completed the
offering of $1,250.0 million aggregate principal @mt of 8.5% senior secured notes due 2020, theepos of which were placed into escrow.
On March 1, 2012, the escrow conditions were satisind CEOC assumed the notes. CEOC used $1,086dh of the net proceeds from
this transaction to repay a portion of its creddilities in connection with the amendment discddselow.

On March 1, 2012, CEOC entered into an amendmeitd tutstanding senior secured credit agreemenaniong other things, (i) extend
the maturity of B-1, B-2 and B-3 term loans helddmynsenting lenders from January 28, 2015 to Jar28r2018 and increase the interest rate
with respect to such extended term loans (the “TBrénLoans”); (ii) convert original maturity revatv commitments held by consenting
lenders to Term B-6 Loans and promptly followinglswonversion, repay Term 8Loans held by any consenting lender in an amegual tc
10% of the amount of revolver commitments that dedlder elected to convert; (iii) extend the mayuoif original maturity revolver
commitments held by consenting lenders who elettaoonvert their commitments to term loans, fréemuary 28, 2014 to January 28, 2017
and increase the interest rate and the undrawn domemt fee with respect to such extended revoleenrmmitments and upon the effectiveness
of such extension, terminate 20% of extended rerad@mmitments on a pro rata basis; and (iv) mocififain other provisions of the credit
facilities. In addition to the foregoing, the CE@tay elect to extend and/or convert additional terams and/or revolver commitments from
time to time.

After giving effect to the credit agreement amendtnthere are $2,113.1 million of existing B-1, Bx2d B3 term loans outstanding w
a maturity of January 28, 2015, $1,862.9 milliorerfended Term B-6 Loans outstanding with a matafitlanuary 28, 2018, $25.0 million of
extended revolver commitments with a maturity ofuly 28, 2017 and $1,104.5 million of existingaling commitments outstanding with a
maturity of January 28, 2014. The Term B-6 Loanshéve a springing maturity to April 14, 2017 ifone than $250.0 million of the
Company’s 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2017imeyagstanding on April 14, 2017. As part of theeardment, CEOC'’s existing tranche
of $1,222.7 million of B-5 term loans maturing aandary 28, 2018 was also modified to provide fersame springing maturity that applies to
the Term B-6 Loans.

The following table summarizes the annual matwgitiethe face value of our long-term debt as ofddelger 31, 2011, and after
consideration of the 2012 debt offerings and tleelitagreement amendment discussed above.

(in millions) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
Actual @ $45.2  $170.7 $193.¢ $11,123.¢ $1,856.¢ $ 9,267.f $22,657.
As adjustec® 23.k 148.¢ 172.1 8,265.¢ 1,699.. 12,673.! 22,983.:

(1) Maturities assume the extension of the CMBS LoamsRHW Las Vegas senior secured loan from 20191&:

We cannot assure you that our business will geaexafticient cash flows from operations, or thatfe borrowings will be available to
us, to fund our liquidity needs and pay our inddhsss. If we are unable to meet our liquidity nemdsay our indebtedness when it is due, we
may have to reduce or delay refurbishment and estparmprojects, reduce expenses, sell assets,emnpitto restructure our debt. Any such
actions could negatively impact our competitiveippos and revenue generation. In addition, we haleelged a significant portion of our assets
as collateral under certain of our debt agreemanis, if any of those lenders accelerate the repayaf borrowings, there can be no assurance
that we will have sufficient assets to repay ouleintedness.

Capital Resources

A substantial portion of our financing is comprisedtredit facility and notes financing obtained®¢OC. The CEOC financings are
neither secured nor guaranteed by Caesars’ othaltyatwned subsidiaries, including certain subgigia that own properties that secure
$5,031.5 million face value, as of December 31,12@f the CMBS Loans.
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Please refer to Note 7, “Debt,” to our consoliddtedncial statements for details on our debt @mging. This detail includes, among
other things, a table presenting details on ouwiddal borrowings outstanding as of December 3,122and December 31, 2010, changes in
our debt outstanding and certain changes in timesteff existing debt for the year ended DecembeRB11. Note 7 also includes details on
interest and fees, restrictive covenants relatezttain of our borrowings, and the use of interatt swap and interest rate cap derivatives to
manage the mix of our debt between fixed and vigiedie instruments.

Assuming extensions permitted under the CMBS Fimgnand the PHW Las Vegas senior secured loan skgclin Note 7 to our
consolidated financial statements, the majoritpufdebt is due in 2015 and beyond. Payments of-téion debt obligations and other
commitments are expected to be made from operatiay flows and from borrowings under our estabtisthebt programs. Long-term
obligations are expected to be paid through opegatash flows, refinancing of debt, or, if necegsadditional debt offerings.

As described in detail in Note 7 to our consoliddieancial statements, certain of our borrowingséhcovenants and requirements that
include, among other things, the maintenance dafiipéevels of financial ratios. Failure to comphith these covenants can result in limiting
our long-term growth prospects by hindering outighio incur future indebtedness or grow througlgaisitions.

We believe we are in compliance with CEOC’s sen&nured credit facilities and indentures, includimg senior secured leverage ratio,
as of December 31, 2011. If our LTM Adjusted EBITB#&ro Forma—CEOC Restricted were to decline sigaifity from the level achieved
at December 31, 2011, it could cause us to exdeeddnior secured leverage ratio and could be emt @f default under CEOC's credit
agreement. However, we could implement certairoastin an effort to minimize the possibility of eebch of the senior secured leverage ratio,
including reducing payroll and other operating spdeferring or eliminating certain maintenanceayiag or deferring capital expenditures, or
selling assets. In addition, under certain circamsgés, our senior secured credit facilities allevtauapply cash contributions received by
CEOC as a capital contribution to cure covenarmadites. However, there is no guarantee that sudhitmations will be able to be secured.

Guarantees of Third-Party Debt and Other Obligatiors and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual géiions and other commitments as of December 3111, 3f¥ior to consideration of the
2012 capital transactions mentioned above.

Payments due by Perioc

Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5

Contractual Obligations () Total 1 year years years years
(In millions)

Debt, face valu®© $22,644.. $ 38E $ 357.& $12,980.! $ 9,267.!
Capital lease obligatior 13.€ 6.8 6.8 — —
Estimated interest paymer®) © 8,368.: 1,647. 3,314.¢ 2,174.¢ 1,231.:
Operating lease obligatiol 2,168.° 85.4 143.¢ 121.2 1,818
Purchase order obligatiol 56.4 56.4 — — —
Community reinvestmer 81.4 6.4 13.C 12.¢ 49.2
Construction commitmen 281.¢ 213.7 68.1 — —
Entertainment obligatior© 247 .2 66.2 85.2 39.¢ 55.¢
Letters of credi 113t 113.t — — —
Minimum payments to tribe) 86.¢€ 13.¢ 26.2 24.C 22.k
Other contractual obligatior 593.1 106.7 138.¢ 118.¢ 229.(

$34,654.¢ $2,355.0 $4,154.0 $15471.% $12,673.

(&) In addition to the contractual obligations thsed in this table, we have unrecognized tax hsnibfat, based on uncertainties associated
with the items, we are unable to make reasonalibbte estimates of the period of potential cagtlesaents, if any, with taxing
authorities. (See Note 1“Income Taxe!” to our consolidated financial statements includsdwehere in this Form -K.)

(b) Estimated interest for variable rate debt ideldiin this table is based on rates at Decembe2®1l,. Estimated interest includes the
estimated impact of our interest rate swap andesteate cap agreemer
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(c) Debt maturities and estimated interest assumesxtieesion of maturities of the CMBS Loans and thik\PLas Vegas senior secur
loan from 2013 to 2015, resulting in a net increafsaterest of approximately $435.2 million. Amdsipresented do not include the
impact of our 2012 transactions as discussed ie R2{* Subsequent Even”

(d) Entertainment obligations represent obligationgap performers that have contracts for future perémces at one or more of ¢
properties

(e) The agreements pursuant to which we manage cagimbrglian lands contain provisions required by that provide that a minimui
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That oblggatias priority over scheduled repayments of bairrge/for development costs and
over the management fee earned and paid to thegaara the event that insufficient cash flow is\geated by the operations to fund-
payment, we must pay the shortfall to the tribeébj&ct to certain limitations as to time, such adem if any, would be repaid to us in
future periods in which operations generate casli fh excess of the required minimum payment. Thesemitments will terminate
upon the occurrence of certain defined eventsudicl termination of the management contract. @gregate monthly commitment for
the minimum guaranteed payments pursuant to thieaszis for the three managed Indian-owned faddlitiew open is $1.2 million per
month. Each of these casinos currently generafésisat cash flows to cover all of its obligatigriacluding its debt servict

COMPETITIVE PRESSURES

The gaming industry is highly competitive and oampetitors vary considerably in size, quality dfifiéies, number of operations, brand
identities, marketing and growth strategies, finalhstrength and capabilities, level of ameniti@gnagement talent and geographic diversity.
We also compete with other non-gaming resorts aodtion areas, and with various other entertainbesinesses. Our competitors in each
market may have substantially greater financiakketing and other resources than we do and therdeao assurance that they will not in the
future engage in aggressive pricing action to campéth us. Although we believe we are currentlieab compete effectively in each of the
various markets in which we participate, we camnmake assurances that we will be able to contina teo or that we will be capable of
maintaining or further increasing our current madtgare. Our failure to compete successfully invarious markets could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flow.

In recent years, many casino operators have bégresting in existing markets to attract new custesror to gain market share, thereby
increasing competition in those markets. As comgmhiave completed expansion projects, supply Ipésally grown at a faster pace than
demand in some markets and competition has inaleageificantly. The expansion of existing casimbegtainment properties, the increase in
the number of properties and the aggressive markstrategies of many of our competitors have med competition in many markets in
which we operate, and this intense competitiorxpeeted to continue. These competitive pressures atfiected, and are expected to continue
to adversely affect our financial performance irtai@ markets.

Several states and Indian tribes are also consgleniabling the development and operation of casin@asino-like operations in their
jurisdictions.

Although, historically, the short-term effect ofcbucompetitive developments on us generally has begative, we are not able to
determine the long-term impact, whether favorablardavorable, that development and expansion sr@md events will have on current or
future markets. We also cannot determine the lengrimpact of the financial crisis on the econoamnyd casinos specifically. In the sheetm,
the current financial crisis has stalled or delageohe of our capital projects, as well as thosaariy of our competitors. In addition, our
substantial indebtedness could limit our flexililih planning for, or reacting to, changes in ope@tions or business and restrict us from
developing new gaming facilities, introducing neehnologies or exploiting business opportunitii;favhich could place us at a competit
disadvantage. We believe that the geographic dtyesour operations; our focus on multi-markestmmer relationships; our service training,
our rewards and customer loyalty programs; anccontinuing efforts to establish our brands as peefarands upon which we have built
strong customer loyalty have welbsitioned us to face the challenges present withirindustry. We utilize the unique capabilitiéd/dNet, a
sophisticated nationwide customer database, aral Retwards, a nationwide loyalty program that atlawr customers to earn complimentary
items and other benefits for playing at our casiids believe these sophisticated marketing toasige us with competitive advantages,
particularly with players who visit more than onarket.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

We prepare our financial statements in conformiityr\vaccounting principles generally accepted inlimited States (“GAAP”). Certain
of our accounting policies, including the estimaieds assigned to our assets, the determinatidradfdebt, asset impairment, Total Rewards
point liability, self-insurance reserves, the pash price allocations made in connection with @guéitions/merger, the fair value of
derivative instruments, and the calculation of imepme tax liabilities, require that we apply sfigant judgment in defining the appropriate
assumptions for calculating financial estimatestiBair nature, these judgments are subject to laerémt degree of uncertainty. Our judgments
are based on our historical experience, termsistieg contracts, observance of
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trends in the industry, information provided by austomers and information available from othesilé sources, as appropriate. Actual
results may differ from our estimates. For a sunyneérour significant accounting policies, pleasterdo the notes to our audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in thisr20-K.

We consider accounting estimates to be criticabaweting policies when:
. the estimates involve matters that are highly uageat the time the accounting estimate is made

. different estimates or changes to estimates coaNe b material impact on the reported financialtfwss changes in financi:
position, or results of operatio

When more than one accounting principle, or metbfdts application, is generally accepted, we delee principle or method that we
consider to be the most appropriate when givespleeific circumstances. Application of these actiognprinciples requires us to make
estimates about the future resolution of existingautainties. Estimates are typically based upsetotical experience, current trends,
contractual documentation, and other informatienajgpropriate. Due to the inherent uncertainty lvimg estimates, actual results reported in
the future may differ from those estimates. In pré@ our financial statements, we have made osirdstimates and judgments of the amo
and disclosures included in the financial states\agiving regard to materiality.

Property and Equipment

We have significant capital invested in our propard equipment and judgments are made in detengthie estimated useful lives of
assets, salvage values to be assigned to assgi§.oanvhen an asset has been impaired. The acgwfahese estimates affects the amount of
depreciation expense recognized in our financegllte and whether we have a gain or loss on tlpoda of an asset. We assign lives to our
assets based on our standard policy, which is legtald by management as representative of the lugfefof each category of asset. We revi
the carrying value of our property and equipmenémgdver events and circumstances indicate thatiingieg value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flowseeted to result from its use and eventual disjposiThe factors considered by managen
in performing this assessment include current dpgraesults, trends and prospects, as well asffieet of obsolescence, demand, competition,
and other economic factors. In estimating expefitade cash flows for determining whether an asseghpaired, assets are grouped at the
reporting unit level, which, for most of our assétgthe individual property.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquisition is allocatetth¢ underlying assets acquired and liabilitiesiaeed based upon their estimated fair
values at the date of acquisition. We determinestiienated fair values after review and considenatif relevant information including
discounted cash flows, quoted market prices anchasis made by management. To the extent the pegitce exceeds the fair value of the
net identifiable tangible and intangible assetuaed and liabilities assumed, such excess is atémtto goodwill.

Each year, we perform a preliminary annual impaihassessment of goodwill and other non-amortizitangible assets as of
September 30. In the fourth quarter of each yearypdate our preliminary assessment once we faaliz long-term operating plan and
certain other assumptions. We perform assessments frequently if impairment indicators exist.

For our impairment assessment, we determine estihfair value of a reporting unit as a functionpaultiple, of EBITDA, combined
with estimated future cash flows discounted atsratammensurate with prevailing rates of return imithe casino industry in general. We
determine the estimated fair values of our non-¢izing intangible assets by using the relief fraygalty and excess earnings methods under
the income approach.

The annual evaluation of goodwill and other non-gimimg intangible assets requires the use of egisabout future operating results,
valuation multiples, and discount rates to deteentiveir estimated fair value. Changes in thesenagons can materially affect these
estimates. Thus, to the extent the economy deéteisifurther in the near future, discount rateseimee significantly, or we do not meet our
projected performance, we could have additionakimmpent to record in the next twelve months witbin financial statements, and such
impairments could be material. This is especiallg ffor our Las Vegas region, which has a signifigeortion of our total goodwill balance. In
accordance with GAAP, once an impairment of gooldwibther intangible asset has been recordednibot be reversed.
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Total Rewards Point Liability Program

Our customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, offacentives to customers who gamble at certairuofcasinos throughout the United
States. Under the program, customers are ablectoradate, or bank, reward credits over time thaytimay redeem at their discretion unde
terms of the program. The reward credit balancebeilforfeited if the customer does not earn a relveaedit over the prior six-month period.
As a result of the ability of the customer to baimé reward credits, we accrue the expense of reeradits, after consideration of estimated
forfeitures (referred to as “breakage”), as theyearned. The value of the cost to provide rewegdits is expensed as the reward credits are
earned and is included in casino expense on ousdidated Statements of Operations. To arrive@egtimated cost associated with reward
credits, estimates and assumptions are made ragdamdiremental costs of the benefits, breakage rated the mix of goods and services for
which reward credits will be redeemed. We use hisibdata to assist in the determination of estadaccruals.

In addition to reward credits, customers at certdiour properties can earn points based on platyate redeemable in the form of credits
playable at the gaming machine. We accrue theafastdeemable points, after consideration of estichdreakage, as they are earned. The
is recorded as contra-revenue and included in cgsiomotional allowances on our Consolidated Statgmof Operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Gaming

We reserve an estimated amount for gaming recedgghht may not be collected. Methodologies farmesging the allowance for
doubtful accounts range from specific reservesatious percentages applied to aged receivabletoridial collection rates are considered, as
are customer relationships, in determining specégerves. As with many estimates, management mais¢ judgments about potential actions
by third parties in establishing and evaluating @serves for allowance for doubtful accounts.

Self-Insurance Accruals

We are self-insured up to certain limits for castsociated with general liability, workers’ competitsn, and employee health coverage.
Insurance claims and reserves include accrualstwhated settlements for known claims, as wellasiuals of actuarial estimates of incurred
but not reported claims. In estimating these resgrwe consider historical loss experience and uadgments about the expected levels of
costs per claim. We also utilize consultants tasass the determination of certain estimated aatsuThese claims are accounted for based on
actuarial estimates of the undiscounted claimduding those claims incurred but not yet repori&f. believe the use of actuarial methods to
account for these liabilities provides a consisterd effective way to measure these highly judgaiexdcruals; however, changes in health
costs, accident frequency and severity, and odetofs can materially affect the estimates fore@Heilities. We regularly monitor the
potential for changes in estimates, evaluate @uramce accruals, and adjust our recorded progsion

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United S{atekiding federal and state) and numerous for@igsdictions in which we operate.
We record income taxes under the asset and liahiléthod, whereby deferred tax assets and ligslgire recognized based on the expected
future tax consequences of temporary differencesdsn the financial statement carrying amountsxistimg assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, and attributable to oper&isgyand tax credit carryforwards. We will recarteduction of the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance ffetian the available evidence, it is more likebntimot that such assets will not be realized.
Accordingly, the need to establish valuation alloees for deferred tax assets is assessed perigdiealed on the “more likely than not”
realization threshold. This assessment considergng other matters, the nature, frequency, andisgeé current and cumulative losses,
forecasts of future profitability, the durationsstutory carryforward periods, our experience wjplerating loss and tax credit carryforwards
not expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives.

The effect on the income tax provision and defetedassets and liabilities of a change in taxsr&geecognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. We have previquelided a valuation allowance on foreign taxdiiss certain foreign and state net
operating losses (“NOLs"), and other deferred fgmeand state tax assets. Certain foreign and Ntates and other deferred foreign and state
tax assets were not deemed realizable becausart@eytributable to subsidiaries that are not ebgobto produce future earnings.

We classify reserves for tax uncertainties wittinraed expenses and deferred credits and otheri€@ansolidated Balance Sheets,
separate from any related income tax payable, wikiafso reported within accrued expenses, or tkxféncome taxes. Reserve amounts for
uncertain tax positions relate to any potentiabine tax liabilities resulting from uncertain taxsgimns, as well as potential interest or pena
associated with those liabilities.
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We file income tax returns, including returns farr gubsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigisfictions. We are under regular and
recurring audit by the Internal Revenue Servic®g’l) and various state taxing authorities on operpositions, and it is possible that the
amount of the liability for unrecognized tax betefiould change during the next twelve months.

Derivative Instruments

We record all derivative instruments at fair vallughe financial statements. Any changes in falugare recorded in the statements of
operations or in other comprehensive income/(las)in the equity section of the balance sheetpedding upon whether or not the deriva
is designated and qualifies for hedge accountmgfype of hedge transaction, and the effectiveaoeti®e hedge. The estimated fair values of
our derivative instruments are based on markeepribtained from dealer quotes. Such quotes raprdgseestimated amounts we would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts.

Our derivative instruments contain a credit riskttthe counterparties may be unable to meet thestef the agreements. We minimize
that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of counterparties, which are limited to major bankd financial institutions. Our derivatives are
recorded at their fair values, adjusted for thelitnating of the counterparty if the derivativeais asset, or adjusted for our credit rating if the
derivative is a liability.

RECENTLY ISSUED AND PROPOSED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

For discussions of the adoption and potential intgpatrecently issued accounting standards, reféldte 2, Recently Issued Accounti
Pronouncements,” to our consolidated financiakstents, included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adwverhanges in market rates and prices, such asstbtetes, foreign currency exchange
rates and commodity prices. Our primary exposuradeket risk is interest rate risk associated withdebt. We attempt to limit our exposure
to interest rate risk by managing the mix of ountdeetween fixed-rate and variable-rate obligati@isour $22,657.9 million face value of
debt, including capital lease obligations, at Delsen81, 2011, we have entered into interest ratpsgreements to fix the interest rate on
$5,750.0 million of variable rate debt, and $7,84illion of debt remains subject to variable ietsrrates.

We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix afebirbetween fixed and variable rate instrumefdsof December 31, 2011, we have
entered into eight interest rate swap agreementsokional amounts totaling $5,750.0 million. Thfetence to be paid or received under the
terms of the interest rate swap agreements is ed@s interest rates change and recognized agestraent to interest expense for the related
debt. Changes in the variable interest rates foelbor received pursuant to the terms of the ésterate swap agreements will have a
corresponding effect on future cash flows.

In addition to the swap agreements, we have aneisiteate cap agreement for a notional amount &G0H60 million at a London Inter-
Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") cap rate of 4.5% andiaterest rate cap agreement for a notional amot$517.7 million at a LIBOR cap rate
of 7.0%. Assuming a constant outstanding balancedovariable rate debt for the next twelve monthkeypothetical 1% increase in interest
rates would increase interest expense for thetagtve months by approximately $68.7 million. Até@enber 31, 2011, the weighted average
USD LIBOR rate on our variable rate debt was 0.348%ypothetical reduction of this rate to 0% wodkekrease interest expense for the next
twelve months by approximately $23.9 million.

We do not purchase or hold any derivative finanicisfruments for trading purposes.

The table below provides information as of Decen8igr2011, about our financial instruments thatsamsitive to changes in interest
rates, including the cash flows associated withptfirecipal amounts of debt obligations, the notlaraounts of interest rate derivative
instruments and related weighted average intea¢ss.rPrincipal amounts are used to calculatedimpnts to be exchanged under the related
agreement(s) and weighted average variable ragesased on implied forward rates in the yield clas®f December 31, 2011.
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($ in millions)
Liabilities
Long-term debt
Fixed rate
Average interest ral
Variable rate®
Average interest ral
Interest Rate Derivative
Interest rate sway
Variable to fixec®
Average pay rat
Average receive ral
Interest rate caf®

Expected Maturity Date

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total Fair Value
$14.¢ $140.¢ $ 15.C $5,540.¢ $ 728.¢ $7,618." $14,059.( $12,203..
8.5% 8.4% 8.4% 10.1% 10.4% 5.7% 9.C%
$30.4 $ 29.¢ $178.¢ $5,582.¢ $1,128.: $1,648.¢ $ 8,598.¢ $ 6,178.!
4.8% 5.C% 5.4% 6.5% 7.1% 4.6% 5.4%
$5750.C $ (336.))
3.1% 3.1% 3.3% 3.2% — — 3.2%
0.3% 0.4% 0.7% 0.8% — — 0.5%
$ 7,017 $ —

(1) Maturities assume the extension of the CMBS LoamsRHW Las Vegas senior secured loan from 201315

(2) Expire in 2015
(3) Expire in 2013

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, our long-ternabée rate debt reflects borrowings under our sesegured credit facilities provided
to us by a consortium of banks with a total cayaeit$8,410.0 and $8,435.1 million, respectivelfeTinterest rates charged on borrowings
under these facilities are a function of LIBOR. Agh, the interest rates charged to us for borgsvimder the facilities are subject to change

as LIBOR changes.

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses m@renaterial to our results of operations for tkans ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009. Our only material ownership interestsusinesses in foreign countries are London Clubgs@rs Golf Macau, and an approximate
95% ownership of a casino in Uruguay. Thereforehaee not been subject to material foreign currem@hange rate risk from the effects that
exchange rate movements of foreign currencies woaNg on our future operating results or cash flows

From time to time, we hold investments in variouaikble-for-sale equity securities; however, oxpesure to price risk arising from the
ownership of these investments is not materiaubtoconsolidated financial position, results of @giems, or cash flows.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Caesars Entertainment Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Caesars Entertainment Corporatios@sidiaries (the “Company”)
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the relatesbtidated statements of operations, stockholddegicit)/equity and comprehensive
income/(loss), and cash flows for each of the tlyesgs in the period ended December 31, 2011. (ditsaalso included the consolidated
financial statement schedule included in Item 1&fa)These consolidated financial statements andal@ated financial statement schedule
the responsibility of the Company’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion on thesodidated financial statements and
consolidated financial statement schedule basesioaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinarficial position of Caesars
Entertainment Corporation and subsidiaries as @ebder 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2(l1, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such consolidatawhficial statement schedule, when considered itioelto the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly] imatlerial respects, the information set forth éer

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, based on the criterébkstted innternal Control-Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission, and our report datedckl 14, 2012,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Compamj&rimal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 14, 2012
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except for par value)

Assets
Current assel
Cash and cash equivale|
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accouh®262.3 and $216.
Deferred income taxe
Prepayments and other current as
Inventories
Total current asse
Property and equipment, net of accumulated degreciaf $2,681.3 and $1,991
Goodwill
Intangible assets other than good\
Investments in and advances to -consolidated affiliate
Restricted cas
Deferred charges and otk

Liabilities and Stockholder Equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl

Interest payabl

Accrued expense

Current portion of lon-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Deferred credits and oth
Deferred income taxe

Stockholder’ equity

Common stock; voting; $0.01 par value; 1,250.0 shauthorized; 125.1 shares issued and outstatr#hgf 0.3 shares held in treasu

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive I«
Total Caesars stockhold’ equity
Non-controlling interest:
Total stockholder equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.
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As of December 31,

2011 2010
$ 9046 $ 987.(
489.; 393.
170. 175.¢
228. 184.1
44.¢ 50.4
1,837. 1,790.¢
17,266.( 17,766.!
3,464.¢ 3,420.¢
4,655. 4,711
94.7 94.(
451.1 —
746. 803.¢
$28,515.  $28,587.
$ 293¢ $ 251
191. 201.¢
1,077.: 1,074
40.4 55.€
1,602.¢ 1,582.¢
19,759.! 18,785.!
901.¢ 923.1
5,198.: 5,623
27,462.; 26,915.:
0.7 0.7
6,885.: 6,906.¢
(5,782.) (5,105.9)
(96.9) (168.9)
1,006’ 1,632.¢
46.7 39.
1,053.¢ 1,672.¢
$28515(  $28,587.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share data)

Revenue!
Casino
Food and beverag
Rooms
Management fee
Other
Less: casino promotional allowanc
Net revenue
Operating expenst
Direct
Casino
Food and beverag
Rooms
Property, general, administrative, and of
Depreciation and amortizatic
Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project openist
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing intangible asse
Loss on interests in n-consolidated affiliate
Corporate expens
Acquisition and integration cos
Amortization of intangible asse
Total operating expens:
Income/(loss) from operatiol
Interest expense, net of interest capitali
Gains on early extinguishments of d
Other income, including interest incor
(Loss)/income before income tax
Benefit/(provision) for income taxe
Net (loss)/incom
Less: net income attributable to 1-controlling interest:
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes
Preferred stock dividenc
Net (loss)/income attributable to common stockhis

(Loss)/earnings per sha
Basic

Diluted

Weightet-average common shares outstant
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ients.
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$6,637.. $6917.C $7,124.
1,534.c 1,510.¢ 1,479.;
1,208.; 1,132. 1,068.¢
35.¢ 39.1 56.€
682.F 576. 592.
(1,263  (1,357.9  (1,414.)
8,834.1 8,818.¢ 8,907.:
3,746. 3,948.¢ 3,925.
665.1 621.5 596.(
287.1 259. 213.f
2,118t 2,061 2,018.¢
712.¢ 735. 683.¢
96.C 1497 111
11. 193.0 1,638.(

7.8 1.5 2.2
152.¢ 140.¢ 150.7
43 13.€ 0.2
156.1 160.¢ 174.¢
7,959.( 8,286.0 9,515..
875. 532.2 (607.9)
(2,122  (1,981.9  (1,892.)
47.¢ 115.¢ 4,965.
25.% 417 33.C
L.173.)  (1,292. 2,498.;
506.¢ 468.7 (1,651.9
(666.7) (823.9) 846.
(20.9) (7.9) (18.9)
(687.6) (831.9) 827.¢
— — (354.9)

$ (687.6 $ (83L) $ 472¢
$ (550 $ (83) $ 667
$ (550 $ (83) $ 3.9t
125.1 99. 70.¢
125.1 99.2 209.4
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT)/ EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Balance at December 31, 2008
Net income
Shar-based compensatic
Repurchase of treasury sha
Cumulative preferred stock dividen
Related party debt exchange transaction, net ¢
Defined benefit plan adjustments, net of
Foreign currency translaticadjustments, net of te
Change in fair market value of derivatives, neteodes
Adjustment for ASC 740 tax implicatiol
Purchase of additional interest in subsidi
Distributions to non-controlling interests, net of
contributions
Reclassification of loss on derivative instrumendsn
other comprehensive income to interest expens
net of taxe:
Other

2009 Comprehensive Incor
Balance at December 31, 2C

* Amount rounds to zer¢

(In millions)
Common Stock o Accumulated
Additional Other
Shares Paid-in- Accumulated Comprehensive  Non-controlling Comprehensive
Outstanding  Amount Capital Deficit Loss Interests Total Income/(Loss)
70.¢ 04 $ 3825: $ (509.) $ (139.6) $ 49.6  $(1,360.) $ =
— — — 827.¢ — 18.€ 846.¢ 846.¢
— — 16.4 — — — 16.4 —
* * (1.3 — — — (1.3 —
— — (354.9) — — (354.9) —
— — 80.1 — — — 80.1 —
_ _ — — (14.9) — (14.7) (14.7)
— — — — 19.C 4.8 23.€ 23.€
— — — — 34 — 34 34
— — (2.4 — — — (2.4 —
— — (83.7) — — (3.3) (87.0 —
— — — — — (14.0) (14.0 —
— — — — (2.7) — (2.7 (2.7)
— — 0.€ (0.€) — — — —
= = = = = = = $ 856.¢
70.€ 04 $ 3480 $ (4269.) $ (1340 $ 555 $ (867.0

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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Balance at December 31, 2009

Net (loss)/incom

Shar-based compensatic
Repurchase of treasury sha
Cumulative preferred stock dividen

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY/(DE FICIT)
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Cancellation of cumulative preferred stock
dividends in connection with conversion of

preferred stock to common sto

Conversion of non-voting perpetual preferre

stock to no-voting common stoc
Private Placemet

Defined benefit plan adjustments, net of

Foreign currency translation adjustments, ni

tax

Change in fair market value of derivatives, r

of taxes
Reclassification of loss on derivative

instruments from other comprehensive loss

to interest expense, net of t

Unrealized gains on investments, net of

Distributions to noreontrolling interests, net

contributions

Effect of deconsolidation of variable interest

entities
2010 Comprehensive Lo

Balance at December 31, 2C

Amount rounds to zer¢

(In millions)
Common Stock Accumulated
Additional Other
Shares Paid-in- Accumulated Comprehensive  Non-controlling Comprehensive
Outstanding  Amount Capital Deficit Loss Interests Total Income/(Loss)
70.¢ 04 $ 3480 $ (4269.) $ (134.0 $ 55.¢ $(867.00) $ —
— — (831.7) — 7.8 (823.9) (823.9)
— — 17.¢ — — 0.2 18.1 —
* * (1.€) — — — (1.€) —
— — (64.€) — — — (64.€) —
— — 717.: — — — 717.: —
34.€ 0.2 1,989.¢ — — — 1,989.¢ —
19.€ 0.1 768.( — — — 768.1 —
— — — — (6.2) — (6.1) (6.1)
_ — — — 8.2 4.2 4.C 4c
— — — — (60.7) — (60.7) (60.7)
— — — — 22.2 — 22z 22z
— — — — 1.6 — 1.€ 1.€
_ _ — — — (10.1) (10.) —
— — — (5.2 — (9.8 (15.0 —
. . — — — — . $ (862.9)
125.1 07 $ 6906.f $ (51050 $ (168.9 $ 39.6  $1,672.¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY/(DE FICIT)
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

(In millions)
Common Stock o Accumulated
Additional Other
Shares Paid-in- Accumulated Comprehensive  Non-controlling Comprehensive
Outstanding  Amount Capital Deficit Loss Interests Total Income/(Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2010 125.1 07 $ 6906f $ (51056 $ (168.5) $ 39.6  $1672¢ $ —
Effect of change in accounting for accruals for
casino jackpot liabilities, net of t¢ — — — 10.7 — — 10.7 —
Net (loss)/incom — — — (687.6) — 20.¢ (666.7) (666.7)
Shar-based compensatic — — 22.1 — — 0.1 22.2 —
Repurchase of treasury sha i i @.7) — — — 2.7) —
Defined benefit plan adjustments, net of — — — — (39.5) — (39.5) (39.5)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, ni
taxes — — — — (2.7 1.3 (0.§) (0.§)
Change in fair market value of derivatives, net
of tax — — — — (35.9 — (35.9) (35.9)
Reclassification of loss on derivative
instruments from other comprehensive I«
to interest expense, net of t — — — — 148.2 — 148.« 148.¢
Unrealized gains on investments, net of — — — — 1.5 — 1.t 1.t
Distributions to norcontrolling interests, net
contributions — — — — (5.8 (5.6 —
Changes in nc-controlling interest: — — — — — (9.6) (9.6) —
Purchase of additional interest in subsidi — — (31.5) — — — (31.5) —
Other — — (10.3) 0.2 — — (10.5) —
2011 Comprehensive Lo — — — — — = — 3 (593.0
Balance at December 31, 2C 125.1 07 $ 6885: $ (5782) $ (96.49) $ 46.7 $1,053.

* Amount rounds to zer¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Cash flows from operating activitit

Net (loss)/incom
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/income to d&shis provided by operating activitie
Gains on early extinguishments of d
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of deferred finance costs and debtalist/premiun
Reclassification from, and amortization of, accuatedi other comprehensive Ic
Non-cash writ-downs, reserves, and recovel
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing intangible asse
Shar-based compensation expel
Deferred income taxe
Federal income tax refund receiv
Net change in lor-term account
Net change in working capital accou
Other

Cash flows provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

Acquisitions of property and equipment, net of a@@im construction payabli
Change in restricted ca

Payments to acquire businesses, net of transamiists and cash acquir
Purchase of additional interests in subsid

Payments made to acquire certain gaming ri

Investments in/advances to I-consolidated affiliates and oth

Other

Cash flows used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from issuance of l-term debt
Debt issuance costs and fe

Borrowings under lending agreeme
Repayments under lending agreem
Cash paid for early extinguishments of d
Scheduled debt retiremer

Purchase of additional interest in subsidi
Other

Cash flows provided by financing activiti

Effect of deconsolidation of variable interest geg
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ients.
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ (666.) $ (8239 $ 846.
(47.9 (115.9) (4,965.9)
881. 907.¢ 872.(
2275 240.1 255.(
266. 36.2 18.2
27.1 108.1 32.C
11. 193.0 1,638.(
22.% 18.1 16.
(503.5) (467.9) 1,541
— 220.¢ —
(715 (12.9) 743
(26.0) (150.6) (117.9)
3.1 15.7 9.2
123.1 170.¢ 220.
(283.9) (160.7) (464.5)
(517.9) — —
19.0 (30.6) —
(75.9) (19.9) —
(22.9) (16.5) —
(76.0 (64.0) (66.9)
(23.0 3.4 8.1
(1,017.0) (287.9) (523.9)
863.¢ 1,332. 2,259.¢
(18.1) (64.6) (76.9)
358.( 1,175.( 3,076.¢
(203.0) (1,625.9 (3,535.)
(128.5) (369.9) (1,003.)
(43.7) (237.0) (45.5)
= = (83.9)
7.0 (23.9 (21.9
811.¢ 187.¢ 570.1
— (1.4) —
(82.9) 68. 267.¢
987.( 918.1 650.¢
$ 904.¢ $ 987.( $ 9181
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In these footnotes, the words “Company,” “Caesargdttainment,” “we,” “our,” and “us” refer to Caesars Entertainment Corporati
a Delaware corporation, and its wholly-owned submiiés, unless otherwise stated or the context iregutherwise.

Note —Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS. As of December 31, 2011, we owned, operated, oageah, through variot
subsidiaries, 52 casinos in 12 U.S. states anchsawntries. The majority of these casinos opératiee United States and England, primarily
under the Caesars, Harrah’s, and Horseshoe branésia the United States (the “U.S.”). Our casintegainment facilities include 33 land-
based casinos, 12 riverboat or dockside casinteg thanaged casinos on Indian lands in the U.8.m@anaged casino in Canada, one casino
combined with a greyhound racetrack, one casindb@oed with a thoroughbred racetrack, and one casinabined with a harness racetrack.
Our 33 land-based casinos include one in Uruguiag in England, one in Scotland, two in Egypt, ané in South Africa. We view each
property as an operating segment and aggregatpetating segments into one reportable segment.

On January 28, 2008, Caesars Entertainment wasreddpy affiliates of Apollo Global Management, LI{@Apollo”) and affiliates of
TPG Capital, LP (together with such affiliates, ‘GPand, together with Apollo, the “Sponsors”) in allrcash transaction (“the Acquisition”).
As a result of the Acquisition and through Decentier2011, our stock was not publicly traded.

Effective February 8, 2012, as the result of then@anys initial public offering, our common stock tradesthe NASDAQ Global Sele
Market under the symbol “CZR.” In connection wittetpublic offering, the Company effected a 1.742¢foe split of its common stock.
Unless otherwise stated, all applicable share andhpare data presented herein have been retroacéigplgted to give effect to this stock sy
See Note 22, “Subsequent Events,” for additionstutision of the public offering.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION. Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP®hich require the use of estimates and assumptiatsaffect the reported amounts of assets, ltas
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liegsilat the date of the financial statements aadthounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Management believes the accogmstimates are appropriate and reasonably stadectver, due to the inherent
uncertainties in making these estimates, actuabatsaould differ.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION. Our consolidated financial statements includeatt@unts of Caesars Entertainment and its
subsidiaries after elimination of all intercompaagcounts and transactions.

We consolidate into our financial statements theants of all wholly-owned subsidiaries and anytipfly-owned subsidiary that we
have the ability to control. Control generally etpsato ownership percentage, whereby investmeatsatie more than 50% owned are
consolidated, investments in affiliates of 50%emd but greater than 20% are generally accountagsiiog the equity method, and investments
in affiliates of 20% or less are accounted for ggime cost method.

We also consolidate into our financial statememésaccounts of any variable interest entity foralihive are determined to be the prim
beneficiary. Up through and including DecemberZ111, we analyzed our variable interests to detegrifithe entity that is party to the
variable interest is a variable interest entitaatordance with GAAP. Our analysis included botarjitative and qualitative reviews.
Qualitative analysis is based on our review ofdhsign of the entity, its organizational structineuding decision-making ability, and
financial agreements. Based on these analyses, Wexe no consolidated variable interest entitias were material to our consolidated
financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investmentdwitaturities of less than three months from the
date of purchase and are stated at the lower diocasarket value.

RESTRICTED CASH. At December 31, 2011, the Company has $517.7anithf current and non-current restricted cash, wksc
included in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as $&@l®n of prepayments and other current assets$51.1 million of restricted cash,
respectively.

As more fully described in Note 7, “Debt”, in 201the Company borrowed $450.0 million in a seni@mused term facility under an
unrestricted subsidiary of Caesars Entertainmerr&imng Company, Inc. (“CEOC”), which is the finamg incurred
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to complete the Octavius Tower at Caesars Palas&/kgas (“Project Octavius”) and to develop a fetlining, and entertainment corridor
located between the Imperial Palace Hotel and ©Gaaidl the Flamingo Las Vegas on the Las Vegas SRipject Ling” and, together with
Project Octavius, the “Development”). The borrowiagecured by the Development assets, and fuigksdrthat have not been spent on the
Development are deemed restricted and are includex$tricted cash. Restricted cash also includsh ceserved under loan agreements for
development projects and certain expenditures fedun the normal course of business, such asesiteervice, real estate taxes, property
insurance, and capital improvements. Specifictitig, PHW Las Vegas senior secured loan requiregitba@ompany maintain certain reserve
funds in respect of furniture, fixtures, and equimt) capital improvements, interest service, taaad,insurance; and the commercial mortgage
backed securities (“CMBS”) financing includes affiitive covenants that require the properties seguhie CMBS financing to maintain

certain reserve funds in respect of furniture uigs, and equipment, taxes, and insurance, andlgavith other customary obligations for
CMBS real estate financings.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS—GAMING. We reserve an estimated amount for gaming recedgahbat may not k
collected. Methodologies for estimating the alloa@uifor doubtful accounts range from specific regso various percentages applied to aged
receivables. Historical collection rates are coasdd, as are customer relationships, in determisjiegific reserves.

CASINO REINVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY INVESTMEN T OBLIGATIONS. The New Jersey Casino Control
Act provides, among other things, for an assessofditenses equal to 1.25% of gross gaming reveimuéeu of an investment alternative tax
equal to 2.5% of gross gaming revenues. The Compeayysatisfy this investment obligation by invegtin qualified eligible direct
investments, by making qualified contributionspgrdepositing funds with the Casino Reinvestmentddepment Authority (“CRDA”). Funds
deposited with the CRDA may be used to purchaseddasignated by the CRDA or, under certain cir¢cantes, may be donated to the
CRDA in exchange for credits against future CRDx@eistment obligations. Upon initial obligation depp@snade by the Company, an
allowance is made to record the deposit at thgieeted eventual realizability upon conversion imads by the CRDA.

INVENTORIES. Inventories, which consist primarily of food, beage, retail merchandise, and operating suppliesstated at average
cost.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. Additions to property and equipment are statetbat. We capitalize the costs of improvements that
extend the life of the asset. We expense maintenand repair costs as incurred. Gains or losséiseodispositions of property and equipment
are included in the determination of income.

Interest expense is capitalized on internally carcséd assets at the applicable weighted-averageviiog rates of interest. Interest was
capitalized totaling $22.8 million, $1.4 millionné $32.4 million for the years ended December 81122010, and 2009, respectively.

Depreciation on our land concessions, buildinggrkioats, and equipment is provided using thegttdine method over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset or the eel&tase or concession term, as follows:

Land improvement 12 year
Land concessior 40 year
Buildings 30 to 40 yeal
Leasehold improvemen 5to 15 yeat
Riverboats and barg: 30 year
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 2 1/2to 20 year

We review the carrying value of property and equepitrfor impairment whenever events and circumstinaicate that the carrying
value of an asset may not be recoverable fromgtimated future cash flows expected to result fisnuse and eventual disposition. In cases
where undiscounted, expected future cash flowseasethan the carrying value, an impairment lossdsgnized equal to an amount by which
the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair vafuke asset. The factors considered by managem@etforming this assessment include
current operating results, trends, and prospentsilze effect of obsolescence, demand, competiignjficant decreases in marketplace, a
change in physical condition, and legal and otltenemic factors. In estimating expected future dishs for determining whether an asset is
impaired, assets are grouped at the reportingewet, which, for most of our assets, is the indial property.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS. The purchase price of an acquisition is alloc&tetthe underlying assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon tiséimated fair values at the date of acquisition. d#&termine the estimated fair values after
review and consideration of relevant informatiodlirling discounted cash flows, quoted market priagd estimates made by managemen
the extent the purchase price exceeds the faiew@lthe net identifiable tangible and intangitdsets acquired and liabilities assumed, such
excess is recorded as goodwill.

We determine the estimated fair value of each tempunit as a function, or multiple, of EBITDA, dusing estimated future cash flows
discounted at rates commensurate with prevailitegsraf return within the casino industry in geneBadth EBITDA multiples and discounted
cash flows are common measures used to value andrksell businesses such as casinos. We estirtiaddir values of our non-amortizing
intangible assets, other than goodwill, by usirgridief from royalty and excess earnings methaateuthe income approach. In estimating
expected future cash flows for determining whetreasset is impaired, assets are grouped at thetirgpunit level, which, for most of our
assets, is the individual property.
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Each year, we perform a preliminary annual impaihassessment of goodwill and other non-amortizitengible assets as of
September 30. In the fourth quarter of each yearnypdate our preliminary assessment, once weZmalir long-term operating plan for the
next fiscal year and certain other assumptionsp@féorm assessments for impairment of goodwill atteér intangible assets more frequently
if impairment indicators exist. The annual evaloatof goodwill and other non-amortizing intangiblesets requires the use of estimates about
future operating results, valuation multiples, aigtount rates, to determine their estimated falue. Changes in these assumptions can
materially affect these estimates.

UNAMORTIZED DEBT ISSUE COSTS. Debt discounts or premiums and debt issue costsried in connection with the issuance of
debt are capitalized and amortized to interest expdased on the related debt agreements prinoaiilg the effective interest method.
Unamortized discounts or premiums are written aff ancluded in our gain or loss calculations toei&ent we retire debt prior to its original
maturity date. Unamortized debt issue costs aleded in deferred charges and other in our ConatitiBalance Sheets.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS. Derivative instruments are recognized in the finalngtatements at fair value. Any changes in fair
value are recorded in the statements of operatinitsaccumulated other comprehensive income/(IG#s)CI/(L)") within the equity section
of the balance sheets, depending upon whetheretfieative is designated and qualifies for hedgevanting, the type of hedge transaction, and
the effectiveness of the hedge. The estimated/#ires of our derivative instruments are based arket prices obtained from dealer quotes.
Such quotes represent the estimated amounts welwecgive or pay to terminate the contracts.

Our derivative instruments contain a credit riskttthe counterparties may be unable to meet thestef the agreements. We minimize
that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of counterparties, which are limited to major bankd financial institutions. The fair values of
our derivative instruments are adjusted for thelitmating of the counterparty if the derivativeais asset, or adjusted for the credit rating of the
Company if the derivative is a liability.

TOTAL REWARDS POINT LIABILITY PROGRAM.  Our customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, affecentives to customers
who gamble at certain of our casinos throughoutthiged States. Under the program, customers dectalaccumulate, or bank, reward cre
over time that they may redeem at their discretinder the terms of the program. The reward creadérice will be forfeited if the customer
does not earn a reward credit over the prior sixtimgeriod. As a result of the ability of the custer to bank the reward credits, we accrue the
expense of reward credits, after consideratiorstifreted forfeitures (referred to as “breakages)iteey are earned. The value of the cost to
provide reward credits is expensed as the rewaditsrare earned and is included in direct caskpemse in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. To arrive at the estimated cost assatiaith reward credits, estimates and assumptoasnade regarding incremental marginal
costs of the benefits, breakage rates, and theefigrods and services for which reward credits bélredeemed. We use historical data to
assist in the determination of estimated accriglsh amounts are included within accrued expemst®iConsolidated Balance Sheets
presented herein.

In addition to reward credits, customers at certdiour properties can earn points based on playatre redeemable in the form of credits
playable at the gaming machine. We accrue theafastleemable points, after consideration of edtchéireakage, as they are earned. The
is recorded as contra-revenue and included in ggsiomotional allowances in our Consolidated Stai@isiof Operations.

SELF-INSURANCE ACCRUALS. We are self-insured up to certain limits for castsociated with general liability, workers’
compensation, and employee health coverage. Inseicdaims and reserves include accruals of estiarsgtlements for known claims, as well
as accruals of actuarial estimates of incurrechbtiteported claims. In estimating these resemissyrical loss experience and judgments a
the expected levels of costs per claim are consilérhese claims are accounted for based on aaiteatimates of the undiscounted claims,
including those claims incurred but not reportea Wélieve the use of actuarial methods to accaurthese liabilities provides a consistent
effective way to measure these highly judgmentetwds. We regularly monitor the potential for ches in estimates, evaluate our insurance
accruals, and adjust our recorded provisions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Casino revenues are measured by the aggregatéfeetnce between gaming wins and losses, with
liabilities recognized for funds deposited by cuaséos before gaming play occurs and for chips irctiomers’ possession. Food and
beverage, rooms, and other operating revenuegengmized when services are performed. Advancesitsgm rooms and advance ticket s
are recorded as customer deposits until servieepravided to the customer. The Company does gogréze as revenue taxes collected on
goods or services sold to its customers.
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The retail value of accommodations, food and beyerand other services furnished to guests witbbatge is included in gross reven
and then deducted as promotional allowances. Timaaed cost of providing such promotional allowas¢s included in casino expenses as
follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Food and beverag $ 482.2 $ 489.t $ 473.¢
Rooms 191.¢ 191 190.4
Other 59.€ 60.C 70.€
$ 733.7 $ 740.¢ $ 734.

ADVERTISING. The Company expenses the production costs of tisingrthe first time the advertising takes plagdvertising
expense was $192.2 million, $199.7 million, and&28nillion for the years ended December 31, 2@D10, and 2009, respectively.

INCOME TAXES. We are subject to income taxes in the United St@teluding federal and state) and numerous forgigsdictions
in which we operate. We record income taxes urtteasset and liability method, whereby deferrecatssets and liabilities are recognized
based on the expected future tax consequencempbtary differences between the financial stateroantying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases, andbattable to operating loss and tax credit carnynmds. We reduce the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance getan the available evidence, it is more likegntimot that such assets will not be realized.
Accordingly, the need to establish valuation alloees for deferred tax assets is assessed perigdiealed on the more likely than not
realization threshold. This assessment considersng other matters, the nature, frequency, andisgeé current and cumulative losses,
forecasts of future profitability, the durationsiitutory carryforward periods, our experience wiperating loss and tax credit carryforwards
not expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives.

The effect on the income tax provision and defeteadassets and liabilities of a change in taxsregeecognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. We have preyiquslided a valuation allowance on foreign taxdiiss certain foreign and state net
operating losses (“NOLs”), and other deferred fgmeand state deferred tax assets. Certain foreigrstate NOLs and other deferred foreign
and state deferred tax assets were not deemedafglalibecause they are attributable to subsidiivégsare not expected to produce future
earnings.

We classify reserves for tax uncertainties wittinraed expenses and deferred credits and otheri€@ansolidated Balance Sheets,
separate from any related income tax payable, wikialso reported within accrued expenses, or tiféncome taxes. Reserve amounts relate
to any potential income tax liabilities resultimgr uncertain tax positions, as well as potentitdriest or penalties associated with those
liabilities.

We file income tax returns, including returns farr gubsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigisgictions. We are under regular and
recurring audit by the Internal Revenue Servic®§'l) and various state taxing authorities on operpositions, and it is possible that the
amount of the liability for unrecognized tax betefiould change during the next 12 months.

ERROR CORRECTIONS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS. We have reclassified certain amounts in prior pkri conform to the
current year presentation.

Subsequent to the filing of our 2010 Annual Reporform 10-K (the “2010 10-K")jn the first quarter of 2011, the Company determ
that $64.9 million reported as cash and cash etaritsas of December 31, 2010 should have beemtegbas either current or non-current
restricted cash at that date. The Consolidate@®&it of Cash Flows for the year ended Decembe2@1], includes $517.7 million of
investing cash outflows for the funding of reseiticash balances. Included in the $517.7 milliomedsting cash outflows is the $64.9 million
of restricted cash funded prior to 2011. Managerdetérmined that reclassifying the cash balanceae®balance sheet and reporting the
aggregate investing cash outflows was not a mawmsiaection of our 2010 financial statements andsinot materially misstate our 2011
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the filing of our quarterly reportram 10-Q for the quarter and nine-months endexde®gber 30, 2011, we identified
certain deferred tax liabilities primarily relatemtransaction costs incurred in connection with Altquisition, which had been incorrectly
recorded in 2008, and not properly adjusted uper2009 receipt of the final transaction cost
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reports. The net impact in 2011 of correcting fos error is to reduce our deferred tax liabilitigsapproximately $57 million, reduce goodwill
by approximately $11 million, and recognize thdeati#nce of approximately $46 million as an incre@smcome tax benefit. There are no cash
impacts as a result of this correction, and thissdwot materially misstate our consolidated finalstiatements.

Note —Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted revised guoedhat modifies Step 1 of the goodwill impairmist for reporting units with zero
or negative carrying amounts. For those reportimigsuan entity is required to perform Step 2 & goodwill impairment test if it is more like
than not that a goodwill impairment exists. In det@ing whether it is more likely than not that @oglwill impairment exists, an entity should
consider whether there are any adverse qualitéditers indicating that an impairment may exist. fliénot have any reporting units with z
or negative carrying amounts as of our 2011 aninya&irment assessment of goodwill and other nonrtining intangible assets.

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted new guidémcaccounting for accruals for casino jackpotiliibs. The new guidance clarifies
that an entity should not accrue jackpot liabiitjer portions thereof) before a jackpot is wothé entity can avoid paying that jackpot. Inst
jackpots should be accrued and charged to revehea an entity has the obligation to pay the jackpbis guidance applies to both base
progressive jackpots. Upon adoption, we recordéeicaease to our accrual in the amount of $16.4ani([$10.7 million net of tax) with a
corresponding cumulative effect adjustment to aadatad deficit.

In April 2011, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBl (“FASB”) issued guidance related to a cretitdetermination of whether a
restructuring is a troubled debt restructuring. ghelance clarifies how to identify restructurirefseceivables that constitute troubled debt
restructurings for a creditor. This new guidancednee effective for us July 1, 2011 but did not haweaterial effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or céefws.

In May 2011, the FASB issued updated guidanceeeéltd fair value measurement and disclosure reapeings. The changes result in
common fair value measurement and disclosure reqpgints between U.S. GAAP and International FindReaorting Standards (“IFRS”)
and change the wording used to describe many aktpgrements in GAAP for measuring fair value &mddisclosing information about fair
value measurements. The changes were originabg tffective for us January 1, 2012. In Decembéi2the FASB issued updated guidance
deferring the effective date indefinitely pendingther deliberations by the FASB at a future date.

In June 2011, the FASB issued new guidance foptasentation of comprehensive income. The new gaiElaequires that all noowner
changes in stockholderefuity be presented either in a single continutateent of comprehensive income or in two sepdrateonsecutiv
statements. The new requirements will be effedtivais January 1, 2012. As this is a presentatimhdisclosure requirement, there will be no
impact on our consolidated financial position, tesaf operations, or cash flows upon adoption.

In September 2011, the FASB issued updated guidatated to disclosures around an employer’s ppation in multi-employer benefit
plans. The updated guidance increases the quarditatd qualitative disclosures an employer wilkbguired to provide about its participation
in significant multi-employer plans that offer pesor other post-retirement benefits. The newld®ae requirements have been included in
this Form 10-K, and, as this update relates onljigolosures, there was no impact on our cons@ilihancial position, results of operations,
or cash flows upon adoption.

In September 2011, the FASB issued updated guidatated to goodwill impairment testing. The updageidance allows an entity to
perform a qualitative assessment on goodwill teiheine whether it is more likely than not (defireslhaving a likelihood of more than 50%)
that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrthia carrying amount as a basis for determiningtivér it is necessary to perform the two-step
goodwill impairment test. The new guidance willéféective for us January 1, 2012.

In December 2011, the FASB issued updated guidamated to disclosures about offsetting assetdiahiities. The new guidance
contains disclosure requirements regarding thereatiuan entity’s rights of offset and related agements associated with its financial
instruments and derivative instruments. The newldsires are designed to make financial statenteatsre prepared under GAAP more
comparable to those prepared under IFRS. To faiglitomparison between financial statements prdparder GAAP and IFRS, the new
disclosures give financial statement users infoionagbout both gross and net exposures. The neslodise requirements will be effective for
us January 1, 2013.
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Note :—Development and Acquisition Activity
Suffolk Downs

In March 2011, we acquired an interest in Sterfhuffolk Racecourse, LLC, which owns a horse-ratiagk in Massachusetts, along
with an option to purchase additional interests tedright to manage a potential future gaminglitgciThe consideration paid for this
investment has been recorded as an amortizinggitienasset, representing the right to manage engiat future gaming facility, with
amortization commencing upon the future opening @@tsuch facility. Our interest is accounted fsing the cost method of accounting.

Baltimore, Maryland

In September 2011, we filed an application with $itate of Maryland for the license to operate &oitbttery terminal (“VLT")facility in
the City of Baltimore. The application was filed behalf of a venture that includes Caesars Entemiant as the lead investor and facility
manager, Rock Gaming, LLC, CVPR Gaming HoldingsCl and The Stronach Group.

The consideration paid to the State of Marylanah@lwith the bid for the license has been recordea @on-amortizing intangible asset.

Acquisition of Playtika Ltd.

In May 2011, Caesars Interactive Entertainmenelsitad. (“CIEI"), a subsidiary of Caesars InteiigetEntertainment, Inc., which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of Caesars Entertainmacquired 51% of the voting equity interests ofyRka Ltd. (“Playtika”), a social games
developer based in Israel. The results of Playtkgeriods subsequent to the acquisition are datated with our results.

The purchase price of Playtika was allocated bapet estimated fair values of the assets acquirddiabilities assumed, with the
excess of estimated fair value over net tangibteiatangible assets acquired recorded as goodWi#. purchase price allocation includes as
and liabilities of Playtika as follows:

(In millions) May 16, 201:
Assets
Total current asse $ 6.5
Goodwill 50.7
Intangible assets other than good\ 25.C
82.2
Liabilities
Total current liabilities (5.9
Total long term liabilities (5.3
Redeemable necontrolling interest: (36.0
Net assets acquire $ 35.C

The Company finalized the purchase price allocatduring fourth quarter 2011.

CIEI purchased the remaining 49% of Playtika in @aber 2011 bringing CIEI's ownership of Playtikal@@0%. The non-controlling
interest acquired was adjusted to its acquisitiate-dair value by recording a reduction to equit$®1.5 million. There was no gain or loss
recognized as a result of remeasuring the redeenmalol-controlling interests to its acquisition-diatie value.

Acquisition of Planet Hollywooc

In February 2010, CEOC, a wholly-owned subsididrZaesars Entertainment, acquired 100% of the gintierests of PHW Las Vegas,
LLC (“PHW Las Vegas”), which owns the Planet Hollyad Resort and Casino (“Planet Hollywood”) locaitetlas Vegas, Nevada. PHW Las
Vegas is an unrestricted subsidiary of CEOC aretefore, not a borrower under CEOC'’s credit fdetit
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CEOC paid $67.2 million, substantially during tleeend half of 2009, for the combination of theitial debt investment in certain
predecessor entities of PHW Las Vegas and cerénest-only participations associated with thet délzertain predecessor entities of PHW
Las Vegas.

In connection with this transaction, PHW Las Vegasumed a $554.3 million, face value, senior selda@n, and a subsidiary of CEOC
canceled certain debt issued by PHW Las Vegas'gmestor entities. In connection with the transadiod the assumption of debt, PHW Las
Vegas entered into an amended and restated loaaragnt (the “Amended and Restated Loan Agreemasttfiscussed below in Note 7,
“Debt.”

The purchase price of PHW Las Vegas was allocatsddupon estimated fair values of the assetsrachaind liabilities assumed, with
the excess of estimated fair value over net taagibld intangible assets acquired recorded as gbobwiing 2011, purchase price allocation
was finalized and the supporting valuations andteel assumptions, concluding on assets and liabilif PHW Las Vegas as follows:

(In millions) February 19, 201(
Assets
Total current asse $ 2.2
Land, buildings, and equipme 461.(
Goodwill 24.¢
Intangible assets other than good\ 5.4
Deferred charges and ott 4.€
547.¢
Liabilities
Total current liabilities (35.0
Long-term debt, net of discou (433.9)
Deferred credits and oth (12.¢)
(480.9
Net assets acquire $ 66.7

Acquisition of Thistledown Racetrac

In May 2010, CEOC entered into an agreement tohase the assets of Thistledown Racetrack. The sitiqgniwas completed on
July 28, 2010 at a cost of approximately $42.5iamll The results of Thistledown Racetrack for pgsisubsequent to July 2010 were
consolidated with our results.

The purchase price of Thistledown Racetrack waated based on estimated fair values of the aasatsred and liabilities assumed,
with the excess of estimated fair value over negitsle and intangible assets acquired recordeadadvgll. During the third quarter 2011,
CEOC finalized its purchase price allocation arelghpporting valuations and related assumptions fifilal purchase price allocation includes
assets, liabilities, and net assets acquired dftiBoiown Racetrack of $46.8 million, $4.3 milli@md $42.5 million, respectively.

Venture with Rock Gaming, LLC

In December 2010, we formed a venture, Rock Ohies@es LLC, with Rock Gaming, LLC (“Rock Gaming',pursue casino
developments in Cincinnati and Cleveland. Purstatiie agreements forming the venture, we have dtedrto invest up to $200.0 million
for an approximate 30.0% interest in the venturepArt of our investment, we plan to contributestiedlown Racetrack to the venture. The
casino developments will be managed by subsidiafi€EOC.

In August 2011, Rock Gaming exercised a contracight to buy down a portion of our interest in trenture. Pursuant to this right,
Rock Gaming contributed capital to the venture ipprtionately with its existing ownership interdstvering our ownership interest in the
venture to 20.0%.

The venture obtained financing for the casinos uigést 2011. Completion of the casino developmenssibject to a number of
conditions, including, without limitation, receipt the necessary licensing to operate casinoseirsthte of Ohio.
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During 2011, the Company contributed an additiéid.0 million into its venture with Rock Gamingijriging its total cash contribution
to the venture to $80.0 million. This contributisnncluded in “Investments in and advances to nosolidated affiliates” in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

Note ~—Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment, net consisted of the fotigw

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2011 2010
Land and land improvemer $ 7,460.& $ 7,405.¢
Land concessior 606.7 625.2
Buildings, riverboats, and improvemei 9,103.! 8,824.(
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 2,415.: 2,242.(
Construction in progres 361.] 661.(
19,947. 19,758..
Less: accumulated depreciati (2,681.9) (1,991.9

$17,266.0  $17,766.!

Depreciation and amortization expense for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, was Bw#Hion, $747.0 million, and
$697.2 million, respectively, and is included irpdeciation and amortization and corporate expemsali Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Note =—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The following table sets forth changes in the dagyalue of goodwill:

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2011 2010
Beginning goodwill gross balance $9,496.: $9,440.:
Additions or adjustment 46.€ 56.C
Ending goodwill gross balanc 9,543.( 9,496.:
Accumulated goodwill impairment chanc (6,078.9) (6,075.9)
Ending goodwill net balanc $ 3,464.¢ $ 3,420.¢

Each year we perform a preliminary annual impairmaasessment of goodwill and other non-amortizimarigible assets as of
September 30. In the fourth quarter of each yearmupdate our preliminary assessment, once weZméte long-term operating plan for the
next fiscal year and certain other assumptionsp@réorm assessments more frequently if impairmeditators exist.

For our assessment, we determine the estimatedafaie of each reporting unit as a function, ortipld, of EBITDA, combined with
estimated future cash flows discounted at rateswensurate with prevailing rates of return withie tasino industry in general. Both EBITI
multiples and discounted cash flows are common oreasised to value and buy or sell businessesasichsinos. We determine the estimated
fair values of our non-amortizing intangible assstausing the relief from royalty and excess eagaimethods under the income approach.

Our preliminary annual impairment assessment &epfember 30, 2011 did not result in any impairnc@arges. We finalized our
annual impairment assessment during the fourthteuaf 2011 and, as a result of the final assessm&nrecorded an impairment charge of
$11.0 million, primarily as a result of adjustmetdur long-term operating plan.

In 2010, due to weak economic conditions in cerggming markets in which we operate, we perfornretherim assessment of
goodwill and other non-amortizing intangible asgetsmpairment in the second quarter. This analyssulted in an impairment charge of
$100.0 million. During the third quarter, we contpl a preliminary annual assessment of goodwill@hdr non-amortizing intangible assets
as of September 30, which resulted in an impairrokatge of $44.0 million. We finalized our annusé@ssment during the fourth quarter, and,
as a result of the final assessment, we recordém@airment charge of $49.0 million, which brougfie aggregate charges recorded for the
year ended December 31, 2010 to $193.0 millions&hmpairment charges were primarily a result gdistchents to our lor-term operating
plan.

In 2009, due to the relative impact of weak ecomoooinditions on certain properties in the Las Veagasket, we performed an interim
assessment of goodwill and other non-amortizingnigible assets for impairment during the secondteual his analysis resulted in an
impairment charge of $297.1 million. During therthquarter, we completed a preliminary annual assest of goodwill and other non-
amortizing intangible assets as of September 3@&Ghwiesulted in an impairment charge of $1,328.#iani We finalized our annual
assessment during fourth quarter, and as a refsihe dinal assessment, we recorded an impairntearige of $12.3 million, which brought the
aggregate charges recorded for the year ended Deceh, 2009 to $1,638.0 million. These impairmeh@rges were primarily a result of
adjustments to our long-term operating plan asaltef the then-current economic climate.
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In March 2010, the Company paid $19.5 million tmaner owner of Chester Downs for resolution of fimal contingency associated
with the Company’s purchase of additional inteneshis property. This payment was recorded as gabdlhe acquisitions of Planet
Hollywood and Thistledown Racetrack also added %&dillion in goodwill during 2010. The acquisitiari Playtika added $50.7 million in
goodwill during 2011.

The table below summarizes our impairment chargegdodwill and other non-amortizing intangible etss

Year ended December 31,

(In_millions) 2011 2010 2009
Goodwill $3.C $92.C $1,445.
Trademarks 8.C 20.C 106.7
Gaming rights and otht — 81.C 86.C
Total impairment of goodwill and other r-amortizing intangible asse $11.C  $193.C $1,638.(

The following table provides the gross carryingnaind accumulated amortization for each majosaéintangible assets other than
goodwiill:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Useful Life Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
(In millions) (in years) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizing intangible asse
Customer relationshif 7.8 $1456.° $ (4924 $ 964.Z 3$1456.¢ $ (366.F) $1,090.
Contract rights 2.8 144.¢ (52.9) 92.1 132.t (85.6) 46.€
Patented technolocg 4.t 118.¢ (45.9 73.C 93.t (34.1) 59.4
Gaming rights 12.5 42.€ (10.2) 32.€ 42.¢ (7.6) 35.2
Trademarks 1.1 7.8 (6.2) 1.7 7.8 (4.€) 3.2
$1,770¢ $ (606.9 1,163 $1,733. $ (498.) 1,235
Non-amortizing intangible asse
Trademarks 1,908." 1,916.
Gaming rights 1,583.! 1,560.(
3,492.; 3,476..
Total intangible assets other than good $4,655.¢ $4,711.¢

In June 2010, the Company paid $16.5 million toSkete of Pennsylvania for the right to operatéetglhmes at Harrah's Chester. This
payment was recorded as a non-amortizing intangitdet.

The aggregate amortization expense for those iitiBngssets that continue to be amortized is reften amortization of intangible
assets in the statement of operations and was Bbfibion, $160.8 million and $174.8 million forehyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. Estimated annual amortinagkpense for the years ending December 31, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, and thereafter
is $159.9 million, $157.5 million, $147.3 millio#147.3 million, $135.5 million, and $416.2 milliorgspectively.

Note ¢e—Detail of Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2011 2010

Payroll and other compensati $ 2272 $ 213
Selfinsurance claims and resen 209.2 215.7
Accrued taxe! 147 . 133.2
Total Rewards liability 55.¢ 57.7
Other accrual 437.: 454.1

$1,077.0  $1,074.
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Note —Debt
The following table presents our outstanding dettfaDecember 31, 2011 and 2010:

Face Value a
Book Value a Book Value ai
Final Rate(s) at Dec.
Detail of Debt (dollars in millions) Maturity Dec. 31, 2011 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 201 Dec. 31, 201
Credit Facilities
Term Loans BZ- B3 2015 3.29%-3.58% $ 5,000.! $ 5,000. $ 5,815.:
Term Loan B4 2016 9.50% 980.( 961.2 968.:
Term Loan BE 2018 4.67% 1,222 1,218.; —
Revolving Credit Facility 2014 4.75% 155.( 155.( —
Secured Dek
Senior Secured Nott 2017 11.25% 2,095.( 2,054.¢ 2,049.°
CMBS Financinc 2015* 3.28% 5,031 5,026.( 5,182.;
Secon-Priority Senior Secured Noti 2018 12.75% 750.( 742.1 741.%
Secon-Priority Senior Secured Not 2018 10.00% 4,553.: 2,131.; 2,033.:
Secon-Priority Senior Secured Not 2015 10.00% 214.¢ 164.2 156.2
Chester Downs term lo¢ 2016 12.38% 229.¢ 221.: 237.t
PHW Las Vegas Senior Secured L 2015** 3.14% 515.¢ 417.¢ 423.¢
Ling/Octavius Senior Secured Lo 2017 9.25% 450.( 445.¢ —
Other Various 4.25%-6.0% — — 14
Subsidiar-guaranteed Del
Senior Note: 2016 10.75% 478.¢ 478.¢ 478.¢
Senior PIK Toggle Note 2018 10.75%/11.59 8.6 8.6 10.t
Unsecured Senior De
5.375% 2013 5.375% 125.2 108.¢ 101.¢
7.0% 2013 7.0% 0.6 0.6 0.€
5.625% 2015 5.625% 364.t 287.7 273.¢
6.5% 2016 6.5% 248.7 190.¢€ 183.¢
5.75% 2017 5.75% 153.7 107.Z 105.t
Floating Rate Contingent Convertible Senior N¢ 2024 0.40% 0.2 0.2 0.2
Other Unsecured Borrowin
Special improvement district bon 2031 5.30% 65.7 65.7 67.1
Other Various Various 0.4 0.4 1.C
Capitalized Lease Obligatiol
Various to 201¢ 1.10%-9.49% 13.€ 13.€ 9.4
Total debi 22,657.¢ 19,799.¢ 18,841.:
Current portion of lon-term deb (45.9) (40.9 (55.6)
Long-term debt $ 22,612.¢ $ 19,759.! $ 18,785.!

* We are permitted to extend the maturity of the CMB&ncing from 2013 to 2015, subject to certainditions described below,
connection with the amendment to the CMBS Facd

** On October 26, 2011, we exercised the optiomxtend the PHW Las Vegas senior secured loan t8.Z01e loan contains an additional
extension option to move its maturity from 2012615, subject to certain conditions described be

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, book values boff alee presented net of unamortized discountfratemiums, of $2,858.0 million
and $3,006.6 million, respectively.

Our current maturities of debt include requireeiimh principal payments on certain Term Loans,Ghester Downs term loan, the
special improvement district bonds and capitalizede obligations.

As of December 31, 2011, aggregate annual princilirities for the four years subsequent to 2@%8uming all conditions to extend
the maturities of the CMBS Financing and the PHW Wagas senior secured loan are met and such tiegwaie extended, were as follows:
2013, $170.7 million; 2014, $193.9 million; 2013,1$123.6 million; and 2016, $1,856.9 million. Thesaturities do not reflect the debt
offering and credit facility amendments that weoenpleted in February 2012. See Note 22, “Subsedtssts” for more information.
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Credit Agreement

In connection with the Acquisition, CEOC enteretbithe senior secured credit facilities (the “Ctédicilities”). This financing is neithe
secured nor guaranteed by Caesars Entertainmehg&s direct, wholly-owned subsidiaries, includiig tsubsidiaries that own properties that
are security for the CMBS Financing.

On May 20, 2011, CEOC amended its Credit Faciliie@mong other things: (i) allow CEOC to buy b&wdns from individual lenders
at negotiated prices at any time, which may betless par, (ii) allow CEOC to extend the maturiferm loans or revolving commitments, as
applicable, and for CEOC to otherwise modify thente of loans or revolving commitments in connectigth such an extension, and
(iii) modify certain other provisions of the crefficilities. CEOC also extended its Credit Faahtby (i) converting $799.4 million of B-1, B-2
and B-3 term loans held by consenting lenders ®t8m loans with an extended maturity date of 4an@8, 2018 and a higher interest rate
with respect to such extended term loans (the ‘e Term Loans”) and (ii) converting $423.3 mitliof revolver commitments held by
consenting lenders into Extended Term Loans.

As of December 31, 2011, our Credit Facilities mlevfor senior secured financing of up to $8,41@illion, consisting of (i) senior
secured term loan facilities in an aggregate ppalcamount of $7,203.2 million with $5,000.5 millionaturing on January 28, 2015,
$980.0 million maturing on October 31, 2016 (th&8&9 million borrowing defined as the “Incremeritabns”),and $1,222.7 million maturir
on January 28, 2018 and (ii) a senior secured vengkredit facility in an aggregate principal ambof up to $1,206.8 million, maturing
January 28, 2014, including both a letter of credh-facility and a swingline loan sdigeility. The term loans under the Credit Facibtiequire
scheduled quarterly payments of $5.9 million, viite balance due at maturity. A total of $7,358.Riom face amount of borrowings were
outstanding under the Credit Facilities as of Ddoen31, 2011, with $113.5 million of the revolviogedit facility committed to outstanding
letters of credit. After consideration of theserbarings and letter of credit commitments, $938.8iom of additional borrowing capacity was
available to the Company under its revolving créaliility as of December 31, 2011.

On March 1, 2012, CEOC amended its Credit Fadgilittee Note 22, “Subsequent Events” for more indédion.

CMBS Financing

The properties securing our commercial mortgagéduhsecurities (“CMBS properties”) originally bowed $6,500.0 million of CMBS
financing (the “CMBS Financing”). The CMBS Finangiis secured by the assets of the CMBS propentidsartain aspects of the financing
are guaranteed by Caesars Entertainment. The CMig#®gties are Harrah’s Las Vegas, Rio, Flamingo\&gas, Harrals Atlantic City, Pari:
Las Vegas, and Harrah's Laughlin.

On August 31, 2010, we executed an agreement hatthehders to amend the terms of our CMBS Finanwingmong other things,
(i) provide our subsidiaries that are borrowersarrtie CMBS mortgage loan and/or related mezzdoares (“CMBS Loans”) the right to
extend the maturity of the CMBS Loans by up to twears until February 2015, (ii) amend certain teafthe CMBS Loans with respect to
reserve requirements, collateral rights, propestgase prices, and the payment of management(f@gsrovide for ongoing mandatory offers
to repurchase CMBS Loans using excess cash flow fhe CMBS properties at discounted prices, (igvjate for the amortization of the
mortgage loan in certain minimum amounts upon twigence of certain conditions, and (v) providedertain limitations with respect to the
amount of excess cash flow from the CMBS propettias may be distributed to us. Any CMBS Loan pas#d pursuant to the amendments
will be canceled.

With respect to the CMBS Financing, the initial ovétyy date of this loan is February 13, 2013, witlo successive 1-year extension
options. The conditions to the first extensiontef initial maturity date to February 13, 2014 (tfiest extended maturity date”) are (i) no
default or event of default on the initial maturitsite, (ii) notice of the election of the extensiin delivery of an officer’s certificate
reaffirming and restating the representations aadanties in the loan agreements as of the imitetlurity date, (iv) if the interest rate cap
agreement then in effect is scheduled to matug pithe first extended maturity date, the bornsaghall have obtained new or extended
interest rate cap agreements extending the agreehengh the first extended maturity date anctife)borrowers shall have paid a 50 bps
extension fee in respect of such extension. Theitons to the extension of the first extended migtwate to February 13, 2015 (the “second
extended maturity date”) are (i) no default or exafrdefault on the first extended maturity datg,fotice of the election of the extension,

(iii) delivery of an officer’s certificate reaffiring and restating the representations and waraittithe loan agreements as of the first extendec
maturity date, (iv) if the interest rate cap agreatthen in effect is scheduled to mature pridhtosecond extended maturity date, the
borrowers shall have obtained new or extendeddsteate cap agreements extending the agreemengththe second extended maturity date
and (v) the borrowers shall have paid a 50 bpseide fee in respect of such extension.

65



Table of Contents

Pursuant to the terms of the amendment as initighged to in March 2010, we agreed to pay lersidlimg CMBS Loans during the
fourth quarter 2009 an additional $47.4 million fobeir loans previously sold, to be paid no latemt December 31, 2010. This additional
liability was recorded as a loss on early extingoient of debt during the first quarter of 2010 aad paid during the fourth quarter of 2010.

In June 2010, we purchased $46.6 million face vafuMBS Loans for $22.6 million, recognizing a g&tin on the transaction of
approximately $23.3 million during the second geadf 2010. In September 2010, in connection Withéxecution of the amendment, we
purchased $123.8 million face value of CMBS Loars$37.1 million, of which $31.0 million was paititae closing of the CMBS amendme
and the remainder of which was paid during foudhrter 2010. We recognized a pre-tax gain on #restction of approximately $77.4
million, net of deferred finance charges. In Decem010, we purchased $191.3 million of face valuUEMBS Loans for $95.6 million,
recognizing a pre-tax gain of $66.9 million, nedeferred finance charges.

In March 2011, we purchased $108.1 million of faakie of CMBS Loans for $73.5 million, recogniziagre-tax gain of $33.2 million,
net of deferred finance charges. In April 2011,puechased $50.0 million of face value of CMBS Lo#ors$35.0 million, recognizing a pre-
tax gain of $14.3 million, net of deferred finardwrges.

As part of the amended CMBS Loan Agreement, in otalextend the maturity of the CMBS Loans underdhktension option, we are
required to extend our interest rate cap agreetoerdver the two years of extended maturity of @ihéBS Loans, with a maximum aggregate
purchase price for such extended interest ratdaregb.0 million. We funded the $5.0 million obligan on September 1, 2010, in connection
with the closing of the amendment to the CMBS Légneement.

PHW Las Vegas senior secured loan

In February 2010, CEOC acquired 100% of the eqdnigrests of PHW Las Vegas, which owns the Plamyl#ood Resort and Casino
located in Las Vegas, Nevada. In connection with titansaction, PHW Las Vegas assumed a $554.®miface value, senior secured loan,
and a subsidiary of CEOC canceled certain debeisby PHW Las Vegas’ predecessor entities. Thedandég amount is secured by the
assets of PHW Las Vegas and is non-recourse to sthsidiaries of the Company.

In connection with the transaction and the asswnpif debt, PHW Las Vegas entered into the AmershetiRestated Loan Agreement
with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee for The @irSuisse First Boston Mortgage Securities Cogm@ercial Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates, Series 2007-TFL2 (“Lender”). On Oaol26, 2011, we exercised the option to extendPtHi&/ Las Vegas senior secured loan to
2013. The loan contains an additional extensioioopt/hich, if exercised, would extend its matuutytil April 2015. The conditions to extend
the maturity date are (i) no default or event dadé on the date that notice of the extensionvergand on the first extended maturity date of
December 9, 2013, (ii) notice of the election & #xtension, (iii) the purchase of an interest cafe (or provision of an acceptable alternative
letter of credit or other support) with a strikeécprsuch that our Debt Service Coverage Ratio liseat 1.10:1.00 as of the first extended
maturity date and (iv) the ratio of (a) the Adjubstéet Cash Flow (defined as gross income from djmersiless operating expenses less 3% of
gross income from operations) for the trailing tweetalendar month period to (b) the outstandingqipial balance of the loan as of the first
extended maturity date is not less than 9%.

PHW Las Vegas is an unrestricted subsidiary of CEEQd, therefore, not a borrower under CEOC’s Crealdilities. A subsidiary of
CEOC manages the property for PHW Las Vegas feea f

PHW Las Vegas may, at its option, voluntarily prefize loan in whole or in part upon twenty (20) sl@yior written notice to
Lender. PHW Las Vegas is required to prepay the indi) the amount of any insurance proceeds veckby Lender for which Lender is not
obligated to make available to PHW Las Vegas fetamation in accordance with the terms of the Aneehaind Restated Loan Agreement,
(i) the amount of any proceeds received from tperator of the timeshare property adjacent to taae? Hollywood Resort and Casino,
subject to the limitations set forth in the Amended Restated Loan Agreement, and (iii) the amotiahy excess cash remaining after
application of the cash management provisions®ftinended and Restated Loan Agreement.

Octavius and Ling Projects

On April 25, 2011, the Company, together with dertadirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEOC (tfBorrowers”) entered into a
credit agreement (the “Octavius/Ling Credit Agreatfiepursuant to which the Borrowers incurred fingrg to complete the Development.
The Octavius/Ling Credit Agreement provides fod&&.0 million senior secured term facility (the fireFacility”) with a six-year maturity,
which is secured by all material assets of the @oers. The proceeds of the Term Facility were fandiering the second quarter and are
included as restricted cash on the Compsiglance sheet until drawn to pay for costs irclim the Development. These funds are being
by the Borrowers to finance the Development anglatp fees and expenses incurred in connection Wi erm Facility and the transactions
related thereto.
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As a condition to the provision of the Term Fagijlithe Company provided a completion guarantee“@uwenpletion Guaranty”) with
respect to the Development, which guarantees cdioplef the construction of the Development, avallty of contemplated working capital
and receipt of material permits and licenses nargds open and operate the Development. The marifiability of the Company under the
completion guarantee is $25.0 million in respedPudject Octavius and $75.0 million in respect adjéct Ling.

In connection with the Development and the Termilfigcthe Company contributed the existing Octavitower and related assets to
of the Borrowers, the book value of which was $814illion. In August 2011, the Company completeel tlontribution of the existing
O’Shea’s casino (adjacent to the Flamingo Las Vegad related real property and other assets ceingrthe components of Project Ling to
one of the Borrowers, the book value of which wa$32 million. In connection with Project Octaviasie of the Borrowers leases the
Octavius Tower to a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEQIpon completion of Project Ling, one of the Bavays will lease the gaming space in
Project Ling to a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEORe total lease payments will be $50.0 million ahyuonce the Development is open. As
described above, CEOC has guaranteed certain obiigations of the lessees under the Project Qudaand Project Ling leases.

Pursuant to the Octavius/Ling Credit Agreement,Gloenpany is required to make cash contributiorteeédBorrowers from time to time
to fund a total equity commitment to the Developirei$76.0 million. In addition, from time to timéhe Company may be required to make
additional cash contributions to the Borrowersuod certain portions of the Development upon trmugence of certain conditions. In addit
to potential contributions pursuant to the Comple{uaranty, the Company has guaranteed all pagnoéimterest under the Term Facility
until the commencement of operations of the OctViower and Project Ling and guaranteed the pedooa of the Borrowers of the first lien
leverage ratio maintenance covenant (the “Perfoom&uarantee”) by agreeing, upon certain condititmeiake cash equity contributions to
the Borrowers from time to time pursuant to then®of the Term Facility. The maximum liability dfe Company under the performance
guarantee is $50.0 million. Except in the circumses described above, neither the Company nor ClEB8@ny material obligations under the
Term Facility, and the Term Facility is non-recaute the Company or CEOC.

The Octavius/Ling Credit Agreement requires thatBorrowers maintain certain reserve funds in resspefurniture, fixtures, and
equipment, capital improvements, interest sentaegs, and insurance. Amounts deposited into theifsgpd reserve funds represent restricted
cash. In addition, the Octavius/Linq Credit Agreairequires up to 50.0% of excess cash flow (ameéefin the agreement), depending on the
Senior Secured Leverage Ratio for that period,dpdied to prepay the Term Facility.

Other Financing Transactions

On October 8, 2010, Chester Downs and Marina LL@héster Downs”), a majority-owned subsidiary of GE&nd owner of Harrah’s
Chester, amended its existing senior secured wamfiacility to obtain an additional $40.0 milliterm loan. The additional loan has
substantially the same terms as the existing tean With respect to interest rates, maturity, awlisty. On February 3, 2012, Chester Downs
issued $330.0 million of notes and repaid its tevam. See Note 22, “Subsequent Events,” for mdi@nmation.

Exchange Offers, Debt Repurchases, and Open MBikehases

From time to time, we may retire portions of outstanding debt in open market purchases, privategyotiated transactions, or
otherwise. These purchases will be funded throwgliable cash from operations and from our esthbtisdebt programs. Such purchases are
dependent on prevailing market conditions, the Camgfs liquidity requirements, contractual restocis, and other factors.

Issuances and Redemptions

During the second quarter of 2010, CEOC compldiedtfering of $750.0 million aggregate principed@unt of 12.75% second-priority
senior secured notes due 2018 and used the prooktiis offering to redeem or repay the followiogtstanding debt:

Debt (dollars in millions) Maturity Interest Rate Face Value
5.5% Senior Note 201¢ 5.5% $ 191.¢
8.0% Senior Note 2011 8.0% 13.2
8.125% Senior Subordinated No 2011 8.125% 12.C
Revolving Credit Facility 201¢ 3.23%-3.25% 525.(
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In connection with the retirement of the outstagdienior and senior subordinated notes above, Cie@@ded a pre-tax loss of $4.7
million during the second quarter of 2010.

In June 2010, Caesars Entertainment announcedraeragnt under which affiliates of each of Apoll®d, and Paulson were to
exchange approximately $1,118.3 million face amaidmtebt for approximately 15.7% of the common &gaf Caesars Entertainment, subject
to regulatory approvals and certain other cond#tidn connection with the transaction, the SponaasPaulson purchased approximately
$835.4 million, face amount, of CEOC notes thateatezld by another subsidiary of Caesars Entertaihfioe aggregate consideration of
approximately $557.0 million, including accruedeirgst. The notes that were purchased, togethe®28B.9 million face amount of notes they
had previously acquired, were exchanged for equitiie fourth quarter of 2010. The notes excharfgedquity are held by a subsidiary of
Caesars Entertainment and remain outstanding foges of CEOC. The exchange was accounted far aguaty transaction.

In February 2012, CEOC completed a private-placémete offering and amended its Credit Facilitissrare fully described in Note
22, “Subsequent Events.”

Interest and Fees

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities, other thamrowings under the Incremental Loans and theritidd Term Loans, bear interest
rate equal to the then-current LIBOR rate, or gdta equal to the alternate base rate, in eachptas@n applicable margin. As of
December 31, 2011, the Credit Facilities, othentharrowings under the Incremental Loans and theritled Term Loans, bore interest at
LIBOR plus 300 basis points for the term loans. Tdwlver loan bore interest at LIBOR plus 300 bagmiints or the alternate base rate plus
200 basis points. The swingline loan bore inteag$ihe alternate base rate plus 150 basis points.

Borrowings under the Incremental Loans bear inteaea rate equal to either the alternate baseoratee greater of (i) the then-current
LIBOR rate or (ii) 2.0%; in each case plus an aggille margin. At December 31, 2011, borrowings utiake Incremental Loans bore interes
the minimum base rate of 2.0%, plus 750 basis point

Borrowings under the Extended Term Loans bearéstat a rate equal to either the alternate baserahe then-current LIBOR rate,
plus an applicable margin. At December 31, 201trdvangs under the Extended Term Loans bore intertelsIBOR plus 425 basis points.

In addition, on a quarterly basis, we are requicegay each lender (i) a commitment fee in respéany unborrowed amounts under the
revolving credit facility and (ii) a letter of cri¢dee in respect of the aggregate face amounutdtanding letters of credit under the revolving
credit facility. As of December 31, 2011, the Ctdehcilities bore a commitment fee for unborrowetbants of 50 basis points. Certain of the
interest rates changed in conjunction with the admeant to the CEOC Credit Facilities described ineN2R, “Subsequent Events.”

We make monthly interest payments on our CMBS Riman Our Senior Secured Notes, including the Sedenority Senior Secured
Notes, and our unsecured debt, which is f-rate debt, have serarnual interest payments, with the majority of thpayments on June 15 ¢
December 15.

The amount outstanding under the PHW Las Vegasssacured loan bears interest at a rate per aequiad to LIBOR plus 2.859%. A
subsidiary of CEOC owns interest-only participatiém a portion of the PHW Las Vegas senior secload that bear interest at a fixed rate
equal to 1.59% per year.
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The Ling/Octavius Term Facility bears interest aai@ equal to either the alternate base rate,gulwpplicable margin or the greater of
(i) the then-current LIBOR rate or (ii) 1.25%, iaah case plus an applicable margin. At Decembe2@11, borrowings under the agreement
bore interest at the minimum base rate of 1.25u4s BDO basis points.

Collateral and Guarantors

CEOC's Credit Facilities are guaranteed by Cadsatsrtainment and are secured by a pledge of CE€dp#al stock and by
substantially all of the existing and future prdgeand assets of CEOC and its material, wholly-advdemestic subsidiaries, including a pledge
of the capital stock of CEOC’s material, wholly-os¢hdomestic subsidiaries and 65.0% of the capitiaksf the first-tier foreign subsidiaries,
in each case subject to exceptions. The followssgiro properties have mortgages under the Credilities:

Las Vegas Atlantic City Louisiana/Mississippi lowa/Missouri

Caesars Palac Bally’s Atlantic City Harral’s New Orlean: Harral’s St. Louis

Bally’s Las Vega Caesars Atlantic Cit (Hotel only) Harral’s Council Bluffs
Imperial Palact Showboat Atlantic Cit Harral’s Louisiana Down Horseshoe Council Bluffs
Bill’s Gamblir Hall & Saloon Horseshoe Bossier Ci Bluffs Run

Harral’s Tunica
Horseshoe Tunic
Tunica Roadhouse Hotel

Casino
lllinois/Indiana Other Nevada
Horseshoe Southern India Harrat’s Renc
Harrat’s Metropolis Harrat’s Lake Tahot
Horseshoe Hammor Harveys Lake Tahao

Additionally, certain undeveloped land in Las Veg#s is mortgaged.

In connection with PHW Las Vegas’ Amended and Redtaoan Agreement, Caesars Entertainment entatediGuaranty Agreement
(the “Guaranty”) for the benefit of the Lender, suant to which Caesars Entertainment guarantettet tbender certain recourse liabilities of
PHW Las Vegas. Caesars Entertainment’s maximumegatg liability for such recourse liabilities imited to $30.0 million, provided that
such recourse liabilities of PHW Las Vegas do misieafrom (i) events, acts, or circumstances thatatually committed by, or voluntarily or
willfully brought about by, Caesars Entertainmenfii) event, acts, or circumstances (regardleghefcause of the same) that provide actual
benefit (in cash, cash equivalent, or other quiafilié amount) to the Company, to the full extenthaf actual benefit received by the Company.
Pursuant to the Guaranty, Caesars Entertainmeedjisred to maintain a net worth or liquid assédtatdeast $100.0 million.

Restrictive Covenants and Other Matters

The Credit Facilities require compliance on a griytbasis with a maximum net senior secured fiest debt leverage test. In addition,
the Credit Facilities include negative covenantdject to certain exceptions, restricting or limifiCEOC’s ability and the ability of its
restricted subsidiaries to, among other thingsn@yr additional debt; (ii) create liens on cartagsets; (jii) enter into sale and lease-back
transactions; (iv) make certain investments, loand, advances; (v) consolidate, merge, sell, arotise dispose of all or any part of its assets
or to purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire ahgrsubstantial part of assets of any other pe(s9pay dividends or make distributions or
make other restricted payments; (vii) enter intdaia transactions with its affiliates; (viii) engin any business other than the business
activity conducted at the closing date of the loabusiness activities incidental or related therék) amend or modify the articles or
certificate of incorporation, by-laws, and certagreements or make certain payments or modificatidindebtedness; and (x) designate or
permit the designation of any indebtedness as pased Senior Debt.”

Caesars Entertainment is not bound by any financiakgative covenants contained in CEOC's cregtit@ment, other than with respect
to the incurrence of liens on and the pledge oftitsk of CEOC.

All borrowings under the senior secured revolvingdit facility are subject to the satisfaction astomary conditions, including the
absence of a default, the accuracy of representadind warranties, and the requirement that sugiowimg does not reduce the amount of
obligations otherwise permitted to be secured undenew senior secured credit facilities withatably securing the retained notes.
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The PHW Las Vegas senior secured loan requiregitbaompany maintain certain reserve funds ineetspf furniture, fixtures, and
equipment, capital improvements, interest sentaegs, and insurance. Certain amounts depositedhatspecified reserve funds represent
restricted cash.

Certain of our borrowings have covenants and requénts that include, among other things, the maamtee of specific levels of
financial ratios. Failure to comply with these coaats can result in limiting our long-term growtlogpects by hindering our ability to incur
future indebtedness or grow through acquisitiopgc8ically, CEOC's senior secured credit faciktieequire CEOC to maintain a senior
secured leverage ratio of no more than 4.75 tovthich is the ratio of senior first priority secdrdebt to LTM Adjusted EBITDA—Pro
Forma—CEOC Restricted. This ratio excludes $2,095.0 omillof first priority senior secured notes and u$380.0 million aggregate princij
amount of consolidated debt of subsidiaries thatat wholly owned. This ratio also reduces the amof senior first priority secured debt by
the amount of unrestricted cash on hand. As of Bxes 31, 2011, CEOC's senior secured leverage wat®4.32 to 1.0.

In addition, certain covenants contained in CEQsg'sior secured credit facilities and indenturesecog its second priority senior
secured notes and first priority senior securegsogstrict our ability to take certain actionstsas incurring additional debt or making
acquisitions if we are unable to meet a fixed chargverage ratio (LTM Adjusted EBITDA—Pro Forma—CE®estricted to fixed charges)
of at least 2.0 to 1.0, a total first priority seed leverage ratio (first priority senior securedbtito LTM Adjusted EBITDA—Pro Forma—
CEOC Restricted) of no more than 4.5 to 1.0 and/oonsolidated leverage ratio (consolidated tatat o LTM Adjusted EBITDA—Pro
Forma—CEOC Restricted) of no more than 7.25 to Af0of December 31, 2011, CEOC's total first ptipsecured leverage ratio and
consolidated leverage ratio were 5.80 to 1.0 andi5ltb 1.0, respectively. For the year ended Deeer@b, 2011, CEOC's earnings were
insufficient to cover fixed charges by $342.3 roffli For purposes of calculating the fixed chargeecage ratio, fixed charges includes
consolidated interest expense less interest in@rdeany cash dividends paid on preferred stoclefdttan amounts eliminated in
consolidation). For purposes of calculating thaltéitst priority secured leverage ratio and thesmlidated leverage ratio, the amounts of first
priority senior secured debt and consolidated wedlt, respectively, are reduced by the amounhodsiricted cash on hand. The covenants
provide for the fixed charge coverage ratio, téitat priority secured leverage ratio and consdbddeverage ratio described in this paragraph
are not maintenance covenants.

The CMBS Financing includes negative covenantgestibo certain exceptions, restricting or limititige ability of the borrowers and
operating companies under the CMBS Financing t@repother things: (i) incur additional debt; (ifeate liens on assets; (iii) make certain
investments, loans, and advances; (iv) consoligaéege, sell, or otherwise dispose of all or any phits assets or to purchase, lease, or
otherwise acquire all or any substantial part se&sof any other person; (v) enter into certaingactions with its affiliates; (vi) engage in any
business other than the ownership of the propeatiesbusiness activities ancillary thereto; anilgmiend or modify the articles or certificate
incorporation, by-laws, and certain agreements.

The CMBS Financing also includes affirmative cov@aahat require the CMBS properties to, amongrdthiags, maintain the borrowe
as “special-purpose entities”, maintain certaireres funds in respect of furniture, fixtures, aggdipment, taxes, and insurance, and comply
with other customary obligations for CMBS real éstinancings. Amounts deposited into the specifesgbrve funds represent restricted cash.

In addition, the CMBS Financing obligates the CM@8perties to apply excess cash flow in certaircifipel manners, depending on the
outstanding principal amount of various tranchethefCMBS loans and other factors. These obligatigill limit the amount of excess cash
flow from the CMBS properties that may be distrdmlito Caesars Entertainment. For example, the CptBerties are required to use 100
of excess cash flow to make ongoing mandatory fb&ra quarterly basis to purchase CMBS mezzanamneslat discounted prices from the
holders thereof. To the extent such offers arefede such excess cash flow will need to be szetiland will not be available for distribution
to Caesars Entertainment. To the extent such offersot accepted with respect to any fiscal quatie amount of excess cash flow that may
be distributed to Caesars Entertainment is limite85.0% of excess cash flow with respect to sugdrter. In addition, the CMBS Financing
provides that once the aggregate principal amofiitecoCMBS mezzanine loans is less than or equdbab.0 million, the mortgage loan will
begin to amortize on a quarterly basis in an amequal to the greater of 100.0% of excess cashfibowuch quarter and $31.3 million. If the
CMBS mortgage loan begins to amortize, the excask iow from the CMBS properties will need to lppléed to such amortization and will
not be available for distribution to Caesars Eaiarhent.
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Note ¢&—Derivative Instruments
Derivative Instrument- Interest Rate Swap Agreements

We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix adebirbetween fixed and variable rate instrumefdsof December 31, 2011, we have
entered into eight interest rate swap agreementsokional amounts totaling $5,750.0 million. Th#etence to be paid or received under the
terms of the interest rate swap agreements is ed@s interest rates change and recognized aguestnaent to interest expense for the related

debt. Changes in the variable interest rates foelsbor received pursuant to the terms of the ésterate swap agreements will have a
corresponding effect on future cash flows. The megans of the interest rate swap agreements Becémber 31, 2011 are as follows:

Notional Fixed Rate Received as ¢ Maturity
Effective Date Amount Paid Dec. 31, 201 Next Reset Date Date
(In millions)

April 25, 2011 $ 250.( 1.351% 0.2946 January 25, 201 January 25, 20!
April 25, 2011 250.( 1.34% 0.29%0 January 25, 201 January 25, 20:
April 25, 2011 250.( 1.35(% 0.294% January 25,201 January 25, 20:
January 25, 201 1,000.( 3.23%% 0.418 January 25,201 January 25, 20:
April 25, 2011 1,000.( 3.315% 0.41&%0 January 25, 201 January 25, 20:
January 25, 201 1,000.( 3.91%% 0.418& January 25,201 January 25, 20:
April 25, 2011 1,000.( 3.385% 0.41¢% January 25,201 January 25, 20:
January 25, 201 1,000.( 3.93t% 0.41¢0 January 25,201 January 25, 20:

Variable Rate

The variable rate received on our interest ratgpsagaeements did not materially change as a refthe January 25, 2012 reset.

During the second quarter of 2011, the Company ¢eteqh transactions to amend and extend certain seomtpacts. Prior to the
amendment, a $1,000.0 million swap had a fixed gaymate of 4.172% and a maturity date of April 2612. Two $2,000.0 million swaps
were split into four $1,000.0 million tranches. Trevious terms included fixed payment rates 07898 and 4.263% and maturity dates of
April 25, 2013. The amended payment rates and iitvatiates are shown in the table above.

In December 2011, the Company amended the termvgoo$1,000.0 million swap contracts with a corrasging change in the elected
interest rate on $2,000.0 million of term loandekfive January 25, 2012 through January 25, 20#dyariable rate received on the swaps
changes from three-month to one-month LIBOR, aeditted payment rate is reduced by 12 basis pdintsonnection with the amendment,
the Company determined that it was not probablepreviously forecasted transactions would occualbinterest rate swaps. Therefore, we
removed the cash flow hedging designation for i interest rate swap agreements and were ejtorreclassify $183.2 million of defer
losses recorded in AOCL into interest expense rRoioemoving the cash flow hedging designation avmrtized $51.2 million of deferred
losses frozen in AOCL to interest expense for tharyended December 31, 2011. Any future changfsriaalue of the swap agreements will
be recognized in interest expense during the péniechich the changes in value occur. In Januay22the Company amended the terms of
three $1,000.0 million notional value interest raeap contracts. See Note 22, “Subsequent Evemtstidre information.

Derivative Instrument- Interest Rate Cap Agreements

In January 2008, we entered into an interest r@peagreement to partially hedge the risk of futnceeases in the variable rate of the
CMBS Financing. The CMBS interest rate cap agre¢mrich was effective January 28, 2008 and tertem&ebruary 13, 2013, is for a
notional amount of $6,500.0 million at a LIBOR aape of 4.5%. The interest rate cap was desigregedcash flow hedging instrument for
accounting purposes on May 1, 2008.

In 2009, we began purchasing and extinguishinggustof the CMBS Financing. The hedging relatiopdietween the CMBS Financing
and the interest rate cap remained effective sulesgdo each debt extinguishment. In connectioh tie extinguishments, we reclassified
deferred losses out of AOCL and into interest egpaxssociated with the hedge for which the foredafstture transactions are no longer
probable of occurring.
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On January 31, 2010, we removed the cash flow hddgignation for the $6,500.0 million interest red, freezing the amount of
deferred losses recorded in AOCL associated walirtterest rate cap. Beginning February 1, 2010hbegan amortizing deferred losses frozen
in AOCL into income over the original remainingrteof the hedge forecasted transactions that dr@mstbable of occurring. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, we recorded $20.9 m#igoan increase to interest expense, and we wilfdesm additional $20.9 million as an
increase to interest expense and AOCL over thetmettve months, all related to deferred lossesheriniterest rate cap.

On January 31, 2010, we designated $4,650.2 million of the interest rate @s a cash flow hedging instrument for accourpimgoses
Any future changes in fair value of the portiornttoé interest rate cap not designated as a hedgitimiment will be recognized in interest
expense during the period in which the changesinevoccur.

On April 5, 2010, as required under the PHW Lasas,fmended and Restated Loan Agreement, we eritgcedn interest rate cap
agreement to partially hedge the risk of futuredases in the variable rate of the PHW Las Vegai®iseecured loan. The interest rate cap
agreement was for a notional amount of $554.3 onilit a LIBOR cap rate of 5.0% and matured on Déeer8, 2011. To give proper
consideration to the prepayment requirements oPtH#/ Las Vegas senior secured loan, we design&28.& million of the $554.3 million
notional amount of the interest rate cap as a flashhedging instrument for accounting purposes.May 1, 2011, we removed the cash flow
hedging designation for the interest rate cap agee¢. On December 9, 2011, we entered into a nkeist rate cap agreement for a notional
amount of $517.7 million at a LIBOR cap rate of%.and matures on December 9, 2013. Any changerindiue is recognized in interest
expense during the period in which the change nevaccurs.

Derivative Instrument— Impact on Financial Statements
The following table represents the fair values @fiehtive instruments in the Consolidated Balanikee$s as of December 31:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
(In_millions) Location Fair Value Location Fair Value Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedgin
instruments
Interest Rate Sway $ — $ — $ — Accrued expense  $ (21.6)
Interest Rate Swaps Deferred charges Deferred credits
— and othel 11.€ — and othel (305.5)
Interest Rate Caps Deferred charges
— and othel 3.7 — —
Subtotal — 15.2 — (327.7)
Derivatives not designated a
hedging instruments
Interest Rate Swaps Deferred credits Deferred credits
— — and othel (336.) and othel (32.2)
Interest Rate Caps Deferred charges
— and othel 15 — —
Subtotal — 15 (336.9) (32.9)
Total Derivatives $ — $ 16.€ $ (336.)) $  (359.)
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The following table represents the effect of detfixainstruments in the Consolidated StatementSpdrations for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 for amounts &enesf into or out of AOCL:

Location of
(Gain) or Loss Location of
Reclassified (Gain) or Loss Amount of (Gain) or
Amount of (Gain) or From AOCL Amount of (Gain) or Loss Recognized in Loss
Loss Into Net Loss Reclassified from AOCL into Net Loss Recognized in Net
Recognized in AOCL (Effective Net Loss (Ineffective Loss
(In millions) (Effective Portion) Portion) (Effective Portion) Portion) (Ineffective Portion)
Derivatives designated as hedgin
instruments 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010  200¢
Interest Rate Contracts $64.2 $99.2 $20.C InterestExpens $ 265.7 $ 36.2 $ 151 Interest Expen: $(53.4) $(76.€) $(7.€)
Location of Amount of (Gain) or Loss
(In millions) (Gain) or Loss Recognized in Net Loss
Derivatives not designated as hedgin Recognized in
instruments Net Loss 2011 201C 2009
Interest Rate Contracts Interest Expen:  $ (16.9) $1.¢ $(7.€)

In addition to the impact on interest expense feomounts reclassified from AOCL, the difference éopaid or received under the terms
of the interest rate swap agreements is recogrigédterest expense and is paid quarterly. This selement portion of the interest rate swap
agreements increased interest expense for the gedesl December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 by appabeiyn$201.1 million, $265.8 million
and $214.2 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, our variable-rate debt, edioly $5,750.0 million of variableate debt hedged using interest rate swap agres
represents 35% of our total debt, while our fixaterdebt is 65% of our total debt.

Note &Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock conversic

In February 2010, the Board of Directors approwadsions to the Certificate of Designation for ten-Voting Perpetual Preferred
Stock to eliminate dividends (including all exigfinccrued but unpaid dividends totaling $717.2iarilat the revision approval date) and to
specify that the conversion right of the Non-Votgrpetual Preferred Stock be at the original vafuae Company’s non-voting common
stock. In March 2010, Hamlet Holdings LLC (the thesider of all of the Company’s voting common sfpakd holders of a majority of our
Non-Voting Perpetual Preferred Stock approved thesiens to the Certificate of Designation. In Mar€i@, the holders of a majority of our
Non-Voting Perpetual Preferred Stock voted to cona#rof the non-voting preferred stock to non-votowmmon stock at the revised
conversion rate.

Voting Rights

On November 22, 2010, the Company amended itsficaté of Incorporation to (i) convert each shaf¢he economic non-voting
common stock into one share of newly-created ecimuoting common stock, par value $0.01 per shack(a) cancel each share of non-
economic voting common stock. The holders of comstock shall be entitled to one vote per sharellanatters to be voted on by the
stockholders of the Company. In the event of anumary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution winding up of the Company, holders of
common stock shall receive a pro rata distribudbany remaining assets after payment of or prowi$or liabilities and the liquidation
preference on preferred stock, if any.
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Note 1(—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCL") cstsbf the following:

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2011 2010

Net unrealized losses on derivative instrumentsphtax $(26.€) $(139.9)
Unrealized gains/losses on investments, net o 3.1 1.€
Defined benefit plan adjustments, net of (66.€) (27.7)
Foreign currency translation, net of 1 (6.1) (4.0

$(96.9)  $(168.9

Note 1'—Write-downs, Reserves, Recoveries, and ProjectrdjgeCosts

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogecosts include various pre-tax charges to retmrd-lived tangible asset
impairments, contingent liability reserves, costsaiated with efficiency projects, project writfspdemolition costs, recoveries of previously
recorded non-routine reserves, and other non-retitansactions. The components of write-downsyveserecoveries, and project opening
costs are as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Write-downs, reserves, and recover

Efficiency projects $46€6 $ 14 $ 34.¢
Loss/(gain) on divested or abandoned as 32.5 29.C (4.0
Remediation cosi 11.C 427 39.2
Litigation reserves, awards, and settlem 3.2 20.¢ (23.5)

Write-down of lon¢-term note receivabl — b2.Z —
Impairment of lon-lived tangible asse! — — 59.:
Other (1.9 14 2.C
Total write-downs, reserves, and recovel 91.c 147.¢ 107.¢
Project opening cos 4.7 2.1 3.€
Total write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project openisty $96.C $149.7 $111:t

Efficiency projects represent costs incurred tatdg and implement efficiency programs aimed atain lining corporate and operating
functions to achieve cost savings and efficiencié® costs recorded in 2011 relate to cost saviitigtives proposed as part of Project
Renewal, a program to streamline our operationswha launched during the fourth quarter of 20b@®009, the majority of the costs incurred
related to the closing of the office in Memphisnfiessee, which previously housed certain corpduations.

Loss/(gain) on divested or abandoned assets repsasedits or costs associated with various ptejgnat are determined to no longer be
viable. Loss on divested or abandoned assets fut 2@luded charges of $28.2 million to write gbesific assets as a result of the termination
of a development stage project in Spain. Loss vestéd or abandoned assets for 2010 primarilyee et write-offs of specific assets
associated with certain capital projects no loreggrected to be completed in the Las Vegas and #dl@ity regions. During 2009, associated
with its closure and ultimate liquidation, we wratié the assets and liabilities on one of our Lom@ub properties. Because the assets and
liabilities were in a net liability position, a ptax gain of $9.0 million was recognized in thertbuguarter of 2009. The recognized gain was
partially offset by charges related to other prtgec

Remediation costs relate to projects at certaimuofLas Vegas properties.

Litigation reserves, awards, and settlements ireclumbts incurred or reversed as a result of thep@ayis involvement in various
litigation matters, including contingent losses.ring 2010, we recorded a $25.0 million charge sgldb the Hilton matter, which is more fully
discussed in Note 14, “Commitments and Contingeatbilities.” During 2009, an approximate $30.0 roitl
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legal judgment against the Company was vacateabst action. This amount was previously chargedrite-downs, reserves, and recoveries
in 2006 and was reversed accordingly upon the edgatdgment. The reversal was partially offset kyemses incurred during 2009 related to
other ongoing litigation matters.

For 2010, we recorded a $52.2 million write-downeolong-term note receivable related to land ameddavelopment costs contributed to
a venture for development of a casino project iilablphia with which we were involved. In April 20, the proposed operator for the project
withdrew from the project and the Pennsylvania Gan€ontrol Board commenced proceedings to revoldicknse for the project. As a
result, we fully reserved the note.

For 2009, we recorded impairment charges relatéohig-lived tangible assets of $59.3 million. Thejarity of the charge was related to
the Company’s office building in Memphis, Tennesske to the relocation to Las Vegas, Nevada cf@lamrporate functions formerly

performed at that location.

Note 1:—Income Taxes

The components of (loss)/income before income tarelsthe related (benefit)/provision for U.S. atitko income taxes were as follows:

(Loss)/Income before Income Taxes

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
United State! $ (1,196.9) $ (1,263.) 2,533.(
Outside of the U.S 22.¢€ (28.9) (34.9)
$ (1,173.) $ (1,292.0 2,498.:
Income Tax (Benefit)/Provision
(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
United State!
Current
Federal $ (1.0 $ (215.) —
State (16.9 (7.7) 24.4
Deferred
Federal (426.2) (200.€) 1,461.
State (65.0) (56.5) 147.¢
Outside of the U.S
Current 8.7 10.4 11.€
Deferred (7.0 0.8 6.6
$ (506. $ (468.7) 1,651.¢
Total income taxes were allocated as follows:
(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Income tax (benefit)/provision on (loss)/incomedreftaxes $(506.9) $(468.7) $1,651.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(l 70.€ (10.5 (3.9
Retained earning 6.C — —
Additional paid in capita 11.€ — 547
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The tax provision of $70.9 million allocated to apwilated other comprehensive income/(loss) in 2844 primarily comprised of $117
million related to the reclassification of lossesderivative instruments from accumulated other pahensive loss to interest expense, offset
by tax benefits of $28.4 million related to the icha in fair market value of derivatives and $19iliom related to foreign currency translation

adjustments. The tax impact for the componentsofimulated other comprehensive income/(loss) i®201 2009 were immaterial both
individually and in the aggregate.

Income taxes allocated to retained earnings reptéise impact of the change in accounting relateactruals for casino jackpot
liabilities.

The differences between the statutory federal irectam rate and the effective tax rate expressedpgscentage of income/(loss) before
taxes were as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Statutory tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%

Increases/(decreases) in tax resulting fr
State taxes, net of federal tax ben 9.4 5.8 7.2
Valuation allowanct (7.0) (3.4) (3.9
Foreign income taxe .€ .C 0.9
Goodwill 0.1 (2.9 19.¢
Officerg’ life insurance/insurance procee 0.3 0.2 (0.3
Acquisition and integration cos — — 2.6
Reserves for uncertain tax positic (0.2 (0.2 4.5
Deferred tax liability adjustmel 3.3 — —
Other 0.3 0.1 0.3

Effective tax rate 43.2% 36.2% 66.1%

The Companyg tax provision and net deferred tax liability, tbe year ending December 31, 2011, reflects audjsts to correct errors
the deferred tax liabilities primarily related tamsaction costs incurred in connection with thguéition in 2008 which were incorrectly

recorded in 2008, and not properly adjusted uper2009 receipt of the final transaction cost repd@ee Note 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies—Error Corrections and Reclasaifons,” for more information.
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The major components of the deferred tax assetéiatitities in our Consolidated Balance Sheetsfaddecember 31 were as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010
Deferred tax asse
State net operating loss $ 155.¢ $ 1337
Foreign net operating loss 35.4 29.7
Federal net operating lo 617.7 371.¢
Compensation progran 112.C 90.:
Allowance for doubtful accoun 112.2 105.¢
Self-insurance reserve 28.4 17.¢
Accrued expense 57.C 60.1
Federal tax credit 22.4 16.5
Federal indirect tax benefits of uncertain staxep@sitions 59.€ 65.€
Other 57.2 19.5
Subtotal 1,257.¢ 910.7
Less: valuation allowanc 210.7 122.2
Total deferred tax asse 1,047.. 788.t
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Depreciation and other prope-related item: 2,540.¢ 2,499."
Deferred cancellation of debt income and other-related item: 1,983.: 2,107.(
Management and other contra 8.2 14.2
Intangibles 1,517t 1,576.
Prepaid expenst 28.1 37.4
Investments in nc-consolidated affiliate (3.0 1.6
6,074. 6,236.¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $5,027.¢  $5,447.¢

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presemtedii Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

(In_millions) 2011 2010
Assets:

Deferred income taxes (currel $ 1708 $ 175
Liabilities:

Deferred income taxes (n-current) $5,198.0 $5,623.

Net deferred tax liabilit $5,027.¢  $5,447.¢

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company ddetél net operating loss (“NOL") carryforward & 822.3 million and
$1,358.0 million, respectively. This NOL will begia expire in 2029. The federal NOL carryforward fiee income tax returns filed included
unrecognized tax benefits taken in prior years. uggpplication of ASC Topic 740, the federal NCdrryforwards reflected in the income tax
returns, as filed, are larger than the NOLs foroliha deferred tax asset is recognized for finarst&tement purposes. In addition, the Comy
had federal general business tax credits carryfahwa$17.2 million which will begin to expire ir029. As of December 31, 2011, no valua
allowance has been established for the Compangier & NOL carryforward or general business tax itserhrryforward deferred tax assets
because the Company has sufficient future taxlifegs arising within the carryforward periods. Hever, the Company will continue to assess
the need for an allowance in future periods.

NOL carryforwards for the Company’s subsidiariesdtate income taxes were $5,878.8 million and &5 3 million as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The state NOL carwdéods per the income tax returns filed includeceongnized tax benefits taken in prior
years. Due to application of ASC 740, they aredatban the NOLs for which a deferred tax assetdsgnized for financial stateme
purposes. We anticipate that state NOLs in the anoiu$14.9 million will expire in 2012. The remadier of the state NOLs will expire
between 2013 and 2031.
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NOL carryforwards of the Company'’s foreign subsidis were $139.8 million and $108.9 million for thears ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The majority of these fgmeéNOLs have an indefinite carryforward period arg subject to a full valuation allowance
as the Company believes these assets do not necehdme likely than not” criteria for recognitiomder ASC 740.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company traiph tax credit carryforwards of $5.2 million. fing 2010, the Company
amended its 2005 federal tax return to deduct $2@l#n of the foreign tax credits which were pgofed to expire in 2015. The remaining
foreign tax credit carryforward of $5.2 millionsojected to expire unused in 2012 as the Compageyg dot project to have sufficient future
foreign source income in order to utilize this géorward.

We do not provide for deferred taxes on the exoésise financial reporting over the tax basis im mvestments in foreign subsidiaries
that are essentially permanent in duration. Thaess is estimated to total $42.5 million at Decen®ie 2011. The additional deferred taxes
that have not been provided is estimated at $8l&mat December 31, 2011.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amauwiftgross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

(in millions)

Balance at January 1, 20 $136.(
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 123.(
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 139.(
Reductions for tax positions for prior yei (3.0
Settlement: (23.0
Expiration of statute (20.0
Balance at December 31, 2C $362.(
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 8.8
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 224
Reductions for tax positions for prior yei (26.5)
Settlement: —
Expiration of statute (1.7
Balance at December 31, 20 $567.4
Additions based on tax positions related to theenitryeal 4.2
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 2.C
Reductions for tax positions for prior yei (36.9)
Settlement: —
Expiration of statute 4.9
Balance at December 31, 2C $532.%

We classify reserves for tax uncertainties withc¢rued expenses” and “Deferred credits and otimedur Consolidated Balance She:
separate from any related income tax payable @rcf income taxes. In accordance with ASC 74@rvesamounts relate to any potential
income tax liabilities resulting from uncertain faasitions as well as potential interest or peesltissociated with those liabilities. The
increases in the year ended December 31, 2011,&#81 2009 related to costs associated with the iaitigun, cancellation of indebtedness
income, cost recovery related to capital and nqitabexpenditures and other identified uncertapositions.

We recognize interest and penalties accrued retatadrecognized tax benefits in income tax expeviseaccrued approximately $19
million, $10 million, and $9 million during 2011020, and 2009, respectively. In total, we havewdbalances of approximately $80 milli
$64 million, and $54 million for the payment ofénést and penalties at December 31, 2011, 2012 @0@| respectively. Included in the
balance of unrecognized tax benefits at Decembe2(®ll1, 2010, and 2009 are $287 million, $312 onilliand $255 million, respectively, of
unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, wampact the effective tax rate.

We file income tax returns, including returns farr gubsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigisglictions. We are under regular and
recurring audit by the Internal Revenue Servic®$§’) on open tax positions, and it is possible thatamount of the liability for unrecognized
tax benefits could change during the next twelvatii®. The IRS audit of our 2008
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federal income tax year concluded during the quaneed June 30, 2010. The IRS proposed an adjostmeur cancellation of debt income
tax position which we appealed. We are currentlgidng the final results of our appeals processaAssult of a possible settlement of the
issue under appeal, it is reasonably possibletiieatotal amount of unrecognized tax benefits atdbber 31, 2011 will decrease by a range of
$0 to $70 million in the next twelve months. Anyteement will have no impact on the Company'’s effifectax rate.

During 2011, the IRS commenced an audit of the Gomijs 2009 federal income tax return. We are aldgext to exam by various state
and foreign tax authorities. Tax years prior to2@@e generally closed for foreign and state inctamgurposes as the statutes of limitations
have lapsed. However, various subsidiaries coulekamined by the New Jersey Division of Taxationtéx years beginning with 1999 due to
our execution of New Jersey statute of limitatiateasions.

It is reasonably possible that our other unrecaghiax benefits will increase or decrease withertbxt twelve months. These changes
may be the result of ongoing audits or settlemefuslit outcomes and the timing of audit settlememes subject to significant uncertainty.
Although the Company believes that adequate pravisas been made for such issues, there is thibpibgshat the ultimate resolution of
such issues could have an adverse effect on oningar Conversely, if these issues are resolvearédoly in the future, the related provision
would be reduced, thus having a favorable impaatamings.

Note 1li—Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy defines fair value as ®ih@rice, representing the amount that would lieireed to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants. As such, fair value isaaket-based measurement that should be
determined based upon assumptions that marketiparis would use in pricing an asset or liabilitpe fair value hierarchy establishes three
tiers, which prioritize the inputs used in measgfiair value as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actawdens for identical assets or liabilities that aceessible at
the measurement da
Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbes, are observable either directly or indirectyd

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which require the reporting entitgdéwoelop its
own assumption:

Our assessment of goodwill and other intangibletager impairment includes an assessment usirigusatevel 2 (EBITDA multiples
and discount rate) and Level 3 (forecast cash flomguts. See Note 5, “Goodwill and Other IntangiBlssets,” for more information on the
application of the use of fair value methodologyrteasure goodwill and other intangible assets.

Entities are permitted to choose to measure ceiitencial instruments and other items at fair eaM/e have not elected the fair value
measurement option for any of our assets or ligdslithat meet the criteria for this option.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The following table shows the fair value of ourdittial assets and financial liabilities that aguieed to be measured at fair value:

(In millions) Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 201
Assets:

Investment: $ 108.4 $106.¢ $ 15 $—
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument (336.0) — (336.0) —
December 31, 201
Assets:

Investment: $ 95.4 $ 92.7 $ 27 $—

Derivative instrument 16.€ — 16.€ —
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument (359.9 — (359.9 —

The following section describes the valuation mdtiogies used to measure fair value, key inputd,significant assumptions:

Investments- Investments consist of debt and equity secunti#fs maturity dates greater than 90 days at the dithe security’s
acquisition. The majority of these securities aaeléd in active markets, have readily determinetkaetavalues, and use Level 1 inputs.
Securities for which there are not active markethe market values are not readily determinatdevatued using Level 2 inputs. All of these
investments are included in either prepaymentsotiner current assets or deferred charges and iotloeir Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The fair value of investments in marketable semgivere as follows:

(In millions) December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Corporate bond $ 1.5 $ 2.7
Equity securitie: 2.4 2.6
Government bond 102.t 88.C
Mortgaget«-backed securitie — 0.1
Other liquid investment 2.C 2.C
Total Investments $ 108.< $ 95.4

Gross unrealized gains and losses on marketahleitses at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were notnate

Derivative instruments The estimated fair values of our derivative imstents are derived from market prices obtained fieader
quotes for similar, but not identical, assets abilities. Such quotes represent the estimated ataave would receive or pay to terminate the
contracts. Derivative instruments are includedithez deferred charges and other, or deferred tsradid other, in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Our derivatives are recorded at theiwvtdires, adjusted for the credit rating of the cetperty if the derivative is an asset, or adjusted
for the credit rating of the Company if the derivatis a liability. See Note 8, “Derivative Instremts” for more information.

Items Disclosed at Fair Value

Long-Term Debt The fair value of the Company’s debt has beecutatled based on the borrowing rates availabld as o
December 31, 2011, for debt with similar terms aradurities, and based on market quotes of our glyliiaded debt. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company’s outstanding debeHair value of $18,381.6 million and a carryuadue of $19,799.9 million.

Note 14—Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Contractual Commitments

We continue to pursue additional casino developroppbrtunities that may require, individually amdhe aggregate, significant
commitments of capital, up-front payments to thpedties, and development completion guarantees.

The agreements pursuant to which we manage casintglian lands contain provisions required by that provide that a minimum
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That oblayatias priority over scheduled repayments of bamgs/for development costs and over
management fee earned and paid to the managée bBvent that insufficient cash flow is generatgdhe operations to fund this payment, we
must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subject tdaerlimitations as to time, such advances, if amguld be repaid to us in future periods in wi
operations generate cash flow in excess of thanmedjminimum payment. These commitments will teraténupon the occurrence of certain
defined events, including termination of the mamaget contract. Our aggregate monthly commitmenttferminimum guaranteed payments,
pursuant to contracts for the three managed, Iroiamed facilities is $1.2 million. Each of thesesicas currently generates sufficient cash
flows to cover all of its obligations, includingsitiebt service.

During 2011, the Eastern Band of Cherokee Indianswed our management agreement for Harrah’s CéeliakNorth Carolina via an
amendment (the “Cherokee amendment”) that incladesven-year term. The Cherokee amendment wasvaubby the National Indian
Gaming Commission in September 2011.

The table below gives the location and expiratiatedf the current management contracts for oeethrdianewned casino properties
of December 31, 2011.

Expiration of
Casino Location Management Agreement
Harral’s Rincon near San Diego, Californ November 201:
Harral’s Cheroket Cherokee, North Carolir November 201t
Harral’s Ak-Chin near Phoenix, Arizon December 201

In addition to the guarantees discussed above agiddial aggregate non-cancelable purchase oldigatf $921.7 million as of
December 31, 2011.
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Contingent Liability - Nevada Sales and Use Tax

The Supreme Court of Nevada decided in early 2B@8food purchased for subsequent use in the poovi$ complimentary and/or
employee meals is exempt from use tax. Previossigh purchases were subject to use tax and the &gntyas claimed, but not recognized
into earnings, a use tax refund totaling $32.2ianill plus interest, as a result of the 2008 degidio early 2009, the Nevada Department of
Taxation audited our refund claim, but has takenpbsition that those same purchases are now s$ubjsales tax; therefore, they subseque
issued a sales tax assessment totaling $27.4 mglics interest after application of our refundusze tax. While we have established certain
reserves against possible loss on this matter,elevie that the Nevada Department of Taxation’stpeshas no merit, and we moved the
matter to a procedural, administrative hearing ieefoNevada Department of Taxation administratwe judge.

On October 21, 2010, the administrative law judgé.{”) issued a decision and ruled in our favoranumber of key issues. Although
both the Company and the Nevada Department of axéited an appeal of the decision with the Nevada Commission, the case was
returned to the ALJ for further factual developmantl the Company is awaiting the ALJ’s supplementiig. Once all administrative
remedies have been exhausted, the Company mayedeirom the state judiciary.

Recently, another gaming company, with a similaecavas issued an adverse ruling from both theakidINevada Tax Commission.

Contingent Liability - Employee Benefit Obligations

In December 1998, Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hiitd spun-off its gaming operations as Park PlacteEainment Corporation (“Park
Place”). In connection with the spin-off, HiltondiRark Place entered into various agreements,dimduan Employee Benefits and Other
Employment Allocation Agreement dated Decemberl®D8 (the “Allocation Agreement”) whereby Park Rlassumed or retained, as
applicable, certain liabilities and excess assketsy, related to the Hilton Hotels RetirementrP(¢he “Hilton Plan”) based on the accrued
benefits of Hilton employees and Park Place em@syPark Place changed its name to Caesars Enteetai, Inc., and the Company acquired
Caesars Entertainment, Inc. in June 2005. In 1982805, the United States District Court for thstiict of Columbia certified two
nationwide classes in the lawsuit against Hiltod athers alleging that the Hilton Plarbenefit formula was backloaded in violation ofI&R,
and that Hilton and the other defendants failegrtaperly calculate Hilton Plan participants’ seevfor vesting purposes. In May 2009, the
Court issued a decision granting summary judgneettte plaintiffs. Thereafter, the Court required parties to attempt to agree on a remedies
determination and further required the partiesutinsit briefs to the Court in support of their pasis. On September 7, 2010, the Court issued
an opinion resolving certain of Hilton’s and thaiptiffs’ issues regarding a remedies determinatiod requiring the parties to confer and take
other actions in an effort to resolve the remaingsgies. On July 28 and 29, 2011, the Court hélelaing to address the remaining remedy
issues and on August 31, 2011, the Court issuedrmdriandum Opinion and a final Order (the “Ordelri)the Order, the Court ordered, am
other things, Hilton to award back payments androence increased benefits for all class memberateothan January 1, 2012 or, in the case
of any individual benefit or vesting disputes, witlB0 days after the final dispute resolution by @ourt. On September 28, 2011, Hilton file
Motion for Reconsideration to ask the Court to rexsider certain aspects of the Order. On Septenthe2(®.1, Hilton filed a Notice of Appeal
to appeal all aspects of the Order and all othdersrin the case to the United States Court of Ajgpfer the District of Columbia Circuit and
on December 20, 2011, plaintiffs filed a cross-app®n November 28, 2011, Hilton filed a motiorstay the implementation of the
backloading remedy pending the appeal and on Jari®ar2012, the Court granted Hilton’s motion cogént upon Hilton posting a bond of
$75.8 million by no later than February 21, 20120Pto the Court’s 2010 opinion, we were advisgccbunsel for the defendants that the
plaintiffs estimated that the damages are in thgeaf $180.0 million to $250.0 million. Counset fbe defendants further advised that
approximately $50.0 million of the damages rela&teguestions regarding the proper size of the dassthe amount, if any, of damages to any
additional class members due to issues with Hiteatord keeping.

The Company received a letter from Hilton datedoDet 7, 2009 notifying the Company for the firgtei of this lawsuit and alleging that
the Company has potential liability for the aboesdribed claims under the terms of the Allocatigme®ment. Based on the terms of the
Allocation Agreement, the Company believes its maxin potential exposure is approximately 30.0 pert®83.0 percent of the amount
ultimately awarded as damages. The Company is pattg to the proceedings between the plaintifi$ tie defendants and has not particip
in the defense of the litigation or in any discossi between the plaintiffs and the defendants abaotgntial remedies or damages. Further, the
Company does not have access to information seiffido enable the Company to make an independeégirjant about the possible range of
loss in connection with this matter. Based on cosations between are representative of the Comaadya representative of the defendants,
the Company believes it is probable that damaghdevat least $80.0 million and, accordingly, tempany recorded a charge of $25.0
million in accordance with ASC 450, Contingenciggring the second quarter 2010 in relation to théter. The Company has not changed its
belief respecting the damages which maybe award#ds lawsuit as a result of the 2010 opinionhaf Court or the Order. The Company also
continues to believe that it may have various dedsrif a claim under the Allocation Agreement iseated against the Company, including
defenses as to the amount of damages. Becausethea@y has not had access to sufficient informatgarding this matter, we cannot at-
time predict the ultimate outcome of this mattetha possible additional loss, if any.
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Self-Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of gendeddility, workers’ compensation, employee mediaaterage, and other coverage.
Insurance claims and reserves include accrualstvhated settlements for known claims, as wellasuwals of actuarial estimates of incurred
but not reported claims. At December 31, 2011 d@tD2we had total self-insurance accruals reflettenir Consolidated Balance Sheets of
$209.2 million and $215.7 million, respectively.

Note 1:—Leases

We lease both real estate and equipment used iopauations and classify those leases as eitheatipg or capital leases, for account
purposes. At December 31, 2011, the remaining lbfesir operating leases ranged from one to 86sy®dth various automatic extensions
totaling up to 82 years.

Rental expense, net of income from subleasessacaged with operating leases for continuing ofp@na and is charged to expense in
the year incurred. Net rental expense is includithinveach line of the Statements of Operationseddpnt upon the nature or use of the assets
under lease. Total net rental expense was as fellow

Year Ended December 31,

(In_millions) 2011 2010 2009
Noncancelabls
Minimum $102.2 $ 904 $ 78.7
Contingent 2.4 3.7 4.1
Subleast (0.9 (1.6 (0.9
Other 77.4 71.5 55.k

$181.2  $164.C $137.

Our future minimum rental commitments as of Decendde 2011 are as follows:

Noncancelable

Operating

(In millions) Leases
2012 $ 85.4
2013 77.¢
2014 65.7
2015 61.1
2016 60.1
Thereaftel 1,818.!
Total minimum rental commitmen $ 2,168.

In addition to these minimum rental commitmentstaia of our operating leases provide for contirtgentals based on a percentage of
revenues in excess of specified amounts.

Note lé—Litigation

The Company is party to ordinary and routine litig)a incidental to our business. We do not expeetdutcome of any pending litigation
to have a material effect on our consolidated fom@rposition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 1+—Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisaleetto the changes in long-term and working abpitcounts were as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Long-term account
Deferred charges and ott $ 52.C $ 58.2 $(128.79)
Deferred credits and oth (123.5 (70.5) 203.¢
Net change in lor-term account $ (715 $ (123 % 745
Working capital account
Receivable: $(87.9 $(59.¢ $ 521
Inventories B3 3.3 9.7
Prepayments and oth 39.C (21.7) 40.C
Accounts payabl 16.5 (7.8 (47.¢)
Accrued expense 0.2 (54.9) (171.9)
Net change in working capital accou $ (26.1)  $(150.6)0  $(117.9
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Significant non-cash transactions in 2011 inclutheimpairment of goodwill and other non-amortizintangible assets discussed in
Note 5,“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the chamgéween the pre- and post-modification fair valietated to the interest rate swap
blend and extend transactions in April and Junethedle-designation of certain interest rate svaapmg 2011, both discussed in Note 8,
“Derivative Instruments,” the write off of specifassets as a result of the termination of a dewedmp stage project in Spain discussed in Note
11, “Write-downs, Reserves, Recoveries, and Pr@jgening Costs,” and an adjustment to the accragpt liability, and the corresponding
cumulative effect adjustment to Accumulated Defi@sulting from the adoption of the provision efinaccounting requirements, as further
discussed in Note 2, “Recently Issued Accountim@nBuncements.”

Significant non-cash transactions in 2010 inclutheimpairment of goodwill and other non-amortizintangible assets discussed in
Note 5,“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the firstagter 2010 conversion of preferred shares intonrsomshares and the elimination of
cumulative dividends on such preferred sharesséicend quarter 2010 write-down of long-term notenreable and contingent liability charge
discussed in Note 11, “Write-downs, Reserves, Reiges, and Project Opening Costs,” and the fountirigr 2010 exchange of debt for equity
discussed in Note 7, “Debt.”

Significant non-cash transactions in 2009 includerlCompanys accrued, but unpaid, dividends on its prefertedes of $354.8 millior
the impairment of goodwill and other non-amortizintgangible assets discussed in Note 5, “Goodwidl ather Intangible Assets,” the April
2009 debt exchange transaction discussed in Ndigebt,” and the impairment of long-lived tangitdssets and the litigation reserve
adjustment, both of which are discussed in Noté"Wkjte-downs, Reserves, Recoveries, and Projeeniyy Costs.”

Cash Paid for Interest and Taxes

The following table reconciles our interest expemse of interest capitalized, per the Consolid&&ttements of Operations, to cash paid
for interest.

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized $2,122.0  $1,981.¢ $1,892.
Adjustments to reconcile to cash paid for inter
Net change in accrua (12.5) (12.¢) 248.¢
Amortization of deferred finance charg (70.9) (76.9) (126.9)
Net amortization of discounts and premiu (157.9 (163.%) (128.9)
Reclassification from accumulated other comprehenisiss (183.2) — —
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive (83.9) (36.9) (18.2)
Rollover of PIK interest to principi (1.1 (1.0) (62.¢)
Change in accrual (related to PIK intere — — (40.7)
Change in fair value of derivative instrume 70.3 4.0 7.€
Cash paid for intere: $1,685.(  $1,766..  $1,772..
Cash payments/(receipts) for income taxes® $ 54 $(190.0) $ 3ic

@ Interest capitalized in 2011, 2010, and 2009 wasSillion, $1.4 million, and $32.4 million, respevely.
®) " The 2010 net receipt includes $220.8 million ofeied income tax refund received, offset by othelefal, state, and foreign taxes paid
during the year

Note 1&—Employee Benefit Plans

We have established a number of employee benefjrams for purposes of attracting, retaining, amtivating our employees. The
following is a description of the basic componesftthese programs as of December 31, 2011.

Share-based Compensation Plans

Our stock-based compensation expense consistsriyiroftime-based and performance-based optioashiave been granted to
management, other personnel and key service pnavidlee Company has recognized compensation expssseiated with its stock-based
employee compensation programs

In 2010 the Human Resources Committee of the BofRdrectors of the Company adopted an amendmetmet@ompany’s
Management Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) taise the vesting hurdles for performance-basedaoptunder the Plan. The performance
options vest if the return on investment in the @any of TPG, Apollo, and their respective affilgnd co-investors (the “Majority
Stockholders”) achieves a specified return. Presligib0.0% of the performance-based options vagped a 2.0X return and 50.0% vested
upon a 3.0X return. The triggers were revised 5Xland 2.5X,
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respectively. In addition, a pro-rata portion of (15X options will vest if the Majority Stockholdeachieve a return on their investment that is
greater than 2.0X, but less than 2.5X. The projpatéion will increase on a straight line basigtiraero to a participant’s total number of 2.5X
options depending upon the level of returns thatMajority Stockholders realize between 2.0X aruk2.

In July 2011, the Human Resources Committee oBtieerd of Directors of the Company approved amendsianthe Plan and to
outstanding stock options which were granted pursteathe Plan. Performance-based options will aestbecome exercisable if the return on
investment in the Company of the Majority Stocklevkireaches at least 2.0X (rather than 2.5X, wéajgiied prior to the amendments), and if
the Majority Stockholders realize a return of l#smn 2.0X but equal to or greater than 1.75X, arpta portion of such performance based
options will vest based on straight line interpiaat(collectively, the “Vesting Adjustment”). Theercise price of outstanding 1.5X
performance-based options was reduced to $35 pee $pre-split per share exercise price). All artding 2.5X performance options were
amended to reflect the Vesting Adjustment; howetrer exercise price for the outstanding 2.5X, no®X2 performance options was not
reduced to $35 per share (pre-split per share iseepcice). Additionally, the exercise price for @litstanding time-based options was reduced
to $35 per share (pre-split per share exercisepnith the reduced exercise price being phaséetween a four- to six-year period,
depending on grant date, as set forth in each iha# award agreement. Prior to the phase in, @syed options may still be exercised at the
original exercise price, subject to the terms efftian. As a result of these amendments, additoqanse of $3.2 million was recognized in
2011.

In November 2011, an amendment was approved teaserthe available number of shares of the Compaoyhmon stock for which
options may be granted to 4,927,024 shares.

As disclosed in Note 22, “Subsequent Events” thenany declared a 1.742-for-one stock split in coafiwn with the February 2012
public offering transaction. The stock split redgsbe number of options that may be granted urddePtan to 8,582,876 shares and adjuste
reduced per share exercise price under the July @ption repricing from $35 to $20.09. In conjupctiwith the subsequent events described
above, the Board of Directors adopted the 20120R®mdnce Incentive Plan; therefore, no more optinag be issued pursuant to the Plan.

The following is a summary of share-based optidivilg, adjusted for the stock split, including apts under the Plan and warrants to
purchase common stock, for the years ended Dece®ib@011 and 2010:

Weighted Weighted
Average
Remaining
Average Contractual
Exercise Fair Term
Shares(!) Price (1) Value 1) (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,564,88. $ 52.5¢ $ 19.2
Granted 2,372,91! $ 33.0¢ $ 15.41
Exercisec (42€) $ 29.7¢ $ 10.4¢
Cancellec (547,18¢) $ 50.61 $ 19.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,390,19. $ 46.3¢ $ 18.0¢ 7.7
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,399,05; $ 48.4¢ $ 19.1¢ 6.1
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,390,19. $ 46.3¢ $ 18.0¢
Granted® 2,252,45 $ 26.2¢ $ 10.5¢
Exercisec — — —
Cancellec (897,999 $ 42.67 $ 16.67
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 8,744,64! $ 38.1¢ $ 16.4¢ 7.3
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 7,149,141 $ 36.8¢ $ 16.1¢ 7.4
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,780,77! $ 43.6¢ $ 19.5¢ 5.4

W Adjusted for the February 2012 1.-for-one stock split

@ Represents the weighted-average grant date faiey@r option, using the Monte Carlo simulatiori@ppricing model for performance-
based options, and the Bl-Scholes optio-pricing model for tim-based options

@ There are no provisions in the Equity Plan foriseiance of SARs or restricted sha

The Company utilized historical optionee behavidlatia to estimate the option exercise and ternuinatites used in the option-pricing
models. The expected term of the options repredkatperiod of time the options were expected to be
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outstanding based on historical trends. Expectéatility was based on the historical volatility thfe common stock of Caesars Entertainment
and its competitor peer group for a period appraXing the expected life. The Company does not expgeay dividends on common

stock. The risk-free interest rate within the expdderm was based on the U.S. Treasury yield dareffect at the time of grant. Valuation
assumptions for the indicated periods are presdyekmiv:

2011 2010 2009
Expected volatility 65.8% 71.2% 65.9%
Expected dividend yiel — — —
Expected term (in year 4.8 6.€ 6.8
Risk-free interest rat 1.1% 2.4% 2.5%

Weighted average fair value per share of optioastgd® $10.5¢ $15.41 $10.27

@ Adjusted for the February 2012 1.'-for-one stock split

As of December 31, 2011, there was approximatelyGfillion of total unrecognized compensation gettted to stock option grants.
This cost is expected to be recognized over a mn@iveighted-average period of 2.9 years. Foytdes ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009, the compensation cost that has beenezhagginst income for stock option grants was apmrately $21.8 million, $18.0 million,
and $16.4 million, respectively, of which, for thear ended December 31, 2011, $13.8 million wasidledl in corporate expenses and $8.0
million was included in property, general, admirasie, and other in the Consolidated Statemen@pafrations. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, $9.4 million of compensation e@s included in corporate expense and $8.6 millias included in property, general,
administrative, and other in the Consolidated $tetgts of Operations. For the year ended Decemhe2(8D, $7.6 million of compensation
cost was included in corporate expense and $8l®mivas included in property, general, adminisigtand other in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Savings and Retirement Plan

We maintain a defined contribution savings andeeient plan, which, among other things, allowstaseand after-tax contributions to
be made by employees to the plan. Under the pkaticfpating employees may elect to contributeawp@% of their eligible earnings. Prior to
February 2009, the Company matched 50% of thedixgpercent of employees’ contributions. In Felbyu2009, Caesars Entertainment
announced the suspension of the employer matdlfparticipating employees, where allowed by lawot in violation of an existing
agreement. The Acquisition was a change in commder the savings and retirement plan, and, thexeédl unvested Company match as of the
Acquisition became vested. Amounts contributechoplan are invested, at the participant’s directio up to 19 separate funds. Participants
become vested in the matching contribution oves figars of credited service. Our contribution esgefor this plan was $38,000, $0.1 milli
and $3.2 million, respectively, for the years enBetember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009. A modified hatcprogram with a $600 annual cap
per participant was approved by the Human Reso@oesmittee in November 2011 and will be reinstdiedinning in April 2012.

Deferred Compensation Plal

The Company has one currently active deferred cosat®n plan, the Executive Supplemental Savinga RI(“ESSP 11"); although,
there are five other plans that contain deferredpmnsation assets: Harrah’s Executive Deferred @osgtion Plan (“EDCP”), the Harrah’s
Executive Supplemental Savings Plan (“ESSP”), HesrBeferred Compensation Plan (“‘HDCP”), the Restd®ark Place Entertainment
Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plad,the Caesars World, Inc. Executive Security Plére deferred compensation plans are
collectively referred to as “DCP.”

Amounts deposited into DCP are unsecured lialslitiethe Company. The EDCP and HDCP earn intetestes approved by the Hun
Resources Committee of the Board of Directors. @ther plans, including the ESSP Il are variablestmnent plans, which allow employees to
direct their investments by choosing from sevaraéstment alternatives. In connection with the 286&uisition of Caesars Entertainment,
Inc., we assumed the outstanding liability for Gas€ntertainment, Inc.’s deferred compensation;glawever, the balance was frozen and
former Caesars employees may no longer contriloutieatt plan. The total liability included in defed credits and other for DCP at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $85.2 million aftd1$@nillion, respectively. In connection with thaénainistration of one of these plans, we
have purchased company-owned life insurance psliaguring the lives of certain directors, officeaad key employees.

Beginning in 2005, we implemented the ESSP Il ftain executive officers, directors, and other &mployees of the Company to
replace the ESSP. Eligible employees may eleceterdg percentage of their salary and/or bonusrug88P II. Prior to February 2009, the
Company had the option to make matching contrilmstiwith respect to deferrals of salary to those
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participants who are eligible to receive matchingtdbutions under the Company’s 40I(k) plan. Irbfery 2009, the Company eliminated
matching contributions with respect to deferralsafiry. Employees immediately vest in their owfedals of salary and bonus and vest in
Company funded matching and discretionary contidmstover five years.

The Acquisition was a change in control under afeded compensation plans, and, therefore, akksted Company match as of the
Acquisition became vested. The change in contsd edquired that the pexisting trust and escrow funds related to our efecompensatio
plans be fully funded.

Subsequent to the Acquisition, contributions by @wenmpany have been segregated in order to diffietertietween the fulljunded trust
and escrows prior to the Acquisition and the pasggsition contributions. In January 2010, the Campfunded $5.6 million into the trust in
order to increase the security of the participadéserred compensation plan benefits.

Multiemployer Pension Pla

The Company contributes to a number of multiemplagefined benefit pension plans under the termtiéctivebargaining agreemer
that cover its union-represented employees. The 0§ participating in these multiemployer plane different from a single-employer plan in
the following aspects:

a. Assets contributed to the multiemployer plarobg employer may be used to provide benefits td@yeps of other participating
employers

b.  If a participating employer stops contributioghe plan, the unfunded obligations of the platy ima borne by the remaining
participating employer:

c. If the Company chooses to stop participating in safhits multiemployer plans, the Company may lmpiited to pay those plans
amount based on the underfunded status of the ig#erred to as a withdrawal liabilit

The Company’s participation in these plans foradhaual period ended December 31, 2011, is outiim¢lae table below. The
“EIN/Pension Plan Number” column provides the Engploldentification Number (“EIN”) and the three-diglan number, if applicable.
Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pensiae®ian Act (“PPA”) zone status available in 201010 is for the plan years beginning
January 1, 2011, and January 1, 2010, respectiVhly zone status is based on information that tragany received from the plan and is
certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other fast@lans in the red zone are generally less th&mféhded, plans in the yellow zone are less
than 80% funded, and plans in the green zone deastt80% funded. All plans detailed in the tdiBéow utilized extended amortization
provisions to calculate zone status except SoutNerada Culinary and Bartenders Pension Plan ansiétePlan of the UNITE HERE
National Retirement Fund. TIFIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented” column indisgtkans for which a financial improvement plan @Pl
or a rehabilitation plan (“RP”) is either pendinghas been implemented. With the exception of #mesi®n Plan of the UNITE HERE National
Retirement Fund and the Southern Nevada CulinagyBamtenders Pensions Plan, all plans listed inahke below utilized the extended
amortization provisions that affect the calculatadrzone status. The last column lists the exmgiratiate(s) of the collective-bargaining
agreement(s) to which the plans are subject.
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Pension Fund

Southern Nevada Culinary and
Bartenders Pension Plan

Pension Plan of the UNITE
HERE National Retirement

Fund

Western Conference of Teamst
Pension Plan

Nevada Resort Associatic
IATSE Local 720 Retirement

Plan

Central Pension Fund of tl
IUOE & Participating
Employers®

Local 68 Engineers Unia
Pension Plaf®

NJ Carpenters Pension Fu

Southwest Carpenters Pens

Trust

Other Fund:

Total Contributions

Pension Protection

Contributions of CEOC

Act Zone Status ($ in millions)
Expiration
Date of
Surcharge Collective-
EIN/Pension FIP/RP Status Bargaining
Plan Number 2011 2010 Pending/Implementec 2011 2010 2009 Imposed Agreement
Various up t
88-
6016617/00 Green Greer No $16.2  $14.€ $12.1 No July 2013
Various up t
13-
6130178/00 Red Red Yes 12.¢ 12.: 11.¢ Yes Sept. 201«
Various up t
91-
6145047/00 Green Greer No 4.7 4.1 4.C No Sept. 201
Various up t
51-
0144767/00 Green Red No 1.C 0.8 0.€ No June 201«
Various up t
36-
6052390/00 Green Greer No 5.6 5.7 4.4 No March 2012
Various up t
51-
0176618/00 Green Red No 5.3 5.2 5.1 No June 201«
Various up t
22-
6174423/00 Yellow Red Yes 1.2 1.1 1.2 No April 2014
Various up t
95-
6042875/00 Green Greer No 0.9 0.8 0.t No April 2014
1.8 1.6 1.4
$49.€ $46.2 $41.C

@ Plan years begin 2/1/11 and 2/1/
@ Plan years begin 7/1/11 and 7/1/

The Company was listed in its plans’ Forms 550prasiding more than 5% of the total contributions the following plans and plan

years:

Pension Fund

Pension Plan of the UNITE HERE National Retirermfeumd

Southern Nevada Culinary and Bartenders Pension

Local 68 Engineers Union Pension P

Nevada Resort Association IATSE Local 720 Retirenidan
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At the date these financial statements were isde@uins 5500 were not available for the plan yedlirenin 2011.

Pension Commitmen

With the acquisition of London Clubs in Decembe®@0we assumed a defined benefit plan, which pesvlabnefits based on final
pensionable salary. The assets of the plan areitneldeparate trustee-administered fund and deathrvice benefits, professional fees, and
other expenses are paid by the pension plan. Tis¢ meocent actuarial valuation of the plan showeeéfiit of approximately $56.4 million,
which is recognized as a liability in our ConsotethBalance Sheet at December 31, 2011.

As discussed within Note 14, “Commitments and Gugent Liabilities”, with our acquisition of Caesd&stertainment, Inc., we assumed
certain obligations related to the Employee Besefitd Other Employment Matters Allocation Agreentgnand between Hilton Worldwide,
Inc. (formerly Hilton Hotels Corporation) and CaesEntertainment, Inc. dated December 31, 199&uyaunt to which we shall retain or
assume, as applicable, all liabilities and excsssta, if any, related to the Hilton Hotels RetieatPlan based on the ratio of accrued benefits
of Hilton employees and the Company’s employee®@under the plan. Based on this ratio, our shiaa@y benefit or obligation would be
approximately 30% of the total. The Hilton HotelstiRement Plan is a defined benefit plan that ptesibenefits based on years of service and
compensation, as defined. Since December 31, E98ployees have not accrued additional benefitsruhieplan. The plan is administered
by Hilton Worldwide, Inc. Hilton Worldwide, Inc. sanformed the Company that, as of December 311 2thE plan benefit obligations
exceeded the fair value of the plan assets by $#80libn, of which $28.6 million is our share. Walchot make contributions to the plan in
2011. Expected contributions for 2012 are $13.1ionil of which $4.2 million is our share.

Note 1<—(Loss)/Earnings Per Share

The following table reconciles net (loss)/incomeilatitable to Caesars to (loss)/income availableotmmon stockholders used in our
calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earningisghare. It also reconciles the weighted-averageber of common and common equivalent
shares used in the calculations of basic and dil(itsss)/earnings per share. Shares and per sgared have been restated to reflect the 1.742-
for-one stock split as further described in Note“&ibsequent Events.”

Year ended December 31,

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes $(687.€) $(831.]) $827.€
Preferred stock dividenc — — (354.9
Net (loss)/income available to common stockholdesed to calculate basic (loss)/earnings per < (687.€) (831.]) 472.¢
Effect of dilutive securities on income availabbecommon stockholde| — — 354.¢
Net (loss)/income available to common stockholdesed to calculate diluted (loss)/earnings per s $(687.6) $(831.) $827.¢
Weighte-average common shares outstanding used in thelai@dcuof basic (loss)/earnings per sh 125.1 99.: 70.¢
Potential dilution from stock options and warra — — 0.1
Potential dilution from convertible preferred she — — 138.¢
Weighted-average common and common equivalent stuges in the calculation of diluted (loss)/earnsil
per shar¢ 125.1 99.: 209.4
Antidilutive stock options, warrants, and convddipreferred shares excluded from the calculatfon o
diluted (loss)/earnings per shs 6.C 31.7 5.2
(Loss)/earnings per sha
Basic $ (6550 $((837) $ 6.67
Diluted $ (650 $((B837) $ 3.9

88



Table of Contents

Note 2(—Non-consolidated Affiliates

As of December 31, 2011, our investments in anéades to non-consolidated affiliates consisteatafrests in a company that provides
management services to a casino in Windsor, Camaldlar,se-racing facility in Florence, Kentuckypaj venture in a hotel at our combination
thoroughbred racetrack and casino in Bossier Cityjsiana, a direct train line from New York Citgfh Station to Atlantic City Ralil
Terminal, a restaurant located inside the Flamidgtel and Casino in Las Vegas, Nevada, and oursinvent in Rock Ohio Caesars, LLC in
Ohio.

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2011 2010
Investments in and advances to -consolidated affiliate
Accounted for under the equity meth $ 94.2 $ 94.C

$ 94.2 $ 94.C

Note 2:—Related Party Transactions

In connection with the Acquisition, the Sponsorieesd into a services agreement with Caesars Birtarént relating to the provision of
financial and strategic advisory services and chimguservices. We pay a monitoring fee for managenservices and advice. Fees paid to the
Sponsors, which are included in corporate expamseii Consolidated Statements of Operations, ®dars ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009 were $30.0 million, $28.5 million, and $2&hillion, respectively. We also reimburse the &o's for expenses that they incur reli
to their management services.

Note 2:(—Subsequent Events
Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On January 18, 2012, the Company amended the tdrtheee $1.0 billion notional value of interesterawap contracts with a
corresponding change in the elected interest ra®3d billion of term loans under the Credit Féei. Effective January 25, 2012 through
January 25, 2014, the variable rate received oswlaws changed from 3-month to 1-month LIBOR amdfitted payment rate was reduced by
16.5 basis points.

Chester Bond Offering

On February 3, 2012, Chester Downs issued $33dl@maggregate principal amount of 9.25% seniaused notes due 2020 through a
private placement. Chester Downs used $232.4 mitliche proceeds of the notes to repay its exjggnm loan plus accrued interest and a
prepayment penalty. The remaining proceeds werg tasmake a distribution to Chester Downs’ managimgmber, Harrah’s Chester Downs
Investment Company, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiei'“"EOC, and for other general corporate purposes.

Chester Put/Call

On January 20, 2012, we received notice that tlerity owners of Chester Downs have elected toasertheir put rights under an
operating agreement with one of its wholly-owneldssdiaries. As a result, effective as of January2242, we were required to purchase from
the minority owners 90% of their interest in Chefdewns for consideration of approximately $9.6limil. We consummated this purchase on
February 14, 2012. As a result, we now have a 9Q®¥ership interest in this property.

Caesars Public Offering and Stock Split

On February 8, 2012, CEC offered 1.8 million shaxfeiss common stock in a public offering (the “MalOffering”), at $9.00 per share.
The Company received net proceeds of approxim&dy2 million on February 13, 2012, after takingpiaccount expenses and underwriting
commissions and giving effect to the exercise efuhderwriters’ overallotment option. Under thidiop, the Company granted to the
underwriters, and the underwriters subsequentlycésexd, a 30-day option to purchase 271,697 additishares of its common stock at the
initial price less underwriting discounts and corssions. CEC used the net proceeds from the Pulficiqy for general corporate purposes.
None of the Sponsors or affiliates or employeethefCompany participated in the Public Offeringalling stockholders
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CEC has listed its common stock on the NASDAQ Gl@mdect Market under the symbol “CZR.”

In connection with the Public Offering, the Compaaffected a 1.742-for-one split of its common stock

Co-Investors Transaction

The Company entered into a Release and Contribétipaement, dated as of January 25, 2012 (the ‘fbanion Agreement”), with
certain of its direct and indirect stockholders;guant to which the Company, Hamlet Holdings artdiea controlled by the Sponsors have
agreed to release the contractual transfer rastigbn the shares of our common stock (the “Relk&hares”) beneficially owned by certain
indirect stockholders (the “Participating Co-Inwast). The Released Shares comprise 24.2 milli@meshof the Company’s common stock. In
consideration for such release, the Participatiogr@estors have agreed to direct the contributiothe Company of 1.8 million Released
Shares beneficially owned by each Participatingriv@stor (the “Delivered Shares”). CEC agreed tasegahe registration for resale (tighell
Registration”) under the Securities Act of the rérimey Released Shares not constituting Deliverear&h(the “Registered Shares”) and the
listing of the Registered Shares on NASDAQ. Upandffectiveness of the Shelf Registration fileddmnection with the Public Offering, 50
of the Registered Shares became eligible for rasaler the Shelf Registration. In connection whté Public Offering, the Participating Co-
Investors agreed not to offer or sell, disposerdfexige, directly or indirectly, the remaining 5@%the Registered Shares without the
permission of certain of the underwriters for thible Offering for a period of 180 days from thegorg of the Public Offering, subject to
certain exceptions and automatic extension in teciecumstances. The shares of common stock affeyethe Company in the Public
Offering, excluding any shares issued pursuartiéainderwriters’ option to purchase additional shawas equal in number to the Delivered
Shares contributed to CEC on behalf of the Pagtaig Co-Investors.

CEOC Bond Offering

In February 2012, Caesars Operating Escrow LLCQemkars Escrow Corporation, wholly owned subsigaof CEOC, completed the
offering of $1,250.0 million aggregate principal @mt of 8.5% senior secured notes due 2020, theepos of which were placed into escrow.
On March 1, 2012, the escrow conditions were satisind CEOC assumed the notes. CEOC used $1,086dh of the net proceeds from
this transaction to repay a portion of its creddilities in connection with the amendment discddselow.

Amendment to CEOC Credit Facilities

On March 1, 2012, CEOC entered into an amendmetd tautstanding senior secured credit agreemenanhong other things, (i) extend
the maturity of B-1, B-2 and B-3 term loans helddmynsenting lenders from January 28, 2015 to Jgr2@8r2018 and increase the interest rate
with respect to such extended term loans (the “TBrnLoans”); (ii) convert original maturity revady commitments held by consenting
lenders to Term B-6 Loans and promptly followinglswonversion, repay Term 8Loans held by any consenting lender in an amequaél tc
10% of the amount of revolver commitments that declder elected to convert; (iii) extend the mayuoif original maturity revolver
commitments held by consenting lenders who elettaoonvert their commitments to term loans, fréemuary 28, 2014 to January 28, 2017
and increase the interest rate and the undrawn domemt fee with respect to such extended revoleenrmmitments and upon the effectiveness
of such extension, terminate 20% of extended rerad@mmitments on a pro rata basis; and (iv) mockftain other provisions of the credit
facilities. In addition to the foregoing, the CE@y elect to extend and/or convert additional terams and/or revolver commitments from
time to time.

After giving effect to the credit agreement amendimthere are $2,113.1 million of existing B-1, Bx2d B3 term loans outstanding w
a maturity of January 28, 2015, $1,862.9 milliorerfended Term B-6 Loans outstanding with a matafitlanuary 28, 2018, $25.0 million of
extended revolver commitments with a maturity ofulary 28, 2017 and $1,104.5 million of existingaking commitments outstanding with a
maturity of January 28, 2014. The Term B-6 Loanshéve a springing maturity to April 14, 2017 ifone than $250.0 million of the
Company’s 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2017imeyagstanding on April 14, 2017. As part of theeardment, CEOC'’s existing tranche
of $1,222.7 million of B-5 term loans maturing aandary 28, 2018 was also modified to provide fersame springing maturity that applies to
the Term B-6 Loans.
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Note 2:—Consolidating Financial Information of Guarantorsaand Issuers

As of December 31, 2011, CEOC is the issuer ohgedebt securities that have been guaranteed egafmEntertainment and certain
subsidiaries of CEOC. The following consolidatimfpedules present condensed financial informatioilCtesars Entertainment, the parent and
guarantor; CEOC, the subsidiary issuer; guarantbsidiaries of CEOC; and non-guarantor subsidiari€Saesars Entertainment and CEOC,
which include PHW Las Vegas and the CMBS propertieof December 31, 2011 and December 31, 20@0foathe years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

In lieu of providing separate unaudited financiatesments for the guarantor subsidiaries, we hasleded the accompanying condensed
consolidating financial statements based on Rul8 8f the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Régn S-X. Management does not
believe that separate financial statements of tlz@amtor subsidiaries are material to our investberefore, separate financial statements and
other disclosures concerning the guarantor subsgdiare not presented.

As described in more detail in Note 7, “Debt” insth0-K, as of December 31, 2011 Caesars Entertihimas substantially completed
the Octavius Tower at Caesars Palace Las VegaBendommenced the development of Project Ling erLéts Vegas Strip. As part of the
financing of the two projects, certain non-guaraetatities borrowed $450.0 million in April 20111sd, in April 2011, a guarantor entity
contributed the existing Octavius Tower and relassets, the book value of which totaled $312.0anjlto the Octavius non-guarantor
borrower. Concurrent with this asset contributithe contributing guarantor entity increased itestment in the non-guarantor borrower entity
by the same amount. In August 2011, the Companyptztied the contribution of the existing O’Shea’sina (adjacent to the Flamingo Las
Vegas) and related real property and other aseetgprising the components of Project Ling to onéhefBorrowers, the book value of which
was $319.2 million.

In August 2010, in conjunction with the amendmefrthe CMBS Financing, certain trademark assets waresferred from one of the
Guarantor subsidiaries of CEOC to the CMBS propsytivhich are non-guarantor subsidiaries of the [@@my. This transfer of trademarks,
with a book value of $45.3 million, was not progercorded in this footnote in our filings sincathime. At December 31, 2011, the
trademark values have been properly reclassifiedénmespective Guarantor and Non-Guarantor colwhitse Condensed Consolidating
Balance Sheet herein. This revision resulted imedeses in Intangible assets other than goodwill&ndkholders’ equity in the Guarantors
column and corresponding increases in Intangitdetather than goodwill and Stockholders’ equitthe Non-Guarantors column, of this
footnote. The error, which the Company has detezthia not material to this disclosure for all pdgphad no impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statsméftperations, or Consolidated Statements of E&shlis for any period presented in t
10-K. In addition, the error had no impact on tfen€blidating Statements of Operations and Condotigl&tatements of Cash Flows within
this footnote.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2011

(In millions)
Consolidating/
CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total

Assets
Current assel

Cash and cash equivale $ 39 $ 16€ $ 382t $ 501¢ $ — $ 904.€

Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful acco: — 38.C 315.¢ 135.¢ — 489.2

Deferred income taxe — 37.¢ 117.3 14.¢ — 170.t

Prepayments and other current as — 8.4 76.€ 143.( — 228.(

Inventories — 0.4 28.2 16.5 — 44.¢

Intercompany receivable 15.7 237.5 135.¢ 108.7 (497.%) —

Total current asse 19.€ 339.( 1,056.: 920.1 (497.7%) 1,837..

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depfewi — 205.€ 9,695.¢ 7,364.! — 17,266.(
Goodwill — — 1,630.¢ 1,834.: — 3,464.¢
Intangible assets other than goodh — 4.¢ 3,816.¢ 834.1 — 4,655.¢
Investments in and advances to -consolidated affiliate 535.¢ 13,568.( 891.( 972.¢ (15,873.) 94.2
Restricted cas — — — 451.1 — 451.1
Deferred charges and ott 5.0 324.¢ 183.1 233.2 — 746.2
Intercompany receivable 469.( 1,102.¢ 586.( 98.7 (2,256.5 —

$1,029.« $15,545.0 $17,859. $12,709.( $(18,627.) $28,515.(

Liabilities and Stockholder' Equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 02 $ 99 $ 106 $ 884 $ — $ 293¢
Interest payabl — 174.( 0.8 16.€ — 191.¢
Accrued expense 7.5 136.: 469.7 463.¢ — 1,077.:
Current portion of lon-term deb! — 20.2 7.C 13.2 — 40.4
Intercompany payable 15.C 67.¢ 264.¢ 150.( (497.7) —
Total current liabilities 22.7 497.5 848.: 731.¢ (497.7) 1,602.¢
Long-term debt — 14,446.. 69.¢ 6,100." (857.5)  19,759.
Deferred credits and oth — 612.5 166.( 123.: — 901.¢
Deferred income taxe — 647.% 2,558.¢ 1,991.¢ — 5,198.!
Intercompany note — 420.2 871.5 964.¢ (2,256.5 —
22.7 16,624.. 4,514.¢ 9,912.( (3,611.H 27,462.:
Total Caesars Stockhold’ equity/(deficit) 1,006." (1,079.9) 13,345.: 2,750.1 (15,016.) 1,006.
Non-controlling interest: — — — 46.7 — 46.7
Total stockholder” equity/(deficit) 1,006." (1,079.)  13,345.. 2,797.( (15,016.) 1,053.¢

$1,029.« $15,545.. $17,859." $12,709.0 $(18,627.) $28,515.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Assets
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accol
Deferred income taxe
Prepayments and other current as
Inventories
Intercompany receivable
Total current asse
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depfewi
Goodwill
Intangible assets other than goodh
Investments in and advances to -consolidated affiliate
Deferred charges and ott
Intercompany receivable

Liabilities and Stockholder Equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl

Interest payabl

Accrued expense

Current portion of lon-term debt

Intercompany payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi
Deferred credits and oth
Deferred income taxe
Intercompany note

Total Caesars Stockhold’ equity/(deficit)
Non-controlling interest:

Total stockholder equity/(deficit)

(In millions)
Consolidating/
CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
$ 136.C $ 61.C $ 35872 $ 431¢ $ — $ 987.(
— 18.C 261.¢ 113.¢ — 393.2
— 66.2 92.€ 17.C — 175.¢
— 29.C 77.2 77.€ — 184.1
— 04 32.7 17.: — 50.4
3.7 313.( 161.¢ 169.1 (647.7) —
139.% 487.¢ 984.( 826.¢ (647.7%) 1,790.!
— 229.¢ 10,457.¢ 7,079.( — 17,766.t
— — 1,646.. 1,774.¢ — 3,420.¢
— 5.€ 4,052.. 654.1] — 4,711.¢
1,002.:  13,924. 7.6 914.( (15,754.) 94.(
— 408.2 188.4 207.: — 803.¢
500.( 1,106." 669.5 184.2 (2,460.9) —
$1,642.( $16,162.. $18,005.! $11,640.. $(18,862.) $28,587.
$ 21 % 876 $ 91.: % 704 % — $ 251«
— 191.2 0.5 9.8 — 201.5
7.3 208.2 420.2 438.¢ — 1,074.:
— 30.C 6.7 18.€ — 55.€
— 47.€ 318.¢ 281.( (647.7) —
9.4 564.¢ 837.t 818.7 (647.%) 1,582.¢
— 13,690. 71.€ 5,825.( (802.0) 18,785.!
— 646.4 164.2 112.5 — 923.1
(0.2 1,131.2 2,536.: 1,956.¢ — 5,623."
— 598.1 955.2 907.1 (2,460.9) —
9.2 16,631. 4,564.¢ 9,619.¢ (3,910.) 26,915.:
1,632.¢ (469.)  13,440. 1,980." (14,952.) 1,632.¢
— — — 39.¢ — 39.¢
1,632.¢ (469.7) 13,440. 2,020.f (14,952.) 1,672.¢
$1,642.( $16,162.. $18,005.! $11,640.. $(18,862.) $28,587.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenue:!
Casino
Food and beverac
Rooms
Management fee
Other
Less: casino promotional allowanc

Net revenue

Operating expenst
Direct
Casina
Food and beverac
Rooms
Property, general, administrative, and ol
Depreciation and amortizatic

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogen

costs
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing
intangible assel

Loss/(income) on interests in r-consolidated affiliate

Corporate expens

Acquisition and integration cos

Amortization of intangible asse

Total operating expens:

(Loss)/income from operatiot
Interest expense, net of interest capitali
Gains on early extinguishments of d
Other income, including interest incor
(Loss)/income before income tax
Benefit/(provision) for income taxe
Net (loss)/incomi
Less: net income attributable to r1-controlling interest:
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes

(In millions)
Consolidating

CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating

(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total

$ — $ 62€ $4,194¢ $2379.° $ — $6,637.:
— 14.Z 846.7 673.5 — 1,534..
— 16.7 620.¢ 570.€ — 1,208..
— — 66.1 3.0 (33.9 35.€
— 46.5 384.¢ 396.¢ (145.5) 682.t
— (19.0) (756.5) (488.0) — (1,263.9)
— 121.C 5,356.¢ 3,535.¢ (178.9) 8,834.!
— 40.€ 2,372.: 1,333.¢ — 3,746.¢
— 6.7 344.] 314.¢ — 665.7
— 2.C 134.2 150.¢ — 287.1
— 54.2 1,263.¢ 940.¢ (140.5) 2,118
— 6.8 4457 260.C — 712.%
— 46.€ 25.C 24.4 — 96.C
— — 11.C — — 11.C
693. (421.9 (42.9) 6.1 (226.6) 7.8
22.7 98. 22.7 47.7 (38.9) 152.¢
0.1 1.C 1.1 2.1 — 4.3
— 0.7 93.€ 62.4 — 156.5
716. (164.6)  4,670.c 3,142.¢ (405.6)  7,959.(
(716.2) 285.€ 686.7 392.€ 226.¢ 875.5
- (1,953.9) (50.2) (328.6) 209.6  (2,122.)
— — — 47.€ — 47.€
25.5 70.7 17.€ 134.2 (222.7) 25E
(690.7)  (1,597.() 654.1 246.1 213.¢  (1,173.9
3.1 776.¢ (228.%) (44.%) - 506.¢
(687.6) (820.2) 425.. 201.¢ 213.¢ (666.7)
— — — (20.9) — (20.9)

$(687.6 $ (820.) $ 425¢4 $ 180.¢ $  213¢ $ (687.0
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Revenue:!
Casino
Food and beverac
Rooms
Management fee
Other
Less: casino promotional allowanc
Net revenue
Operating expenst
Direct
Casina
Food and beverag
Rooms
Property, general, administrative, and ot
Depreciation and amortizatic

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogen

costs
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing
intangible assel

Loss/(income) on interests in r-consolidated affiliate

Corporate expens

Acquisition and integration cos

Amortization of intangible asse

Total operating expens

(Loss)/income from operatiot
Interest expense, net of interest capitali
(Losses)/gains on early extinguishments of
Other income, including interest incot
(Loss)/income before income tax
Benefit/(provision) for income taxe
Net (loss)/incom
Less: net income attributable to 1-controlling interest:
Net (loss)/income attributable to Caes

(In millions)
Consolidating
CEC Subsidiary Other Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
$ — $ 67.¢ $4487¢ $2362: $ — $6,917.¢
— 18.€ 852.1 639.¢ — 1,510.¢
— 17.¢ 591.¢ 522.¢ — 1,132.1
— 2.6 61.1 1.5 (26.1) 39.1
— 47.2 359.1 335.¢ (165.9) 576.
— (23.6) (839.7) (494.9) o (1,357.9)
— 130.5 5,512. 3,367." (192.0 8,818.¢
— 45.2 2,533.° 1,369.¢ — 3,948.¢
— 7.8 324.: 289.2 — 621.%
— 2.1 121.¢ 135.7% — 259.4
— 52.7 1,290.¢ 859.( (140.  2,061.
— 7.3 472.( 256.2 — 735.%
— 27.¢ 90.¢ 31.C — 149.5
— — 187.C 6.C — 193.(
816. (295.5) (30.9) (0.€) (487.7) 15
23.Z 85.¢€ 21.€ 61.€ (51.2) 140.¢
0.8 1.8 4.4 6.5 — 13.€
— 0.7 97.¢ 62.2 — 160.¢
840.¢ (64.5)  5113. 3,076.’ (679.)  8,286.:
(840.6 195.C 399.2 291.C 487.7 532.%
(3.1) (1,712.) (96.5) (392.6) 2226 (1,981.9
- 4.7 = 120.: - 115.¢
45 93.: 59.€ 106.¢ (222.5) 417
(839.9  (1,428.9 362. 125.¢ 487.7  (1,292.0)
8.1 642.c (131.5) (50.1) — 468.7
(831.) (786.9) 231.( 5. 487. (823.9)
— — — (7.9) — (7.8)
$(831.) $ (7869 $ 231.C $ 677 $ 4877 $ (83L)
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Revenue:!
Casino
Food and beverac
Rooms
Management fee
Other
Less: casino promotional allowanc
Net revenue
Operating expenst
Direct
Casina
Food and beverag
Rooms
Property, general, administrative, and ot
Depreciation and amortizatic

Write-downs, reserves, recoveries, and project iogen

costs
Impairment of goodwill and other n-amortizing
intangible assel

(Income)/losses on interests in -consolidated affiliate

Corporate expens

Acquisition and integration cos

Amortization of intangible asse

Total operating expens

Income/(loss) from operatiol
Interest expense, net of interest capitali
Gains on early extinguishments of d
Other income, including interest incot
Income/(loss) before income tax
Benefit/(provision) for income taxe
Net income/(loss
Less: net income attributable to 1-controlling interes
Net income/(loss) attributable to Caes

(In millions)
Consolidating
CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
$ — $ 76.1 $4,724¢ $2323.0 $ — $7,124.
— 17.: 842.: 619.7 — 1,479.:
— 17.2 601.5 450.2 — 1,068.¢
— 8.5 60.z 1.2 (13.9) 56.€
— 42.€ 373.c 317.¢ (141.2) 592.¢
— (22.€) (891.6) (499.9) — (1,414.)
— 139.1 5,710. 3,212.: (154.5) 8,907 ..
— 45.¢€ 2,575.¢ 1,304.( — 3,925.!
— 9.5 314.¢ 271.7 — 596.(
— 1.8 111.¢ 100.1 — 213.5
— 40.2 1,326.¢ 770.C (118.9  2,018.¢
— 8.3 449.¢ 226.1 — 683.¢
— (18.6) 99.1 31.2 — 111.F
— — 1,147.¢ 490.1 — 1,638.(
(854.2) 598.1 (49.0) 3.9 303.¢ 2.2
40.1 91.t 19.1 36.2 (36.2) 150.7
— 0.3 — — — 0.2
— 0.7 112.¢ 61.7 — 174.¢
(814.9 777.€ 6,107.¢ 3,295.( 149.] 9,515.:
814.: (638.5) (397.9) (82.7) (303.6) (607.€)
(1.8  (1,660.9) (152.9) (363.2) 285.. (1,892
— 3,929.¢ — 1,035.¢ — 4,965.!
0.5 96.E 109.¢ 111. (285.2) 33.(
813.C  1,727. (439.5) 701. (303.6)  2,498.
14.€  (1,052.) (203.7) (410.2) — (1,651.9
827.¢ 674.7 (643.5) 291.2 (303.6) 846.
— — — (18.€) — (18.€)
$827.6 $ 6747 $ (6435 $ 272<4 $ (3036 $ 827.¢
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(In millions)
Consolidating/
Subsidiary
CEC Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
Cash flows provided by/(used in) operating actgti $182¢ $(507.6) $ 1521 $ 2955 % = $ 123.1
Cash flows from investing activitie
Acquisitions of property and equipment, ne
change in construction payab — (12.9) (113.9) (157.¢) — (283.2)
Change in restricted ca — — — (517.9) — (517.7)
Payments to acquire businesses, net of transe
costs and cash acquir — — — (29.0 — (19.0
Purchase of additional interests in subsid — — — (75.4) — (75.9
Payments made to acquire certain gaming ri — — — (22.7) — (22.7)
Investments in/advances to non-consolidated
affiliates and othe (123.5 (136.7%) (49.1) (76.0 309.: (76.0
Other — — (3.9 (19.2) — (23.0
Cash flows (used in)/provided by investing
activities (123.5) (149.0 (166.2) (887.6) 309.: (1,017.0
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi — 418.: — 445.¢ — 863.¢
Debt issuance costs and f — (3.2 — (14.9 — (18.7)
Borrowings under lending agreeme — 358.( — — — 358.(
Repayments under lending agreemt — (203.0 — — — (203.0
Cash paid for early extinguishments of d — — (2.€) (125.9 — (128.5)
Scheduled debt retiremer — (25.2) — (18.5) — (43.7)
(Distributions to)/transfers from affiliates, r (189.9) 67.% 49.1 382.7 (309.9) —
Other (1.7) — (8.2) (7.2 — (17.0
Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing
activities (191.5 612.2 38.£ 661.5 (309.9) 811.t
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equis. (132.0) (44.9) 24.: 69.¢ — (82.9)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 136.( 61.C 358.2 431.¢ — 987.(
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 39 $ 16.€ $ 382t $ 501.¢ $ = $ 904.¢
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(In millions)
Consolidating/
CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
Cash flows provided by/(used in) operating actti $ 753.¢ $ (51660 $ 59.¢ $ (126.) $ — $ 170.¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Acquisitions of property and equipment, ne
change in construction payab — (5.3 (93.9) (61.€) — (160.7)
Payments to acquire businesses, net of transe
costs and cash acquir — (18.9) (2.7 (9.7 — (30.6)
Purchase of additional interests in subsid — — — (19.9) — (19.9)
Payments made to acquire certain gaming ri — — — (16.5) — (16.5)
Investments in/advances to non-consolidated
affiliates and othe — — (64.0 — — (64.0
Other — — 8.€ 546.1 (551.9) 3.4
Cash flows (used in)/provided by investi
activities — (24.1) (151.9) 438.¢ (551.7) (287.9)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi — 740.¢ — 40.1 551.3 1,332.:
Debt issuance costs and f — (17.9) — (46.¢) — (64.6)
Borrowings under lending agreeme — 1,175.( — — — 1,175.(
Repayments under lending agreem: — (1,602.0 — (23.9) — (1,625.9
Cash paid for early extinguishments of d — (219.9 — (249.9 — (369.7)
Scheduled debt retireme — (198.5 — (38.5) — (237.0
(Distributions to)/transfers from affiliates, r (739.0 742.( 4.7 (7.7) — —
Other (1.€) (2.3 — (19.9 — (23.9)
Cash flows (used in)/provided by financing
activities (740.6) 617.2 4.7 (245.9) 551.5 187.¢
Effect of deconsolidation of variable interest ge$ — — — (1.4) — (1.4)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 13.c 76.€ (87.0 66.C — 68.¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 122.7 (15.6) 445.2 365.¢ — 918.]
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $136.( $ 61.C $ 35872 $ 431¢ $ = $ 987.(
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(In millions)
Consolidating/
CEC Subsidiary Non- Eliminating
(Parent) Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Adjustments Total
Cash flows (used in)/provided by operating actgti $(36.¢) $(1,015.) $ 303Ef $ 4654 $ 5031 $ 220.
Cash flows from investing activitie
Acquisitions of property and equipment, net of aam
construction payable — 8.6 (431.0 (42.1) — (464.5)
Investments in/advances to -consolidated affiliates ar
other — (66.9) — (213.%) 213.% (66.9)
Other — 20.C — (11.9 — 8.1
Cash flows (used in)/provided by investing actas — (38.9) (431.0 (267.7) 213.5 (523.9)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi — 2,043t — 216.1 — 2,259.¢
Debt issuance costs and f — (70.5) — (5.9 — (76.9)
Borrowings under lending agreeme — 3,076.¢ — — — 3,076.¢
Repayments under lending agreemt — (3,535.) — — — (3,535.)
Cash paid for early extinguishments of d — (544.9) — (244.9) (213.7) (1,003.9)
Scheduled debt retireme — (39.0 — (6.5) — (45.5)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidi — — (83.7) — — (83.9)
Transfers from/(distributions to) affiliates, r 162. 100.( 339.2 (98.5) (503.0) —
Other (3.0 — (1.7) (17.2) — (21.9)
Cash flows provided by/(used in) financing acted  159./ 1,030.¢ 254.4 (156.9) (716.9) 570.
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 122.¢ (22.7) 126.¢ 40.¢ — 267.¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 0.1 7.1 318.: 325.( — 650.5
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $122.: $ (156 $ 4452 $ 3658 $ — $ 918.]
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Note 24—Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

(In millions)

2011

Net revenue

Income from operatior@

Net loss

Net loss attributable to Caesars Entertainment @atn
Diluted loss per shai

2010

Net revenue

Income/(loss) from operatioi®

Net loss

Net loss attributable to Caesars Entertainment @atn
Diluted loss per shal

First
Quarter

Second Third Fourth

arter arter arter
Qua Quay Quas

$2,179.(
213.
(144.9)
(147.5)
(1.1€)

2,188.«
225.¢
(193.6)
(195.6)
(2.72)

@ During the second quarter of 2010, the Companyrdszban impairment loss of $100.0 millic
@ During the third quarter of 2010, the Company rdedran impairment loss of $44.0 millic
@) During the fourth quarters of 2011 and 2010, thenfany recorded impairment losses of $11.0 millind $49.0 million, respectivel

$2,229..  $2,254.( $2,172.
252.1 198.: 211.¢€
(153.) (1739  (195.9)
(155.5  (164.0  (220.6)
(1.25) (1.31) (1.76)

2,220,  2,288%  2,121.
(0.3) 175.7 131.1
(2725 (1632  (194.0
(2740 (1649  (196.7)
(2.60) (1.56) (1.71)

Because loss per share amounts are calculated theingeighted average number of common and dilddremon equivalent shares
outstanding during each quarter, the sum of thespare amounts for the four quarters may not dtpeatiotal loss per share amounts for the

year.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
None

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have evaluated the effectiveness ofdisclosure controls and procedures
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeEttehange Act) as of December 31, 2011, includingrods and procedures to timely alert
management to material information relating to@uenpany and its subsidiaries required to be indudeur periodic SEC filings. Based on
such evaluation, they have concluded that, asaf date, our disclosure controls and procedures efective.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(a) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Conreér Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting (as definin Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the ErgleaAct) refers to the process
designed by, or under the supervision of, our Chiafcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, asffiected by our board of directors,
management, and other personnel, to provide rebloaasurance regarding the reliability of finahoégorting and the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. Managemseesponsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over ourriitial reporting.

In May 2011, Caesars Interactive Entertainmenelstad. (“CIEI"), a subsidiary of Caesars InteigetEntertainment, Inc., which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of Caesars Entertainmaequired 51% of the voting equity interests ofyRka Ltd. (“Playtika”), a social games
developer based in Israel. CIEI purchased the meim®i49% of Playtika in December 2011. For purpagetetermining the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures and intexoatrol over financial reporting as of December&111, and any change in our internal
control over financial reporting for the fourth gteax of 2011, management has excluded the inteoratol over financial reporting of Playtika
from its evaluation of these matters. Our consodiddinancial statements as of and for the yeaeémzecember 31, 2011, include
approximately $121 million of assets and approxetya$55 million of revenue associated with Playtika

We have evaluated the effectiveness of our interoatrol over financial reporting as of December3111. The evaluation was
performed using the internal control evaluatiomfeavork developed by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on such evaluation, managementutted that, as of such date, our internal comver financial reporting was effective.

Deloitte & Touche LLP has issued an attestatiomepn our internal control over financial repodirTheir report is included below.
(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Répg

There has been no change in our internal contred fimancial reporting during our most recent flapaarter that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, ontérnal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Caesars Entertainment Corporation:

We have audited the internal control over finanoéplorting of Caesars Entertainment Corporationsatusidiaries (the “Company&s ol
December 31, 2011, based on criteria establishdémal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As dbscrin Management’s Annual Report on Internal Gardver Financial Reporting,
management excluded from its assessment the ihtarnaol over financial reporting at Playtika LidPlaytika”), for which a majority
ownership was acquired in May 2011 and whose filgustatements constitute 0.4% total assets artd @fthet revenues of the consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the gaded December 31, 2011. Accordingly, our auditnditinclude the internal control over
financial reporting at Playtika. The Company’s mgement is responsible for maintaining effectiveintl control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in taecompanying Management’s Annual Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on the Comyfsinternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or gars performing similar functions, and effected g tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakassurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriduat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statein accordance with generally accepted acaogiptiinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlan€ial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the positl of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatetected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the criteria establishiaternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated financial statements and consolidfitedicial statement schedule as of and for the gaded December 31, 2011. Our report
dated March 14, 2012 expressed an unqualified epion those consolidated financial statements andatidated financial statement
schedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 14, 2012
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ITEM 9B. Other Information
None
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Goverance.

Directors

The following tables list the Directors and ExeeatDfficers of the Company as of March 1, 2012 afloan Coslet resigned from our
Board of Directors effective November 29, 2011otder to fill the vacancy created by Mr. Coslegsignation, Jeffrey T. Housenbold was
appointed to serve as a director.

Name and Age

Principal Occupations or Employment

Jeffrey Benjamin (50)

David Bonderman (6¢

Kelvin Davis (48)

Jeffrey Housenbold (42)

Mr. Benjamin became a member of our Board of Daecin January 2008 upon consummation of the
Acquisition. He has nearly 25 years of experiemcthé investment industry and has extensive expegie
serving on the boards of directors of other pualid private companies, including Mandalay Resodu@s
another gaming company. He has been senior adeisoyrus Capital Partners since June 2008 and sae
a consultant to Apollo Global Management, LLC wiglspect to investments in the gaming industry. lde w
senior advisor to Apollo Global Management, LLCnfr@002 to 2008. He holds a bachelors degree from
Tufts University and a masters degree from the Eletsssetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of
Management. He has previously served on the badiisectors of Goodman Global Holdings, Inc., Dade
Behring Holdings, Inc., Chiquita Brands Internatigrinc., McLeod USA, Mandalay Resort Group and
Virgin Media Inc. Mr. Benjamin also currently sesven the boards of directors of Spectrum Group
International, Inc., Exco Resources, Inc., ImMOn @Gamications, the American Numismatic Society and
Chemtura Corporatiol

Mr. Bonderman became a member of our Board of Boredn January 2008 upon consummation ol
Acquisition. Mr. Bonderman is a TPG Founding PartReior to forming TPG in 1993, Mr. Bonderman was
Chief Operating Officer of the Robert M. Bass Grplne. (now doing business as Keystone Group, LitP.)
Fort Worth, Texas. He holds a bachelors degree frmnUniversity of Washington and a law degree from
Harvard University. He has previously served onltbards of directors of Gemalto N.V., Burger King
Holdings, Inc., Washington Mutual, Inc., IASIS Hisiare LLC, and Univision Communications. Mr.
Bonderman also currently serves on the boardsretidirs of JSC VTB Bank, Energy Future Holdings s
General Motors Company, Armstrong World Industrles,, CoStar Group, Inc. and Ryanair Holdings PLC,
of which he is Chairmar

Kelvin L. Davis became a member of our Board inudap 2008 upon consummation of the Acquisition.
Davis is a TPG Senior Partner and Head of BA®rth American Buyouts Group, incorporating inwsesnts

in all non-technology industry sectors. He alsalte@PG's Real Estate investing activities. Priojotoing

TPG in 2000, Mr. Davis was President and Chief @teg Officer of Colony Capital, Inc., a private
international real estate-related investment firhicl is co-founded in 1991. He holds a bacheloggake

from Stanford University and an M.B.A. from Harvaddiversity. Mr. Davis currently serves on the litsar

of directors of Northwest Investments, LLC (whishein affiliate of ST Residential), Taylor Morrisdng.,
Univision Communications, Inc., and Catellus Depetent Corporation. He is a member of the Company’s
Human Resources Committee and a member of the Execommittee

Mr. Housenbold became a member of our Board in Niex 2011. Mr. Housenbold has served as the
President and Chief Executive Officer and a dineofdShutterfly, Inc. since January 2005. Priojdining
Shutterfly, Mr. Housenbold served as Vice PresidéBusiness Development and Internet Marketing at
eBay Inc., an online marketplace for the sale afdgoand services, from January 2002 to January.2005
Previously, he was the Vice President & General &d@n, Business-to-Consumer Group at eBay from June
2001 to January 2002, and served as Vice Presidlliengers & Acquisitions at eBay from March 2001 to
June 2001. Mr. Housenbold holds Bachelor of Scieleggees in Economics and Business Administration
from Carnegie Mellon University and a Master of Biess Administration degree from the Harvard Gréel
School of Business Administration. Mr. Housenbaldrently serves on the Board of Directors of Clower
mobile payments company, Digital Chocolate, a @hig of social and mobile games and the Children’s
Discovery Museum of San Jose. He is a member aCtmpan’s Audit Committee
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Name and Age Principal Occupations or Employment

Karl Peterson (41) Mr. Peterson became a member of our Board in Jgra@08 upon consummation of the Acquisition. Mr.
Peterson is a TPG Partner where he serves as #tbdfi&€urope and leads TPG’s investments in trand|
leisure and media & entertainment sectors. HemepiT PG in 2004 after serving as President andfChie
Executive Officer of Hotwire, Inc. Mr. Peterson Iedtwire, Inc. from inception through its sale to
IAC/InterActiveCorp. Before his work at Hotwire,dn Mr. Peterson was a principal of TPG in San
Francisco. He holds a bachelors degree from theddsity of Notre Dame and has previously servethen
board of directors of Univision Communications,.IMr. Peterson currently serves on the boardsretctbrs
of Norwegian Cruise Lines, Sabre Holdings Corporatand Saxo Bank. Mr. Peterson is a member of the
Compan’s Finance Committee and a member of the NominatimjCorporate Governance Commitf

Eric Press (46 Mr. Press became a member of our Board of Diredtodanuary 2008 upon consummation of
Acquisition. Mr. Press has been a Partner at Ag8ltabal Management, LLC since 2007 and has been a
Partner with other Apollo entities since 1998. Mress has significant experience in making and giaga
investments for Apollo. He has nearly 20 yearsxplegience in financing, analyzing, investing in &md
advising public and private companies and theirdbad directors. He holds a bachelors degree imeucs
from Harvard University and a law degree from Ydlgversity. He has previously served on the bodrd o
directors of the Rodolph Sholom School, Innkeefeust USA, Wyndham International, Quality
Distribution, Inc. AEP Industries, and WMC Finar@erp. Mr. Press also serves on the boards of dirgctf
Prestige Cruise Holdings, Inc., Noranda Aluminurffjddon Group Holdings, Inc., Metals USA Holdings
Corp., Verso Paper Corp., WMC Residco, Inc., Ap@mmmercial Real Estate Finance, Inc., and Ath

Marc Rowan (49 Mr. Rowan became a member of our Board of Diredtotkanuary 2008 upon consummation of
Acquisition. Mr. Rowan is a founding partner of AljpoGlobal Management, LLC. He has more than 25
years of experience in financing, analyzing, inegstn and/or advising public and private comparsied
their board of directors. He holds a bachelors eéedrom the University of Pennsylvania and an M_.Brdm
The Wharton School. He has previously served omtizeds of directors of AMC Entertainment, Inc.,
Culligan Water Technologies, Inc., Furniture Brahaternational, Mobile Satellite Ventures, National
Cinemedia, Inc., National Financial Partners, Ihew World Communications, Inc., Quality Distriburti,

Inc., Samsonite Corporation, SkyTerra Communicatime., Unity Media SCA, The Vail Corporation,
Cannondale Bicycle Corp., Riverdale Country Sch@ablecom GmbH, Rare Medium, and Wyndham
International, Inc. Mr. Rowan also serves on thartie of directors of the general partner of AAA Gisey
Limited, Athene Re, Countrywide pic, Youth Renewahd, National Jewish Outreach Program, Inc.,
Undergraduate Executive Board of the Wharton S¢hHoalvan Family Foundation, Wharton Private Equity
Partners, and Norwegian Cruise Lines. He is a mewfthe Company’s Executive Committee, the Finance
Committee and the Human Resources Commi

David B. Sambur (31 Mr. Sambur became a member of our Board of DiredtoNovember 2010. Mr. Sambur joined Apolic
2004. Mr. Sambur has experience in financing, amady investing in and/or advising public and pte/a
companies and their board of directors. Prior toifg Apollo, Mr. Sambur was a member of the Legec
Finance Group of Salomon Smith Barney Inc. Mr. Sanderves on the board of directors of Verso Paper
Corp., Momentive Performance Materials Holdings Btaientive Specialty Chemical, Inc. Mr. Sambur
graduated summa cum laude and Phi Beta Kappa froornjEUniversity with a BA in Economics. He is a
member of the Compa’s Nominating and Corporate Governance Commi

Lynn C. Swann (59 Mr. Swann became a member of our Board in April20@r. Swann has served as president of Swann,
a consulting firm specializing in marketing and eommications since 1976. Mr. Swann was also a
broadcaster for the American Broadcasting Compeam f1976 to 2005. He holds a bachelors degree from
the University of Southern California. Mr. Swans@kerves on the boards of directors of Hershey
Entertainment and Resorts Company, H. J. Heinz @aynand Empower Software Solutions. Mr. Swann
also holds a Series 7 and Series 63 registratieris thember of the Company’s Human Resources
Committee, Nominating and Corporate Governance Citteen and the 162(m) Plan Committ
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Name and Age
Jinlong Wang (54)

Christopher J. Williams (54

Executive Officers*

Name and Age

Principal Occupations or Employment

Mr. Wang became a member of our Board in NovemB&02Mr. Wang is currently Senior Vice Presider
Starbucks Coffee Company and President of StarbAisksPacific region. Prior to his current rolerfrduly
2009 to June 2011, Mr. Wang served as Chairmaraetiay President of Starbucks Greater China;Senior
Vice President-Business Development of Starbuck&e€adnternational Company Limited. From October
2005 to June 2009, Mr. Wang served as Senior Viiesidkent of Starbucks Corporation and President of
Starbucks Greater China during which time he wapaesible for overseeing all facets of Starbuchkivides
in the Greater China market including vision arrdtegy, business development and operations, eim F
January 2003 to August 2005, Mr. Wang served ae Citairman and President of Shanghai Buddies CVS
Co. Ltd., or Buddies, during which time he andte&sm created the 2nd generation of the Chinese
convenience store. Prior to his time at Buddiemfiday 1992 to December 2000, Mr. Wang held various
positions for different divisions of Starbucks corgtion, including Vice President-International Bigss
Development, and Vice President and Director oftfbteks Law and Corporate Affairs department. Before
joining Starbucks, Mr. Wang was an attorney at ®re&ates & Ellis LLP and Milbank, Tweed, Hadley
McCloy LLP. Mr. Wang also serves as director, amain and legal representative at various Starbucks
entities including Starbucks holding and investnearhpanies, joint venture companies, etc. in Stdehu
Greater China region and Starbucks Asia Pacifibredde is a member of the Compi’s Audit Committee

Mr. Williams became a member of our Board in AROI08. Mr. Williams has been Chairman of the Bc

and Chief Executive Officer of Williams Capital Gim, L.P., an investment bank, since 1994, and @fzair

of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Willian€apital Management, LLC, an investment managemen
firm, since 2002. He holds a bachelors degree tamvard University and an M.B.A. from the Dartmouth
College Tuck School of Business. Mr. Williams wadir@ctor of Caesars from November 2003 to January
2008, and was a member of the Audit Committee.Witliams also serves on the boards of directorsTioe
Partnership for New York City, the National Assditia of Securities Professionals, and Wal-Mart &sor

Inc. He is Chairman of the Comp¢ s Audit Committee and is a member of the 162(mh Rlammittee

Positions and Offices Held and Principa
Occupations or Employment During Past 5 Years

Gary W. Loveman (51)

Jonathan S. Halkyard (4

Timothy R. Donovan (56)

Mr. Loveman has been a Director since 2000; Chairafahe Board since January 1, 2005; Chief Exgeulti
Officer since January 2003; President since A2 He has over 13 years of experience in retarketing
and service management, and he previously servad associate professor at the Harvard University
Graduate School of Business. He holds a bachetysed from Wesleyan University and a Ph.D. in
Economics from the Massachusetts Institute of Teldgy. Mr. Loveman also serves as a director ofdbpa
Inc., a designer and marketer of high-quality haggband women’s and men’s accessories, and FedEx
Corporation, a world-wide provider of transportatie-commerce and business services, each of wahich
traded on the New York Stock Exchan

Mr. Halkyard became our Chief Financial OfficerAngust 2006 and Executive Vice President in Noven
2011. He served as Senior Vice President from 2006 to November 2011. He served as Treasurer from
November 2003 through July 2010. He served as a Fiesident from November 2002 to July 2(

Assistant General Manager-Harrah’s Las Vegas froay RD02 to November 2002 and Vice President and
Assistant General Manager-Harrah’s Lake Tahoe fe@ptember 2001 to May 2002. He also serves on the
Board of Directors of Dave & Busters, Ir

Mr. Donovan became our Executive Vice Presidetdamember 2011, General Counsel in April 2009 and
our Chief Regulatory and Compliance Officer in Jayi2011. He served as Senior Vice President framil
2009 to November 2011. Prior to joining us, Mr. Dean served as Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Republic Sesyloe. from December 2008 to March 2009 after a
merger with Allied Waste Industries, Inc., whereseeved in the same capacities from April 2007 to
December 2008. Mr. Donovan earlier served as Exax\Mice President-Strategy & Business Development
and General Counsel of Tenneco, Inc. from July 189@arch 2007. He also serves on the Board of
Directors of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Ir
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Name and Age

Positions and Offices Held and Principa
Occupations or Employment During Past 5 Years

Thomas M. Jenkin (57)

Janis L. Jones (62)

John W. R. Payne (4.

Mary H. Thomas (45)

Steven M. Tight (56)

Mr. Jenkin became our President of Operations imdxttber 2011. He served as Western Division Presiden
from January 2004 through November 2011. He semgeBenior Vice President-Southern Nevada from
November 2002 to December 2003 and Senior Viceidgeisand General Mana-Rio from July 2001 to
November 2002

Ms. Jones became our Executive Vice President afr@enications and Government Relations in November
2011. She served as our Senior Vice President ofmmications and Government Relations from
November 1999 through November 2011. She serv&ta®r Vice President of Communications i
Government Relations from November 1999 to Noven2Bdrl. Prior to joining Caesars, Ms. Jones serg
Mayor of Las Vegas from 1991 to 19¢

Mr. Payne became our President of Enterprise Steedces in July 2011. He served as Central Qini
President from January 2007 through November 2B&flore becoming President of Enterprise Shared
Services and Central Division President, Mr. Pasgreed as Atlantic City Regional President fromuzam
2006 to December 2006, Gulf Coast Regional Presidem June 2005 to January 2006, Senior Vice
President and General Manager-Harrah’s New Orl&ans November 2002 to June 2005 and Senior Vice
President and General Mana-Harrat’'s Lake Charles from March 2000 to November 2(

Ms. Thomas became our Executive Vice President, &tuResources in November 2011. She served as our
Senior Vice President, Human Resources from Jar2@0¢ to November 2011. Prior to joining us, Ms.
Thomas served as Senior Vice President-Human Resodorth America for Allied Domecq Spirits &
Wines from October 2000 to December 2C

Mr. Tight became our President, International Degeient in July 2011. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tigigrve«
as Chief Executive Officer of Aquiva Developmertrfr August 2008 to August 2009 and Chief Executive
Officer of Al Sharq Investment from December 2004ualy 2008. Mr. Tight earlier served as SenioreVic
President of Development for the Walt Disney Conypfaom June 1987 to April 200

* All positions are subject to required regulatory agprovals.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires ourctlims and officers to file with the SEC initial waps of ownership and reports of
changes in ownership of our common stock and teighrus with copies of all forms filed. To our knledge, based solely on review of the
copies of such reports furnished to us and writtgmesentations that no other reports were requiveithg the past fiscal year, all Section 16
(a) filing requirements applicable to our officarsd directors were met.

Code of Ethics

Since 2003, we have had a Code of Business CoaddcEthics, or the Code, that applies to our ChairnChief Executive Officer and
President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Finan@dficer and Chief Accounting Officer and is intexttito qualify as a “code of ethics” as
defined by rules of the Securities and Exchange i@i@sion.

This Code is designed to deter wrongdoing and donpte:

. honest and ethical conduct, including the ethieaddiing of actual or apparent conflicts of inteflestween personal and
professional relationship

. full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkttisure in reports and documents that we file vatrsubmit to, the SEC and in
other public communications made by

. compliance with applicable governmental laws, raled regulations

. prompt internal reporting to an appropriate persopersons identified in the Code of violationglaf Code; ani

. accountability for adherence to the Ca

This Code is available on our websitenatw.caesars.comnder “Investor Relations—Corporate Governance.”
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Statement of Business Principles and Policies

In January 2012, our Board adopted a StatemenusiihBss Principles and Policies that applies tofadur directors, officers and
employees and is intended to comply with the NASDI&EGNng requirement for a code of conduct. Theesteent contains general guidelines
conducting the business of the company consistéhtthe highest standards of business ethics. Waivkthe policies set forth in the staten
will be granted on a case-by-case basis and orgxtimordinary circumstances. Any waivers of thigpes for directors or executive officers
may be made only by our Board and will be promgisclosed to the public. The Statement of Busifeswiples and Policies is available on
our website atvww.caesars.comnder “Investor Relations—Corporate Governance.”

Staggered Board

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, owaBd is divided into three classes. The membeesof class will serve for a staggered,
three-year term. Upon the expiration of the terma ofass of directors, directors in that class héllelected for three-year terms at the annual
meeting of stockholders in the year in which theim expires. The classes are composed as follows:

» Jeffrey Benjamin, Jeffrey T. Housenbold, Lynn C.g88w and Jinlong Wang are Class | directors, whexses will expire at th
fiscal 2013 annual meeting of stockholde

» Kelvin L. Davis, Karl Peterson, Eric Press and Diasambur are Class Il directors, whose terms wjire at the fiscal 2014 annt
meeting of stockholders; ai

» David Bonderman, Gary W. Loveman, Marc Rowan andsBdpher J. Williams are Class Il directors, wasrms will expire at
the fiscal 2015 annual meeting of stockhold

Any additional directorships resulting from an iease in the number of directors will be distribuaedaong the three classes so that, as
nearly as possible, each class will consist of thirel of our directors. This classification of duvard of directors may have the effect of
delaying or preventing changes in control of ounpany.

Committees of Our Board of Directors
Board Committee:

Our Board has six standing committees: an auditoiti®e, a human resources committee, a nominatidgcarporate governance
committee, a finance committee, an executive cotemiind a 162(m) plan committee. The chartersdohn ef these committees are available
on our website atiww.caesars.comnder “Investor Relations—Corporate Governance.”

We have chosen the “controlled compaeyteption under the NASDAQ rules which exemptsrasifcertain requirements, including !
requirements that we have a majority of independesttors on our Board and that we have compesrsatid nominating and corporate
governance committees composed entirely of indegrardirectors. We will, however, remain subjectite requirement that we have an audit
committee composed entirely of independent memitieas any time we cease to be a “controlled conypamder the NASDAQ Rules, the
board of directors will take all action necessargomply with the applicable NASDAQ Rules, inclugiappointing a majority of independent
directors to our Board and establishing certain mittees composed entirely of independent direcgubject to a permitted “phase-in” period.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of Messrs. Christogh&illiams, as chairperson, Jinlong Wang andrdgfl. Housenbold. Our Board has
determined that Mr. Williams qualifies as an “autbtmmittee financial expert” as such term is defiireltem 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K and
that Messrs. Williams, Wang and Housenbold arepeddent as independence is defined in Rule 10AtBeoExchange Act and under the
NASDAQ listing standards. The purpose of the aodihmittee is to oversee our accounting and findmegorting processes and the audit
our financial statements, provide an avenue of camaation among our independent auditors, managgrmeninternal auditors and our
Board, and prepare the audit-related report requisethe SEC to be included in our annual proxyestent or annual report on Form 10-K.
The principal duties and responsibilities of ouditagommittee are to oversee and monitor the fathgw

. preparation of annual audit committee report tinlsuded in our annual proxy stateme
. our financial reporting process and internal cdrgystem;

. the integrity of our financial statemen

. the independence, qualifications and performanaaiofndependent auditc

. the performance of our internal audit function;

. our compliance with legal, ethical and regulatorgtters.
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The audit committee has the power to investigayenaatter brought to its attention within the scapés duties. It also has the authority
to retain counsel and advisors to fulfill its respibilities and duties.

Human Resources Committe

See “—Executive Compensation—Compensation Discossial Analysis—Corporate Governance—Our Human ResstCommittee.

162(m) Plan Committee

Our 162(m) Plan Committee consists of Lynn C. Swamd Christopher J. Williams. The 162(m) Plan Cottewsireviews and approves
compensation that is intended to qualify as “penfance based compensation” under Section 162(niedfhternal Revenue Code. For more
information about our 162(m) Plan Committee, plesese “—Executive Compensation—Compensation Disonsaid Analysis—Corporate
Governance—Our Human Resources Committee.”

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ

Our Board has established a nominating and copa@ternance committee whose members are MessiP&tarson, David B. Samk
and Lynn Swann. The principal duties and respoliti#isi of the nominating and corporate governararamittee are as follows:

. to establish criteria for board and committee mansitip and recommend to our Board proposed nomifoeesection to the Board
and for membership on committees of our Bo

. to make recommendations regarding proposals sugmirbtf our stockholders; al
. to make recommendations to our Board regardingdogavernance matters and practic

We have chosen the “controlled company” exceptioten the NASDAQ rules which exempts us from thesnesment that we have a
nominating and corporate governance committee cesipentirely of independent directors.

Finance Committee

Our finance committee consists of Karl Petersoniad: Rowan. The finance committee has been deddgatersight of our financial
matters, primarily relating to indebtedness anddiring transactions.

Executive Committe

Our executive committee consists of Gary Lovemarghairperson, Kelvin Davis and Marc Rowan. Thecatiege committee has all the
powers of our Board in the management of our bgsiaad affairs, including without limitation, thetablishment of additional committees or
subcommittees of our Board and the delegation thfaxity to such committees and subcommittees, aag aat on behalf of our Board to the
fullest extent permitted under Delaware law andarganizational documents. The executive commgtzges at the pleasure of our Board and
may act by a majority of its members, provided titdeast one member affiliated with TPG and Apatlost approve any action of the
executive committee. This committee and any requémgs or voting mechanics or participants may oomtior be changed once Apollo and
TPG no longer own a controlling interest in us.

Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

Our Board’s leadership structure combines the jpositof chief executive officer and chairman of Hward. We believe this leadership
structure is appropriate due, in part, to our Sposontrol of our common stock and our Board. Bbard has not designated a lead
independent director.

The Board exercises its role in the oversight s ds a whole and through the Audit Committee. Abdit Committee receives regular
reports from the Company’s risk management and tange departments.
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance

Our Human Resources CommitteEhe HRC serves as our compensation committeethdtlspecific purpose of designing, approving,
and evaluating the administration of our compensaplans, policies, and programs. The HRC'’s role isnsure that compensation programs
are designed to encourage high performance, proawsteuntability and align employee interests whith interests of our stockholders. The
HRC is also charged with reviewing and approvirggdbmpensation of the Chief Executive Officer andather senior executives, including
all of the named executive officers. The HRC opgamder our Human Resources Committee ChartetHR Charter was updated on
January 31, 2012. It is reviewed no less than pecgear with any recommended changes presentad t®oard for approval.

The HRC currently consists of Messrs. Kelvin L. BaWarc Rowan and Lynn C. Swann. The qualificaiofthe HRC members stem
from roles as corporate leaders, private investord,board members of several large corporatiomesir knowledge, intelligence, and
experience in company operations, financial anadythusiness operations, and understanding of heapgital management enables the
members to carry out the objectives of the HRC.

In fulfilling its responsibilities, the HRC is etigd to delegate any or all of its responsibilities subcommittee of the HRC or to
specified executives of Caesars, except that it neaylelegate its responsibilities for any mattenere it has determined such compensation is
intended to comply with the exemptions under Secti6(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

In February 2009, our Board formed the 162(m) Rtammittee comprised of two members: Lynn C. Swamh@hristopher J. William:
The purpose of the 162(m) Plan Committee is to adar the Harrah’'s Entertainment, Inc. 2009 SeBixecutive Incentive Plan.

HRC Consultant Relationshipdhe HRC has the authority to engage servicesdd#pendent legal counsel, consultants and subjattel
experts in order to analyze, review, recommendagdfove actions with regard to Board compensaéracutive officer compensation, or
general compensation and plan provisions. We peofad appropriate funding for any such services migsioned by the HRC. These
consultants are used by the HRC for purposes afudixe compensation review, analysis, and recomiatémas. The HRC has engaged and
expects to continue to engage external consulfantie purposes of determining Chief Executivei€if and other senior executive
compensation. However, with respect to 2011 comgténs the HRC did not engage any consultants. attonsultants were engaged by our
Human Resources executives, and these consultapesdiformulate information that was then provittethe HRC. See “Role of outside
consultants in establishing compensation” below.

2011 HRC Activity

During five meetings in 2011, as delineated inklugnan Resources Committee Charter and as outlieledvbthe HRC performed
various tasks in accordance with their assigneitslaind responsibilities, including:

. Chief Executive Officer Compensation: reviewed apgroved corporate goals and objectives relatintggacompensation of tt
Chief Executive Officer, evaluated the performaatthe Chief Executive Officer in light of theseprpved corporate goals and
objectives and relative to peer group, evaluatetleavarded the equity compensation, annual bonudamds under the Project
Renewal Incentive Plan of the Chief Executive Gffibased on such evaluatic

. Other Senior Executive Compensation: set base casagien, annual bonus (other than those executilggeceive bonuses unc
the 2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan), awalsmtlses under the Project Renewal Incentive Pldreguity compensation for
all senior executives, which included an analysiative to our competition peer gro

. Executive Compensation Plans: reviewed status ridws executive compensation plans, programs, @eehtives, including the
Annual Management Bonus Plan, our various deferoadpensation plans, the Revenue Growth Incentige &hd our various
equity plans, and implemented a new bonus plarRtbgct Renewal Incentive Ple

Role of Human Resources CommitfEee HRC has sole authority in setting the matedahpensation of our senior executives, including
base pay, incentive pay (other than those executhag receive bonuses under the 2009 Senior Bxedutentive Plan) and equity awards.
The HRC receives information and input from ourigeaxecutives and outside consultants (as desthbéow) to help establish these mate
compensation determinations, but the HRC is thed finbiter on these decisions.
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Role of Company executives in establishing compiemsaWhen determining the pay levels for the Chief&ive Officer and our other
senior executives, the HRC solicits advice and selffom internal as well as external resourcegriral company resources include the Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Vice President of HunResources and Vice President of Compensatioref@eand Human Resource Systems
and Services. The Executive Vice President of HuResources is responsible for developing and imelgimg our business plans and
strategies for all company-wide human resourcetfans, as well as day-to-day human resources dpagfThe Vice President of
Compensation, Benefits and Human Resource SystedhServices is responsible for the design, execputind daily administration of our
compensation, benefits, and human resources sbkareites operations. Both of these Human Resoascasutives attend the HRC meetings,
at the request of the HRC, and act as a souraggaiiational resources and serve in an advisorgafp The Corporate Secretary is also in
attendance at each of the HRC meetings and oveifseé=gal aspects of our executive compensatidrbanefit plans, updates the HRC
regarding changes in laws and regulations affeainmgcompensation policies, and records the minoitesich HRC meeting. The Chief
Executive Officer also attends HRC meetings.

In 2011, the HRC communicated directly with the eftiixecutive Officer and top Human Resources exessiin order to obtain exterr
market data, industry data, internal pay informmatiadividual and our performance results, and tgslan regulatory issues. The HRC also
delegated specific tasks to the Human Resourcesuxes in order to facilitate the decision makprgcess and to assist in the finalization of
meeting agendas, documentation, and compensatiariaaHRC review and approval.

The Chief Executive Officer annually reviews thefpemance of our senior executives and, based esetheviews, recommends to the
HRC compensation for all senior executives, othanthis own compensation. The HRC, however, haditieetion to modify the
recommendations and makes the final decisions degamaterial compensation to senior executivesuding base pay, incentive pay (other
than those executives that receive bonuses und@09 Senior Executive Incentive Plan), and ecutgrds.

Role of outside consultants in establishing comaiéms. Our internal Human Resources executives regutarfiage outside consultants
to provide advice related to our compensation pEgicStanding consulting relationships are heléh wéveral global consulting firms
specializing in executive compensation, human eapianagement, and board of director pay practl@esng 2011, the services performed
consultants that resulted in information providedte HRC are set forth below:

1. Towers Watson provided us with advice regardingequity compensation plan and other long temeritives on managing our
Long Term Incentive (“LTI") program. Towers Watsalso provided advice in methods of executing arieifg of our outstanding
equity options. Towers Watson also provided extdseachmarking data to compare against current emsgtion policies.

2. Aon Hewitt provided us with advice regarding eguity compensation plan and provided externatberarking data to compare
against our current equity compensation practices.

3. Mercer Human Resources Consulting was retaiggébSavings & Retirement Plan (401k) and Exeeubeferred
Compensation Plan Investment Committees to adkisset Committees on investment management perfoenaranitoring, investment
policy development, and investment manager searbhexer also provides plan design, compliance,apetational consulting for our
qualified defined contribution plan and non-qualifideferred compensation plans.

The consultants provided the information descrideolve to our Human Resources executives to hetpulate information that is then
provided to the HRC. The consultants did not irdevath each other in 2011, as they each work sordte areas of compensation. We eng
Mercer Human Resources Consulting to perform caimguervices for us regarding our 401(k) Plan andExecutive Deferred Compensat
Plans. The fees for these services for 2011 wedé,833 for the 401(k) Plan and $111,210 for thectikee Deferred Compensation Plans.

Objectives of Compensation Programs

Our executive compensation program is designedhee the following objectives:

. Align our rewards strategy with our business obyest, including enhancing stockholder value andasr satisfactior
. Support a culture of strong performance by reway@imployees for result

. Attract, retain and motivate talented and expegenexecutives; ar
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. Foster a shared commitment among our senior exesuby aligning our and their individual goe

These objectives are ever present and are at tbiedot of our compensation philosophy and all cermgation design decisions.

Compensation Philosophy

Our compensation philosophy provides the foundatipon which all of our compensation programs atiét. idur goal is to compensate
our executives with a program that rewards loyakgults-driven individual performance, and dedarato the organization’s overall success.
These principles define our compensation philosapttyare used to align our compensation prograrsomr business objectives. Further,
HRC specifically outlines in its charter the follmg duties and responsibilities in shaping and maémng our compensation philosophy:

. Assess whether the components of executive compensaipport our culture and business gc

. Consider the impact of executive compensation pnogron stockholder

. Consider issues and approve policies regardingfgung compensation for executives for tax deduttippurposes

. Approve the appropriate balance of fixed and vdei@bmpensation; ar

. Approve the appropriate role of performance basebratention based compensati

Our executive compensation programs are structoreglvard our executives for their contributionsghieving our mission of providir
outstanding customer service and attaining stroxantial results, as discussed in more detail befow executive compensation policy is
designed to attract and retain high caliber exgeatand motivate them to superior performancehfeenefit of our stockholders.

Various company policies are in place to shapes@acutive pay plans, including:

. Salaries are linked to competitive factors, intéarpiity, and can be increased as a result of sgbdgob performance

. Our annual bonus programs are competitively basddgeovide incentive compensation based on ounéiiz performance an
customer service score

. Long-term incentives are tied to enhancing stockhol@éuesand to our financial performance;
. Qualifying compensation paid to senior executiweddsigned to maximize tax deductibility, wheregils.

The executive compensation practices are intermledripensate executives primarily on performandt, avlarge portion of potential
compensation at risk. In the past, the HRC hasesg@br executive compensation with two driving piiles in mind: (1) delivering financial
results to our stockholders and (2) ensuring thattastomers receive a great experience whenngsitiir properties. To that end, historically
the HRC has set our senior executive compensatidinas at least 50% of our senior executives’ totahpensation is at risk based on these
objectives.

In 2008, as a result of the Acquisition and thesmtp no public market for our common stock, the HiR®@iated from our long-term
compensation philosophy by awarding a “megagrangtitg award in lieu of annual equity grants thatheal historically awarded like many
other public companies. However, the HRC contirtoagview our equity awards, and has subsequeatpriced existing grants and awarded
supplemental equity grants to select senior exeesiin 2010 and 2011, as more fully described below

Compensation Program Design

The executive compensation program is designedauittexecutive compensation objectives in mindiaramprised of fixed and
variable pay plans, cash and non-cash plans, artiamd long-term payment structures in order togaize and reward executives for their
contributions to our Company today and in the feitur
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The table below reflects our short-term and longatexecutive compensation programs during 2011:

Short-term Long-term

Fixed and Variable Pay Variable Pay

Base Salar Equity Awards

Annual Management Bonus PI Executive Supplemental Savings Pla
2009 Senior Executive Incentive PI Revenue Growth Incentive Pl

Cross Market Bonus Ple Project Renewal Incentive Pl

Customer Service Jackpot Pl
Corporate Expense Jackpot P

The variable compensation to be paid to each ofN&®s for 2011 includes annual bonuses under thrudlnVianagement Bonus Plan,
for Messrs. Jenkin and Payne, and under the SErexutive Incentive Plan for Messrs. Loveman antkyad and Ms. Thomas.
Determination of performance against the goal®efAnnual Management Bonus Plan for Messrs. JaarkinPayne is at the discretion of the
HRC, with input from the Chief Executive Officerermination of performance against the goalsierSenior Executive Incentive Plan for
Messrs. Loveman and Halkyard and Ms. Thomas iseatliscretion of the 162(m) Committee, with inpaini Mr. Loveman for Mr. Halkyard
and Ms. Thomas.

Our variable compensation program also consistseoRevenue Growth Incentive Plan (“RGIP”), thej@ecbRenewal Incentive Plan
(“PRIP"), the Cross Market Bonus Plan, the CustoBewvice Jackpot Plan and the Corporate Expen&pd@gelan. The goals of these plans
are discussed in more detail below. No compens&idne under the RGIP until 2013. Partial payduhe PRIP occurred in 2011 and was
paid to our NEOs. See “—Summary Compensation TaBkyout information for the PRIP in 2011 is sumined below, and individual
performance was taken into account in determiriegsize of the payout, though the payout amoutisied a formula in almost all instanct

In addition, variable compensation also consistsurfequity award grants, which consist of stockarpgrants. During 2011, we granted
stock options to our NEOs. The number of stockarstigranted to our NEOs in 2011 was intended tplsupent the value of the 2008 “mega-
grants”, and also to provide additional future ealith a goal of strengthening employee retentiodividual performance was taken into
account in determining participation and grant size

We periodically assess and evaluate the interrcakaternal competitiveness for all components afexecutive compensation program.
Internally, we look at critical and key positiomsat are directly linked to our profitability andatility. We review our compensation structur
determine whether the appropriate hierarchy of jelis place with appropriate ratios of Chief Ex@éoa Officer compensation to other senior
executive compensation. We believe the appropréie of Chief Executive Officer compensation comgahto other senior executives ranges
from 1.67:1 on the low end to 6:1 on the high eFttkese ratios are merely a reference point for tREHh setting the compensation of our
Chief Executive Officer, and were set after reviegvihe job responsibilities of our Chief Execut®#icer versus other senior executives and
market practice. Internal equity is based on bothngjtative and qualitative job evaluation methadsluding span of control, required skills
and abilities, long-term career growth opportusiée well as relevant comparative financial andfittancial job metrics. Externally,
benchmarks are used to provide guidance and tcowepour ability to attract, retain, and recruietgled senior executives. Due to the highly
competitive nature of the gaming industry, as waslthe competitiveness across industries for &diesgnior executives, it is important for our
compensation programs to provide us the abilitywternally develop executive talent, as well asuigdighly qualified senior executives.

The overall design of the executive compensatioagiam and the elements thereof is a culminatioyeafs of development and
compensation plan design adjustments. Each yegulahs are reviewed for effectiveness, competitgsnand legislative compliance. The
current plans have been put into place with the@amb of the HRC and in support of the principlésh® compensation philosophy and
objectives of our pay practices and policies.

In 2009, our Human Resources department conduatediew of compensation practices of competitorthamgaming industry and our
Human Resources department continued to reviewpddte the analysis in 2010 and 2011. The reviexgrea a range of senior roles and
competitive practices. As a result of this revighve HRC believes that the current compensationrarog@dequately compensates and provides
incentive to our executives. The companies conmisur peer group for the 2009 review and 2010-2{ddate were:

. Ameristar Casinos, Ini
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. Boyd Gaming Corporatio

. Isle of Capri Casino

. Las Vegas Sands Cot

. MGM Resorts Internation:

. Penn National Gaming, In

. Station Casinos, Ini

. Trump Entertainment Resol

. Wynn Resorts, Limite:

In 2011, we engaged Aon Hewitt to provide a revigwequity compensation practices. The review cay@mactices at a broad range of

30 US companies of comparable size and geograpbpedo the US and was not limited to peers irgdmeing industry. The study included
the following companies:

. Marriott International, Inc

. Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, It
. Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, LL
. McDonalc's Corporatior

. Darden Restaurants, Ir

. Yum! Brands, Inc

. CVS Caremark Corporatic

. The Kroger Co

. Home Depo

. Target Corporatiol

. Walgreen Co

. Lowe's Companies, Inc

. SuperValu Inc

. Staples Inc

. Macy's

. The TJX Companies, Incorporat
. J.C. Penney Company, Ir

. The Gap, Inc

. Genuine Parts Compal

. Starbucks Corporatic

. Nordstrom, Inc

. VF Corporatior

. Office Max

. Ross Stores, In

. Auto Zone
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. The Pantry, Inc

. PetSmart, Inc

. Travel Centers of Americ
. Radio Shack Corporatic
. Williams-Sonoma, Inc

Impact of Performance on Compensation

The impact of individual performance on compensaigoreflected in base pay merit increases, settiagannual bonus plan payout
percentages as compared to base pay, and the aof@qtity awards granted. The impact of our finahgerformance and customer
satisfaction is reflected in the calculation of #mual bonus payment and the intrinsic value aftgg@wards. Supporting a performance-based
culture and providing compensation that is diretilked to outstanding individual and overall firgad results is at the core of our
compensation philosophy and human capital managestrategy.

For senior executives, the most significant compgos plans that are directly affected by the attent of performance goals are our
Annual Management Bonus Plan and Senior Executiventive Plan. The bonus plan performance criteaiget percentages, and plan awards
under our Annual Management Bonus Plan for the s@ayments for fiscal 2011 (paid in 2012) werdrs€&ebruary 2011; however, the HRC
continued its past practice of periodically reviegvperformance criteria against plan. The bonus p&formance criteria, target percentages,
and plan awards under the Senior Executive InceriRlan were set in February 2011. The financialsmesments used to determine the bonus
under our Annual Management Bonus Plan are AdjusBd DA and corporate expense (prior to allocatiomur properties). The non-
financial measurement used to determine plan patgnigigustomer satisfaction. The financial measuréhe Senior Executive Incentive Plan
is EBITDA, as more fully described below.

Based on performance goals set by the HRC eachtheae are minimum requirements that must be metder for a bonus plan
payment to be provided under the Annual Managefents Plan. Just as bonus payments are increagetfasmance goals are exceeded,
results falling short of goals reduce or eliminbd@mus payments. In order for participants in ounéal Management Bonus Plan to receive a
bonus, a minimum attainment of 90% of financial andtomer satisfaction scores approved by the HR&L ve met.

Elements of Compensation
Elements of Active Employment Compensation andfi&ene

The total direct compensation mix for each namestetive officer, or NEO, varies. For our Chief Entiee Officer, the allocation for
2011 was 40% for base salary and 60% for annualsdfor the other NEOs in 2011, the average allmtatas 58% for base salary and 42%
for annual bonus. Each compensation element isdenmresl individually and as a component within thiak compensation package. In
reviewing each element of our senior executivegipensation, the HRC reviews peer data, internakatetnal benchmarks, our performance
over the past 12 months (as compared to our intptaa as well as compared to other gaming comguaied the executive’s individual
performance. Prior compensation and wealth accuonlés considered when making decisions regardurgent and future compensation;
however, it has not been a decision point use@poacparticular compensation element.
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Peer Group

We and the HRC review the compensation of our NEg28nst its peer groups. The table below showarieunts paid for our NEOS in
2011, and the Peer Group Median for each catedgargropensation, as measured in 2010, the lateatadaitilable for the peer group.

Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Base Salary Option Awards Compensation All Other Compensation
Peer Peer Peer Peer
Group Group Group Group
Paid($) Median($) Paid($) Median($) Paid($) Median($) Paid($) Median($)
Gary W. Loveman 1,900,00¢ 1,100,000 13,428,35 1,732,60! 3,900,000 2,482,501 1,174,841 333,48
President and Chief Executive
Officer
Jonathan S. Halkyan 700,00( 629,80¢ 663,90( 247,51 555,00( 356,25( 24,40: 32,427
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
Thomas M. Jenkir 1,200,001 1,026,89: 1,487,31. 654,17. 1,350,00! 523,72! 32,04¢ 95,94¢
President of Operatior
John W. R. Payn 1,063,007 1,026,89; 1,267,12! 654,17: 923,05¢ 523,72! 36,08¢ 95,94¢
President of Enterprise Shared
Services
Mary H. Thomas 509,61 392,09° 756,99: 253,02! 539,06: 497,96 15,82¢ — @
Executive Vice President, Human
Resource!

@ Data not available

Mr. Loveman’s base salary is above the median suadréflection of our position as one of the warldirgest gaming companies.
Additionally, several of Mr. Loveman’s peers argrsficant shareholders of their respective companigd, therefore, choose to receive a
reduced base salary; this does not apply to Mrebman. With respect to options awarded, we awardegtime “mega-grants” in 2008
following the Acquisition. These grants were intedds a five year equivalent grant value, as ogptwseur prior practice of annual option
grants. In 2011, we supplemented these grantspes fully described above. Also in 2011, optionsev@mended as described in “2011
Amendments to Equity Plan and Supplemental GrataskSOption Re-Pricing” below, to reduce the exsegdrice of the outstanding 1.5X
performance-based options to $20.09 per share famatstanding time-based options to $20.09, withréduced exercise price of the time-
based options being phased in between a four tgesixperiod, depending on the grant date andribe.'he Option Awards figures in the
above table reflect these two events. With resfgecbn-equity incentive plan compensation, our 2868ior Executive Incentive Plan is a
discretionary program based on our financial peneoice. Bonus amounts are determined at the salestiom of the HRC. With respect to all
other compensation, costs above peer group metkarelated to the costs of Mr. Loveman’s persoralsty, aircraft usage and hotel lodging
expense while in Las Vegas. See Note 5 of “~-Sumr@anppensation Table.”

Messrs. Halkyard's, Jenkin’'s and Payne’s and Mentéds’ base salaries are in line with their peeugmmedian, but where above is a
reflection of our position as one of the world’sgest gaming companies. With respect to optiong@eh we awarded one-time “mega-grants”
in 2008 following the Acquisition. These grants eartended as a five year equivalent grant vals@pgosed to our prior practice of annual
option grants. In 2011, we supplemented these giratgo in 2011, options were amended as desciib&D11 Amendments to Equity Plan
and Supplemental Grants-Stock Option Re-PricingdWweto reduce the exercise price of the outstamdisX performance-based options to
$20.09 per share and of outstanding time-basedmptd $20.09, with the reduced exercise prichefime-based options being phased in
between a four to six year period, depending orgthet date and the price. The Option Awards figumethe above table reflect these two
events. With respect to non-equity incentive plampensation, our 2009 Senior Executive Incentias Bfor Mr. Halkyard and Ms. Thomas)
is a discretionary program based on our finan@alggmance, and the Annual Management Bonus PtarMéssrs. Jenkin and Payne) is a
discretionary program based on our financial penforce, corporate expenses and customer serviceveipent. Bonus amounts are
determined at the sole discretion of the HRC, wipiut from the Chief Executive Officer.
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Base Salary

Salaries are reviewed each year and increasayy,ibige based primarily on an executive’s accorhpisnt of various performance
objectives and salaries of executives holding sinpbsitions within the peer group, or within oongany. Adjustments in base salary may be
attributed to one of the following:

. Merit: increases in base salary as a reward fotingeer exceeding objectives during a review periblae size of the increase
directly tied to pre-defined and weighted objectiygqualitative and quantitative) set forth at tinset of the review period. The
greater the achievement in comparison to the ggelfserally, the greater the incree

. Market: increases in base salary as a result ofrgpetitive market analysis, or in coordination watlong term plan to pay a
position at a more competitive lev

. Promotional: increases in base salary as a rekinitieased responsibilities associated with a ghan position

. Additional Responsibilities: increases in baseryada a result of additional duties, responsileifitior organizational change.
promotion may be, but is not necessarily, invoh

. Retention: increases in base salary as a resalsehior executiV's being recruited by or offered a position by arogmployer

All of the above reasons for base salary adjustsiemtsenior executives must be approved by the ldR€Care not guaranteed as a mi
of practice or in policy.

Our Chief Executive Officer did not receive an e&se in base salary in 2011 due to the generabadorenvironment. In February 20!
we implemented a 5% reduction in base salary faragament employees, including the NEOs. Effectireidry 1, 2010, the 5% base salary
reduction was revoked for management employeeh, thit exception of members of senior managemeeitiding the NEOSs. In July 2010, t
HRC retracted the 5% salary reduction in placariembers of our senior management, including the §B@h the exception of our Chief
Executive Officer. In 2011, the HRC approved insesafor Mr. Payne for taking on additional respbitiies and for Ms. Thomas as a merit
increase.

2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan

In December 2008, the Harrah’s Entertainment, 2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan was approweth® HRC and our sole voting
stockholder, to be effective January 1, 2009. Twards granted pursuant to the Senior Executiventiiee Plan are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation under Section 168#(thg Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameritlegibility to participate in the
Senior Executive Incentive Plan is limited to semrecutives of Caesars and its subsidiaries wh@iaat some future date may be, subject to
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended. The 162(m) Plan Committee selecteSahi®r Executive Incentive Plan
participants for 2011 in February 2011. In Februz0$1, the Senior Executive Incentive Ptapérformance goals are based upon our EBI
The 162(m) Plan Committee set the bonus targetdoh participant of the Senior Executive IncenBan at 0.5% of the Company’s EBITDA
for 2011. Subject to the foregoing and to the maximaward limitations, no awards will be paid foygeriod unless we achieve positive
EBITDA.

Messrs. Loveman and Halkyard, Ms. Thomas and ceothier executive officers participated in the $elxecutive Incentive Plan for
the year 2011. As noted above, the 162(m) Plan Gteerhas authority to reduce bonuses earned uhde$enior Executive Incentive Plan
and also has authority to approve bonuses out$ittesGenior Executive Incentive Plan to rewardeoexiges for special personal achievement.

It has been the 162(m) Plan Committee’s practicdetrease the bonus target of 0.5% of EBITDA bgnegice to the achieved
performance goals and bonus formulas used undértheal Management Bonus Plan discussed below.

Senior Executive Incentive Plan bonuses were awlai@eur eligible NEOs in 2012 for 2011 performar$8ee the Summary
Compensation Table.

Annual Management Bonus Plan

The Annual Management Bonus Plan (the “Bonus Plardyides the opportunity for our senior executigad other participants to earn
an annual bonus payment based on meeting corgaratesial and non-financial goals. These goalssateat the beginning of each fiscal year
by the HRC. Beginning in 2009, the HRC approvetha@nge to the Bonus Plan that allowed the HRC tsedfinancial goals on a semi-annual
basis if external economic conditions indicated the original goals did not correctly anticipatewvaments of the broader economy. Under the
Bonus Plan, the goals can pertain to operatingne;@re-tax earnings, return on sales, earningsh@ee, a combination of objectives, or
another objective approved by the HRC. For
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Messrs. Jenkin and Payne, who participated in thrauB Plan for 2011, the objectives also includeusidid EBITDA, customer satisfaction ¢
growth of cross property play for their respectin@sions. The goals may change annually to supmarshort or long-term business
objectives. For the 2011 plan year, the Bonus Blgnal consisted of a combination of Adjusted EBATBorporate expense, and customer
satisfaction improvement. Although officers thattjgpated in the Senior Executive Incentive Plamiglg 2011 do not participate in the Bonus
Plan, goals are set for all officers under thisiplehe measurement used to gauge the attainméme¢sdé goals is called the “corporate score.”

For 2011, financial goals are comprised of thepaisge measures, representing up to 90% of theimpscore.

. EBITDA is a common measure of company performandbe gaming industry and as a basis for valuaifogaming companie
and, in the case of Adjusted EBITDA, as a measfismmpliance with certain debt covenants. AdjusE®&ITDA comprised 70% ¢
the corporate score for 2011, and the target wiaat $4,987 million for 2011

. Corporate Expense: In the current economic envigrtpit is important for us to manage expensesp@ate expense, prior to the
allocation of expenses to our operations, compr&¥d of the corporate score for 2011, and the tavgs set at $459 million for
2011. The figure used for this corporate expenggetas not a GAAP financial measure and does aotspond to the corporate
expense line item in our financial stateme

Non-financial goals consist of one key measurenmrgtomer satisfaction. We believe we distinguistselves from competitors by
providing excellent customer service. Supportingmoperty team members who have daily interaotith our external customers is critical
to maintaining and improving guest service. Custosa¢isfaction is measured by surveys of our lgyptbgram (“Total Rewards”) customers
taken by a third party. These surveys are takerklyeeross a broad spectrum of customers. Custoarerasked to rate our casinos’
performance using a simple A-B-C4brating scale. The survey questions focus ondtighelpful and wait time in key operating areas;lsa:
beverage service, slot services, Total Reward$j@aservices and hotel operation services. Eaduptasino properties works against an
annual baseline defined by a composite of theifoperance in these key operating areas from preweass. Customer satisfaction comprised
10% of the corporate score for 2011, and the taxmgstset at a 3% change from non-A to A score20a4.

Bonus plan payments would not be paid if AdjustBdTIDA was less than 90% of target, if corporateenge exceeded 10% or more of
target or if there was less than a one percerttishifon-A to A customer satisfaction scores.

After the corporate score has been determinednasmatrix approved by the HRC provides for bomasunts of participating executi
officers and other participants that will resultlie payment of a specified percentage of thegpatnt’s salary if the target objective is
achieved. This percentage of salary is adjustecambwr downward based upon the level of corporadeesachievement.

After the end of the fiscal year, the Chief ExeeaitDfficer assesses our performance against thadial and customer satisfaction tar
set by the HRC. Taking into account our performaagainst the targets set by the HRC, the Chief &kez Officer will develop and
recommend a performance score of 0 to 1.5 to th€ HR

The HRC has the authority under the Bonus Plamjusaany goal or bonus points with respect to eee officers, including no
payment under the Bonus Plan. These decisionsijective and based generally on a review of theunoistances affecting results to
determine if any events were unusual or unforeseen.

The 2011 corporate score of 95 was approved bABR@ in February 2012. Divisional Presidents maydmmuses based on the
performance of the properties in their divisionssee Summary Compensation Table.

In February 2011, the HRC approved a change t@tmeis Plan to include a cross market play compofoemon-corporate employees,
including Messrs. Jenkin and Payne.

In February 2011, the HRC approved raising the @m@te score ceiling from a maximum of 150 point& 1% of EBITDA plan
performance to 200 points at 120% of EBITDA plarnf@enance. This change was made to reward managdenmitdnincreased bonus
opportunity for an extraordinary performance aggian. As a result of the change, management aealeive a maximum of up to three times
their target bonus percentage of annual salanaimum points are achieved under the Bonus Plan.

Messrs. Jenkin and Payne participated in the B&taus for the year 2011. Bonuses under the Bonuswsie awarded to Messrs. Jenkin
and Payne by the HRC in February 2012. In additismoted above, under the Senior Executive Inoeitian, performance goals for Messrs.
Loveman and Halkyard and Ms. Thomas were assegstéetHRC for 2011 in February 2012 and the 16Ztap Committee reviewed the
HRC'’s assessments for purposes of setting bonusts the Senior Executive Incentive Plan.
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In February 2012, the HRC approved changes to tmu8Plan, eliminating the corporate expense coedior 2012.

Cross Market Bonus Plan

In February 2011, the HRC approved a new incemiga for all management (including the NEOs) desijto promote cooperation
between our properties to increase customer \igit@cross our properties. The Cross Market Borais B intended as a supplement to the
Bonus Plan for 2011, and is applicable only to eygés who do not earn a bonus under the Bonus Péah. of our properties has a cross
market target equivalent to the cross market targetponent of the Bonus Plan applicable to non-amate employees, including Messrs.
Jenkin and Payne. However, while the cross maidkeponent of the Bonus Plan is subject to the aei@nt of minimum EBITDA plan
results, the Cross Market Bonus Plan is indepenafdiitiancial results at properties. The combingédmt of the Bonus Plan and the Cross
Market Bonus Plan was to provide management withritive to promote cross market play across oureecdmpany, irrespective of property
financial performance. In February 2012, the HRCidld not to renew the plan for 2012.

Customer Service Jackpot Plan

In February 2011, the HRC approved a new incergiga for all management (including the NEOs) desijto incent greatly enhanced
performance against our customer service metrie.Jilnstomer Service Jackpot functions as a suppletméme Bonus Plan in 2011, and is
measured against the same customer service metitie &8onus Plan. In order to qualify for an awamder the Customer Service Jackpot, a
property must have a minimum positive shift of foite A customer scores of 6.0%, which is doubleghit that earns the maximum custol
service bonus points in the Bonus Plan, and weidenthe Customer Service Jackpot to be an awarthéachievement of two yearvorth o
maximum service performance in a single year. Pagbthe Customer Service Jackpot is targeted abbéh employee’s base salary for all
management.

Corporate Expense Jackpot Plan

In February 2011, the HRC approved a new incertiga for all corporate management (including theddfEdesigned to incent our
corporate employees to pursue aggressive costggavihe Corporate Expense Jackpot functions appesuent to the Bonus Plan, and is
measured against the same corporate expense atriche Bonus Plan for corporate employees.deraio qualify for an award under the
Corporate Expense Jackpot, the final corporateresgégure for 2011 must come in 13% below thedghogrporate expense figure for 2011.
We consider cost savings to be an integral objedti2011, and believes the Corporate Expense daokgents our corporate employees to be
aggressive in order to reach this greatly enhasegihgs target. Payout of the Corporate Expendgdacs targeted at 5% of an employee’s
base salary for all management. In February 202HRC decided not to renew the plan for 2012.

Revenue Growth Incentive Plan

In February 2010, the HRC approved a new medium-feevenue Growth Incentive Plan, or RGIP, for denlaembers of management
(including the NEOSs) designed to promote incremaetzenue growth over a two year period (beginringlanuary 1, 2010) and bridge the
between our current compensation (salary, bonugflig) and longer-term compensation offering (‘iggplan”). The RGIP is intended as a
special, one-time bonus program for the purpog@@hoting topline revenue growth in excess of our currently éasted revenue growth oy
the two year bonus period. The HRC believes that akveral years of promoting cost cutting itasvran appropriate time to focus on revenue
growth. The RGIP will also provide a liquid mediuerm incentive program, as it will allow managemand NEOs the ability to earn cash in
the medium-term, as opposed to our equity plan wisidonger term and currently not liquid.

Senior executives and other management employeedigible to participate in the RGIP; paymentd Wé# determined and paid in early
2013. Payout of the RGIP is contingent on achieverokrevenue growth at distinct thresholds abaweent forecasts. To ensure the RGIP
value added program, payout of the bonus is albesuto the meeting of a minimum EBITDA margingbhold equal to or greater than the
final consolidated EBITDA margin for the 2009 cadanyear.

For 2010 and 2011, the sole goal of the RGIP isvgran revenue above the rate forecasted by oupemmy Incremental Revenue
Growth is defined as an increase in the percerdigevenue growth year over year above the growetih forecasted by our company. For the
RGIP, payout levels of the bonus have been séreg incremental growth thresholds: 0.75%, 1.0%l1aB#&6 incremental revenue growth.
These thresholds were set by looking at past groatds and also our current five year predictions.

119



Table of Contents

Achievement of 0.75% incremental revenue growthr dive bonus period results in a payout of the R&IfPe target payout rate. The
1.0% and 1.5% incremental growth levels are “stregmals for the program and result in payouts jpteamium percentage above the target
payout. For our senior executives and officerspidngout premiums are 125% and 150% of annual sakespectively.

Subject to the discretion of the HRC, the revennggof the RGIP program will be subject to adjiestirbased on changes in the general
economy. The plan review will occur in a mannerikimo that included as part of the Annual ManagatrBonus Plan in which both positive
and negative changes in the economy are takermgumunt. The HRC will have the final determinat@nthe financial goals, and any changes
to such goals, under the RGIP.

In July 2010, the HRC determined to modify the tipegiod for the RGIP. The RGIP has been shifteddod six months, and will now
run during the two year period from July 1, 201étlgh June 30, 2012. The HRC determined to shefRBIP forward by six months because
(a) the plan was not rolled out to employees Wititch 2010 and (b) the continuing economic downtartihe gaming industry in the first half
of 2010.

Project Renewal Incentive Plan

In 2011, the HRC adopted the Project Renewal Imeeiftlan, or PRIP, a plan designed to incent canéeship to undertake the cost
savings initiatives proposed as part of a compreilierprogram to streamline our operations thathvasched in the fourth quarter of 2010.
PRIP expires on March 1, 2013.

PRIP provides payouts when pre-determined cumalativn rate savings milestones are achieved andtaiaed for at least three
consecutive months, as certified by the HRC. PRtRides four savings milestones in the amounts603nillion, $200 million, $300 million
and $400 million. Payout under PRIP is further eabjo the maintenance of a minimum EBITDA thredhmér $100 million of cost savings to
ensure that actual savings flow through to EBITDA.

The maximum payout any participant can receive dhaseachieving each of the four savings milestosesjual to two times the
participant’s annual bonus target. Upon achievertaamd maintenance) of each of (i) the first andadcsavings milestones ($100 million and
$200 million, respectively) 33% of the annual botarget is payable, and (ii) the third and fourtiestones ($300 million and $400 million,
respectively) 67% of the annual bonus target id.d2articipants must be employed as of the day $Emare paid in order to be eligible to
receive payment.

The HRC approved that the first $100 million ruteraavings milestone has been achieved, sustained feast three months, and tha
EBITDA governor has been achieved as well. Accaglyinon July 27, 2011, the HRC approved the pajouthe first milestone, aggregating
$7.75 million for all eligible employees, includirngir NEOs, who received the following amounts parguo the Plan and as approved by the
HRC: Gary W. Loveman $1,000,000; Thomas M. JenBid000; John W. R. Payne $256,250; Jonathan Ryatal $155,000; and Mary H.
Thomas $125,962. See “—Summary Compensation Tételdditional information.

The Senior Executive Incentive Plan, the Bonus Rte Cross Market Bonus Plan, the Customer Sedéackpot Plan, the Corporate
Expense Jackpot Plan, the Revenue Growth InceRtave and the Project Renewal Incentive Plan aetisnary, including making no
payments under the plans. As indicated above, thestMarket Bonus Plan and the Corporate ExpercdgpdaPlan are no longer in effect for
2012.

Equity Awards
Equity Plan

In February 2008, the Board approved and adopteéitrahs Entertainment Management Equity Incentive Plathe Equity Plan. Th
purpose of the Equity Plan is to promote our lamnt financial interests and growth by attracting egtaining management and other
personnel and key service providers with the trgjnexperience and ability to enable them to magkebestantial contribution to the success of
our business; to motivate management personneldanaof growttrelated incentives to achieve long range goals;tarfidrther the alignmer
of interests of participants with those of our &twalders. Except for options awarded under a preskar plan that were rolled over into the
Company by Mr. Loveman, all awards under prior plasere exchanged in the Acquisition.

The Equity Plan provides for the grant of awardsd thill vest based on continued service only (“tibesed options”) and those that also
require attainment of performance criteria (“penfiance-based options”). The performahesed options vest based on investment returnr
stockholders following the Acquisition. Originallgne-half of the performance based options becdigible to vest upon the stockholders
receiving cash proceeds equal to two times theowarhinvested in the Acquisition, (the “2X optiopsdnd one-half of the performance-based
options become eligible to vest upon the stockhsldeceiving cash proceeds equal to three timésaheunt invested, (the “3X options”).
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The combination of time and performance basedvgsti the options is designed to compensate exasufor long term commitment to
us, while motivating sustained increases in owaritial performance and helping ensure the stockiheldave received an appropriate retur
their invested capital.

Amendments to Equity Plan and Supplemental Grants

On February 23, 2010, the HRC adopted an amendiméiné Equity Plan. The amendment provided fomanease in the available
number of shares of common stock for which optioy be granted up to 7,955,573 shares.

The amendment also revised the vesting hurdlegdidormance-based options under the Equity Plavidusly, performance-based
options vested upon a 2X return and upon a 3Xmeftine triggers were revised to 1.5X and 2.5X, eeipely. In addition, a pro rata portion
the 2.5X options will vest if funds affiliated withe Sponsors achieve a return on their investtinats greater than 2.0X, but less than 2.5X.
The pro rata portion will increase on a straighé Ibasis from zero to a participant’s total numidfe2.5X options depending upon the level of
returns that funds affiliated with the Sponsordizesbetween 2.0X and 2.5X.

In addition, in March 2010, the HRC approved suppatal equity grants for all of the NEOs and certather management in an effor
enhance the value of grants under the Equity AHlaa.supplemental grants contained solely time-degptions, vesting over 5 years; however,
there is no vesting until after the 2nd annivergemyn the grant date, and thereafter the optiorss &e25% per year.

In March 2010, the HRC approved the following seppéntal grants to the NEOs:

Number of Shares

) of Number of Shares of
Executive Time Based Option: Performance Based Option
Gary W. Lovemat 797,83¢ —
Thomas M. Jenkil 141,41 —
John W. R. Payn 89,71% —
Jonathan S. Halkyal 92,92: —
Mary H. Thomas 30,80: —

2011 Amendments to Equity Plan and Supplementait&ra
Stock Option Re-Pricing

In July 2011, the HRC approved amendments to thétfEglan and to outstanding stock options whicheagranted pursuant to the
Equity Plan.

As a result of the July 2011 amendments, 2.5X perdmce-based options were revised to 2.0X, arteiBponsors and their co-investors
realize a return of less than 2.0X but equal tgreater than 1.75X, a pro rata portion of suchgrerhnce-based options will vest based on
straight line interpolation.

In addition, the exercise price for all outstandiimge-based options was reduced to $20.09 per sharethetreduced exercise price be
phased in between a four to six year period, deipgrah grant date, as set forth in each individwedrd agreement. Prior to the phase in, any
vested options may still be exercised at the oaigéxercise price, subject to the terms of the gdRlian. The exercise price of outstanding 1
performance-based options was also reduced to $2@i0share. The exercise price for the outstan2liby, now 2.0X, performance options
was not reduced to $20.09 per share.

The stock option re-pricing and the reduction @f ¥lesting hurdles for performance-based optiong Wweended to strengthen employee
retention and provide our NEOs with equity basedgensation in line with their peer group.

2011 Supplemental Grant

In 2011, we engaged Aon Hewitt to review equity pemsation practices at a broad range of compah&mdar size and geographic
scope. This review indicated that realizable grahties to our senior executives over the perio2088-2015 were expected to significantly lag
behind our peers. In order to mitigate this differe and ensure employee retention, Management reeaded to the HRC a supplemental
option grant to a select group of employees, inolgithe NEOs.
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On November 29, 2011, the HRC approved an amendimentr Management Equity Incentive Plan providiogan increase in the
number of shares of our common stock for which timased options may be granted from 5,516,446 #367/49, which in turn increased the
number of shares under the Plan from 7,955,5735823876.

In addition, in November 2011 the HRC approved $emppental equity grants for all of the NEOs andaierbther key members of senior
leadership. Except for the CEO, the supplementattgrcontained solely time-vested options, vesiirgy 4 years; Mr. Loveman’s
supplemental grant included time-vested optionsting over 4 years, and performance-based optidthsand X vesting hurdle.

The size of the supplemental grants was intendgdaide our NEOs with equity based compensatidmewith their peer group.
Specifically, for each NEO the supplemental graaswetermined by using a participant’s then-curtatiad option value and increasing the
total to meet the 2008-2015 benchmark value deeeldgy our human resources executives in conjungtitmAon Hewitt. In some cases,
individual performance was also taken into account.

In November 2011, the HRC approved the followingmeamental grants to the NEOSs:

Number of Shares o
Number of Shares of

Performance(lB;ased Option:

Executive Time Based Option:

Gary W. Lovemar 580,66° 290,33«
Thomas M. Jenkil 66,35¢ —
John W. R. Payn 68,63" —
Jonathan S. Halkyal 8,71( —
Mary H. Thomas 55,71 —

(1) These performance options vest if TPG and Apollob@l Management, LLC and its affiliates achieveréttarn of capital invested in tl
Company at a $57.41 stock prit

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with ebour NEOs. The HRC and the Board put theseesgeats in place in order to
attract and retain the highest quality executivgdeast annually, our compensation departmeneresiour termination and change in control
arrangements against peer companies as partreliesv of our overall compensation package for akiges to ensure that it is competitive.
The compensation department’s analysis is perfordoyagviewing each of our executives under sevabrs, including the individual’s role
in the organization, the importance of the indidbito the organization, the ability to replace #xecutive if he/she were to leave the
organization, and the level of competitiveneshigmarketplace to replace an executive while mirimgi the affect to our on-going business.
The compensation department presents its assesgmbptHRC for feedback. The HRC reviews the imfation and determines if changes are
necessary to the termination and severance packéges executives.

Policy Concerning Tax Deductibility

The HRC's policy with respect to qualifying compatien paid to its executive officers for tax dedlitity purposes is that executive
compensation plans will generally be designed ammémented to maximize tax deductibility. Howevesn-deductible compensation may be
paid to executive officers when necessary for cditipe reasons or to attract or retain a key exigeybr where achieving maximum tax
deductibility would be considered disadvantageousur best interests. Our Senior Executive Incerfiilan is designed to comply with
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code soghatial bonuses paid under these plans, if anybeiéligible for deduction by us. See “-
Senior Executive Incentive Plan.”

Stock Ownership Requirements
As a company that only recently listed its equégwgities on NASDAQ, we do not have a policy regragdstock ownership.

Chief Executive Officer's Compensation

The objectives of our Chief Executive Officer appeoved annually by the HRC. These objectives evisited each year. The objectives
for 2011 were to:

. achieve 2011 Plan revenue, cash flow margin anidity, and generally position the company to bérfedm a rebound
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. optimize capital structure

. establish a casino, online and -gaming presence in Asi

. develop the company as the leader online for rakk“for fun” gaming;
. stimulate Las Vegas growth and Atlantic City reNitation; and

. develop, motivate and incent our employe

The HRC’s assessment of the Chief Executive Ofigaerformance is based on a subjective or objectview (as applicable) of
performance against these objectives. Specific ltgiay be assigned to particular objectives atltberetion of the HRC, and those
weightings, or more focused objectives, are comgaiad to the Chief Executive Officer at the time ¢foals are set forth. However, no
specific weights were set against the Chief Exgeudfficer’s objectives in 2011.

As Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Loveman’s base salaas based on his performance, his responsésiland the compensation levels for
comparable positions in other companies in the italtp, gaming, entertainment, restaurant andir@tdustries. Merit increases in his salary
are a subjective determination by the HRC, whicteldts decision upon his prior year’'s performarasus his objectives as well as upon an
analysis of competitive salaries. Although basargahcreases are subjective, the HRC reviews Mvelmans base salary against peer grol
his roles and responsibilities within the compdrig,contribution to our success and his indivicuefformance against his stated objective
criteria.

The 162(m) Plan Committee used the Senior Execliisentive Plan to determine the Chief Executiveidef’s bonus for 2011. Under
this plan, bonus target is set as a percentag8GfBA, as more fully described above. The 162(mgrPCommittee has discretion to reduce
bonuses (as permitted by Section 162(m) of thernatdRevenue Code), and it is the normal practfidee 162(m) Plan Committee to reduce
the Chief Executive Officer's bonus by referencéhte achievement of performance goals and bonasulais used under the Annual
Management Bonus Plan. In February 2012, the 16P(ar) Committee made the determination to awarchaidto the Chief Executive
Officer for 2011 performance. See “-Summary Compéas Table.”

Mr. Loveman'’s salary, bonus and equity awards diffem those of our other named executive offigersrder to (a) keep
Mr. Loveman’s compensation in line with Chief Ex#éea Officer’s of other gaming, hotel and lodgingnepanies, as well as other consumer
oriented companies, (b) compensate him for theaslthe leader and public face of our company endampensate him for attracting and
retaining our senior executive team.

Personal Benefits and Perquisites

During 2011, all of our NEOs received a financialinseling reimbursement benefit, and were elidgiblparticipate in our deferred
compensation plan, the Executive Supplemental §avitan I, or ESSP I, and our health and welbsreefit plans, including the Caesars
Savings and Retirement Plan, or S&RP. In previeaey, the NEOs also received matching amounts fiopursuant to the plan documents,
which are the same percentages of salary for gll@mes eligible for these plans. However, in Fabyi2009, Company matching was
suspended for the S&RP and ESSP Il. A modified hiagcprogram with a $600 annual cap was approvettiéy1RC in November 2011 and
will be reinstated for the S&RP exclusively in A@2D12.

Additionally, we provided for Mr. Loveman’s personge of company aircraft at certain times durifd 2. Lodging and certain other
expenses were incurred by Mr. Loveman for use dunis Las Vegas-based residence. We also proviladity for Mr. Loveman and his
family. The decision to provide Mr. Loveman withethersonal security benefit was prompted by theltsesf an analysis provided by an
independent professional consulting firm specializin executive safety and security. Based on thesdts, the HRC approved personal
security services to Mr. Loveman and his family.

These perquisites are more fully described in “-Biary Compensation Table.”

Our use of perquisites as an element of compemsitiamited. We do not view perquisites as a digant element of our comprehensive
compensation structure, but we do believe that taeybe used in conjunction with base salary taettmotivate and retain individuals in a
competitive environment.

Under our group life insurance program, senior atiges, including the NEOSs, are eligible for an éoypr provided life insurance
benefit equal to three times their base annuahgalith a maximum benefit of $5.0 million. Mr. Leman is provided with a life insurance
benefit of $3.5 million under our group life insaoc® program and additional life insurance poligih a benefit of $2.5 million. In addition to
group long term disability benefits, which are dafalie to all benefits eligible employees, the Cliigécutive Officer and all other NEOs are
covered under a Company-paid individual long-tersalility insurance policy paying an additional %) monthly benefit and Mr. Loveman
receives a supplemental short-term disability olith a $10,000 monthly benefit.
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Elements of Post-Employment Compensation and Bentfi
Employment Arrangements

Chief Executive OfficeMr. Loveman entered into an employment agreemedaomiary 28, 2008 (as amended to date), which gheevi
that Mr. Loveman will serve as Chief Executive ©fi and President until January 28, 2013, anddheeaent shall extend for additional one
year terms thereafter unless terminated by us oiLblreman at least 60 days prior to each annivetsareafter. Additionally, pursuant to t
agreement, Mr. Loveman received a grant of stot¢lonp pursuant to the Equity Plan (described ahdve) Loveman’s annual salary is
$2,000,000, subject to annual merit reviews byHRE. In February 2009, Mr. Loveman agreed to rechisealary to $1,900,000 as part of a
broader management reduction of salaries, andtéetbygi retraction of the reduction of base salarytie other NEOs in July 2010,

Mr. Loveman’s annual salary remains at $1,900,000.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Loveraamiitled to participate in the annual incentieals compensation programs wi
minimum target bonus of 1.5 times his annual salaraddition, the agreement entitles Mr. Lovenmaan individual long-term disability
policy with a $180,000 annual maximum benefit andralividual long term disability excess policy ian additional $540,000 annual
maximum benefit, subject to insurability.

Mr. Loveman is also entitled to life insurance watldeath benefit of at least three times the greditieis base annual salary and
$2,000,000. In addition, Mr. Loveman is entitleditancial counseling reimbursed by us, up to $80,0er year. The agreement also requires
Mr. Loveman, for security purposes, to use ourmraftcor other private aircraft, for himself and iamily for business and personal travel. The
agreement also provides that Mr. Loveman will bevjzted with accommodations while performing hisielsiin Las Vegas, and we will also
pay Mr. Loveman a gross-up payment for any taxesried for such accommodations. Our Board can teataithe employment agreement
with or without cause, and Mr. Loveman can resargny time.

If we terminate the agreement without Cause, dirifLoveman resigns for Good Reason:

. Mr. Loveman will be paid, in equal installments p@ee24 month period, two times the greater of laisebannual salary al
$2,000,000 plus his target boni

. Mr. Loveman will continue to have the right to peigate in our benefit plans (other than bonus land-term incentive plans) for
period of two years beginning on the date of teation; anc

. his prc-rated bonus (at target) for the year of terminat

“Cause” is defined under the agreement as:

(i) the willful failure of Mr. Loveman to substantialperform his duties with us or to follow a lawfe@lasonable directive from o
Board (other than any such failure resulting frermaipacity due to physical or mental illness), adtaritten demand for substantial
performance is delivered to Mr. Loveman by our Boahich specifically identifies the manner in whigtir Board believes that
Mr. Loveman has willfully not substantially perfoech his duties or has willfully failed to follow awful reasonable directive and
Mr. Loveman is given a reasonable opportunity (oatxceed thirty (30) days) to cure any such failifrcurable

(i) (a) any willful act of fraud, or embezzlement oeftrby Mr. Loveman, in each case, in connectiomis duties under tr
employment agreement or in the course of his enmpéoyt or (b) Mr. Loveman’s admission in any courtconviction of, or plea of
nolo contendere to, a felony that could reasonbblgxpected to result in damage to our businesspoitation.

(iii) Mr. Loveman being found unsuitable for or havingaaing license denied or revoked by the gaminglaggiy authorities ir
Arizona, California, Colorado, lllinois, Indianawa, Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, NbyaNew Jersey, New York, or
North Carolina

(iv) Mr. Loveman'’s willful and material violationfpor noncompliance with, any securities laws ocktexchange listing rules,
including, without limitation, the Sarbanes-OxlegtAf 2002, provided that such violation or noncdiemce resulted in material
economic harm to us, or (y) a final judicial orderdetermination prohibiting Mr. Loveman from sewias an officer pursuant to
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 or the ruleb®MNew York Stock Exchang
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“Good Reason” is defined under the agreement dhowi Mr. Loveman’s express written consent, theuoence of any of the following
circumstances unless, in the case of paragraph&jaje), (f), or (g), such circumstances aréyfabrrected prior to the date of termination
specified in the written notice given by Mr. Lovemaotifying us of his resignation for Good Reason:

(&) The assignment to Mr. Loveman of any dutiesemity inconsistent with his status as our Chigéé&utive Officer or a material
adverse alteration in the nature or status ofdspansibilities, duties or authorit

(b) The requirement that Mr. Loveman report to anyatheiothan our Boarc
(c) The failure of Mr. Loveman to be electec-elected as a member of our Boe

(d) A reduction by us in Mr. Loveman’s annual baatary of $2,000,000.00, as the same may be ireddasm time to time as
approved by the HR(

(e) The relocation of our principal executive officesrh Las Vegas, Nevada, to a location more thay f§0) miles from such office:
or our requiring Mr. Loveman either: (i) to be basaywhere other than the location of our princgféites in Las Vegas (except
for required travel on our business to an extehs&ntially consistent with Mr. Loveman’s preseunsiness travel obligations); or
(ii) to relocate his primary residence from BostorLas Vegas

()  Our failure to pay to Mr. Loveman any material pamtof his current compensation, except pursuaat¢compensation defert
elected by Mr. Loveman, or to pay to Mr. Lovemaw araterial portion of an installment of deferredngensation under any of c
deferred compensation programs within thirty (3@yslof the date such compensation is 1

(g) Ouir failure to continue in effect compensatpdans (and Mr. Loveman’s participation in such cemgation plans) which provide
benefits on an aggregate basis that are not miatdess favorable, both in terms of the amounbefefits provided and the level of
Mr. Loveman'’s participation relative to other peipants at Mr. Loveman’s grade level, to those Imclv Mr. Loveman is
participating as of January 28, 20!

(h) Our failure to continue to provide Mr. Lovemaith benefits substantially similar to those enjdysy him under the Savings and
Retirement Plan and the life insurance, medical|theand accident, and disability plans in which Msveman is participating as
January 28, 2008, the taking of any action by uglvivould directly or indirectly materially reduemy of such benefits or deprive
Mr. Loveman of any material fringe benefit enjoymdMr. Loveman as of January 28, 2008, except awifted by the employme
agreement

(i) Delivery of a written Notice of our n-renewal of the employment agreement by us to Mvelngan; ol
() Our failure to obtain a satisfactory agreement faomg successor to assume and agree to perfornmjpleyment agreemer

Mr. Loveman waived his right to terminate his enyph@nt agreement for Good Reason in connection thélb% reduction of his base
annual salary implemented in February 2009.

If we terminate the agreement for Cause or Mr. lnoae terminates without Good Reason, Mr. Lovemaalarg will end as of the
termination date.

After his employment with us terminates for anys@g Mr. Loveman will be entitled to participatedar group health insurance plans
applicable to corporate executives, including fgrodverage, for his lifetime. We will pay 80% oftpremium on an after-tax basis for this
coverage, and Mr. Loveman will incur imputed taxeainicome equal to the amount of our payment. Whern_biveman becomes eligible for
Medicare coverage, our group health insurance \plfbecome secondary, and Mr. Loveman will be iblig for the same group health bene
as normally provided to our other retired managedrdégectors. He will incur imputed taxable inconwual to the premium cost of this benefit.

If a change in control were to occur during thent@f Mr. Loveman’s employment agreement, and hiplegment was terminated
involuntarily or he resigned for Good Reason wittvito years after the change in control, or if higpdoyment was involuntarily terminated
within six months before the change in control égson of the request of the buyer, Mr. Loveman dbel entitled to receive the benefits
described above under termination without causesbgr by Mr. Loveman for good
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reason, except that (a) the multiplier would be¢htimes (in lieu of two times) and (b) the paymeatild be in a lump sum (as opposed to «
a 24 month period). In addition, if the payments suibject to a federal excise tax, or Excise Trapoised on Mr. Loveman, the employment
agreement requires us to pay Mr. Loveman an additiamount, or the Gross-Up Payment, so that theameunt retained by Mr. Loveman
after deduction of any Excise Tax on the changmirtrol payments and all Excise Taxes and otherstax the Gross-Up Payment, will equal
the initial change in control payment, less nortaaes.

The agreement provides that Mr. Loveman will nahpete with us or solicit employees to leave us etmeertain grade level for a
period of two years after termination of his actiut time employment (which for this purpose doed include the salary continuation period).

Named Executive Officer Employment Arrangements

We also have employment agreements with our ot dNand members of our senior management teamhywhiwide for a base sala
subject to merit increases as the HRC may appkfecentered into employment agreements on Febri&r2@8 with Jonathan S. Halkyard,
Thomas M. Jenkin, John W. R. Payne and Mary H. Tdonihe agreements of Messrs. Jenkin, HalkyardPagde were renewed on
January 4, 2012 and expire on January 4, 201&dhsement with Ms. Thomas was renewed on Januard03d1 and expires January 31, 2(
Below is a description of the material terms andditions of these employment agreements.

The agreement with each of Messrs. Halkyard, Jemf¢hPayne is for a term of four years beginnindamuary 4, 2012 and is
automatically renewed for successive one year temtess either we or the executive delivers a anmitiotice of nonrenewal at least six
(6) months prior to the end of the term. The ageswith Ms. Thomas is for a term of four yearsibagg January 31, 2011 and is
automatically renewed for successive one year teimtess either we or the executive delivers a @mitiotice of nonrenewal at least 60 days
prior to the end of the term.

Pursuant to the employment agreements, the exesutiill receive base salaries as follows: Mr. Halkly $700,000; Mr. Jenkin,
$1,200,000; Mr. Payne, $1,125,000 and Ms. Thoma8 $80. In addition to her salary, Ms. Thomasigilelle to receive a retention bonus if
the terms of the bonus provision specified in leplyment agreement are met and she is employkedrinurrent position on the specified
payment dates. Ms. Thomas received a retention eatyof $100,000 on February 15, 2011, and shegik to receive a bonus of $100,000
on February 15, 2012 and a bonus of $75,000 orugepd 5, 2013.

In February 2009, Messrs. Halkyard, Jenkin, anchBagreed to reduce their respective base salari®% as part of a broader
management reduction of salaries. In August 2009 Hdlkyard was given a market based salary ineréa$700,000 and took a 5% reduction
of that salary to $665,000. In January 2010, Mgrieavas given a market based salary increase 82%,000 and took a 5% reduction of that
salary to $973,750. The 5% salary reductions weirestated for each of the executives discussedeaimoduly 2010. In July 2011, the HRC
approved a salary increase for Mr. Payne from $8,(0 to $1,125,000.

The HRC will review base salaries on an annualsbagh a view towards merit increases (but not éases) in such salary. In addition,
each executive will participate in our annual inéenbonus program applicable to the executive'sitian and shall have the opportunity to
earn an annual bonus based on the achievementfofrpance objectives.

Each NEO will be entitled to participate in berefind perquisites at least as favorable to theutivecas such benefits and perquisites
currently available to the executives, group hemllurance, long term disability benefits, lifeunance, financial counseling, vacation,
reimbursement of expenses, director and officarrensce and the ability to participate in our 401glan. If (a) the executive attains age fifty
(50) and, when added to his or her number of yefacentinuous service with us, including any peridcalary continuation, the sum of his or
her age and years of service equals or exceedsfsigt(65), and at any time after the occurrentbaih such events executive’s employment
is terminated and his or her employment then teatemeither (1) without cause or (2) due to nemewal of the agreement, or (b) the exect
attains age fifty-five (55) and, when added todrifier number of years of continuous service withincluding any period of salary
continuation, the sum of his or her age and yebsgwice equals or exceeds sixty-five (65) andekecutive’s employment is terminated other
than for cause, he or she will be entitled to ilifiet coverage under our group health insurance plla@.executive will be required to pay 20%
of the premium for this coverage and we will pag tamaining premium, which will be imputed taxainleome to the executive. This insura
coverage terminates if the executive competes wgth

Upon a termination without cause (as defined inetimployment agreement and set forth below), a mesign by the executive for good
reason (as defined in the employment agreemensetorth below) or upon our delivery of a non-reaknotice, the executive shall be
entitled to his or her accrued but unused vacatiorgimbursed business expenses and base salaeddart not paid through the date of
termination. In addition, the executive will receia cash severance payment equal to
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1.5 times his or her base salary payable in eqsgliments during the 18 months following suclmieation and pro-rated bonus for the year
in which the termination occurs based on certaimd@mns. In the event that the executive’s emplepiris terminated by reason of his or her
disability, he or she will be entitled to apply fmur long term disability benefits, and, if he beds accepted for such benefits, he or she will
receive 18 months of base salary continuation blfgexiny long term disability benefits to which éreshe is entitled during such period of
salary continuation. Furthermore, during the tiimat the executive receives his or her base salaiggithe period of salary continuation, he or
she will be entitled to all benefits. Payment of aeverance benefits is contingent upon the exatati a general release in favor of us and our
affiliates.

“Cause” under the employment agreements is defased

() the willful failure of executive to substantialperform executives duties with us or to follow a lawful, reasonatiieective from ou
Board or the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) such other executive officer to whom executiveorep(other than any such
failure resulting from incapacity due to physicaheental iliness), after a written demand for sabsal performance is delivered to
executive by our Board (or the CEO, as applicalvleirh specifically identifies the manner in whichrdoard (or the CEO, as
applicable) believes that executive has willfultyt substantially performed executive’s duties & Wéllfully failed to follow a
lawful, reasonable directivi

(i) any willful act of fraud, or embezzlement deft, by executive, in each case, in connectioh witecutive’s duties hereunder or in
the course of executive’s employment hereundeBpekecutive’s admission in any court, or convintaf, or plea of nolo
contendere to, a felon

(i) executive being found unsuitable for or having miga license denied or revoked by the gaming reégafaauthorities in an
jurisdiction in which we conduct gaming operatio

(iv) executive’s willful and material violation ofyr noncompliance with, any securities laws or lstexchange listing rules, including,
without limitation, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@2¢vided that such violation or noncompliance heslin material economic
harm to us, or (B) a final judicial order or detémation prohibiting executive from service as aficefr pursuant to the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 or the rules of the NY&t

(v) awillful breach by the executive of non competitjgrovisions or confidentiality provisions of thgraement

For purposes of definition, no act or failure t¢ @ the part of executive, shall be consideredlfuli unless it is done, or omitted to be
done, by executive in bad faith and without reabtmbelief that executive’s action or omission wasur best interests. Any act, or failure to
act, based upon authority given pursuant to a uéisal duly adopted by our Board or based upon thvéca of our counsel shall be conclusiv
presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, byutixedn good faith and in our best interests af Gompany. The cessation of employment
of the executive shall not be deemed to be for Eandess and until executive has been provided wiittten notice of the claim(s) against him

or her under the above provision(s) and a reaserggiportunity (not to exceed thirty (30) days) twe; if possible, and to contest said claim(s)
before our Board.

“Good Reason” under the employment agreementsfiisedieas:

The occurrence, without executive’s express writensent, of any of the following circumstancesesslsuch circumstances are fully
corrected prior to the date of termination spedifie the written notice given by executive notifyins of his or her intention to terminate his or
her Employment for Good Reason:

(&) Areduction by us in executi’s annual base salary, other than a reduction ia $alary that applies to a similarly situated claf
our employees or our affiliate

(b) Any material diminution in the duties or responiigis of executive as of the date of the employhagreement; provided tha
change in control of the company that results intecoming part of a larger organization will niatand of itself and
unaccompanied by any material diminution in théeduor responsibilities of the executive, constitGiood Reasot

(c) Our failure to pay or provide to the executive amgterial portion of his or her then current Baskigeor then current benefi
under the employment agreement (except pursuanttmmpensation deferral elected by the executivé))dahe failure to pay
executive any material portion of deferred comp@osaunder any of our deferred compensation progratithin thirty (30) days of
the date such compensation is due and permittbd paid under Section 409A of the Code, in each ottser than any such failure
that results from a modification to any compensaticangement or benefit plan that is generallyliegiple to similarly situated
officers;
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(d) Ourrequiring executive to be based anywhere dtteer Atlantic City, New Orleans or Las Vegas, dejieg on the NEO (exce|
for required travel on company business to an éxgstantially consistent with the executs/present business travel obligatio
or

(e) Our failure to obtain a satisfactory agreement feom successor to assume and agree to perfornmjpleyment agreemer

The executives each have covenants to not compettén solicit and not to engage in communicatioa imanner that is detrimental to
the business. The executive’s “hon-compete penadies based on the type of termination that trexetive has. If the executive has a
voluntary termination of employment with us with@ebod Reason, the non-compete period is six molffthve have terminated the
executive’s employment without cause, or the exeeutas terminated for Good Reason, we have delivamotice of non-renewal to the
executive or if the executive’s employment termésaby reason of disability, the non-compete peisddr 18 months. If the executive’s
employment is terminated for cause, the non-competiod is for six months. The non-solicitation ar@h-communication periods last for 18
months following termination. A breach of the nampete covenant will cause our obligations underaireement to terminate. In addition,
the executives each have confidentiality obligation

Deferred Compensation Plans

We have one deferred compensation plan, the Exec8tipplemental Savings Plan I, or ESSP I, culyeactive, although there are fi
other plans that contain deferred compensatiortsaddarrah’s Executive Deferred Compensation RlaisDCP, the Harrah’s Executive
Supplemental Savings Plan, or ESSP, Harrah’s Defé@ompensation Plan, or DCP, the Restated Pack Platertainment Corporation
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, and the Ca®¥arld, Inc. Executive Security Plan.

Further deferrals into the EDCP were terminate2id@1 when the HRC approved the ESSP, which pewinitetain key employees,
including executive officers, to make deferralspécified percentages of salary and bonus. No dé¢denere allowed after December 2004
ESSP, and we approved the ESSP I, which compligsstive American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 andvedid deferrals starting in 2005. ESSP
I, similar to ESSP, allows participants to chofreen a selection of varied investment alternatised the results of these investments will be
reflected in their deferral accounts. To assuregayt of these deferrals, a trust fund was estasdisimilar to the escrow fund for the EDCP.
The trust fund is funded to match the various tygidavestments selected by participants for thefierrals.

ESSP and ESSP Il do not provide a fixed interdst ess the EDCP and DCP do, and therefore the miaskeof plan investments is bor
by participants rather than us. To encourage ED&Rcpants to transfer their account balancefi¢oBSSP thereby reducing our market risk,
we approved a program in 2001 that provided ingestio a limited number of participants to transfieir EDCP account balances to the
ESSP. Under this program, a currently employed Ep&f#cipant who was five or more years away fragodming vested in the EDCP
retirement rate, including any executive officetsowvere in this group, received an enhancemensiorher account balance if the participant
elected to transfer the account balance to the EBSPinitial enhancement was the greater of (&ewhe difference between the participant’s
termination account balance and retirement accoatance, (b) 40% of the termination account balanceto exceed $100,000, or (c) four
times the termination account balance not to ex§4€d000. Upon achieving eligibility for the EDC&irement rate (age 55 and 10 years of
service), the participant electing this programn véteive an additional enhancement equal to 50%efnitial enhancement. Pursuant to the
ESSP, the additional enhancement vested upondbkiglof the Acquisition. Mr. Loveman elected tatfzdpate in this enhancement program,
and therefore no longer has an account in the EDCP.

Mr. Jenkin maintained a balance in the EDCP du2idgl. Under the EDCP, the executive earns theereéint rate under the EDCP if he
attains (1) specified age and service requirem@atyears of age plus 10 years of service or 6@syalaage) or (2) attains specified age and
service requirements (is at least 50 years old vdmeh added to years of service, equals 65 orgneand if his employment is terminated
without cause pursuant to his employment agreeniémt executive receives service credit under th€EBbor any salary continuation and non-
compete period. Additionally, if an executive igfiarated from servicetithin 24 months of the Acquisition, the executaerns the retireme
rate under the EDCP. Mr. Jenkin has met the reaugirgs to earn the retirement rate.

While further deferrals into the EDCP were term@titand while most EDCP participants transferreit tiDCP account balance to the
ESSP, amounts deferred pursuant to the EDCP prits termination and not transferred to the ESS®ain subject to the terms and conditi
of the EDCP and will continue to earn interest esctibed above.

Under the deferred compensation plans, the Acdurisiequired that the trust and escrow fund beyfislhded.
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REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
To the Board of Directors of Caesars Entertainn@orporation:

Our role is to assist the Board of Directors inotgrsight of the Company’executive compensation, including approval araduation of
director and officer compensation plans, prograntsolicies and administration of the Company’sumand other incentive compensation
plans.

We have reviewed and discussed with manageme@dhgensation Discussion and Analysis.

Based on the review and discussion referred to@heg recommend to the Board of Directors thattbmpensation Discussion and
Analysis referred to above be included in the ComyfsaAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year en@extember 31, 2011.

Kelvin Davis
Marc Rowar
Lynn Swanr

The above Report of the Human Resources Commdateerbt constitute soliciting material and shoutd be deemed filed or
incorporated by reference into any other Compaliydgiunder the Securities Act of 1933 or the SeamsgiExchange Act of 1934, except to the
extent the Company specifically incorporates trepdtt by reference therein.

129



Table of Contents

Summary Compensation Tab

The Summary Compensation Table below sets fortiaicecompensation information concerning the Comgtm&hief Executive Office

Chief Financial Officer, and our three additionashhighly compensated executive officers duringy120

(h)

Change in
Pension Value
(9) and
o Nl
(e) ) Deferred 0}
(d) Stock Option Compensatior All Other
() (©) Bonus Awards Awards  Compensatior Compensatior 0]
Name and Principal (b) Salary 2) (@ @ @) Earnings 4 () Total
Position Year $ $ $ $ $ (&) (&) (&)
Gary W. Loveman, 2011 1,900,00t! — — 13,428,35 3,900,001 — 1,174,841 20,403,19
President and 201C 1,900,001 — — 12,398,00 2,700,001 — 1,268,901 18,266,91
Chief Executive Office 200¢ 1,919,23. — — — 3,000,00t — 1,047,07! 5,966,31!
Jonathan S. Halkyard, 2011 700,00( — — 663,90( 555,00( — 24,40: 1,943,30:
Executive Vice President, 201C 675,36! — — 1,443,94 336,00( — 18,53« 2,473,841
Chief Financial Office 200¢ 605,73: — — — 349,86° — 25,61( 981,20¢
Thomas M. Jenkin, 2011 1,200,00! — — 1,487,31 1,350,001 54,11¢ 32,04¢ 4,123,47!
President of Operations 201C 1,157,76' — — 2,197,46 500,00( 17,14° 35,89¢ 3,908,27!
200¢ 1,151,53i — — — 767,28¢ 116,83¢ 33,18¢ 2,068,84!
John W. R. Payne, 2011 1,063,07 — — 1,267,121 953,05¢ — 36,08¢ 3,319,33!
President of Enterprise 201C 985,27 — — 1,394,15 825,00( — 34,35¢ 3,238,78!
Shared Service 200¢ 887,64! — — — 904,57 — 22,78 1,815,001
Mary H. Thomas, 2011 509,61 100,00( — 756,99 539,06: — 15,82¢ 1,921,49!
Executive Vice President, 201C 385,92: — — 478,65: 235,00( — 16,97 1,116,54
Human Resource 200¢ 377,69:. — — 88,50 265,71¢ — 21,99( 753,90«

Amounts in this column reflect the grant dati falue of stock awards and option awards gradtethg the applicable year and was
determined as required by Accounting Standardsfiéation, or ASC, Topic 718, (formerly, Financiatéounting Standards Board
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. (t@&sed 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS N8(R}). See Note 18
“Employee Benefit Plans” to our audited consoliddfieancial statements included elsewhere in toisr10-K for details on
assumptions used in the valuations for 2011, 2002809.

Performance-based awards are valued using a Marte §imulation option pricing model. This modepapach provides a probable
outcome fair value for these types of awards. Btiemated maximum potential values for the perforogaawards, and the related total
Option Award fair values for the 2011 awards, resipely, were $3,018,339 and $9,055,000 for Mr. €man. The estimated maximum
potential values for the performance awards, aaddtated total Option Award fair values for thé@QG@wards, respectively, were
$33,906 and $90,386 for Ms. Thomas.

In July 2011, the HRC approved amendments to audstg stock options reducing the price of outstagdime-based options to $20.09,
with the reduced exercise price being phased wdxat a four to six year period, depending on tla@tgdate. The exercise price of
outstanding 1.5X performandmsed options was also reduced to $20.09 per dhahaded in the figures in this column is the emrents
fair value, computed as of the date of the aboveraiments in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 wapect to such amended st
options. See “-Executive Compensation-Compensdisoussion & Analysis-Elements of Compensation-Btption Re-Pricing” for

Reflects a special, retent-oriented bonus awarded in February 2(

In 2011, Messrs. Loveman, Halkyard, Jenkin, anchBand Ms. Thomas received bonuses related tortjecPRenewal Incentive Pl:

in the amounts of $1,000,000, $155,000, $300,0086%50, and $125,962, respectively. Messrs. JarkinPayne received 2011 bonus
pursuant to the Annual Management Bonus Plan imtheunts of $1,050,000 and $696,806, respectipgsrs. Loveman and Halkye
and Ms. Thomas received 2011 bonuses pursuang t8ehior Executive Incentive Plan in the amount$2p900,000, $400,000, and
$413,100, respectively. Amounts paid in both 2046 2009 were paid pursuant to the Annual ManageBentis Plan for Messrs.
Jenkin and Payne, and the Senior Executive Inoeitian for Messrs. Loveman and Halkyard, and MenTds.

Includes above-market earnings on the balancel®hkin maintain in the EDCP. Mr. Jenkin has thetrequirements to earn the
retirement rate of interest. In October 1995, tiHapproved a fixed retirement rate of 15.5% fbaetount balances under the EDCI
of December 31, 1995 (subject to plan minimum rategained in the EDCP). The interest rates on-p896 deferrals continue to be
approved each year by the HRC. The retirementoajgost 1995 deferrals during 2011 was the EDCR&num retirement rate of

1)
additional information.
2
)
(4)
7.64%.
©)

All Other Compensation includes the amounts inftflewing table:
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Allocated
Executive amount for Allocated amount Tax
aircraft usage for Reimbursementt
Security company lodging

Name Year ($) (%) $) %)

Gary W. Lovemar 2011 236,44 539,00! 126,71( 137,61t
201C 412,89( 464,63( 133,60 120,68:
200¢ 394,52 330,61¢ 126,39: 58,79¢

Jonathan S. Halkyat 2011 — — — —
201(C — — — —
200¢ — — — —

Thomas M. Jenkil 2011 — — — —
201C — — — —
200¢ — — — —

John W. R. Payn 2011 — — — —
201(C — — — —
200¢ — — — —

Mary H. Thomas 2011 — — — —
201C — — — —
200¢ — — — —

Perquisites consist of executive security, persaitafaft usage, company lodging, pension matchongributions, life and disability
insurance, financial planning, and tax reimbursemdPerquisites are detailed in the above tablg tonthe extent that the amount of any
individual item exceeds the greater of $25,0000% bf the executive’s total perquisites.

Mr. Loveman is required to have executive secypititection. See “Compensation Discussion & Analydersonal Benefits and
Perquisites” for additional information.

The amount allocated to Mr. Loveman for persondl@ancommuting aircraft usage is calculated basethe incremental cost to us of
fuel, trip-related maintenance, crew travel expsnea-board catering, landing fees, trip-relatenigaa/parking costs, and other miscellaneous
variable costs. Since our aircrafts are used pilynfar business travel, we do not include the fxeosts that do not change based on usage,
such as pilots’ salaries, depreciation of the pasehcosts of our aircraft, fractional ownership outment fees, and the cost of maintenance not
specifically related to trips. For security reasdvis. Loveman is required to use our aircraft fergpnal and business travel.

The amount allocated to Mr. Loveman for companyiond while in Las Vegas and the associated tax@based on respective taxable
earnings for such lodging. In addition to tax reimdements for lodging, Mr. Loveman also receivaségmbursements for the premiums paid
for his life and disability insurance. In 2011, B0dnd 2009, Mr. Loveman received tax reimbursemetdsed to lodging of $90,817, $95,762,
and $58,799, respectively. Tax reimbursements forlldveman’s life and disability insurance premiuwere $46,799, $24,919, and zero, for
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

We do not provide a fixed benefit pension plandor executives but maintain a deferred compensafiim, the Executive Supplemental
Savings Plan 11, or the ESSP II, under which theceives may defer a portion of their compensafidre ESSP Il is a variable investment
that allows the executives to direct their invesitady choosing among several investment alterasitiv

Discussion of Summary Compensation Table

Each of our named executive officers has enterdemployment agreements with us that relate td#mefits that the named executive
officers receive upon termination. See “—ExecuB@mpensation—Compensation Discussion and Analysisménts of Post Employment
Compensation and Benefits-Employment Arrangemebtsddditional information.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table gives information regarding @otial incentive compensation for 2011 to our exigewfficers named in the
Summary Compensation Table. Non-Equity IncentienAwards approved for 2011 and 2010 are includede “Non Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation” column in the Summary Compensatidiela

Option
Estimated Future Payouts Awards:
Under Estimated Future Payouts Number of .
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Under Equity Incentive Plan Exercise ol Grant
Awards (1) Awards - Date
Securities ]
Underlying  picS€ye SRV gide o
Threshold Maximum  Threshold Target Option Grant Option
Grant Target Maximum Options Awards Date Awards
Name Date ($) $) ($) (#) (#) (#) (#) ($/Sh) ($/Sh) $)
Gary W. Lovematr n/a — 2,850,00! 7,125,001 — — — — — — —
11/29/201 — — — — 290,33¢ 580,66 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 7,878,33
7/8/2011
(@) — — — — 478,37  1,610,87 20.0¢ 20.0¢  5,550,02i(3)
Jonathan S. Halkyai n/a — 420,00( 1,260,001 — — — — — — —
11/29/201 — — — — — — 8,71( 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 90,55(
7/8/2011
3 — — — — — 26,73( 182,02 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 573,35((3)
Thomas M. Jenkil n/a — 900,00( 2,700,001 — — — — — — —
11/29/201. — — — — — — 66,35¢ 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 689,86:
7/8/2011
2 — — — — — 35,947 261,23! 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 797,44 (3)
John W. R. Payn n/a — 843,75(  2,531,25I — — — — — — —
11/29/201. — — — — — — 68,63t 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 713,53:
7/8/2011
@3 — — — — — 25,80¢ 175,74« 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 553,58((3)
Mary H. Thomas n/a — 393,75( 1,181,25I — — — — — — —
11/29/201 — — — — — — 55,71: 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 579,17t
7/8/2011
(2 — — — — — 8,99¢ 60,79: 20.0¢ 20.0¢ 177,81(3)

(1) Represents potential threshold, target, and maxiingentive compensation for 201

(2) InJduly 2011, the HRC approved amendments tstanding stock options reducing the price of @utding time-based options to $20.09,
with the reduced exercise price being phased wwdxat a four to six year period, depending on tlaiglate. The exercise price of
outstanding 1.5X performance-based options wasrathoced to $20.09 per share. See “—Executive Cosgt®n—Compensation
Discussion & Analysi—Elements of Compensati-Stock Option R—Pricin¢” for additional information

(3) The figure in this column represents, with exggo the amended stock options, the incremeatavflue, computed as of the date of the
option amendments in accordance with FASB ASC Ta@pR.

Discussion of Grants of Plan Based Awards Table

In February 2008, the Board approved and adopteéittirah’s Entertainment Corporation Managemenitigdpcentive Plan (the
“Equity Plan”). The purpose of the Equity Plandgsromote our long-term financial interests andaghoby attracting and retaining
management and other personnel and key servicédprswvith the training, experience, and abilityeteable them to make a substantial
contribution to the success of our business; tavate management personnel by means of growthetlatentives to achieve long-range
goals; and to further the alignment of interestpaticipants with those of our stockholders. Gsdnteach of our named executive officers
under this plan are listed above. For a more a@gtallscussion of how equity grants are determised,"—Executive Compensation—
Compensation Discussion & Analysis—Elements of Cengation—Equity Awards.”

On January 27, 2008, we entered into a stock optibover agreement with Mr. Loveman that providesthe conversion of options to
purchase our shares prior to the Acquisition irgiams to purchase our shares following the Acdoisiwith such conversion preserving the
intrinsic “spread value” of the converted optioneTrollover option is immediately exercisable witispect to 231,918 shares of our common
stock at an exercise price of $14.35 per share.rdlf@ver option expires on June 17, 2012.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

In February 2008, the Board approved and adopteéithrah’s Entertainment, Inc. Management Equitgittive Plan. Grants to each of
our named executive officers under this plan atedi below, as of December 31, 2011. See “—Exes@wmpensation—Compensation
Discussion and Analysis—Elements of CompensationuitiEd\wards” for more information.

Options
Equity Incentive

Plan Awards:

Number of Number of Number of Options
Sesuntes Sesuntes Secuntes
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Expiration
Options Options (#) Unearned
Name (#) Exercisable Unexercisable Options (#) Price ($) Date
Gary W. Lovemar 231,91¢ — — 14.3¢ 6/17/201:
325,21t 325,21((1) 478,372) 57.41 2271201t
162,60¢5) — 478,3742) 20.0¢ 2/27/201¢
— 683,85(3) — 32.1¢ 3/1/202(
— 113,97¢3) — 20.0¢ 3/1/202(
— 580,66(4) 290,33¢6) 20.0¢ 11/29/202
Jonathan S. Halkyai 35,64( 35,64((1) 26,73((2) 57.41] 2/27/201¢
17,81¢5) — 26,73((2) 20.0¢ 2/27/201
— 79,6443) — 32.1¢ 3/1/202(
— 13,27%3) — 20.0¢ 3/1/202(
— 8,71((4) — 20.0¢ 11/29/202.
Thomas M. Jenkil 47,93( 47,93((1) 35,947(2) 57.41 2271201t
23,96%(5) — 35,947(2) 20.0¢ 2/27/201¢
— 121,2043) — 32.1¢ 3/1/202(
— 20,2043) — 20.0¢ 3/1/202(
— 66,35¢(4) — 20.0¢ 11/29/202
John W. R. Payn 34,41 34,41((1) 25,80¢(2) 57.41 2/27/201¢
17,20¢(5) — 25,80¢(2) 20.0¢ 2/27/201
— 76,90:3) — 32.1¢ 3/1/202(
— 12,81¢3) — 20.0¢ 3/1/202(
— 68,6344) — 20.0¢ 11/29/202.
Mary H. Thomas 9,83: 9,83%(1) 7,3742) 57.41 2/27/201
4,91¢(5) — 7,3742) 20.0¢ 2/27/201¢
1,26 3,24¢ 1,6242) 29.7: 2/24/201¢
90%(5) — 1,6242) 20.0¢ 2/24/201¢
— 26,404(3) — 32.1¢ 3/1/202(
— 4,401(3) — 20.0¢ 3/1/202(
— 55,71(4) — 20.0¢ 11/29/202

@ One-half of unvested options vest on January 28, 2022013, respectivel
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@ performance options vest if the return on investmeaesars of the Sponsors an-investors achieves a specified return. Specifi¢

50% of the performancleased options vest upon a 1.5X return and 2X retegpectively. In addition, a pro rata portiortiod 2X option
vest if the Sponsors and co-investors achieveuarr@in their investment that is greater than 1.4%X less than 2X. The pro rata portion
increases on a straight-line basis from zero tartigipant’s total number of 2X options dependimpgpu the level of return the Sponsors
and co-investors realize between 1.75X and 2Xuly 2011, the HRC approved an amendment to altaoiting option grants reducing
the strike price of all outstanding 1.5X performedizased options to $20.09. The strike prices ob@tons were not changed from their
original issue price

@ One-fourth of unvested options vest on March 1, 2012,3 2014, and 2015, respective

@ One-fourth of unvested options vest on September 3022P013, 2014, and 2015, respectiv:

® n July 2011, the HRC approved amendments to tkstanding stock options, which reduced the exemiie for all outstanding, tin-

based options to $20.09 per share. The reducedisagrice is phased in over a four to six-yearggerdepending on grant date, as set
forth in each individual award agreement. Priotht® phase-in, any vested options may still be ésedcat the original exercise price,
subject to the terms of the Equity Pl

©® " These performance options vest if the Sponsorgtaidrespective affiliates achieve the returnapital invested in Caesars at a $57

stock price

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table gives certain information cormueag stock option and stock award exercises astingduring 2011. No options we
exercised during 2011.

Stock
Option Awards Awards
Number of Share: Number of Value Realized o1

Shares

Vesting
Name Vesting (#) # Exercise ($)
Gary W. Lovemat 162,60¢ — —
Jonathan S. Halkyal 17,81¢ — —
Thomas M. Jenkil 23,96¢ — —
John W. R. Payn 17,20¢ — —
Mary H. Thomas 5,99¢ — —

For discussion of how equity grants are determised,“—Executive Compensation—Compensation Disons&iAnalysis—Elements
of Compensation—Equity Awards.”

Nonqualified Deferred Compensatio

Aggregate
Withdrawals/
Exeputi_v c Company’s Aggregate P
Contributions Contributions Earnings in Distributions Aggregate Balanc
Name in 2011 ($)® 2011m($)(1) (is())l(%) ($) in 2011 ($)@

Gary W. Lovemar — — (712) — 50,44
Jonathan S. Halkyau 303,00( — (45,09 — 1,228,24.
Thomas M. Jenkil — — 599,88! — 5,546,93!
John W. R. Payn — — (389) — 12,57(
Mary H. Thomas 107,73: — (18,219 — 567,20¢

@ The following deferred compensation contributionl @arnings amounts were reported in the 2011 Suypn@ampensation Tabls
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Above Market

Contributions in 2011 Earnings in 2011

Name (€] (€]
Gary W. Lovemar — —
Jonathan S. Halkyal 303,00 —
Thomas M. Jenkil — 54,11¢
John W. R. Payn — —
Mary H. Thomas 107,73: —

All other earnings were at market rates from def@icompensation investments directed by the exexauti

(2) The following deferred compensation contribaotand earnings amounts were reported in the Sum@amypensation Table in previous

years.
Prior Years
Contributions and
Above Market
Earnings
Name Amounts ($)
Gary W. Lovemat 12,484,24
Jonathan S. Halkyal 932,55:
Thomas M. Jenkil 1,008,09:
John W. R. Payn 801,98¢
Mary H. Thomas 107,73:

Discussion of Nonqualified Deferred Compensationfdla

We do not provide a fixed benefit pension plandor executives but maintain deferred compensatiamsp(collectively, DCP) and an
ESSP II. During 2011, certain key employees, iniclgaéxecutive officers, could defer a portion dofittsalary and bonus into the ESSP Il. The
ESSP Il is a variable investment plan that allomeséxecutives to direct their investments by chapaimong several investment alternatives.
The contributions of the executives and the compatoythe ESSP Il during 2011 are reflected indbeve table. The earnings of the
executives in 2011 on current and prior year daefemre also reflected in the above table.

The ESSP Il replaced our Executive Supplementain8awlan, or ESSP, for future deferrals beginminglanuary 1, 2005. No deferrals
were allowed after December 2004 into ESSP. Weaaeprthe ESSP I, which complies with the Ameridabs Creation Act of 2004 and
allowed deferrals starting in 2005. Messrs. Jeriadkyard and Payne and Ms. Thomas maintain a balanthe ESSP II, and Mr. Halkyard
maintains a balance in the ESSP. Earnings for 204 Included in the above table.

Mr. Jenkin currently maintains, a balance in thedive Deferred Compensation Plan, or the EDCRIedthe EDCP, the executive
earns the retirement rate under the EDCP if hénat{a) specified age and service requirementy€abs of age plus 10 years of service or 60
years of age) or (b) attains specified age and@erequirements (is at least 50 years old, anchveltieled to years of service, equals 6
greater) and if his employment is terminated withtause pursuant to his employment agreement. ¥émuéve receives service credit under
the EDCP for any salary continuation and non-competiod. Additionally, if an executive is “sepa@from service” within 24 months of the
Acquisition, the executive earns the retiremerg tatder the EDCP. Mr. Jenkin has met the requirénerder the EDCP to earn the retiren
rate. Deferrals into the EDCP were terminated i8120'he HRC approves the EDCP retirement rate (wb@nnot be lower than a specified
formula rate) annually. In October 1995, the HR@raped a fixed retirement rate of 15.5% for all@aaat balances under the EDCP as of
December 31, 1995 (subject to plan minimum ratesaioed in the EDCP). The interest rates on po86X&ferrals continue to be approved
each year by the HRC. The retirement rate on p@35 Heferrals during 2011 was the Plan’s minimutinerment rate of 7.64%. Mr. Jenkin’s
earnings in 2011 under the EDCP are included iratieve table.
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The table below shows the investment funds avalahder the ESSP and the ESSP Il and the annaadfre¢turn for each fund for the
year ended December 31, 20

2011
Rate of

Name of Fund Return
500 Index Trust E 1.8€%
Aggressive Growth Lifecycl (5.10%
American Growth Trus (4.69)%
American International Tru: (14.39H%
M International Equity (13.56%
Conservative Lifecycli 2.72%
Equity-Income Trus (0.76)%
Growth Lifecycle (2.570%
Inflation Managec 11.8%%
Managed Bon 3.84%
Mid Cap Stock Trus (9.160%
Mid Value Trust (4.80%
Moderate Lifecycle 0.15%
Money Market Trust E 0.08%
Real Estate Securities Trt 6.12%
Small Cap Growth Trus (6.79%
Small Cap Value Trus 1.15%
Small Cap Inde; (4.51)%
International Equity Inde (13.99%

Pursuant to the terms of the DCP and ESSP I, amgsied amounts of the participants in the placae fully vested upon the
Acquisition.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of @l

We have entered into employment agreements withahged executive officers that require us to malgenents and provide various
benefits to the executives in the event of the etree’s termination or a Change in Control. Therierof the agreements are described above
under “—Executive Compensation—Compensation Disonsand Analysis—Elements of Post-Employment Corspdan and Benefits—
Employment Arrangements.” The estimated value efpthyments and benefits due to the executives puirso their agreements under various
termination events are detailed below.

The following tables show the estimated amountatéptial cash severance payable to each of thechawezutive officers, as well as 1
estimated value of continuing benefits, based onpamsation and benefit levels in effect on DecerBieR011.
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For each of the NEOs, we have assumed that theilogment was terminated on December 31, 2011, lamdnarket value of their
unvested equity awards was $20.09 per share, wiastthe fair market value of our stock (as deteeahiby the HRC) as of December 31,
2011. Due to the numerous factors involved in eafiing these amounts, the actual value of benafiissanounts to be paid can only be

determined upon an NEOs termination of employment.

Involuntary
or Good
Voluntary Involuntary For Cause Reason
Termination Retirement Not for Termination Termination
Cause (Change in
Termination Control) ($) Disability Death
Gary W. Loveman $) $) $) $) (1) ($) @ ($)
Compensation:
Base Salar — — 9,700,00! — 14,550,00 4,000,001 —
Short Term Incentiv: — — 2,850,00! — 2,850,00! — —
Benefits and Perquisites
Pos-retirement Health Cai®) 315,10( 315,10( 315,10( 315,10( 315,10( 315,10( —
Medical Benefits — — — — — — 17,16
Life & Accident Insurance an
Benefits @ — — 22,52( — 22,52( 22,52( 6,000,00!
Disability Insurance and Benefits
©) y — — — — — 80,000 per m¢ —
Totals 315,10( 315,10( 12,887,62 315,10( 17,737,62 4,337,620 an 6,017,16.
80,000 per m¢

(1) Amounts do not include amount of any gross up payrfar excise taxes under Section 4999 of the C

(2) Base salary payments will be offset by disabilityyments

(3) Reflects the estimated present value of all fupresmiums under our health plal

(4) Reflects the estimated present value of the costweérage for life and accident insurance polieied the estimated amount of proce
payable to the executi’s beneficiaries in the event of the execl's death

(5) Reflects the estimated amount of proceeds payalileetexecutive in the event of the exect’s disability.

Involuntary
Involuntary or Good
Not for Reason
Voluntary Cause For Cause Termination
Termination Retirement Termination Termination
(Change in Disability Death
Jonathan S. Halkyard % $ $ $ Control) ($) ($) ($)
Compensation:
Base Salar — 1,050,001 — 1,050,001 1,050,001 —
Short Term Incentiv: — 555,00( — 555,00( — —
Benefits and Perquisites
Pos-retirement Health Car @ — — — — 382,31¢ —
Life & Accident Insurance and
Benefits @ — — — — — 1,995,001
Disability Insurance and Benefi@ — — — — 30,000 per mt —
Totals — 1,605,001 — 1,605,001 1,432,319 an  1,995,00!
30,000 per mt

(1) Base salary payments will be offset by disabiliyments

(2) Reflects the estimated present value of all fupregniums under our health plai

(3) Reflects the estimated present value of thé aosoverage for life and accident insurance petiand the estimated amount of proceeds
payable to the executi’s beneficiaries in the event of the execl's death

(4) Reflects the estimated amount of proceeds payaltteetexecutive in the event of the exect’s disability.
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Involuntary
Involuntary or Good
Not for Reason
Voluntary Cause For Cause Termination
Termination Retirement Termination Termination
(Change in Disability Death
Thomas M. Jenkin ($) $) ($) $) Control) ($) ($) ($)
Compensation:
Base Salar — — 1,800,001 — 1,800,001 1,800,001 —
Short Term Incentiv: — — 1,350,001 — 1,350,001 — —
Benefits and Perquisites
Pos-retirement Health Car @ 243,94¢ 243,94¢ 243,94¢ — 243,94¢ 243,94¢ —
Life & Accident Insurance an
Benefits ® — — — — — — 3,420,00!
Disability Insurance and Benefi@ — — — — — 30,000 per mt —
Totals 243,94¢ 243,94t  3,393,94 —  3,393,94 2,043,948 an  3,420,00!

30,000 per mt

(1) Base salary payments will be offset by disabiliyments
(2) Reflects the estimated present value of all fupregniums under our health plai

(3) Reflects the estimated present value of thé aosoverage for life and accident insurance petiand the estimated amount of proceeds
payable to the executi’s beneficiaries in the event of the execl's death

(4) Reflects the estimated amount of proceeds payaliteetexecutive in the event of the exect’s disability.

Involuntary
Involuntary or Good
Not for Reason
Voluntary Cause For Cause Termination
Termination Retirement Termination Termination
(Change in Disability Death
John W. R. Payne ©) ©) ©) (©) Control) ($) ®® ©)
Compensation:
Base Salar — — 1,687,501 — 1,687,501 1,687,501 —
Short Term Incentiv: — — 953,05¢ — 953,05¢ — —
Benefits and Perquisites
Pos-retirement Health Cai @ — — — — — 434,17" —
Life & Accident Insurance and
Benefits @ — — — — — — 2,922,00!
Disability Insurance and Benefi@ — — — — — 30,000 per mt —
Totals — — 2,640,55! — 2,640,551 2,121,677 an  2,922,00!

30,000 per m¢

(1) Base salary payments will be offset by disabilityyments
(2) Reflects the estimated present value of all fupsregniums under our health plai

(3) Reflects the estimated present value of the cosbteérage for life and accident insurance polieied the estimated amount of proce
payable to the executi's beneficiaries in the event of the execl’'s death

(4) Reflects the estimated amount of proceeds payalifeetexecutive in the event of the execl’s disability.
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Involuntary
or Good
Involuntary Reason
Not Termination
Voluntary for Cause For Cause
Termination Retirement Termination Termination .
(Change in
Control) Disability Death
Mary H. Thomas ®) ®) ®) ®) ®) @D ®)
Compensation:
Base Salar — — 787,50( — 787,50( 787,50( —
Short Term Incentiv: — — 539,06: — 539,06: — —
Benefits and Perquisites
Pos-retirement Health Car — — — — — 410,45¢ —
Life & Accident Insurance an
Benefits @) — — — — — — 1,140,001
Disability Insurance and Benefii@ — — — — — 25,000 per mq —
Totals — —  1,326,56. —  1,326,56. 1,197,954 ar  1,140,00!

25,000 per m¢

(1) Base salary payments will be offset by disabilityyments
(2) Reflects the estimated present value of all fupresmiums under our health plal

(3) Reflects the estimated present value of theaosoverage for life and accident insurance peti@nd the estimated amount of proceeds
payable to the executi's beneficiaries in the event of the exect’s death

(4) Reflects the estimated amount of proceeds payatifeetexecutive in the event of the exect’s disability.

Compensation of Directors
The following table sets forth the compensationvjzted by the Company to non-management directorisgl2011:

Change in
Pension Value
and
Fees Earnet Nongqualified
Deferred_ All Other'
or Paid Option Compensatior Compensatior
in Cash Awards
Name ($) $ Earnings ($) $) Total ($)
Jeffrey Benjamir — — — — —
David Bondermai — — — — —
Jonathan Cosle¢@) — — — — —
Kelvin Davis — — — — —
Jeffrey Housenbol ® 8,88¢ — — — 8,88¢
Karl Petersor — — — — —
Eric Pres: — — — — —
Marc Rowar — — — — —
David Sambu — — — — —
Lynn C. Swanr® 90,00( 33,24 — — 123,24°
Jinlong Wan¢® 100,00( 71,95: — — 171,95:
Christopher J. William: ® 130,00( 20,35: — — 150,35:

(1) Amounts in this column represent the sum of (i)dbgregate grant date fair value computed in aeecme with FASB ASC Topic 71
and (ii) the incremental fair value of options thegre repriced in 2011, as of July 8, 2011, the déthe repricing

(2) Mr. Coslet resigned from the Board effective Novem®9, 2011

(3) Mr. Housenbold was elected to the Board effectiogéinber 29, 2011 and his compensation for 201 1pn@sted
(4) Mr. Swann had a total of 4,690 options outstandindecember 31, 201

(5) Mr. Wang had a total of 4,009 options outstandinddecember 31, 201

(6) Mr. Williams also serves on the NJ/PA Audit Comeétt For his services on the NJ/PA Audit Commitkée,Williams was paid a
annual retainer of $30,000 in 2011. He had a tftd|916 options outstanding on December 31, 2
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In 2011, only Mr. Williams, Mr. Swann, Mr. Wang,&Mr. Housenbold received compensation for theivises as members of our
Board. Mr. Williams and Mr. Swann received a omeeioption grant on July 1, 2008, which vests rgtabkr five years from the date of
election to our Board. Mr. Williams received anioptto purchase 4,916 shares of common stock, an&Mann received an option to
purchase 3,688 shares of common stock. In Jan@drd;, r. Swann received an option to purchase ditiadal 1,002 shares of common
stock, and Mr. Wang received an option to purcg889 shares of common stock. In July 2011, the ldB@oved amendments to outstant
stock options reducing the price of outstandingetinased options to $20.09, with the reduced exeprise being phased in between a four to
six year period, depending on the grant date. thtiaxh, each of these directors and Mr. Housenbetegive annual cash compensation paid
monthly in arrears. Mr. Williams receives $100,G0hually, Mr. Swann receives $90,000 annually, lMndWang receives $100,000 annually.
Mr. Housenbolds compensation for 2012 shall be $100,000 annuHitig.remaining directors do not receive compensdtiotheir service as
member of our Board. All of our directors are reurged for any expenses incurred in connection thigr service.

2012 Performance Incentive Plan

Our Board and stockholders have adopted the 20df@rBence Incentive Plan, or 2012 Incentive Plame Tollowing is a summary of
certain terms and conditions of the 2012 Incenfiam.

Eligibility
Directors, employees, officers, and individual adtents or advisors who render services to the Gomr its subsidiaries may be
selected to receive awards under the 2012 InceRiae.

Administration

Our Board or a subcommittee thereof has the auhtariadminister the 2012 Incentive Plan. The Baard subcommittee may delegate
some or all authority to another committee. In fddj to the extent permitted by applicable lavg Board or subcommittee may delegate to
one or more officers of the Company its powersdsighate the officers and employees who will reegjrants of awards under the 2012
Incentive Plan and to determine the number of shsubject to, and the other terms and conditionsuzh awards. Ministerial, non-
discretionary functions may be delegated to cexfiners, employees and third parties.

For awards intended to satisfy the requirementpésformance-based compensation under Section }&#(tine Internal Revenue Code,
the 2012 Incentive Plan will be administered bymmittee consisting solely of two or more outsidtlectors. Awards or transactions intended
to be exempt under Rule 18bef the Securities Exchange Act, must be authdrigethe Board or a committee consisting solelynaf or more
non-employee directors (as such requirement isepphder Rule 16b-3). And, to the extent requirgcny applicable listing agency, this
2012 Incentive Plan shall be administered by a ciiteencomposed entirely of “independent directovgithin the meaning of the applicable
listing agency.

It is currently anticipated that the HRC will adnsiter the 2012 Incentive Plan. The HRC, the Boardny subcommittee administrating
the 2012 Incentive Plan is referred to in this swannas the “plan administrator.”

The plan administrator has broad authority, sulifeetxpress provisions of the 2012 Incentive Pian,
. select participants and determine the types of @svirat they are to receiv

. determine the number of shares that are to be dubjewards and the terms and conditions of aw@ndiiding the price (if any) 1
be paid for the shares or award, vesting schedpdgformance targets and the events of terminatiGuch awards’

. approve the form of agreements evidencing the asyarbich need not be identical as to type of avesirdmong participant:

. cancel, modify or waive our rights with respectaomodify, discontinue, suspend or terminate anglicoutstanding award
subject to any required conser

. accelerate or extend the vesting or exercisahifitpr extend the term of, any or all outstandimgeds, subject to the terms of the
2012 Incentive Plar

. construe and interpret the 2012 Incentive Planaanydagreements relating to the 2012 Incentive F
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subject to the other provisions of the 2012 Inaenklan, make certain adjustments to outstandirag@sy including to the numb
of shares of common stock subject to any awardptive of any award or previously imposed terms emtlitions;

authorize the termination, conversion, substitutiosuccession of awards upon the occurrence tinesvents

allow the purchase price of an award or sharesioEommon stock to be paid in the form of cashckler electronic funds transfi
by the delivery of previously-owned shares of oommon stock or by a reduction of the number of shaeliverable pursuant to
the award, by services rendered by the recipietii@fward, by notice and third party payment shtess exercise on such term
the plan administrator may authorize, or any ofben permitted by law; an

determine the date of grant of awards, which magfter, but not before, the plan administr’s action and, unless otherw
designated by the plan administrator, will be thgedf plan administrat’s action.

The plan administrator will have full discretiontake such actions as it deems necessary or deesfoatihe administration of the 2012
Incentive Plan. Plan administrator decisions retatd the 2012 Incentive Plan are final and binding

Number of Shares Authorized and Award Limits
Subiject to adjustment in connection with changesapitalization, the maximum number of shares afauwmmon stock that may be

delivered pursuant to awards under the 2012 Ineefitian is the sum of: (1) 6,867,019 shares otourmon stock, (2) 474,211 the number of

shares under the Equity Plan that are not sulgestock options granted as of consummation of witial public offering in February 2012 and
(3) the number of shares subject to stock optisaatgd under the Equity Plan, and outstanding erd#ite the 2012 Incentive Plan was first
approved by its stockholders, which thereafter expmr for any reason are cancelled or terminatéttiput being exercised.

As of the date of this 2011 Form 10-K, no awardgehzeen granted under the 2012 Incentive Planttentlill number of shares
authorized under the 2012 Incentive Plan is avlilédr award purposes.

This maximum share reserve will be reduced in ataoece with the rules in this paragraph:

to the extent an award is settled in cash or a fotter than common stock, the shares that would baen delivered had there b
no such cash or other settlement will not be caliagginst the shares available for issuance uhde2@12 Incentive Plal

if shares of common stock are delivered in respeatdividend equivalent right, the actual numbkeshares delivered with respe
to the award will be counted against the sharetdir

if shares of common stock are delivered pursuatitgexercise of a stock appreciation right oraptiranted under the 20
Incentive Plan, the number of underlying share® aghich the exercise related will be counted asfatine applicable share limits,
opposed to only counting the shares actually issaed

shares that are subject to or underlie awardsttyte, are cancelled, terminated or forfeited,tfavest, or for any other reason |
not paid or delivered under the 2012 Incentive Rlaall again be available for subsequent awardsruhé 2012 Incentive Plan, &
shares that are exchanged by a participant or elithity the Company as full or partial payment inreection with any award und
the 2012 Incentive Plan, or to satisfy tax withlddobligations related to any award, will not haidable for subsequent awards
under the 2012 Incentive Ple

No fractional shares may be awarded under the Rttehtive Plan. The plan administrator may pay dasieu of fractional shares.

The 2012 Incentive Plan includes the following éiddial caps:

no more than 6,867,019 shares may be issued vgiffece to incentive stock options under the 2012ntige Plan
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. the maximum number of shares of common stock stitjabose options and stock appreciation righés #ine granted duril
any calendar year to any individual under the 20&2ntive Plan is 3,433,509 shar

. the maximum number of shares of common stock winak be delivered pursuant to performance-baseddsxather than
options and stock appreciation rights intendedatsfy the requirements for “performance-based camsption” under
Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m), and other ¢thah awards covered by the cap in the followergence) that are
granted to any one participant in any calendar wéhnot exceed 1,373,404 shares, either indivilyuar in the aggregate

. in addition, the aggregate amount of compensatidietpaid to any one participant in respect opatformance-based
awards payable only in cash and not related toeshafrcommon stock and granted to that participaaty one calendar
year will not exceed $25,000,000.00; ¢

. awards cancelled during the year will be counteairegy the limits in the preceding two bullets te #xtent required b
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Cc¢

Changes in Capitalization

As is customary in incentive plans of this natig,the number and type of shares of common stockther securities) available under
the 2012 Incentive Plan, and the specific shargdjrmaximums and numbers of shares set forth dlsein the 2012 Incentive Plan, (2) the
number, amount and type of shares of common stwotitfier securities or property) subject to outditagn awards, (3) the grant, purchase, k
or exercise price and/or (4) the securities, casitlwer property deliverable upon exercise or payrnoé outstanding awards must be equitably
and proportionately adjusted by the plan adminigtrapon any reclassification, recapitalizatiomcgtsplit, reverse stock split, merger,
combination, consolidation, reorganization, spif)-split-up, extraordinary dividend distribution iespect of the common stock, any exchange
of common stock or other securities of the Companygny similar, unusual or extraordinary corpotea@saction in respect of the common
stock. Unless otherwise expressly provided in th@ieable award agreement, upon (or, as may bessaogto effect the adjustment,
immediately prior to) any change-in-control-typeset; the plan administrator shall equitably andppréonately adjust the performance
standards applicable to any then-outstanding pedace-based awards to the extent necessary tayedbat not increase) the level of
incentives intended by the 2012 Incentive Plantaedhen-outstanding performance-based awards.

Awards Available for Grant

Awards under the 2012 Incentive Plan may be irffdhm of non-qualified and incentive (qualified) skooptions, stock appreciation
rights, stock bonuses, restricted stock, perforraatack, stock units, phantom stock, dividend egjeivts, cash awards, rights to purchase or
acquire shares, or similar securities with a vaglated to our common stock. Awards may be maa®einbination or in tandem with, in
replacement of, as alternatives to, or as the payfoem for grants or rights under any other empkyr compensation plan of the Compan
one of its subsidiaries.

Awards under the 2012 Incentive Plan generally moll be transferable other than by will or the laafslescent and distribution, though
the plan administrator may permit awards to be@@ged by and paid to, or otherwise transferredeudrtain conditions or in the plan
administrator’s discretion.

Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

Options granted under the 2012 Incentive Planbelsubject to the terms and conditions establiblyatie plan administrator in an awi
agreement. All options granted under the 2012 ItieerPlan shall be non-qualified unless the applieaward agreement states that the option
is intended to be an incentive stock option. Themtef an option or stock appreciation right willngeally be ten years (or five years for
incentive stock options granted to a 10% sharehpkiéject to the 2012 Incentive Plan’s and thdiegple award agreement’s provisions for
earlier expiration upon certain termination frompgoyment.

The exercise price of options and base price aksappreciation rights will not be less than thie fisarket value of the common stock at
the date of grant; however, incentive stock optigranted to a participant who owns shares repriegemntore than 10% of the voting power of
all classes of shares of the Company or any suygidiill have an exercise price that is no less thh0% of the fair market value of our
common stock at grant.

Payment of Exercise Price

The purchase or exercise price for an award utdeP®12 Incentive Plan may be paid by means ofamful consideration, as
determined by the plan administrator, includingvies rendered by the award recipient; cash, chacilectronic funds transfer; notice and
third party payment; delivery of previously—owndthses of common stock; a reduction in
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the number of shares otherwise deliverable pursioaihe award; or pursuant to a “cashless exereigth’a third party who provides financing
for the purposes of (or who otherwise facilitatiss) purchase or exercise of awards. Shares of constock used to satisfy the exercise price
of an option will be valued at their fair markefw@on the date of exercise. The Company will robbligated to deliver any shares until it
receives full payment of the exercise or purchagee gherefore and any related withholding obligat and other conditions to exercise or
purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwisessigrprovided in an applicable award agreemeetptéin administrator may at any time
eliminate or limit a participan’ ability to pay the purchase or exercise pricamyfaward by any method other than cash. The plariréstrato
may provide for the deferred payment of awardsraagl determine the terms applicable to deferrals.

Section 162(m) Performance-Based Awards

Any of the types of awards granted under the 20t2ntive Plan may be, and options and stock apgresirights granted to officers a
employees typically will be, granted as awardsridesl to satisfy the requirements for “performanceasell compensation” within the meaning
of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Codéhéfplan administrator determines that an awardrdtian an option or stock appreciation
right is intended to be subject to Section 162¢hg,plan administrator shall establish performasriteria based on one or more of the
following (as applied under generally accepted antiag principles or in the financial reportingtbE Company or of its subsidiaries):

. earnings per shar

. cash flow (which means cash and cash equivalenigediefrom either net cash flow from operationset cash flow from
operations, financing and investing activitie

. stock price:

. total stockholder returr

. net revenue

. revenue growth

. operating income (before or after taxe

. net earnings (before or after interest, taxes,&®@gation and/or amortization
. return on equity or on assets or on net investn

. cost containment or reductic

. property earnings (before interest, taxes, deptieci@nd/or amortization

. adjusted earnings (before interest, taxes, degi@eiand/or amortization

. reduction in corporate expens

. customer service scores;

. any combination therea

Performance-based awards may provide for performtargets to be adjusted to mitigate the unbudgetpdct of material, unusual or

nonrecurring gains and losses, accounting chargether extraordinary events not foreseen at the the targets were set. The applicable
performance measurement period may not be lesghia@® months nor more than 10 years.

Corporate Transactions

Generally, and subject to limited exceptions sethfon the 2012 Incentive Plan, if we dissolve adargo certain corporate transactions
such as a merger, business combination, consalidaii other reorganization; an exchange of ourrnomstock; a sale of substantially all of
our assets; or any other event in which we areheosurviving entity, all awards then-outstandimgler the 2012 Incentive Plan will become
fully vested or paid, as applicable, and will temate or be terminated in such circumstances, uttesglan administrator provides for the
assumption, substitution or other continuationhef &ward. The plan administrator may also makeipiavfor a cash payment in settlement of
awards upon such events. The plan administratoradapt such valuation methodologies for outstandimgrds as it deems reasonable in the
event of a cash or property settlement and, irctse of options, stock appreciation rights or similghts, may base such settlement solely
upon the excess if any of the per share amounty@ygon or in respect of such event over the éseiar base price of the award.

The plan administrator also has the discretiorstatdish other change in control provisions witbpect to awards granted under the 2
Incentive Plan. For example, the plan administratadd provide for the acceleration of vesting ayment of an award in connection with a
corporate event that is not described above anddedhat any such acceleration shall be automgtin the occurrence of any such event.
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Amendment

Our Board may amend or terminate the 2012 Incefftlae at any time, but no amendment or terminatiay, without participant
consent, impair the rights of such participantny enaterial respect under any award previouslytgdrPlan amendments will be submitted to
stockholders for their approval as required by @pble law or any applicable listing agency.

Clawback/Forfeiture

Unless an award agreement provides otherwisegietknt of an accounting restatement due to mhtenecompliance by the Company
with any financial reporting requirement under fleeurities laws that reduces the amount payaldei®in respect of an award under the 2012
Incentive Plan that would have been earned hafirthecial results been properly reported (i) theaedwill be cancelled and the participant
will forfeit the cash or shares received or payalahe vesting, exercise or settlement of the dvaad proceeds of the sale, gain or other value
realized on the vesting or exercise of the awarth@ishares of common stock acquired in respettiechward (and the participant may be
required to return or pay such shares or amouthtee@Company). If, after a termination by a par@eipfrom employment or services with the
Company and its subsidiaries, the plan administdétermines that the Company or any of its subsies had grounds to terminate such
participant for “Cause”ds defined in the 2012 Incentive Plan), then (§) amtstanding award held by such participant magdreelled withot
payment therefor and (ii) the plan administratoymequire the participant to forfeit and pay owvethie Company, on demand, all or any
portion of the compensation, gain or other valudized upon the exercise of any option or stockegiption right, or the subsequent sale of
shares of common stock acquired upon exerciseabf gsption or stock appreciation right and the vakedized on the vesting, payment or
settlement of any other award during the periobbfaihg the date of the conduct constituting cagethe extent required by applicable law
and/or the rules of any exchange or inter-dealetajion system on which shares of common stochigtesl or quoted, or if so required
pursuant to a written policy adopted by the Comp@syin effect and/or amended from time to time)amls under the 2012 Incentive Plan
shall be subject (including on a retroactive basig)lawback, forfeiture or similar requirementadauch requirements shall be deemed
incorporated by reference into the 2012 IncentilaRAnd all outstanding award agreements).

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a general summary of the mataded. federal income tax consequences of the geaptcise and vesting of awards
under the 2012 Incentive Plan and the dispositfshares acquired pursuant to exercise or settleafesuch awards and is intended to reflect
the current provisions of the Internal Revenue Cantbthe regulations thereunder. This summarytisntended to be a complete statement of
applicable law, nor does it address foreign, statagl and payroll tax considerations. Moreoveg, thS. federal income tax consequences to
any particular participant may differ from thosescdgbed herein by reason of, among other thingsp#rticular circumstances of such
participant.

Options

The Internal Revenue Code requires that, for treatraf an option as an incentive stock option, ehacquired through exercise of an
incentive stock option cannot be disposed of betioedater of (i) two years from grant or (i) opear from exercise. Holders of incentive stock
options will generally incur no federal income tability at the time of grant or exercise. Howeyvitre spread at exercise will be an “item of
tax preference,” which may give rise to “alternatiminimum tax” liability for the taxable year in weh the exercise occurs. If the holder does
not dispose of the shares before the above-mertioboleling periods, the difference between the @gengrice and the amount realized upon
disposition of the shares will be long-term capdain or loss. Assuming both holding periods atisfed, no deduction will be allowed to us
for federal income tax purposes in connection whthgrant or exercise of the incentive stock optibthe holder of shares acquired through
exercise of an incentive stock option disposefia$e shares within the holding periods, the paiti will generally realize taxable
compensation at the time of such disposition etputiie difference between the exercise price aadasser of the fair market value of the s
on the exercise date or the amount realized osuhsequent disposition of the shares, and that anll generally be deductible by us for
federal income tax purposes, subject to the passibitations on deductibility under Sections 288@&1 162(m) of the Code for compensation
paid to executives designated in those sectiomglliyj if an incentive stock option becomes firséreisable in any year for shares having an
aggregate value in excess of $100,000 (based agrémé date value), the portion of the incentiveektoption in respect of those excess shares
will be treated as a non-qualified share optionféaleral income tax purposes.

No income will be realized by a participant upoargrof an option that does not qualify as an ingergtock option (“a nonqualified
option”). Upon exercise of a naqualified option, the participant will recognizedorary compensation income equal to the excessyif of the
fair market value of the underlying exercised shaneer the option exercise price paid at the tifnexercise, and the participastax basis wil
equal the sum of the compensation income recogrirddhe exercise price. We will be able to dethistsame amount for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, but such deduction may bédiminder Sections 280G and 162(m) of the Codedmpensation paid to certain
executives designated in those sections. In thetefe sale of shares received upon the exeréigenon-qualified option, any appreciation or
depreciation after the exercise date generallylvaltaxed as capital gain or loss and will be learga gain or loss if the holding period for such
shares is more than one year.
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Stock Appreciation Rights

No income will be realized by a participant upoargrof a stock appreciation right. Upon exercile,garticipant will recognize ordinary
compensation income equal to the fair market vafude payment received in respect of the stockexpation right. We will be able to deduct
this same amount for U.S. federal income tax puepoBut such deduction may be limited under Sest®89G and 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code for compensation paid to certain éxesudesignated in those sections.

Restricted StockA participant will not be subject to tax upon grant of an award of restricted stock unless #réigpant otherwise
elects to be taxed at the time of grant pursuaBettion 83(b) of the Code. No election under $adi3(b) of the Code or any similar law st
be made without the prior written consent of then@uttee. On the date an award of restricted stedoimes transferable or is no longer
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture, thetiggpant will have taxable compensation equah® difference between the fair market value of
the shares on that date over the amount the gaatitpaid for such shares, if any, unless the @patint made an election under Section 83(t
the Code to be taxed at the time of grant. If thgipipant made an election under Section 83(Ig) pdrticipant will have taxable compensation
at the time of grant equal to the difference betwtbe fair market value of the shares on the datgamt over the amount the participant paid
for such shares, if any. If the election is matle,garticipant will not be allowed a deduction &mnounts subsequently required to be returned
to the Company. (Special rules apply to the recaigt disposition of restricted stock received Hicefs and directors who are subject to
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act). The Companylvélable to deduct, at the same time as it isgized by the participant, the amount of
taxable compensation to the participant for U.8efal income tax purposes, but such deduction rediyrited under Sections 280G and 162
(m) of the Code for compensation paid to certaiecexives designated in those Sections.

Restricted Stock UnitsA participant will not be subject to tax upon igfraf a restricted stock unit. Rather, upon delpvafrshares or cash
pursuant to an RSU, the participant will have tdgaompensation equal to the fair market valudefriumber of shares (or the amount of
cash) the participant actually receives with respethe restricted stock unit. The Company willdide to deduct the amount of taxable
compensation for U.S. federal income tax purpdsesthe deduction may be limited under Sectiong280d 162(m) of the Code for
compensation paid to certain executives desigriatdtbse Sections.

Other Stock-Based Awards$n general, a participant will not be subjectdr on the date of grant of another stock-baseddavia
general, the compensation that the participanivesgursuant to another stock-based award witiigect to tax on the date that the
participant becomes vested in such award at orglinaome tax rates.

Section 162(m)

In general, Section 162(m) of the Internal Reve@ode denies a publicly held corporation a deduditotd.S. federal income tax
purposes for compensation in excess of $1,000,609exnr per person to its chief executive officed three other officers whose compense
is required to be disclosed in its proxy statenfertluding the chief financial officer), subjectdertain exceptions. The 2012 Incentive Plan is
intended to satisfy an exception from Section 1§2fith respect to grants of options and stock agipten rights. In addition, the 2012
Incentive Plan is designed to permit certain awafdgstricted stocks, stock units and other awéirdduding cash bonus awards) to qualify
under the “performance-based compensation” exaeptiGection 162(m) of the Code.

Human Resources Committee Interlocks and Insider Récipation

The HRC is comprised of three members: Messrs. HD&owan and Swann. None of these individualscisreent or former officer or
employee of any of our subsidiaries. During 20Idhenof our executive officers served as a direatanember of a compensation committee
(or other committee serving an equivalent functiohny other entity whose executive officers sdrae a director or member of the HRC.
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ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Equity Compensation Plan Information

In February 2008, our Board of Directors approvesllarrah’s Entertainment, Inc. Management Equitghtive Plan and granted
options to purchase our common stock to certamuoffficers and employees.

The table below sets forth information regarding eguity compensation plans as of December 31,.2011

Q) (b ©

Number of securities

Number of securities to bt remaining available for
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercis future issuance under equit

Plan Category outstanding options(1) price of outstanding option: compensation plang?)
Management Equity Incentive PI 8,744,64! $ 38.1¢ 452,27

(1) The weighted average remaining contract life feraptions set forth in this column is 7.3 yearse fiimber of securities to be isst
upon exercise of outstanding options includes 2B ghares related to a rollover option signed witn executive on January 27, 2008,
that provides for the conversion of options to pase shares of the Company prior to the Acquisititmoptions to purchase shares of
the Company following the Acquisitions. The rollowaptions are separate from the shares availalderudarrah’s Entertainment, Inc.
Management Equity Incentive Ple

(2) In November 2011, the Board approved an ineréashe total number of shares of common stockrtiey be issued pursuant to the
Management Equity Incentive Plan to 8,582,876 filgg55,573

Ownership of Caesars Entertainment Common Stock

The following table lists the beneficial ownersbifpour common stock as of March 1, 2012, by HarHleldings LLC, the Sponsors, the
Paulson Investors, all current directors and dinesbminees, our named executive officers, alladines and executive officers as a group, and
the percentage of shares beneficially owned by bedeficial owners. In connection with the Co-Irtees Transaction, Hamlet Holdings has
agreed to cause its irrevocable proxy to be terrathwith respect to 24,150,456 of the ReleasedeShald by certain co-investors. All shares
held by funds affiliated with and controlled by tBponsors and their co-investors, representing?6®®our outstanding common stock are
subject to an irrevocable proxy that gives Hamleldihgs sole voting and sole dispositive power wébpect to such shares.
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Shares of
Stock Percentagt
Beneficially

Name Owned of Class
Apollo Funds®® — —
TPG Fundh@)@ — —
Hamlet Holdings®®) 87,605,29 69.%
Paulson Investor®) 12,372,83 9.9%
Jeffrey Benjamir(® — —
David Bondermai®® — —
Kelvin Davis®) — —
Jonathan S. Halkyai(0) 125,94¢ *
Jeffrey T. Housenbol — —
Thomas M. Jenkii20) 170,01¢ *
Gary W. Lovemai(10) 1,343,111 1.1%
John W. R. Payn(0) 113,41: *
Karl Petersor® — —
Eric Pres« — —
Marc Rowar® — —
David B. Sambu® — —
Lynn C. Swanr0 2,414 *
Mary H. Thomas20) 45,017 *
Jinlong Wanc(0 802 *
Christopher J. William 20 2,95( *
All directors and executive officers as a gr(@c 1,886,64! 1.5%

* Indicates less than 1’

(1) Each of Apollo Hamlet Holdings, LLC*Apollo Hamle") and Apollo Hamlet Holdings B, LLC*Apollo Hamlet E” and together witl
Apollo Hamlet, the “Apollo Funds”), TPG Hamlet Hatgjs, LLC (“TPG Hamlet”) and TPG Hamlet Holdings B,C (“TPG Hamlet B,”
and together with TPG Hamlet, the “TPG Funds”), @uwdinvest Hamlet Holdings B, LLC (“Co-Invest B"hd Co-Invest Hamlet
Holdings, Series LLC (“Co-Invest LLC” and togetheith “Co-Invest B”, the “Co-Invest Funds”), haveagited an irrevocable proxy (the
“Irrevocable Proxy”) in respect of all of the shaui@ common stock held by such entity to Hamletditas, irrevocably constituting and
appointing Hamlet Holdings, with full power of suitgtion, its true and lawful proxy and attorneyfarct to: (i) vote all of the shares of
the common stock held by such entity at any medtng any adjournment or postponement thereof)aafs@rs’ stockholders, and in
connection with any written consent of Caesar<ldtolders, and (ii) direct and effect the salendfar or other disposition of all or any
part of the shares of common stock held by thatyerf, as and when so determined in the solerdisen of Hamlet Holdings

(2) Apollo Hamlet, Apollo Hamlet B and the -Invest Funds directly hold an aggregate of 61,198 ghares of common stock, all of wh
are subject to the Irrevocable Proxy. Each of Apblamlet Holdings, LLC and Apollo Hamlet Holdings IB_C is an affiliate of, and is
controlled by, affiliates of Apollo. Apollo Managemt VI, L.P., an affiliate of Apollo, is one of twnanaging members of each of the Co-
Invest Funds. Messrs. Black, Harris and Rowan sasuhe managers of Apollo Hamlet and Apollo HarBleand also serve as the
executive officers and managers of Apollo andfiitiated investment managers and advisors. Me&lexk, Harris and Rowan are also
members of Hamlet Holdings. The Apollo Funds, tleel@est Funds, Apollo and each of its affiliatasd Messrs. Black, Harris and
Rowan, each disclaim beneficial ownership of argres of common stock beneficially owned by Hamleldihgs pursuant to the
Irrevocable Proxy, or directly held by Apollo Haml&pollo Hamlet B or the Co-Invest Funds, in whilch person does not have a
pecuniary interest. The address of the Apollo FuAg®llo and Apollos investment management affiliates, and MessrekBHarris ant
Rowan is c/o Apollo Global Management, LLC, 9 Westh Street, 43rd Floor, New York, New York 100T®e address of the Co-
Invest Funds is c/o Apollo Global Management, LBGVest 57th Street, 43rd Floor, New York, New Y&f019 and c/o TPG Global,
301 Commerce Street, Suite 3300, Fort Worth, T@6492.
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3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

The TPG Funds and the -Invest Funds directly hold an aggregate of 61,19® ghares of Caesars common stock, all of whicl
subject to the Irrevocable Proxy. The TPG Fundslaiim beneficial ownership of the common stock HeidHamlet Holdings pursuant
the Irrevocable Proxy. The address of the TPG Fismd® TPG Global, 301 Commerce Street, Suite 3806t Worth, Texas 7610

David Bonderman and James G. Coulter are direatffisgrs and shareholders of TPG Group Holdingd33BAdvisors, Inc., which is tl
general partner of TPG Group Holdings (SBS), Lukhich is the sole member of TPG Holdings I-A, Liv@hich is the general partner of
TPG Holdings I, L.P. which is the sole member ofsTBenPar V Advisors, LLC, which is the general partof TPG GenPar V, L.P.,
which is the general partner of TPG V Hamlet AIVPLwhich is the managing member of TPG Hamlet. T3&@Par V, L.P. is also the
managing member of TPG Hamlet B and a managing reeofteach of the Co-Invest Funds. Messrs. Bonderana Coulter are also
members of Hamlet Holdings. Messrs. Bonderman andt€& disclaim beneficial ownership of the comnsbock held by Hamlet
Holdings pursuant to the Irrevocable Proxy. Theraslsl of Messrs. Bonderman and Coulter is c/o TRib&] 301 Commerce Street,
Suite 3300, Fort Worth, Texas 761!

All shares held by the Apollo Funds, the TPG Fuaaid the C-Invest Funds, representing 69.9% of Ca¢' outstanding common stoc
are subject to the Irrevocable Proxy granting Hamlgdings sole voting and sole dispositive powé&hwespect to such shares. The
members of Hamlet Holdings are Leon Black, Joshaaisiand Marc Rowan, each of whom is affiliatethwApollo, and David
Bonderman, James G. Coulter and Jonathan Costét,ofavhom is affiliated with the TPG Funds. Eacémiber holds approximately
17% of the limited liability company interests oéklet Holdings

Includes all of the common stock held by fuads accounts managed by Paulson & Co. Inc., wiiclude Paulson Credit Opportunities
Master Ltd., Paulson Recovery Master Fund Ltd. |$teuAdvantage Master Ltd. and Paulson Advantage Mlaster Ltd. The address of
Paulson & Co. Inc. is 1251 Avenue of the Amerié&ith Floor, New York, NY 1002(

Jeffrey Benjamin, Eric Press and David B. Sambareach affiliated with Apollo or its affiliated iegtment managers and advist
Messrs. Benjamin, Press and Sambur each disclaiefib@al ownership of the shares of common stoek #ére beneficially owned by
Hamlet Holdings, or directly held by any of the Apd-unds or the Cdavest Funds. The address of Messrs. BenjaminsRaed Sambt
is c/o Apollo Global Management, LLC, 9 West 57the8t, 43rd Floor, New York, New York 1001

Kelvin L. Davis is a TPG Senior Partner and KaldPgon is a TPG Partner and each is an officeraohldt Holdings. TPG is an affilia

of (a) the TPG Funds, (b) the Co-Invest Funds,(@héiamlet Holdings. Each of Messrs. Davis and iRBete disclaim beneficial
ownership of the securities subject to the Irrebdedroxy. The address of Messrs. Davis and Petéssw'o TPG Global, 301 Commerce
Street, Suite 3300, Fort Worth, Texas 76

Unless otherwise specified, the address of eadiiohamed executive officers is c/o Caesars Emtentent Corporation, One Caes.
Palace Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 891

Includes common stock that may be acquireHiw0 days pursuant to outstanding stock optibirsHalkyard, 94,508 shares;
Mr. Jenkin, 131,212 shares; Mr. Loveman, 1,081 &#ifres; Mr. Payne, 91,251 shares; Ms. Thomas, B8Jtdres; Mr. Swann, 2,414
shares; Mr. Wang, 802 shares; Mr. Williams, 2,98rss; and 1,492,399 shares for all directors aadutive officers as a grou
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.
Related Party Transaction Policy

Our Board has a written related party transactaicp and procedures which gives our Audit Comneittiee power to approve or
disapprove potential related party transactionsunfdirectors and executive officers, their imméslimmily members, and entities where they
hold a 5% or greater beneficial ownership interése Audit Committee is charged with reviewingralevant facts and circumstances of a
related party transaction, including if the trarigacis on terms comparable to those that couldldiained in arm’s length dealings with an
unrelated third party and the extent of the persamterest in the transaction.

The policy has pre-approved the following relatadytransactions:

» Compensation to an executive officer or directatt ik reported in the compé’s public filings and has such been approve
recommended to the Board of Directors for apprayahe Human Resources Committee or the 162(m @tanmittee;

» Transactions where the interest arises only fronth@persa’s position as a director on the related ['s board; (b) direct ¢
indirect ownership of less than 5% of the relatartyp or (c) the person’s position as a partnehtlie related party and all other
related parties, in the aggregate, have an intefdsss than 5% interest and is not the generéhgaof and does not have another
position in the partnership; al

» Transactions involving services as a bank depgsabfunds, transfer agent, registrar, trustee uadeust indenture, or simili
services

* Any transaction where the Related Party’s inteaeises solely from the ownership of any class ef@ompany’s securities and all
holders of that class of the Comp’s securities receive the same benefit on a prdoesss.

* Any transaction involving a Related Party wherertites or charges involved are determined by catiyeebids.

A Related Party Transaction is defined as a traisgarrangement or relationship (or any seriesimwilar transactions, arrangements or
relationships) in which the Company (including arfiyts subsidiaries) was, is or will be a participand the amount involved exceeds
$120,000, and in which any Related Party had, haglbhave a direct or indirect interest.

The following discussion reflects our relationsh@sl related party transactions entered into imeotion with the Acquisition and does
not reflect relationships prior to that time.

Hamlet Holdings Operating Agreement

All holders of Hamlet Holdings’ equity securitiegegarties to Hamlet Holdings’ limited liability ogpany operating agreement. The
operating agreement provides, among other thirnggh€& various responsibilities of the members. meenbers include Leon Black, Joshua
Harris, and Marc Rowan, each of whom is affiliatagth Apollo (the “Apollo Members”), and David Bondean, James Coulter, and Jonathan
Coslet, each of whom is affiliated with TPG (theP@ Members” and, together with the Apollo Membére, “Members”). The Members have
the full and exclusive right to manage Hamlet Holdi, and the consent of at least one Apollo Merahdrone TPG Member is required for all
decisions by or on behalf of Hamlet Holdings. Tipemting agreement also contains customary indéatidn rights.

Stockholders’ Agreement

In connection with the Acquisition, Hamlet Holdingse Sponsors and certain of their affiliates,dbenvestors, and certain of their
affiliates entered into a stockholders’ agreemaeittt the Company. The stockholders’ agreement costa@mong other things, the agreement
among the stockholders to restrict their abilitgremsfer stock of the Company, as well as righfest refusal, tag-along rights and drag-along
rights. Pursuant to the stockholders’ agreemenmtaiceof the stockholders have, subject to ceraireptions, preemptive rights on future
offerings of equity securities by the Company. Sheckholders’ agreement also provides the stocldnsidith certain rights with respect to the
approval of certain matters and the designatiamoofinees to serve on the Board, as well as reg@traghts of securities of the Company t
they own.

149



Table of Contents

Our Board was initially comprised of at least n{@g directors, (i) four (4) of whom were designatgdthe Apollo Members and (ii) four
(4) of whom were designated by the TPG Members,(éihdne (1) of whom is the chairman. As ownegshi us by either of the Sponsors
decreases, the stockholders’ agreement providghdéameduction in the number of directors the ralgwMembers can designate.

Pursuant to the stockholders’ agreement, apprdvalioBoard and at least two directors (one desaphly Apollo Members and one
designated by TPG Members) is required for vartoaissactions by us, including, among other thiogs liquidation, dissolution, merger, sale
of all or substantially all of our assets as wslltlae issuance of our securities in connection wétttain acquisitions and joint ventures.

The stockholders’ agreement has been amended irection with the recent public offering to preveattain rights under the
stockholders’ agreement (including certain righgsatibed above) from terminating.

Management Investor Rights Agreement

In connection with the Acquisition, the Companyezatl into a Management Investor Rights Agreemetit @értain holders of securities
of the Company, including certain members of maraage of the Company. The agreement governs cetgiacts of the Company’s
relationship with its management security hold&re agreement, among other things:

. restricts the ability of management security haddertransfer shares of common stock of the Compaitly certain exception:
prior to a qualified public offerinc

. allows the Sponsors to require management sedwilters to participate in sale transactions in Whie Sponsors sell more th
40% of their shares of common sto

. allows management security holders to participatgale transactions in which the Sponsors seleshafrcommon stock, subject to
certain exceptions

. allows management security holders to participategistered offerings in which the Sponsors $dirtshares of common stock,
subject to certain limitation:

. allows management security holders below the lef/sknior vice president to require Caesars Enten@ant to repurchase shares
common stock in the event that a management sgdwiitler below the level of senior vice presidexgeriences an economic
hardship prior to an initial public offering, subje¢o annual limits on the compé s repurchase obligatior

. allows management security holders to require thi@g@any to repurchase shares of common stock upmrmiaion of employment
without cause or for good reason; ¢

. allows the Company to repurchase, subject to agipléclaws, all or any portion of the Comp’s common stock held k
management security holders upon the terminatiaghesf employment with the Company or its subsid®grin certain
circumstances

The agreement will terminate upon the earliestcmuo of the dissolution of Hamlet Holdings or theeorrence of any event that reduces
the number of security holders to one.

Services Agreement

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the Spossamd their affiliates entered into a services agent with us relating to the provisi
of certain financial and strategic advisory sersiaad consulting services. We paid the Sponsonedime transaction fee of $200 million for
structuring the Acquisition and will pay an anntes for their management services and advice €qubk greater of $30 million and 1% of
our earnings before interest, taxes, depreciatimhaanortization. Also, under the services agreentkatSponsors have the right to act, in
return for additional fees based on a percentagleeofiross transaction value, as our financialsmher investment banker for any merger,
acquisition, disposition, financing or the likent decide we need to engage someone to fill suoleaWe have agreed to indemnify the
Sponsors and their affiliates and their directofScers and representatives for losses relatintipécservices contemplated by the services
agreement and the engagement of affiliates of grn$ors pursuant to, and the performance by thettmrecervices contemplated by, the
services agreement.
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Currently, the annual monitoring fee payable uritlerservices agreement would terminate automatiogibn an initial public offering ¢
our common stock (among other circumstances), and/euld be required to pay to the Sponsors a luampi®presenting the remaining
annual fees due to the Sponsors for the remairfdbe®ervices agreement term. If this lump-sumvwias due upon consummation of our
recent public offering, we would have been requiteday an approximately $195 million terminati@e fto the Sponsors. However, the
Sponsors agreed that our recent offering did nggér the termination of the services agreemegtase any termination fee to be due. The
current terms and provisions, including as to pld@nd termination fees, of the services agreemvéhtontinue to apply.

Sponsor Investment and Exchange Agreement

On June 3, 2010, in connection with a private plaeeat transaction with the Paulson Investors, weredtinto an investment and
exchange agreement with HBC and affiliates of therSors (the “Sponsor Investment and Exchange Agga¥). Pursuant to the Sponsor
Investment and Exchange Agreement, on June 24, 28lliates of the Sponsors acquired approxima#d93 million of certain senior notes
CEOC from HBC for aggregate consideration of appnately $200 million. Affiliates of the Sponsorsalagreed in the Sponsor Investment
and Exchange Agreement to exchange up to a to&4@8 million of the notes, including the notepurchased pursuant to the Sponsor
Investment and Exchange Agreement, for 5.7% of &aésquity.

Proxy

All shares of Caesars held by funds affiliated veittd controlled by the Sponsors and their co-irorestrere made subject to a proxy in
favor of Hamlet Holdings effective as of Novemb@r 2010. The proxy, which is irrevocable, granteairitet Holdings sole voting and
dispositive control over all such shares. The meamb&Hamlet Holdings are comprised of an equal Imemof individuals affiliated with each
of the Sponsors. In connection with our recent jpuliffering, Hamlet Holdings has agreed to causérlievocable proxy to be terminated with
respect to 24,150,456 of the Released Shares hadrtain co-investors. After giving effect to theblic offering, 69.9% of Caesars’
outstanding common stock is subject to the proxauor of Hamlet Holdings.

Director Independence

As of March 1, 2012, our Board was comprised ofrdgfBenjamin, David Bonderman, Kelvin L. Davisffdey T. Housenbold, Gary W.
Loveman, Karl Peterson, Eric Press, Marc RowannLl@nSwann, Christopher J. Williams, David B. Sambnd Jinlong Wang. We are a
“controlled company” under the NASDAQ corporate gmance standards, and we have elected not to gamithl the NASDAQ corporate
governance requirement that a majority of our Bazamaksist of independent directors. Additionallyséa upon the listing standards of the
NASDAQ, the national securities exchange upon wieighcommon stock was listed on February 8, 20E2dwnot believe that Mess
Benjamin, Bonderman, Davis, Loveman, Peterson sPRawan, or Sambur would be considered indeperimsratuse of their relationships
with certain affiliates of the funds and other ges which hold 69.9% of our outstanding voting coom stock, and other relationships with us.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

FEES PAID TO DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
The following table summarizes the aggregate fedés @r accrued by the Company to Deloitte & Touth® during 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Audit Fees (a $4,840.8  $4,975.(
Audit-Related Fees (k 326.4 590.1
Tax Fees (c 1,217. 1,719.:
Total $6,384.0  $7,284.

(@) Audit Fees—Fees for audit services billed in 2011 and 201Gixted of:

. Audit of the Companys annual financial statements, including the audfithe various subsidiaries conducting gaming afens a:
required by the regulations of the respective glicisons;

. Sarbane-Oxley Act, Section 404 attestation servic
. Reviews of the Compar's quarterly financial statements; ¢

. Comfort letters, statutory and regulatory auditgsents, and other services related to Securii@£achange Commission (“SEC”
matters.

(b) Audit-Related Fee—Fees for aud-related services billed in 2011 and 2010 consisfe
. Quarterly revenue and compliance audits performeeain of our properties as required by stataigg regulations
. Internal control reviews; ar
. Agreec-upon procedures engagemel

(c) Tax Fees—Fees for tax services paid in 2011 and 2010 catsist tax compliance and tax planning and ady

. Fees for tax compliance services totaled $817,8865834,715 in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Taxpiiamce services are
services rendered based upon facts already ireexistor transactions that have already occurrdddament, compute, and obtain
government approval for amounts to be include@unfilings and consisted ¢

i. Federal, state, and local income tax returnsteasce
ii. Requests for technical advice from taxing auities
iii. Assistance with tax audits and appeals

. Fees for tax planning and advice services totad@) P30 and $884,450 in 2011 and 2010, respectiVely planning and advice
are services rendered with respect to proposeddacdions or that alter a transaction to obtainrtiquéar tax result. Such services
consisted of

i. Tax advice related to structuring certain pragbmergers, acquisitions, and disposals
ii. Tax advice related to the alteration of empleyenefit plans
iii. Tax advice related to an intra-group restruictg
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2011 2010
Memo: Ratio of Tax Planning and Advice Fees to Audit Fdeslit-Related Fees, and Tax Compliance F 0.07:1 0.14:1

In considering the nature of the services p